
 

 

 

 

CABINET 
AGENDA 

 

Wednesday, 12 November 2014 

 

The Jeffrey Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, 
NN1 1DE. 

 
6:00 pm 

 
 

 
 
Members of the Cabinet: 

 
Councillor: David Mackintosh (Leader of the Council) 

Councillor: Mary Markham (Deputy Leader) 

Councillors: Alan Bottwood, Tim Hadland, Mike Hallam, Brandon Eldred.  

 
Chief Executive David Kennedy 

 
 
If you have any enquiries about this agenda please contact 
democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk or 01604 837722  
 

mailto:democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk


 
PORTFOLIOS OF CABINET MEMBERS 
 

CABINET MEMBER TITLE 

Councillor D Mackintosh Leader 
 

Councillor M Markham Deputy Leader 
Housing 

Councillor A Bottwood Finance 
 

Councillor T Hadland Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning 
 

Councillor M Hallam Environment 
 

Councillor B Eldred Community Engagement 
 

 

 
SPEAKING AT CABINET MEETINGS 
Persons (other than Members) wishing to address Cabinet must register their intention to do so by 12 noon on the day of 
the meeting and may speak on any item on that meeting‟s agenda. 
 
Registration can be by: 
 
Telephone:  (01604) 837722 
   (Fax 01604 838729) 
 
In writing:  Democratic Services Manager 

The Guildhall, St Giles Square, Northampton NN1 1DE 
For the attention of the Democratic Services Officer 
 

By e-mail to  democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk 
 
Only thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses, so that if speakers each take three minutes no more than ten 
speakers will be heard.  Each speaker will be allowed to speak for a maximum of three minutes at each meeting.  Speakers 
will normally be heard in the order in which they registered to speak.  However, the Chair of Cabinet may decide to depart 
from that order in the interest of hearing a greater diversity of views on an item, or hearing views on a greater number of 
items.  The Chair of Cabinet may also decide to allow a greater number of addresses and a greater time slot subject still to 
the maximum three minutes per address for such addresses for items of special public interest. 
 
Members who wish to address Cabinet shall notify the Chair prior to the commencement of the meeting and may speak on 
any item on that meeting‟s agenda.  A maximum of thirty minutes in total will be allowed for addresses by Members unless 
the Chair exercises discretion to allow longer.  The time these addresses take will not count towards the thirty minute period 
referred to above so as to prejudice any other persons who have registered their wish to speak. 
 

KEY DECISIONS 
  denotes the issue is a „Key‟ decision: 
 
 Any decision in relation to the Executive function* which results in the Council incurring expenditure which is, or the 

making of saving which are significant having regard to the Council‟s budget for the service or function to which the 
decision relates. For these purpose the minimum financial threshold will be £250,000;   

 

 Where decisions are not likely to involve significant expenditure or savings but nevertheless are likely to be significant 
in terms of their effects on communities in two or more wards or electoral divisions; and 

 

 For the purpose of interpretation a decision, which is ancillary or incidental to a Key decision, which had been 
previously taken by or on behalf of the Council shall not of itself be further deemed to be significant for the purpose of 
the definition. 

 

mailto:democraticservices@northampton.gov.uk


 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 

CABINET 

Your attendance is requested at a meeting to be held: 
 

in The Jeffrey Room, St. Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE. 
 

on Wednesday, 12 November 2014 
 

at 6:00 pm. 
 

D Kennedy 
Chief Executive  

AGENDA 

 
1. APOLOGIES   
 

2. MINUTES   
 

3. INTENTION TO HOLD PART OF THE MEETING IN PRIVATE   
 

4. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES   
 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST   
 

6. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES   
 

(A) RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE - IMPACT OF THE WELFARE REFORM ACT   

Report of the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny (Copy herewith)  
 

7. HOUSING ASSET MANAGEMENT STRATEGY   

 Report of Chief Executive (Copy herewith)  
 

8. NORTHAMPTON PARTNERSHIP HOMES   

 Report of Chief Executive (Copy herewith)  
 

9. ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATION OF NORTHAMPTON PARTNERSHIP HOMES 
LIMITED   

Report of Chief Executive (Copy herewith)  
 

10. THE NORTHAMPTON ARMED FORCES COMMUNITY COVENANT ANNUAL 
PROGRESS REPORT   

Report of Director of Customers and Communities (Copy herewith)   
 

11. STRATEGIC ACQUISITION OF TOWN CENTRE PROPERTY   

 Report of Director of Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning (Copy herewith)   
 

12. DISPOSAL OF LAND AT WESTBRIDGE DEPOT   

 Report of Director for Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning (Copy herewith).   
 

13. HIMO INTERIM PLANNING STATEMENT   

 Report of Director for Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning (Copy herewith)  



 

14. FINANCE AND PERFORMANCE REPORT TO 30TH SEPTEMBER 2014   

 Report of Chief Executive (Copy herewith)  
 

15. EXCLUSION OF PUBLIC AND PRESS   

THE CHAIR TO MOVE: 
“THAT THE PUBLIC AND PRESS BE EXCLUDED FROM THE REMAINDER OF THE 
MEETING ON THE GROUNDS THAT THERE IS LIKELY TO BE DISCLOSURE TO 
THEM OF SUCH CATEGORIES OF EXEMPT INFORMATION AS DEFINED BY 
SECTION 100(1) OF THE LOCAL GOVERNMENT ACT 1972 AS LISTED AGAINST 
SUCH ITEMS OF BUSINESS BY REFERENCE TO THE APPROPRIATE PARAGRAPH 
OF SCHEDULE 12A TO SUCH ACT.”  
 

 SUPPLEMENTARY AGENDA 
 

 Exempted Under Schedule  
12A of L.Govt Act 1972 
Para No:- 



 
 

 
 



Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 8 October 2014 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

CABINET 
 

Wednesday, 8 October 2014 
 

 
PRESENT: Councillor Mackintosh (Chair); Councillor Markham (Deputy Chair); 

Councillors Bottwood, Eldred, Hadland and Hallam 
 
1. APOLOGIES 

Apologies were received from Councillor Bottwood.   
 

2. MINUTES 

The minutes of the meeting held on the 10th September 2014 were agreed and signed by 
the Leader.   
 

3. INTENTION TO HOLD PART OF THE MEETING IN PRIVATE 

There were no items to be held in private.   
 

4. DEPUTATIONS/PUBLIC ADDRESSES 

Jill Hope addressed Cabinet in respect of Item 7 – ‘Policy on the removal of fly tipping from 
private land’ and congratulated the administration on the report which she commented was 
of great importance. She voiced concerns about the proportioning of costs for those served 
legal notices in cases of shared alleyways. She noted that some residents served with a 
legal process notice may become unduly worried, especially if they have to appeal the 
notice at the Magistrates.   
 

5. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 

There were none.   
 

6. ISSUES ARISING FROM OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEES 

There were none.   
 

7. POLICY ON THE REMOVAL OF FLY TIPPING FROM PRIVATE LAND 

Councillor Marriott commented that he welcomed the report but expressed his concerns with 
the increased workload that may be placed on the wardens and also commented that the 
size of the vehicles used in the collection of fly tip waste may need to be considered. He 
further suggested that the Council consider working with students and the University and 
with HIMO landlords to ensure responsible tenant/landlord relationships to reduce incidents 
of fly tipping. 
 
Councillor Glynane commented that in his ward, many gated alleyways had fly tipping 
problems and he believed that HIMOs were partly to blame for the ongoing problem. He 
commented that he welcomed the initiative but asked that further clarification be given with 
regards to the recovery of costs. He expressed concern about the lack of projected costs 
and questioned how it would be operated.  
 
Councillor Hallam as the relevant Cabinet Member submitted a report and commented that it 
clearly showed that administration were listening to the public and responding to concerns 
accordingly. It was noted that 5% of calls received by the Council related to fly tipping on 
private land and alleyways. With regards to the legal process, he noted that the Council 
would be able to recover costs when it was very clear who the perpetrator was. He stated 
that it was a very positive step forward and it would be monitored regularly.  1

Agenda Item 2



Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 8 October 2014 

 
 
RESOLVED: 
 
That an amendment to the current operational policy be approved so that, in the case of fly 
tipping on sites that are shared ownership alleys or other shared ownership entrances such 
as common courts, the Council may where permissible and considered appropriate in the 
circumstances clear and dispose of the fly tipped material.  
 

8. VULCAN WORKS 

Councillor Eldred, as the relevant Cabinet Member submitted a report and commented that 
the former Vulcan Works would be a major part of the Cultural Quarter and would entice 
visitors to the Town. 
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That it be agreed in principle to the acquisition of 4 - 6 Angel Street from 
Northamptonshire County Council and delegated to the Director of Regeneration, 
Enterprise and Planning, in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Regeneration, 
Enterprise and Planning, authority to negotiate the terms of the acquisition, at price 
that is no more than the independently determined market value and subject to 
necessary funding being identified. 

 
2. That the whole of the site be appropriated for planning purposes under Section 122 

of the Local Government Act 1972 and extend this appropriation to include 4 - 6 
Angel Street when acquired. 

 

3. That a consultation exercise be undertaken with business proprietors operating 
within the vicinity of the Vulcan Works site and the occupiers of adjoining residential 
property, ahead of the planning application for Vulcan Works, which will be 
submitted in November 2014. 

  
 

9. GROSVENOR/GREYFRIARS UPDATE 

Councillor Marriott addressed Cabinet and stated that he very much welcomed the report 
and the public consultation that had been taken place. He noted that there was a need for 
bus users to have proper facilities and there was a need for development in the area.  

Councillor Hadland, as the relevant Cabinet Member submitted a report and noted that the 
consultation period had seen 189 responses with many suggestions that would be 
considered, which would be fed into the planning process. 

The Leader commented that the current situation with Greyfriars had been inherited from the 
Liberal Democrats whilst in administration and was not fit for purpose. He further 
commented that they wanted people of Northampton to be at the heart of developing the 
area. 

 

RESOLVED: 

1. That the consultation findings be noted and it be agreed that they should be 
included for consideration in the preparation of viable options and plans for the 
development of the Greyfriars site, in respect of retail and leisure use. 

 
2. That a further progress report be presented to Cabinet in due course.  

2



Cabinet Minutes - Wednesday, 8 October 2014 

  
 

10. ENTERPRISE ZONE UPDATE 

Councillor Hadland, as the relevant Cabinet Member, submitted a report and commented 
that since it had been established, the Enterprise Zone had created in excess of 530 jobs 
and significant improvements had been made in numerous areas with investments in 
projects from public and private investors.  
 
The Leader commented that he had recently seen a report from local estate agents which 
highlighted an increase in the number of people looking to potentially move into the area, 
which was partly attributed to the establishment and investment in the Enterprise Zone.  
 
RESOLVED: 
 

1. That the progress made to date be noted. 
 

2. That an additional request to the Homes & Communities Agency (HCA) of £341,795 
be approved into the Capital Programme through its Local Infrastructure Fund 
programme scheme to bring forward further power supply work within the EZ and for 
this to be repaid through uplift in business rates. 

  
 

The meeting concluded at 6.19pm 
 
 

3



TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

     

 
 
 

 
OVERVIEW & SCRUTINY VIEWS AND 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

TO CABINET 12 NOVEMBER 2014 
 

Report Title RECOMMENDATIONS OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  – 
IMPACT OF THE WELFARE REFORM ACT 
 

 

Agenda Status:  PUBLIC  

  

1.          Purpose 
 
1.1   To present to Cabinet for consideration, the comments and recommendations of the 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee on the findings of the Review – Impact of the Welfare 

Reform Act. 

 

1.2   Members of Cabinet have been issued with a copy of the full report.  All Overview and 

Scrutiny review reports are published on the Overview and Scrutiny page on the 

Council‟s Webpage and a copy of this report can be located:  

www.northampton.gov.uk/scrutiny - Previous Scrutiny Reviews. 

 

2.         Recommendations  

 

2.1   The Overview and Scrutiny Committee recommends to Cabinet that: 

  

             Northampton Borough Council (NBC) 

 

2.1.1 Northampton Borough Council continues to raise awareness of the ongoing reforms, the 

impact and support available from partners, the Voluntary Sector and various 

community groups and organisations. 

 

2.1.2 Revenues and Benefits, LGSS, together with Officers from NBC, continue to provide 

briefings in relation to the emerging reforms and their impact. 

 

Appendices: 

  0 

 

4

Agenda Item 6a

http://www.northampton.gov.uk/scrutiny


TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

2.1.3 In recognising the timescales for relevant processes and procedures in relation to 

Welfare Reform, Revenues and Benefits, LGSS, works closely with Housing Services, 

NBC, in order that these processes and procedures are speeded up. 

 

2.1.4 A dedicated resource for benefits advice, financial inclusion and digital inclusion is 

established. 

 

2.1.5 Claimants are continued to be advised of the availability of Discretionary Housing 

Payments (DHP) and awarded payment as necessary. 

 

2.1.6 A Financial Risk Assessment is undertaken and published. 

 

2.1.7 A project is undertaken to establish the roles and responsibilities in relation to Welfare 

Reform, in particular: 

 Implementation  

 Transition 

 Post-transition  

2.1.8 Staff from the relevant service areas – Customer Services, Housing Services, NBC, and 

Revenues and Benefits, LGSS, are trained and skilled so that they can support 

individuals through Welfare Reform. 

 

2.1.9 Links with the Department of Work and Pensions (DWP) are actively explored, including 

the possibility of benefits advice, in particular the application of sanctions, and support 

presence within the One Stop Shop. 

 

2.1.10 Links with ATOS (or relevant organisation) regarding the impact of the delays in 

assessing the entitlement of PIPs and the delays with appeals are actively explored. 

 

2.1.11 The Sustainable Independent Living (SIL) Scheme Toolkit – Northamptonshire County 

Council Social Fund 2014/2015 is disseminated to all Councillors and staff.  A workshop 

for all Councillors is scheduled explaining the work of the Sustainable Independent 

Living Scheme and Charity Link and the application process.   

            Northamptonshire Credit Union 

 

2.1.12 Consideration is given to the development of viable alternatives to pay day loans, for 

example, facilities are introduced to assist clients to set up direct debits from the 

Northamptonshire Credit Union to pay bills such as rent (Council and private sector), 

Council Tax and utilities. 

5



TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

 

2.1.13 Consideration is given to Northampton Borough Council joining the East Midlands Credit 

Union Initiative where rent would be paid directly to the Council, as the social landlord, 

rather than directly to the tenant.   

 

2.1.14 The work of Northamptonshire Credit Union is promoted to encourage people to use it 

as an alternative to payday loans. 

 

            Voluntary Sector 

 

2.1.15 Close links into and between the Voluntary Sector and Northampton Borough Council 

are promoted.  

 

2.1.16 Active promotion of the work of Voluntary Sector organisations, such as (Charity Link, 

Citizens Advice Bureau and Community Law) takes place on the Council‟s website, 

within the One Stop Shop and as part of outreach activities such as tenants‟ 

conferences. 

 

2.1.17 Service Level Agreements with Voluntary Sector organisations are explicit in relation to 

the necessity to provide support and advice to customers facing sanction. 

 

            Food Banks 

2.1.18 Northampton Borough Council supports the development of Food Hubs. 

 

            Monitoring  

2.1.19 Monitoring of the accumulative impact of Welfare Reform as changes are implemented 

and embedded continues, to inform the development of appropriate support and, in 

particular, to help prepare for the implementation of Universal Credit. 

3.         Background and Issues 

 

3.1       The purpose of the review was to evaluate the effect of the Welfare Reform Act on the 

public and Council employees. 

 

3.2      The Overview and Scrutiny Committee, at its work programming event in March 2013, 

agreed to include a review of the impact of the Welfare Reform Act 2012.  This was an 

issue that had been identified by the Cabinet Member for Finance as one of his key 

priorities and it had also been suggested by the public as an area for future Scrutiny 

review.  The Overview and Scrutiny Committee commissioned Scrutiny Panel 1 to 

6



TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

undertake the review.   An in-depth review commenced in January 2014 and 

concluded in July 2014. 

 

3.3   A  Scrutiny   Panel was  established comprising Councillor Lee Mason,  (Chair); 

Councillor Danielle Stone (Deputy Chair), together with  Councillors  Joy Capstick, 

Elizabeth Gowen, Beverley Mennell, Dennis Meredith and Brian Sargeant. 

 

3.4 This review links to the Council‟s corporate priorities, particularly corporate priority 8 – 

responding to your needs. 

 

 

3.5 The Scrutiny Panel established that the following needed to be investigated and linked 

to the realisation of the Council‟s corporate priorities: 

 Background data: 

 

 Presentation setting the Scene: - The policy context and timetable for 

change. 

 Presentation - An overview of the national Welfare Reforms:          

Setting a baseline position and measuring impacts 

 

 Centre for Public Scrutiny‟s Policy Briefing 19 - Welfare Reform (September 

2012) 

 Centre for Public Scrutiny‟s briefing Paper  - The local impacts of the 

introduction of Universal Credit and the wider welfare reforms (August 2013) 

 Kensington and Chelsea Social Council‟s report – Change for Children  - A 

study of local families in Kensington and Chelsea (2013) 

 Various relevant published papers from organisations, such as, Rowntree 

Foundation, Child Poverty Action Group, SHELTER 

 Witness Evidence: 

 

 Cabinet Member for Housing, Northampton Borough Council (NBC) 

 Cabinet Member for Finance, NBC 

 Housing Advice Service, NBC 

 Head of Benefits and Revenues, NBC 

 Head of Customer and Cultural Services, NBC 

 Community Law 

 Citizen‟s Advice Bureau, Northampton 

 Northamptonshire Credit Union Ltd 

 Thorplands Sure Start Centre, Northampton  

 SIL Officers, Northamptonshire County Council 

 Charity Link  

 Northampton Food Banks  

 Hope Centre, Oasis House, Northampton  

 Case studies from a variety of constituents via ward Councillors 

7



TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

 

 Best practice examples from a range of local services and other Local 

Authorities, in particular, a Local Authority that is piloting Universal Credit 

 

3.6       In considering the evidence the following conclusions were made: - 

 

             Impact - Council Employees 

 

3.6.1   Evidence gathering highlighted that the Government is transferring more responsibility 

onto Local Authorities, families and individuals. The immediate impact on Local 

Authorities and their residents is the reduction in personal, family and Council income.  

The Department of Work and Pensions states it will work closely with Local Authorities 

to manage the transition process between now and 2017.  Transitional Funding was 

provided by central Government, which was used by Northampton Borough Council for 

increased opening hours and more Officers taking and making telephone calls. 

 

3.6.2  The Scrutiny Panel acknowledged that the Welfare Reform Act 2012 has not impacted 

as much as expected on the workload of staff in the One Stop Shop, Contact Centre, 

Revenues and Benefits and Housing Services.   There has been an impact but it was 

not as great as had been anticipated, for example, Revenues and Benefits Services 

found the workload to have remained static over the last year but telephone calls have 

increased dramatically. The Scrutiny Panel noted that more recently, people presenting 

at the One Stop Shop are in more desperate need.   

 
 

3.6.3  The Scrutiny Panel welcomed the work undertaken by Revenues and Benefits that 

informed customers about the Welfare Reform Act 2012 and how it could impact prior to 

its introduction.  It was felt that the work undertaken to notify customers of the changes 

prior to the implementation of the Welfare Reform Act 2012 had made a positive impact. 

 

3.6.4  Caseloads were static in 2013/2014 and there has not been a lot of migration. There has 

not been a lot of migration from London that the Scrutiny Panel is aware of.  It was 

realised that if the caseload is static there are no financial implications on the Authority.  

The Welfare Reform Act 2012 had not created an increase in inward migration.  

 

3.6.5  The Council provides assistance to vulnerable people, such as money advice.  The 

Gateway Team becomes aware of vulnerable, homeless individuals and families very 

quickly.  Demand for assistance such as this has not been as great as expected; Oasis 

House has provided assistance. 

 

3.6.6  Whilst noting that there has not been an increase in customers presenting at the One 

Stop Shop or Contact Centre directly linked to the Welfare Reform Act 2012, the 

Scrutiny Panel emphasised that there has been an overall increase in customers 

because they have more debt because of increased food prices and fuel prices without 

8



TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

a corresponding increase in income. This is across the board – customers in receipt of 

benefit and those who are working.  There have been more requests for food vouchers 

and requests for Discretionary Housing Payment. 

 

3.6.7  The budget for discretionary housing payments (DHP) was increased from £50,000 to 

£400,000 in 2013/2014, a similar level for 2014/2015. It was acknowledged that this is 

an adequate annual amount for DHP so far. 

 

3.6.8  The Scrutiny Panel emphasised the need for a clear process to disseminate information 

regarding sanctions and the benefits system.  A number of Local Authorities are issuing 

“Life Packs” when they let a property, which includes information about money 

management and debt advice. 

 

 

            Impact – General Public 

 

3.6.9    The Scrutiny Panel acknowledged that as a result of the Welfare Reform Act 2012, there 

had been a number of small changes to the benefit system that cumulatively have 

resulted in a large impact on a considerable number of people. 

 

3.6.10The number of people “missing” an instalment for Council Tax has increased.  The 

collection rate in the Council Tax Support Scheme reflects that the Council is not able to 

collect it all and it has therefore been reduced by 1.3% to 96% collection rate.  Work is 

undertaken with the most vulnerable clients and the Voluntary Sector regarding an 

arrangement that most suits their needs.   The Scrutiny Panel welcomed the agreement 

stated in the Allocations Policy that tenants will be contacted when they are two weeks 

in rent arrears. 

 

3.6.11 The Scrutiny Panel was pleased to note that the form for Council Tax assistance had 

been simplified and was available on-line.  Support is also provided regarding 

completion of the form, should people require it. 

 

3.6.12  The Scrutiny Panel acknowledged that the NBC website provides detailed information 

regarding welfare reform and signposting for anyone affected. The usefulness of the 

video:  www.northampton.gov.uk/welfarereform was recognised. 

 

3.6.13  It was highlighted that other factors can have an influence on arrears, such as increased 

food and fuel prices and static or reduced salaries.     The Scrutiny Panel noted that 

4,000 tenants have arrears of some kind, which could be from £1 to £1,000.  This is 500 

more than this time last year.  It is estimated that 300 are in arrears as a direct result of 

the Welfare Reform Act.   It was realised that there are some tenants that will not 

9

http://www.northampton.gov.uk/welfarereform


TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

engage with the Council.  The Scrutiny Panel emphasised the need for individuals to 

look at budgeting as often their income did not match their current outgoings.   

  

3.6.14   The Scrutiny Panel welcomed the accessibility of the Credit Union that had relocated to 

the Guildhall on 4 April 2014.   There are costs such as £10 for a client to open an 

account and 50p to £1 per transaction thereafter.  

3.6.15  Evidence gathered, in particular from the anonymised case studies, provided by 

members of the Scrutiny Panel, highlighted that some households and individuals, 

notably sickness and disability claimants, are affected by several different elements of 

the reforms and have suffered considerable delays. 

 

3.6.16    The Scrutiny Panel was pleased to note that there are no cases of children being taken 

into care because the family is homeless.   Assistance is given to help them find a 

home, such as private rented accommodation. 

 

3.6.17   Families living in bed and breakfast accommodation has increased.  Last year there 

were 19 families in bed and breakfast; week commencing 24 March 2014, there were 

30, which included five that were categorised as intentionally homeless. 

 

3.6.18    As a landlord, the Council is aware of all of its tenants. Resources are targeted to those 

that require it.  Intervention is provided as needed. 

 

3.6.19  The evidence received highlighted the increase in the use of Food Banks and this 

correlates with sanctions and delays in receiving benefits.  Food Banks do a sterling 

job but the Scrutiny Panel was concerned that people have to use Food Banks.  The 

evidence further highlighted that increases in the use of Food Banks take place 

particularly during school holidays. There has been an increase in free school dinners 

nationally and the Scrutiny Panel welcomed that from September 2014, all Key Stage 1 

children will be entitled to a free school lunch.  Statistics provided at section 3.3.3 of 

the Overview and Scrutiny report details the number of food parcels distributed from 

April 2013 to June 2014.  The increase in food parcels for families was noted. 

 

3.6.20 The Scrutiny Panel was concerned that the needs of cultural diverse communities were 

not being met by Food Banks but acknowledged that the Sustainable Independent 

Living (SIL) Officer, Northamptonshire County Council, is currently in dialogue with 

BME SRP (Sub Regional Partnership) regarding this. 

 

3.6.21   The need to educate people regarding not wasting food was highlighted.  The Scrutiny 

Panel was pleased to note that the SIL Scheme was working towards the No Waste 

Strategy- “Love Food – Hate Waste” and that further ideas had been obtained from a 

recent workshop. 

10



TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

 

3.6.22   The Scrutiny Panel was concerned regarding the exploitation of people by pay day 

lenders.    

 

 

             Under Occupancy 

 

3.6.23  Under occupancy charge is a change to Housing Benefit Entitlement that means 

claimants will receive less in housing benefit if they live in a Housing Association or 

Council property that is deemed to have one or more spare bedrooms. Having one 

spare bedroom will mean claimants will lose 14% of their entitled housing benefit.  

Having two or more spare bedrooms will mean they will lose 25% of their entitlement. 

This tax started affecting properties with spare bedrooms in April 2013. There are 

exemptions to the under occupancy rules by those that have been in continuous 

receipt of housing benefit at the same address since 1 January 1996.    

   

3.6.24    As of 1 April 2013, 1,134 tenants were under occupiers. As of 31 December 2013 this 

was 904 and by 31 March 2014 under occupancy had reduced to 842.  The Scrutiny 

Panel noted that the reason for the reduction could be a combination of factors, such 

as tenants coming off benefits, child‟s age.  The Scrutiny Panel noted that there is a 

shortage of two bedded properties.  

 

3.6.25   The local impact of the reduction in housing allowance for five-bed properties will apply 

to private sector properties rather than Council housing. 

 

3.6.26   Where  there are separate household families living in the same property, bedroom 

need is split, for example, a family with a three bedded property need and 

grandparents with a one bedded property need, the grandparents‟ income would be 

considered in the claim of the family by way of a non-dependant deduction. 

 

3.6.27    Case studies obtained by the Scrutiny Panel highlighted the apparent lack of availability 

of one-bed properties. 

 

3.6.28    The Scrutiny Panel noted a recent report that had been published by the Department of 

Work and Pensions - Evaluation of Removal of the Spare Room Subsidy: interim 

report.  This report was published on 15 July 2014. 

 

              Universal Credit 

 

3.6.29    The Scrutiny Panel emphasised the importance of Universal Credit and how this will be 

provided. 

    

11

https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/329948/rr882-evaluation-of-removal-of-the-spare-room-subsidy.pdf
https://www.gov.uk/government/uploads/system/uploads/attachment_data/file/329948/rr882-evaluation-of-removal-of-the-spare-room-subsidy.pdf


TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

3.6.30     The  need  for  evaluation  of  the impact of the Universal Credit was realised. The 

Scrutiny Panel felt that it would be useful for a further Scrutiny review to be 

undertaken that would monitor the effect of Universal Credit after it had been in place 

for 12 months.  It is expected that Universal Credit will start to be rolled out, at the 

earliest, in Northampton in the spring 2016; full roll out across the country is still being 

communicated as the autumn 2017 and to some pensioners in 2020. However, the 

timeline has slipped and a further announcement is expected in the autumn 2014. 

Work is ongoing locally regarding Universal Credit.  The Scrutiny Panel was pleased 

to note that Northampton Borough Council (NBC) is carrying out partnership working 

with Southwark Council, who are involved in a Universal Credit pilot. 

 

                Published research – Welfare Reform 

3.6.31       From the evidence gathered, recent published findings of Central Government‟s Work 

and Pensions Committee on 1 April 2014 called for the Government to change a 

number of its reforms because of their impact on disabled and vulnerable people. The 

MPs called for people living in significantly adapted homes to be exempt from the 

bedroom tax, under which benefit is reduced for social tenants deemed to have spare 

rooms. They also called for everyone on the higher rate mobility or care component of 

disability living allowance to be exempt. They also said affected households should 

be exempt if „there is no suitable, reasonable alternative‟ home to move to. 

 

3.6.32      Published papers regarding the impact of the Welfare Reform Act highlighted: 

 

 Financial insecurity is the major concern for parents, twice as likely to cause 

concern as rising bills. 

 The cost of school uniforms puts extra financial pressure on parents. 

 Affordable childcare is cited as the main barrier to out-of-work parents 

seeking employment. 

 Parents do seek help and are supported by local organisations, family and 

friends in times of need.  

 There are general uncertainties because so many elements of Welfare 

Reform are taking place over the same period and there are concerns about 

the cumulative impact of these changes. Organisations are looking to 

streamline their operations and to prioritise and focus their resources on rent 

collections and tenancy support.  Some may step back from their wider 

community support programmes. Others are setting up charitable funds. The 

evidence emphasised that Housing Associations are striving to ensure both 

they and their tenants work through this situation as best they can but there 

will be increased costs and real victims. Much turns on how the programme 

of welfare reform unfolds and what adjustments are made in the process. 

 A considerable amount of Housing Associations‟ stock is affected by the 

“bedroom tax”  Generally, it is the greatest concerns of organisations in the 

12



TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

North of England where there are  higher rates of under-occupation and a 

history of building predominantly larger homes and demolishing smaller 

homes as part of regeneration schemes to provide more sustainable Housing 

Associations concurred with the Government‟s view that the large majority of 

affected households were likely to stay put, and see their housing benefit 

reduced. 

 Many claimants of incapacity benefits have undergone Work Capability 

Assessments, been found fit for work and so have moved on to Jobseeker‟s 

Allowance. For some, this move may be appropriate and even beneficial. 

Yet after several years out of the job market, many lack the self-esteem, 

qualifications or skills to successfully move into employment.  

 Some claimants of incapacity benefits have been incorrectly assessed and 

moved onto Jobseeker‟s Allowance despite not being well enough to work. 

People in this situation experience a great deal of anxiety and face the 

difficult process of appealing the assessment.  

 Families affected by Housing Benefit changes have to contemplate moving 

to cheaper areas or smaller properties. Such moves result in families losing 

the support networks they have built up over many years, leading to 

isolation and increased vulnerability.  It can also mean children have to 

change schools.  

 As a result of recent reforms, many people are getting into debt. Without 

sufficient reserves to get through crises, such as unexpected bills or benefit 

delays, and with the reduction of local authority social funds, many people 

are turning to food banks or pay day loans. 

 The Church can be a valuable source of support for those affected by 

welfare reform. Located within communities, churches are ideally placed to 

offer both the short-term support that is needed by those in crisis and the 

long term relational networks that provide on-going support, helping people 

to build their self-esteem and skills, and to ultimately reduce their reliance on 

benefits. 

 The Church of England‟s research paper illustrated how it felt that 

thousands of households are likely to see a considerable reduction in their 

income over the six year period from 2010/11 to 2016/17. Whilst some 

reforms, such as the increase in the personal tax allowance and the freeze 

in Council Tax, increase the disposable income of certain households, these 

gains are more than offset by other reforms, such as those to Housing 

Benefit and tax credits. According to the Institute of Fiscal Studies, the 

overall impact of recent tax and benefit changes will be to reduce the 

incomes of the poorest families with children by an average of 5 - 7% by 

2015/16. 

 The Church of England reports that its studies indicate the impact of recent 

reforms is not purely financial. There are practical and emotional 

consequences when families have to consider changing jobs or moving 

house, or disabled people undergo medical assessments, start looking for 

work, or cut back on essential spending. In our third and final report on 

13



TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

welfare reform, the Church of England will be exploring these wider 

dimensions through interviews with local churches and faith-based 

organisations actively involved in supporting the people most directly 

affected by the reforms. 

 As demand for internal transfers rises and larger properties become 

undesirable for families receiving housing benefit, void rent losses could 

increase considerably. 

 The cost of loans is likely to increase as lenders price up the extra risks 

involved in collecting rent directly from tenants who have had other sources 

of income cut. 

 

     Partners 

 

3.6.33  The  evidence  gathered indicated that collaborative funding applications would be 

useful, coupled with a strategic view.  The Scrutiny Panel emphasised that there 

should not be duplication of effort and that there is a need for co-ordination and support 

for smaller groups to put in bids for funding. 

 

3.6.34    The  Scrutiny  Panel welcomed the work of Thorplands Sure Start Centre, recognising 

the importance of its work in such a deprived area. 

 

3.6.35   The Social Fund is administered by Northamptonshire County Council and demand is 

considerable.  The Scrutiny Panel was concerned regarding the future of the 

Sustainable Independent Living (SIL) Scheme, post April 2015. 

3.6.36 The Scrutiny Panel supported the work of Charity Link and was concerned to note that 

there had been a fourfold increase in Food Bank referrals. The increase in utility 

referrals had tripled in Leicestershire since 2012/2013; mainly due to sanctions and 

delays in benefits. 

3.6.37   The Scrutiny Panel noted that Councillors can refer individuals to the SIL Scheme and 

organisations and charities, such as Charity Link.  It highlighted the need for all 

Councillors to be aware of this.  It would be useful for the Sustainable Independent 

Living Scheme Toolkit - Northamptonshire County Council Social Fund 2014/2015, to 

be disseminated to all Councillors and a workshop scheduled explaining the work of 

the Sustainable Independent Living Scheme and Charity Link. 

              Food Banks 

3.6.38 The Scrutiny Panel was informed that over the past year there has been a significant 

increase in the use of Food Banks in Northampton.  Since May 2013,   the 

Northampton Food Banks have supplied 3,573 food parcels, a mix of one person, two 

person and family parcels. The most common reasons for requiring the services of a 

Food Bank include benefit delays, benefit changes, low income and debt.   

 

14



TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

3.6.39 The Scrutiny Panel acknowledged that individuals can normally use a Food Bank five 

times a year. This is to ensure they do not become dependent upon the service. 

 

3.6.40 In addition, the Scrutiny Panel noted the number of food parcels distributed by 

Thorplands Sure Start Centre – thirteen from May 2013 to April 2014. 

 

3.6.41 Sanctions resulting from the introduction of the Claimant Commitment are also creating 

increased demand. 

 

3.6.42   The Scrutiny Panel acknowledged that there had been an increase of 47% of people 

accessing the Hope Centre on a daily basis.  In June 2012 daily visitations were 85; this 

has increased to 125 per day. Annually, 13,000 people use the Hope Centre.   The 

number of people using the carry-out bag service has increased over the year from 

11,800 to 15,000. 

 

4.         Options 

 

4.1 Cabinet will need to consider the possible options as part of its response to the 

recommendations.   

 

5.         Implications  (including financial implications) 

 

5.1 Policy 

 

5.1.1 The work of Overview and Scrutiny plays a major part in the development of the 

Council‟s policy framework through its work programme. 

 

5.1.2 The report and its recommendations have policy implications in relation the impact of the 

Welfare Reform Act 2012.   Cabinet‟s response will need to consider these issues in 

detail. 

 

5.2  Resources and Risk 

 

5.2.1  Cabinet will need to consider the resourcing issues for the recommendations made. 

 

5.3   Legal 

 

5.3.1 Legal issues will need to be considered as part of Cabinet‟s response to the 

recommendations. 

 

5.4   Equality 

 

5.4.1 Equality issues will need to be considered as part of Cabinet‟s response to the 

recommendations. 

 

 

15



TT Scrutiny Panel 1 – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act  – Report to Cabinet 

5.5       Consultees (Internal and External) 

 

5.5.1  The Committee consulted and took evidence from a variety of sources as detailed in 

paragraph 3.5 of this report. 

 

6.         Background Papers 

 

  Overview and Scrutiny Committee report – Impact of the Welfare Reform Act 

(September 2014) 

 

 Minutes of the meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee – 8 September 

2014 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
Report Author and Title:        Tracy Tiff, Scrutiny Officer, on behalf of Councillor Jamie Lane,  

                                              Chair, Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

 

Telephone and Email:           0300 330 7000, email: ttiff@northampton.gov.uk 

  

 

  

 

16

mailto:ttiff@northampton.gov.uk


 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
12th November 2014 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
Housing 
 
Cllr Mary Markham 
 
All Wards 
 

 
 

1.  Purpose 

 
1.1 To obtain approval of the Housing Asset Management Strategy. This 

represents a key joint document between NBC and Northampton Partnership 
Homes for the housing assets owned by NBC and forms part of the Delivery 
Plan and Management Agreement between the organisations. Once approved 
by the cabinet, the term draft will be removed from the document. 

 
2.  Recommendations 

 
2.1 Cabinet are recommended to approve the Housing Asset Management 

Strategy and associated appendices (Appendix 1). 
 

2.2 To delegate authority to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader 
and the Cabinet Member for Housing  to make such amends as necessary to 
finalise all documentation in anticipation of the Section 27 application, as part 
of the creation of Northampton Partnership Homes. 
 

2.3 Thanks all those involved in the process, for their commitment and 
contribution to the completion of the Strategy.  

 

Report Title Housing Asset Management Strategy 

Appendices: 1  
 
 

17

Agenda Item 7



 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

3.   Issues and Choices 

 
3.1  Report Background 
 
3.1.1 On 9th April 2014, following consideration of feedback from consultation with 

key stakeholders, Cabinet agreed that the proposed new ALMO would be a 
Company Limited by Guarantee. The ALMO was registered in the name of 
Northampton Partnership Homes, with the Council’s Chief Executive and 
Monitoring Officer registered as holding directors. A Shadow Board structure 
was agreed and implemented in June 2014 to enable a smooth transition for 
the management of the service. 
 

3.1.2 The NPH Board structure is set up with the following membership; 

 5 Tenants 

 5 Council Nominees 

 4 Independents 

 2 Employees 
A chair and vice-chair has been appointed and six committees, including the 
creation of an Asset Management Committee, created to support the working 
of the Shadow Board. 
 

3.1.3 This strategy also represents a replacement of the previous 2010-15 Housing 
Asset Management which was approved by the cabinet on 28th July 2010. 
 

3.1.4  The attached Housing Asset Management Strategy is a five-year plan which 
outlines the proposed investment priorities for the 16,000+ assets coming 
under the Housing Revenue Account Business Plan. This primarily includes 
the 12,877 residential units owned or partly owned by the Council alongside 
other assets such as garages, parking spaces, land, shops and other 
commercial premises.    
 

3.1.5 This strategy is an operational document that will be regularly reviewed by 
both NBC and NPH, including an annual review and update to reflect 
completed works, changes in legislation, stock condition information and any 
alterations to funding arrangements. However, this strategy should not be 
confused with the Corporate Asset Management Strategy that covers all the 
assets held by NBC under the General Fund. 
 

3.1.6 The main change since the last Housing Asset Management Strategy will be 
the delivery by March 2015 of the Decent Home Standard to all the tenanted 
properties and the creation of the Northampton Home Standard as part of the 
agreement in the creation of the new ALMO. The Northampton Home 
Standard deals with the external fabric and the improvement of local 
environment, as well as the continued delivery of the Decent Homes Standard. 
 

3.1.7 This enhanced home standard will not only bring improvements to tenants but 
will include the 778 leaseholders and the wider community.   

 
3.2  Issues 
 
3.2.1 This is the first joint Asset Management Strategy between NBC & NPH, which 

over the next 5 years will move ‘Asset Management’ from influencing 

18



 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

investment decisions to driving future investments strategy. The strategy 
proposes that Asset Management is a ‘team approach’ but which is facilitated 
by a group of asset management specialists within NPH. 

 
3.2.2 In order to make decisions over the future viability of the housing assets, NPH 

needs to undertake a number of strategic tasks which will ensure funds are 
focussed into programmes agreed with tenants and leaseholders and which 
deliver greater value for money from our repairs and maintenance services.  

 
3.2.3 NBC and NPH will work in collaboration to complete the following, as detailed 

within this Asset Management Strategy: 

A. Formalising future investment priorities with residents and setting out in 
detail how the Northampton Home Standard will be delivered to 
compliment other investments required for HRA properties. 

B. Undertaking assessments of the entire asset stock to help identify 
those assets which will need further investigation before committing 
expenditure. These exercises will assess the future viability of all HRA 
assets to meet the current and future needs of those who require 
housing, plus identify potential redevelopment/ new build opportunities.  

C. Following the above, undertaking detailed investigations of potentially 
obsolete assets to determine the most effective solution. 

D. Developing and publishing an Environmental Plan, to explain and detail 
the primary target for improving the energy issues within the housing 
stock and address the demanding requirements of the Energy Act 2011.  

E. Restructuring our planned maintenance programmes to reduce demand 
for responsive repairs and deliver greater value for money through a 
joined up approach for all the housing maintenance services. 

 
3.2.4 Within the strategy there is a provisional 30 year investment plan for all the 

assets, however until the above exercises are completed, together with some 
of the other objectives outlined in the document, these figures remain 
provisional. Provisional programmes for the first 2 years are currently being 
developed, together with Savills who have been assisting the delivery of the 
Decent Homes Programme. However, within 2 years, NBC & NPH should be a 
stronger position to formally publish more detailed investment programmes 
and provide residents and stakeholders with greater assurance and future 
certainty.  

 
3.2.5 The establishing of a formal Asset Database is also being done through the 

implementation of the Capita Open Housing IT system but currently due to the 
vast amount of data, this information is fairly fragmented. Savills are 
supporting the creation of the forward plans using the data gained from recent 
stock condition surveys but it may take some months before all the data and 
our IT systems are able drive and inform future programmes without the need 
to create Microsoft Excel spreadsheets. 
 

 
 
 
 

19



 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 
3.3 Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1 The Council has the option to consider whether or not to approve the Asset 

Management Strategy and associated documents and proceed with the 
Section 27 application to create the ALMO.  

 
3.3.2 The comprehensive Options Review process completed in December 2013 

thoroughly assessed the available options against a robust set of assessment 
criteria and made the recommendation to proceed with the creation of the 
ALMO. 
 

3.3.3 The strategy does focus on the need to invest in energy efficiency measures 
to help protect our residents again the impact of rising fuel prices and the 
impact of fuel poverty. With the opportunity for energy grant funding in support 
of this form of investment, NPH and NBC will look to optimise these funds  

 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

 
4.1.1 The strategy seeks to set out how NPH will invest in HRA assets and address 

the priorities agreed with residents and NBC towards delivering the new 
Northampton Home Standard and other key investment areas, such as energy 
efficiency and new build developments 

 
4.2 Resources and Risk 

 
4.2.1 The funding of asset management related programmes is based on a 

provisional total capital and revenue investment of over £1,026m over the 30 
year life of the Business Plan. However, as NBC finalises the HRA Business 
Plan and a new Business Plan for NPH is developed to reflect not just the 
figures for investment, but also resourcing the staff costs, overheads and other 
service provision, the allowances within the strategy may well be subject to 
change. Between now and March 2015, a finalised set of figures will be 
agreed and any changes within the 30 year investment plan will be agreed by 
both NBC and the Board.  

 

4.2.2 Around £12.6m/year is revenue funded and covers: 
A. Response Repairs 
B. Voids 
C. Servicing: gas, electric, lifts, fire alarms, etc. 
D. Grounds Maintenance 
E. Cleaning of Communal Areas 
F. External Painting 

 
4.2.3 On average £21.5m/year is capital funded and covers: 

A. External elemental repairs and replacements  
B. Internal elemental repairs and replacements  
C. Communal repairs and replacements 
D. Energy Improvements  
E. Other works & programmes: - anything not covered by the above 

20



 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 
4.2.4 A more detailed breakdown of the anticipated spend into the stock is given in 

Appendix C of the strategy but work is being done to detail the specifics over 
the proposed expenditure over the next 5 years. 

 
4.2.5 The annual review process of the strategy should mitigate any future risk to 

the investment plan and this should avoid residents being disappointed by 
programmes being delayed or cancelled. 

 
4.3 Legal 

 
4.3.1 As the building owners the Council is under a statutory obligation to maintain 

its HRA assets in a good state of repair but with the creation of NPH this 
responsibility will be delegated to NPH to uphold this requirement. Details of 
most of these are outlined within the AM Strategy and the proposed 
Management Agreement will ensure NPH undertake these duties on behalf of 
NBC. 

 
4.4 Equality and Health 
 
4.4.1 This strategy seeks to address the needs of the most vulnerable tenants, 

including those who are older, disabled and/or in threat of fuel poverty and 
there are some specific objectives within the strategy to tackle these needs. In 
addition an assessment of the impact of the strategy has been completed to 
ensure it has does not discriminate or penalise residents and the wider 
community within its proposals. The Impact Assessment can be found at 
http://www.northampton.gov.uk/downloads/download/2916/housing-asset-
management-strategy-community-impact-assessment  

 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1 The contents within this strategy have been widely circulated within the 

housing landlord service to ensure ownership of its proposals across the 
service. 
  

4.5.2 In addition the following groups have also been consulted: 
A. HRA Account Manager 
B. Senior Management Team within Housing Landlord Service 
C. Head of Housing & Wellbeing 
D. Corporate Asset Management 
E. ALMO Implementation Team 
F. Chief Executive 
G. Tenants’ Panel 
H. Asset Management Committee 
I. Cabinet Member for Housing 

 
4.5.3 Details of the amendments made to the document are detailed on page 5 and 

reflect some of the above consultation 
 
 
 
 

21

http://www.northampton.gov.uk/downloads/download/2916/housing-asset-management-strategy-community-impact-assessment
http://www.northampton.gov.uk/downloads/download/2916/housing-asset-management-strategy-community-impact-assessment


 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 The proposed Asset Management Strategy will help deliver against the  

following Corporate Plan priorities and outcomes; 

 Priority 2- Invest in Safer Cleaner Neighbourhoods: The identified 
additional funding to improve day to day service delivery for housing 
services, which also included the implementation of a new local 
investment standard, the Northampton Standard. This standard includes 
plans for significant investment in improvements to estates and 
neighbourhoods, including additional security measures. 

 Priority 4- Making every £ go further: The asset review that will be 
carried out will identify properties where investment requirements exceed 
rental income. This information will be used to undertake option appraisals 
to ensure that value for money considerations will be at the forefront of 
future investment decisions.  

 Priority 5- Better Homes for the Future: The strategic aims with the 
strategy are targeted at improving homes, neighbourhoods and services 
for residents. The development of the new Northampton Standard includes 
new standards for improvements to homes and improved service 
standards.  

 Priority 6- Creating Empowered Communities: One of the key reasons 
for the creation of an ALMO and the background to the Asset 
Management Strategy is the need to provide increased opportunities for 
involvement and decision making for both residents and employees. There 
is a specific section within the strategy that covers ‘Resident Involvement 
& Empowerment’ 

 Priority 8- Responding to your needs: The development of the 
Northampton Home Standard ensures that NPH will be delivering on 
programmes developed in conjunction with tenants and relates to the 
quality of homes and estates. The Tenants’ Panel were in support of the 
principles outlined within the Asset Management Strategy Conferences 
also provided essential feedback from tenants and leaseholders.  

 
4.7 Other Implications 
 
4.7.1 None 
 
5. Background Papers 

 
5.1 Cabinet Report - Housing Asset Management Strategy - 28th July 2010 
5.2 Housing Stock Options Appraisal Community Impact Assessment - December 

2013 
5.3 Cabinet Report- Services to be Delivered by Northampton Partnership Homes 

- 9th July 2014  
 

 
Author: 

Tim Bruce, Interim Asset Strategy & Technical Services Manager, Extn: 8820 
 

22



  

23

epowley
Text Box
Appendix 1



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

1 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

1 

Forward 

 
This Strategy is one of the key documents that describe how Northampton 
Partnership Homes (NPH) will work together with Northampton Borough Council 
(NBC). It sets out how NPH will maintain, improve and seek to develop new 
affordable council housing within Northampton. 
 
We are committed to work together to maximise and improve the quality of the 
housing assets towards improving and building strong communities within the 
Borough. We will encourage the involvement of all residents, including tenants, 
leaseholders, shared and private owners, to work together and aim to attract 
additional funding via energy companies, government, EU or others to help deliver 
this strategy. 
 
We are also committed to see NPH being successful in delivering quality services 
to residents and support the aspirations outlined within this strategy. This includes 
allocating suitable financial resources to enable NPH to operate successfully and 
deliver the aspirations contained within NPH’s Business Plan. 
 
We wish to ensure there is a culture of trust between the Council and NPH. To 
support this there is an agreed level of delegation of responsibility to NPH by the 
Council so decisions concerning the housing service can be reached effectively 
and efficiently. We also accept the stock ownership remains with the Council but 
there needs to be accountability for the management of the assets. 
 
This strategy seeks to set out the agreed elements for effective asset 
management and the Action List within will be regularly reviewed and reported to 
both organisations to ensure the required outcomes are delivered. Over the 5 
years of this strategy we will strive together to ensure we are successful.   
 
Signed: 

       
 
 

 
 

David Latham    Mary Markham 
Chair of the Board    Cabinet Member for Housing 
NPH      NBC 

  

24



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

2 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

2 

Introduction 

 
Welcome to Northampton Borough Council’s (NBC) & Northampton Partnership 
Homes’ (NPH) first joint Asset Management Strategy which over the next 5 years 
will move asset management from influencing investment decisions to driving 
future investments. At the same time this strategy will both inform and support the 
delivery of NPH’s Business Plan and provide a route map for embedding best 
practice in Asset Management. 
 
Before we can publish clear future investment plans and in order to make 
decisions over the future viability of some of our assets, we need to undertake a 
number of tasks which will ensure funds are focussed into programmes agreed 
with tenants and leaseholders and which deliver greater value for money from our 
repairs and maintenance services.  
 
We will work in collaboration to complete the following, as detailed within this 
Asset Management Strategy: 

1. We will formalise our future investment priorities with our residents by 
setting out how we will deliver the Northampton Home Standard to 
compliment other investments required for our properties. 

2. We will undertake assessments of the entire asset stock to help identify 
those properties which need further investigation before we continue to 
spend money. This will assess the future viability of our properties to meet 
the current and future needs of those who need our homes, plus identify 
potential redevelopment opportunities.  

3. Following this we will undertake detailed investigations of potentially 
obsolete assets to determine the most effective solution. 

4. We will develop and publish an Environmental Plan, which will detail the 
primary target for improving the energy issues within the housing stock and 
address the demanding requirements of the Energy Act 2011. 

5. We will also start to restructure our planned maintenance programmes to 
reduce demand for responsive repairs and deliver greater value for money 
through it being a joined up approach to maintenance. 

 
In this strategy we have outlined our proposed 30 year investment plan for all the 
assets, however until we have completed the above exercises, together with 
some of the other objectives outlined in the document, these figures remain 
provisional. We will work to establish provisional programmes for the first 2 years 
and liaise with the residents over this work. However, within 2 years, NPH should 
be a stronger position to formally publish more detailed investment programmes 
and provide residents and stakeholders with greater assurance and future 
certainty. We will then develop a revised Asset Management Strategy to cover the 
remaining 3 years that will apply all of the above and continue to deliver best 
practice in Asset Management. 
  

25



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

3 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

3 

Contents List                Page 
 

     Forward          1 

     Introduction         2 

1.  Summary of Strategic Aims       6 
 

2. Purpose & Strategic Direction      9 

2.1 Goals of this Asset Management Plan    9 
 

3. Policy Context: Stock Profiles and Background Information  10 

3.1 National Context       10 

3.2 Local Context        10 

3.3 Defining Asset Management      11 

3.4 Profile of the Housing Units      13 

 3.4.1. Property Types      13 

3.4.2. Age of the Stock      15 

3.4.3. Non-Traditional Stock     15 

3.4.4. New Developments     16 

3.4.5. Sheltered Schemes     16 

3.4.6. Market Rent      16 

3.4.7. Right to Buy      17 

3.4.8. Leasehold      17 

3.5 Housing Need        17 

3.6 Profile of the Non-housing Assets     18 

3.6.1. Communal Areas and Other Land    18 

3.6.2. Garages       18 

3.6.3. Commercial Premises     19 

3.6.4. Office Accommodation     19 

3.6.5. Licences       19 

3.6.6. Other Miscellaneous Properties    20 

3.7 Stock Condition Surveys      20 

3.7.1. Housing Stock Condition Data    20 

3.7.2. Approach to Stock condition Surveys   20 

3.7.3. Decent Homes Compliance    21 

3.8 Housing Stock Investment      21 

3.9 Non-housing stock Investment     24 
 

4. Stock Portfolio Management       25 

4.1 Asset Review        25 

4.2 Option Appraisal       27 

4.3 Better Use of Stock       28 

4.4 Decision Making process/ Governance    29 
 

5. Investment Planning        31 

 5.1 Links to the Business Plan      31 

26



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

4 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

4 

5.2 Investment Considerations      31 

5.3 Programme Development      32 

5.4 Value for Money       34 

5.5 Investment Priorities       35 
 

6. Delivering the Strategy       36 

6.1 Resident Involvement & Empowerment    36 

6.2 Stock Profiling        36 

6.3 Data Management       37 

6.4 Information Systems       38 

6.5 Sustainability & Energy Efficiency     39 

6.6 Health & Safety Matters      40 

6.6.1 Gas Servicing      40 

6.6.2 Fire Safety      40 

6.6.3 Asbestos      41 

6.6.4 Legionella      41 

6.6.5 Risk of Flooding      42 

6.6.6 Other H&S Issues     42 

6.7 Asset Performance Monitoring     43 

6.8 Leaseholders        44 

6.9 Procurement        44 
 

7 Delivering within Services      46 

7.1 Response Repairs       46 

7.2 Relet Works/ Voids       46 

7.3 Aids & Adaptations       47 

7.4 Planned Programmes       48 

7.4.1 Northampton Home Standard     48 

7.4.2 Cyclical Maintenance Programme   49 

7.4.3 Environmental Improvements & SCATE Project  49 

7.4.4 Other Programmes/ Services    50 

7.5 Refurbishment, Remodelling and Renewal Projects   50 

7.6 Demolition, Redevelopment & New Build Projects   51 

7.7 Disposals        52 
 

8 Strategy Review        53 

8.1 Risk Register        53 

8.2 Equalities Impact Assessment     53 

8.3 Strategy Action List       53 
 

Appendices: 

A Asset Management Strategy Action List 

B Stock Profile information 

C Detailed Investment Cost Tables 

D Asset Management Explained  

E Estate Profiles (40No.) – to follow 

27



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

5 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

5 

 

Document Monitor 
 

 
1. Amendments as recommended by landlord services employees 
2. Amendments as recommended by PAMT 
3. Amendments as updated by Tim B to reflect joint document 
4. Amendment to reconcile HCA number submission 
5. Amendments made following AM Committee input on 22/10/14 & various employees  
6. Final Amendments prior to Cabinet submission 

 
 
  

28



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

6 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

6 

1. Summary of Strategic Aims 

 

Throughout this document there are a series of key strategic aims and 
subsequent objectives as highlighted within a series of yellow boxes. The 
objectives are subsequently summarised in the Action List in Appendix A, which 
will become the principle method for reporting and monitoring the delivery of the 
strategy. 

 
Northampton Borough Council (NBC) is one of seven Borough and District 
Councils located within Northamptonshire, located in the southern East Midlands 
area. There are some 93,213 dwellings located within the Borough, with 14% 
owned and currently managed by the Council.  
 
From 5th January 2015 the responsibility for the management of these homes will 
pass to Northampton Partnership Homes (NPH) which will be a new Arm’s Length 
Management Organisation (ALMO) established by Northampton Borough Council. 
Our prime objective is the provision of affordable housing services to people in 
housing need within the Borough. Details of the aspirations of both NBC and NPH 
are spelt out in an agreed Delivery Plan and this strategy sits as a key element 
within that plan. 
 
The overall aim is ensure that NPH becomes an excellent housing organisation 
and, as such, we are determined to grow and improve services and base these on 
best practice.  
 

NPH manages a total asset base of over 16,000 units, including 12,877 residential 
and over 3,200 non-residential on behalf of Northampton Borough Council. 
Together these assets have a market value, subject to tenancy, of around 
£230million and they currently generate an annual rental income in excess of 
£50million. In addition, we have communal areas and facilities, along with play 
areas and land-holdings so the assets included within this strategy are as follows: 

 10,191 General Needs dwellings, including: 
- Flats 
- Maisonettes  
- Houses  
- Bungalows 

 1,777 Sheltered Scheme Units – Flats & Bungalows 

 778 Leaseholder Units – Flats & Maisonettes  

 80 Shared Ownership Units and 51 other properties 

 Communal Areas, including lifts, staircases, laundries and play areas  

 Land & Amenity Space 

 3,127 Garages & Parking Spaces 

 64 Shops, Electric Sub-stations and other commercial properties 

 Plus, the use of offices at Westbridge Depot and other stores. 
  

29



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

7 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

7 

Strategic Aims:   
 

 

 
1 - Asset Reviews  - To understand how NBC’s assets are performing 

and demonstrate sound portfolio management – 
Section 4.1 

2 - Option Appraisals  - To be in a position to make informed decisions 
about stock using an option appraisal approach – 
Section 4.2 

3 - Better Use of Stock - To make the best use of the stock to meet demand 
and ensure our residents are provided suitable 
accommodation – Section 4.3 

4- Investment Considerations  - To have a sustainable Business Plan based 
on sound investment decisions Section 5.2 

5 - Programme Development  - To develop coordinated and effective 
programmes using the Open Housing database as 
the principal business tool – Section 5.3 

6 - Value for Money - To provide cost-effective, efficient, quality homes 
and services for our residents – Section 5.4 

7 - Resident Involvement & Empowerment - To place residents at the heart of 
decision making and monitoring of services - Section 
6.1 

8 - Detailed Stock Profiling - To understand all land and property assets and 
produce future plans for each asset management 
group – Section 6.2 

9 - Data Management - To continuously improve knowledge of our assets 
to enable effective future investment and clear 
programmes for residents – Section 6.3 

10 - Information Systems - To establish a single, comprehensive and accurate 
asset database covering all NBC’s housing 
properties and land– Section 6.4 

11 - Energy Efficiency  - To improve the quality of life for our residents 
through NPH being an organisation that champions 
environmental sustainability - Section 6.5 

12 - Health & Safety - To provide safe, secure and quality homes for our 
residents – Section 6.6 

 
13 - Performance Monitoring - To create effective key performance indicators for 

our assets in agreement with our residents and the 
Board – Section 6.7 

14 - Leaseholders - To ensure leaseholders receive a quality service, 
tailored to their requirements – Section 6.8 

  

30



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

8 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

8 

15 - Procurement - To achieve Value for Money through strategic 
procurement of all repairs & maintenance services, 
major regeneration and new-build projects – Section 
6.9 

16 - Response Repairs  - To deliver a value for money repairs service that is 
‘right first time’ and meets the needs of and offers 
choice to our customers – Section 7.1 

17 - Relet Works/ Voids - To optimise the use of the stock and provide 
quality homes, creating sustainable tenancies – 
Section 7.2 

18 – Aids & Adaptations - To ensure best use of the adapted stock and 
deliver an effective adaptations service to our 
residents with disabilities – Section 7.3 

19 - Planned Programmes - To produce and deliver coordinated planned 
programmes that achieve VFM and offer certainty 
for our residents – Section 7.4 

20 - Regeneration Projects - To ensure that the housing stock is fit for purpose 
both now and into the future – Section 7.5 

21 - Redevelopment Projects - To deliver the ability to grow NBC’s housing stock 
and provide new properties to support delivery of 
Northampton Borough Council’s Housing Strategy – 
Section 7.6 

22 - Disposals - To undertake selective ‘disposal’ of properties that 
have reached the end of their economic and useful 
life, as clearly demonstrated through asset 
management activities - Section 7.7 

 

  

31



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

9 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

9 

2. Purpose & Strategic Direction: 

 

The purpose of this Asset Management Strategy is to describe how NPH will 
ensure that assets are effectively managed on behalf of NBC and the income they 
generate is optimised so that we build and maintain desirable, sustainable homes 
for current and future generations.  

 

The data held by NBC and across the organisation, especially within our ‘Open 
Housing’ database, will be used to: 

 deliver transparency for future investment decisions 

 drive planned maintenance & regeneration programmes 

 influence the business plan and financial forecasts 

 build and maintain safe, secure, quality homes. 
 

The principal drivers for this Asset Management Strategy are: 

 Informing and supporting delivery of NPH’s Business Plan 

 Engaging and involving with residents in the provision of services 

 Supporting and delivering other agreed NBC & NPH strategies, such as 
an Environmental Plan and Affordable Warmth Strategy 

 Future-proofing the assets 

 Achieving a year on year improvement in  
o the average property yield 
o the income generated by the land and property assets 
o the Net Present  Value (NPV) across the stock 
o the average SAP energy rating of the stock  

 

This strategy marks a major change towards strategic asset management and 
demonstrates NPH’s commitment to it being a priority for the new organisation. 
The creation of an Asset Management Committee within NPH sets a clear 
direction of travel for delivering this strategy. It is envisaged that Asset 
Management will become central to day-to-day activities and move NPH towards 
developing best practice in Housing Asset Management. 
 

2.1. Goals of this Asset Management Plan: 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

 To create a ‘Route Map’ to deliver a holistic approach to the management 
of all our land and property: including: 
 Governing asset decisions and commissioning new asset management projects 
 Regular Asset Reviews of the whole stock 
 Stock Profiling and Option Appraisals to clarify stock opportunities and challenges   
 Clear Investment plans agreed with residents 
 Strengthening the Business and Financial Planning processes 
 Maximising funds and fully utilising the use of in-house resources and skills 

 To deliver cost-effective maintenance services that respond to the needs 
of and offers choice to our residents, including: 
 Establishing projects and programmes based on sound asset data and stock 

knowledge 

 Piloting new service delivery models, such as Property MOTs and a single external 
cyclical maintenance programme  

 To engage and involve our residents and future tenants in setting new 
programmes, standards, processes and policies, including: 
 Formally establishing the ‘Northampton Home Standard’ planned programmes that 

will be deliverable within the Business and Financial Plans. 
 

32



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

10 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

10 

3. Policy Context:  

 

This strategy seeks to sits within a framework of nation, local and business 
policies and this section of the strategy seeks to explain some of the key policies 
that will impact on our approach to Asset Management 

 

3.1. National Context: 

 

There are a number of national policies which impact on asset management, 
principal among these are: 

 Continuing to satisfy the Decent Homes Standard 

 Reducing carbon emissions and improving energy efficiency 

 The HCA’s Regulatory Framework 
 
During the lifetime of this strategy, the 
following legislation, regulations and events 
are also likely to change either our or our 
residents’ use of assets: 

 Regulatory Framework 

 Welfare Reform 

 Carbon Reduction Targets 

 National Affordable Housing 
Programme 

 The 2015 National Election 
 
The approach within this strategy will 
support compliance with the Homes and 
Community Agency’s regulatory requirement for sound management of all assets 
and resources. We will do this by balancing the 3 factors of Social, Financial and 
Environmental implications in all the key decision making processes. 
 

3.2. Local Context 

 

As part of the creation of the ALMO in January 2015, Northampton Partnership 
Homes’ residents agreed an investment programme that completed the delivery 
of the Decent Homes Standard and created a new Northampton ‘Home Standard’ 
that would be delivered over the following 10 years to 2025. The Decent Homes 
programmes will be completed by March 2015 and as a result the vast majority of 
the stock will meet this standard, with those that don’t (around 6%) as a result of 
the sitting tenant declining the required work.  
 
Having met the Decent Homes Standard, our homes will then be maintained at or 
above this level and brought up to the new agreed Northampton ‘Home 
Standard’. This new standard truly reflects our residents’ aspirations, so new 
planned programmes will be developed to ensure the NPH Business Plan has the 
financial plan capacity to deliver this standard. This will be alongside other targets 
which NPH should deliver, such as providing affordable warmth, maintaining fire 

33



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

11 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

11 

safety, structural repairs and removing obsolescence within the stock. All of these 
aspirations shall be within the overall constraints of the HRA Business Plan 
managed by NBC.  
 
Northampton Borough Council’s Influence on NPH  
Whilst NPH will have a level of independence from the Council, the housing stock 
constitutes the vast majority of the social housing within the Borough and 
therefore it is important that there remain close collaboration over the 
management of this stock. The following documents outline the need for close ties 
to continue to exist with the Council: 

 NBC’s Corporate Plan – which outlines the key strategies which influence 
the direction of the Council and will contain aspirations relating to the 
Council’s housing stock and housing within the Borough generally. 

 Housing Revenue Account (HRA) Business Plan and Medium Term 
Capital Programme which shape the high level strategic decisions of the 
use and division of funds to NPH. 

 NBC’s Housing Strategy – The NPH Asset Management Team will work 
with the NBC Housing and Well-being Team to come forward with housing 
solutions that deliver the needs of the community. In addition, it is likely 
that NBC will be seeking to build or take on new properties in the near 
future which it will ask NPH to manage.  

 NBC’s Corporate Asset Management Strategy – This will be to ensure that 
there is a level of consistency in the delivery of Asset Management 
policies and strategies between NBC and NPH 

 NBC’s Affordable Warmth Strategy – Providing affordable warmth is likely 
to prove increasingly difficult as energy prices increase above the rate of 
inflation and salaries. By 2020 energy prices are likely to be considerably 
higher than as present and without investment in both works and 
education, some of our residents are likely to be struggling to maintain 
warmth within their homes 

 NBC’s Housing Allocation Policy – to determine the most suitable 
allocation of properties by housing people in the highest need with 
accommodation that most suit those needs.  

 
NPH’s Objectives 
 
The details of these are to be found in the agreed Delivery Plan. 
 

3.3. Defining Asset Management: 

 
Asset Management covers the range of 
activities NPH undertakes to ensure that all 
land and property assets are geared to meet 
the current and future community, business & 
regulatory requirements. The term ‘asset’ 
includes all the land & property managed by 
NPH, such as: homes, garages, gardens, 
amenity spaces, roads, street lighting, un-
adopted roads and shops.   

34



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

12 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

12 

Asset 
Management

Rent 

Management 
& Income 

Demographics 
& Tenant 
Profiling

Resident 
Engagement  

Strategy

Estate Services 
& Housing 

Management

Shops &
Commercial 

Premises

Stock Condition 
Surveys & Asset 

Database

Asset Reviews 
& Option 
Appraisals

Day to Day 

Repairs & Void 
Properties

Northampton 
Home Standard 

Regeneration & 
Development 

Plans

Value for 
Money 

Strategy

Disposal 
Strategy & 

Acquisitions

Environmental
Plan

Planned 

Programmes

Investment 
Planning & 

Procurement

Delivery Plan 

& Housing 
Strategy

Asset Management is also about making our stock portfolio responsive to our 
policy decisions around service delivery, procedures and standards, etc. 
Therefore it becomes increasingly clear that asset management is not the sole 
domain of a single team within NPH but acts as a complementary theme 
supporting the whole organisation, as illustrated below:  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

  

35



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

13 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

13 

3.4. Profile of Housing Units: 

  
NPH manages 12,877 residential properties owned by NBC in Northampton, the 
majority of which are social rented. However, NPH also manages homes and 
premises for leaseholders, shared owners and are aiming towards the 
development of new homes at ‘Affordable Rent’.  

 

3.4.1. Property Types: 

 
The tables and graphs on the next page provides a summary of the assets 
managed by NPH but a more detailed breakdown is provided in Appendix B:  
  

36



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

14 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

14 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

37



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

15 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

15 

3.4.2. Age of the Stock: 

 
The age distribution of the stock in the table below demonstrates that the major 
group of properties (5,412 - 42%) were constructed post 1975, thus making the 
stock quite young in comparison to many other Local Authorities. The next biggest 
group 21.1% date from 1945-1964, which includes some of non-trads referred to 
below, whilst 20.1% of the stock date from between 1946 to 1974, with just 16.8% 
being pre-1945.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

3.4.3. Non-Traditional Stock: 

 
Within NBC’s housing stock are a number of different non-traditional properties 
which include the following types of construction: 

 Pre-Cast Reinforced Concrete (PRCs), including Airey, Gregory, Orlit & 
Unity 

 Steel-framed, including British Iron and Steel Federation (BISF) 

 Aluminium-framed prefabs, including Hawkesley, 

 Timber-framed, including Swedish 

With the exception of the Swedish Units, all the above are classified as ‘defective’ 
under part XVI of the Housing Act 1985.  
 
However, 15-20 years ago all the Orlits, BISF and Hawkesleys were overclad with 
external wall insulation to help protect the external fabric, prolong the life of and 
improve the energy efficiency of these properties. A decision has already been 
reach on decommissioning the 9No Airey properties, as demonstrated at Toms 
Close and the remaining property in Northfield. The Gregory & Unity are currently 
programmed for improvement which will extend the life of these properties and 
considerably improve energy efficiency. This only leaves the 4 Swedish properties 
where a decision is still need to be reached on their future.   
 

38



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

16 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

16 

In addition to these, there are some other non-traditional constructed properties 
such as ‘crosswall’ and ‘wimpey no-fines’ within the housing stock which are 
generally in fair condition but come with maintenance and energy efficiency 
issues. We are already undertaking external wall insulation schemes to some of 
these properties which are often in blocks of flats. We are still scoping the full 
extent of these properties. 
  

3.4.4. New Developments: 

 
As part of the Dallington Grange development scheme, which will see the 
construction of around 3,000 new homes within the Borough, agreement is being 
reached on the construction of 100 new council properties, which are expected to 
come under NPH’s management.  

NBC are currently looking at 2 alternative funding options to support these new 
build options: 

1. HRA additional borrowing 

2. Land is provided from Council General Fund, with NPH borrowing from 
Council General Fund. NPH “own” homes as RP, but Council receives 
income stream to cover borrowing and loan costs. 

In addition to this scheme, the Asset Management Team will be looking to identify 
other development opportunities and creating a land bank of schemes that can be 
rolled out as the ALMO upskills staff to take on development knowledge and 
experience and prepare bids to attract possible grant funding for the construction 
of new-build projects. 
 

3.4.5. Sheltered Schemes: 

 
NPH will manage 1,777 sheltered bungalows and flats, with 27 of these flats 
currently designated as ‘very sheltered’ or Extra Care. Within this figure there are 
properties within the general needs stock which are primarily allocated to older 
people under the heading of ‘sheltered’. When it comes to the age profile of our 
residents, across NPH some 22.4% of residents living in our assets are 60 or over 
years old. 
 
With the demographic trend of an ageing population, NPH will review and develop 
a strategy toward services to be delivered to this client group. This will be 
undertaken in the light of the substantial reduction in funding for support services 
to older people and likely further reductions subject to the outcome of the election 
in 2015. We aim to complete the previous Sheltered Housing review undertaken 
by the Chartered Institute of Housing (CIH) and this will be done by March 2015, 
looking at both the service delivery and the suitability of assets, with reports taken 
to both SMT and the Board containing recommendations for the future. 
 

3.4.6. Market Rent: 

 
Subject to future decisions by the Board, the Council in conjunction with NPH, 
may consider developing a small stock of market rent properties as income 

39



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

17 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

17 

generators to the business through possible acquisitions over a period of 5 years. 
These properties will probably be sold after 10-15 years to realise capital receipts, 
whilst minimising the requirement for elemental replacements through planned 
maintenance programmes, subject to the strength of the local housing market. 
 

3.4.7. Right to Buy/ Acquire: 

 
Over the past 30 years the number of dwellings owned by NBC, has declined 
through Right to Buy sales, whilst at the same time, demand for social housing 
has increased steadily. In response to this trend, it is both NBC’s and NPH’s 
ambition, to increase the number of properties available for affordable housing 
and contribute to the building of new housing communities. 
 
NPH will commence the monitoring of the ongoing impact of Right to Buy sales on 
the Business Plan and 30 year investment profiles and bring forward reports to 
SMT on the changing profile of the assets. 
 

3.4.8. Leasehold Properties: 

 

There are presently 778 leasehold properties, not including shared-owners, in 
addition to the housing stock with the majority in the Town Centre, Spring 
Boroughs & Kingsthorpe where there are large cluster of flats and maisonettes.  
 
Whereas the internal works of the Decent Homes Standard had little impact on 
leaseholders, the Northampton Home Standard will require extensive consultation 
with leaseholders to procure contracts to allow these works to progress in the 
appropriate blocks of flats. There is a shared responsibility for the external fabric 
of these buildings and, once these contracts are in place, we will issue the 
required notices and then recharge the leaseholders for the shared cost of these 
works. 
 

3.5. Housing Need: 

 

This Asset Management Strategy acknowledges that NPH provides a significant 
contribution towards meeting housing need in Northampton however, we operate 
in an area with significant unmet demand for affordable housing. Currently there 
are over 3,400 applicants registered on the NBC Housing Register.  
 
Following a review of the Housing Allocation Policy in 2012 over 6,000 applicants 
were removed from the Housing Register because they did not qualify for housing 
under the new rules, and they realistically had no hope of being offered a 
property. However, it is very likely that some of these households currently remain 
living in unsuitable housing but new applications have yet to be received. 
 
Analysis of the customer profile indicates that unemployment levels are rising and 
dependency on welfare benefits is on the increase.  Research also indicates 
increased economic vulnerability within our communities and, in particular, the 
residents’ ability to meet the cost of routine household expenditure. 

40



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

18 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

18 

3.6. Profile on Non-Housing Assets: 

 

3.6.1. Communal Areas and Other Land: 

 
The Housing Management Team carries out regular monthly neighbourhood 
inspections of communal and common areas in blocks of flats and carry out 6 
monthly ‘Walk-abouts’ to review the condition of external areas which come under 
the HRA. The work of Estates Team also plays a major role in the effective 
management of communal areas and the provision of electricity and water for the 
cleaning of these areas will be a major consideration over the next 5-10 years.  
 
The Asset Management Team will link into both of these teams to facilitate data 
collection about these communal areas and start to inform the delivery and 
programming of future works to communal areas. 
 
As part of the development of the Asset Management database, a full catalogue 
of other land assets will be developed using Unique Property Reference Numbers 
(UPRNs) and a series of mini-option appraisals undertaken to determine the 
future use of all this land. Where appropriate, reference will be undertaken with 
the NBC Corporate Asset Register (GVA database) to avoid the duplication of 
information. 
 
Early research shows that these assets consist of: 

 Common areas in and around blocks of flats and sheltered schemes 

 communal gardens  

 open space around blocks of flats 

 verges and strips of land around our properties  

 play areas 

 other parcels of land 

 and large rear gardens, some which have adjoining land 
 
Within the Asset Review process outlined in this plan we will also use the 
Council’s GIS system to look at land density around our properties. Where we 
identify potential redundant properties with low density and possible adjoining 
land, the scope for redevelopment can be highlighted and appraised. 
 

3.6.2. Garages & Garage Plots: 

 
NBC has a portfolio of some 2,567 rental garages and 563 parking spaces and a 
variety of previous reviews of these sites has concluded that there are numerous 
development opportunities within these land holdings. However, it should also not 
be missed that despite some high levels of voids, the garage portfolio provided a 
significant financial contribution to the HRA Business Plan. As a result, work is 
being done to improve demand and effectively target repair resources to improve 
this position. 
 
The garage portfolio currently generates an annual income in excess of £500,000, 

41



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

19 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

19 

however, there are high volumes of void units and should we be able to let all our 
garage units and parking spaces, this income could be increased to over £ 1.2m. 
The maintenance of these units is primarily managed through responsive repairs 
and a ‘contingency sum’ towards planned programme. Therefore, as part of this 
AMS, a new Garage Strategy Project will be initiated to examine the best use of 
all the garage sites and seek to maximise the income these assets generate. At 
the same time the existing investment stream will be reviewed to ensure the 
upkeep and good appearance of agreed sites, including the replacement of 
asbestos cement roofs and old garage doors.  
 
Note: In addition to these are all the garages that are integral to a dwelling or within the 

curtilage of a dwelling. These are included within the general rental stream, rather than 
the above figures. The majority of garages attract a separate rental charge, are generally 
off-site provision and not associated with specific properties. These are either let to 
residents or to private customers. 
 

3.6.3. Commercial premises: 

 
NBC has a number of commercial landholdings, including 64 shops, electric sub-
stations and gas governors, which contribute approximately £500k to the income 
to the business and some of these premises could potentially play a large role in 
terms of regeneration and contribution to the building of stronger communities.  

As part of this strategy, NBC’s Asset Management Team will be asked to carry out 
a review of all the shop units to determine the most effective current and future 
use of these assets and the impact on the wider community. A report will be taken 
to the AM Committee to advise them of the future strategy for these units so that 
vacant leases are actively marketed or alternative use or sale is considered.  

 

3.6.4. Office Accommodation: 

 
NPH will aim to operate from a single location in Northampton and, for the 
foreseeable future; this is likely to be at the Westbridge Depot, where the vast 
majority of the landlord service staff are based. 
 
This strategy will include a review of the office and other commercial premises 
and together with the adoption of mobile working and more flexible working 
arrangements, this will probably see the migration of many roles within the 
organisation towards the use of hot-desks and temporary workstations. This 
provides the opportunity to ensure that our future office premises remain 
optimised and deliver value for money for the organisation. 

 

3.6.5. Licences: 

 
Where it is known that a piece of NBC’s land is being used for purposes which 
haven’t been agreed, or where we are approached with a request to use a piece 
of land for a particular purpose, licences or other appropriate agreements may be 
used to ensure that assets are protected. By putting these agreements in place, 

42



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

20 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

20 

individuals will not be able to claim possession of land through use. Due to the 
time and cost of dealing with historical situations, we will normally only act where 
either the land misuse is blatant or where the situation may prevent a future 
development. 
 

3.6.6. Other Miscellaneous Properties: 

 
NPH has a number of additional schemes and properties which come under some 
other form of agreement and these are listed below: 

 Roof Rental Arrangements – NBC has 71 properties with Solar PV Panels, 
where the tenants benefit from lower fuel bills but all other income goes to 
Eon, who funded the installations. 

 Housing Management currently manage the 37 plots at a Traveller’s Site at 
Ecton Lane, although the land does not come under the HRA. 

 Properties taken on for an agreed term under the Empty Homes initiative 
run by Strategic Housing. In most cases these properties are on a 6/7 year 
lease whereby NPH provides the tenancy management and repairs service 
until the end of the lease arrangement, when the properties are returned to 
the building owner. 

 

3.7. Stock Condition: 

 

3.7.1. Housing Stock Condition Data: 

 

NPH’s stock condition database provides essential information for reporting on 
Decent Homes, Energy ratings, Asbestos and for planning future investments. In 
2012 Savills firstly carried out a 25% sample stock condition survey to help inform 
the possible creation of an ALMO. Since then a further 3,000 properties (25%) 
has also been surveyed by Savills to help ensure the delivery of the Decent 
Homes Standard by March 2015 and the results of these two surveys now form 
the basis of the stock condition database. As a result of the delivery of the Decent 
Homes Standard, many properties have been modernised with new kitchens, 
bathrooms, re-wires and new heating systems.  
 
The delivery of the new Northampton Home Standard will be similarly measured 
from this asset database and consideration will be given to the purchasing of the 
Open Housing/ Capita Asset Management Module. This should help provide the 
necessary management functionality to support the delivery of an effective Asset 
Management service and provide improved performance data on the assets. 
 

3.7.2. Approach to Stock Condition Surveys: 

 
Our target is to complete a minimum of 10% stock condition surveys each year 
and this will clarify the subsequent year’s investment plan. In this way, we will 
produce accurate investment programmes and ensure that funds are spent in the 
most effective manner. 
 

43



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

21 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

21 

This stock condition data is a key element when assessing the future viability of 
our housing stock and is used within the Asset Review Model which is outlined in 
the next section of this strategy. In order to facilitate these surveys a new post will 
be created within the Asset Management Team to appoint our own stock condition 
surveyor who will build on the data already gathered. 
 

3.7.3. Decent Homes Compliance: 

 

After NPH completes the delivery of the Decent Homes programmes by March 
2015, only some 6% homes (approx. 700 units) may continue to ‘fail’ the standard 
but this is due to tenants who have chosen to refuse the works, usually by reason 
of old age or infirmity. These properties do not need to be reported as non-decent  
and hence we will have met the requirements of the standard. 
 
Each year other properties will become ‘non-decent’ because some building 
component will be due for replacement, e.g.: a boiler, kitchen or roof. Our target 
within this AMS is to continue to reduce the number of non-decent homes and this 
will be managed within our current investment programmes. 
 
NPH will continue to engage with customers who declined Decent Homes works, 
to ensure that they are able to make informed choices, or we will pick these 
properties up as they become void or as part of future planned programmes. 

 

3.8. Housing Stock Investment: 

 
Having delivered the Decent Homes Standard by March 2015, NPH will build on 
this to deliver the Northampton Home Standard to the housing stock. When 
driving round the Borough’s housing stock it is often the privately owned 
properties bought under the ‘Right to Buy’ that are now suffering from a lack of 
investment and poor appearance. As a result of the Decent Home Standard, the 
vast majority of NPH’s stock is now in a better condition and resident satisfaction 
is improving. The delivery of the Northampton Home Standard over the next 10 
years, together with programmes to improve the energy efficiency of our 
properties will mean that by 2025, the NPH’s assets are likely to be in a 
considerably better condition than many of the neighbouring properties. 
 
The following targets represent investment goals for the entire housing stock, 
except those identified as requiring a detailed option appraisal: 

 100% properties have double glazing by 2017 – with the probable exception of 
listed buildings or properties in conservation areas 

 100% properties to have electric or battery operated smoke detectors by 2018 

 100% A Rated Gas Boilers by 2020 

 100% level access showers to sheltered accommodation by 2020 

 Completion of the SCATE programme for all communal areas by 2020 

 100% of our housing stock has at least 300mm loft insulation by 2020, where 
appropriate 

 50% of our properties to have ‘A Rated’ replacement windows by 2025 

 100% of our properties have Cavity Wall Insulation by 2025, where feasible 

 100% new composite front and rear doors by 2025 

44



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

22 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

22 

 Around 200 properties with new Air or Ground Source Heat Pumps by 2025 where 
no gas network is going to be available – potentially saving 2,000 tonnes of CO2 
per annum, as set out within the Environmental Plan. 

 10% of the stock having Photovoltaic PV panels by 2025 to combat rising fuel 
prices, as set out within the Environmental Plan. 

 Programmes of 500 new kitchens each year  

 Programmes of 1,000 new showers each year 

 Programmes of 1,200 new electronic stop taps fitted each year 
 

At present the funding of asset management related programmes is based on a 
provisional capital and revenue investment of over £1,026m over the 30 year life 
of the Business Plan. However, as NBC finalises the HRA Business Plan and a 
new Business Plan for NPH is developed to reflect not just the figures for 
investment, but also resourcing the staff costs, overheads and other service 
provision, the allowances within the following table may well be subject to change. 
Between now and March 2015, a finalised set of figures will be agreed and any 
changes within the 30yr investment plan will be agreed by both NBC and the 
Board.  

 

Moving forward, the management agreement between NBC and NPH specifies 
how the partners will work together to use this strategy – as it is reviewed and 
developed with new information – to agree on future investment programmes, and 
to set the management fee payable by NBC to NPH within the HRA. There will 
also be a review of any General Fund investment to revenue or capital on the 
same rolling, annual basis in accordance with the Council’s budget setting cycle.  

 

Around £12.6m/year is revenue funded and covers: 
1. Response Repairs 
2. Voids 
3. Servicing: gas, electric, lifts, fire alarms, etc. 
4. Grounds Maintenance 
5. Cleaning of Communal Areas 
6. External Painting 

 
Whereas on average £21.5m/year is capital funded and covers: 

1. External elemental repairs and replacements  
1. Internal elemental repairs and replacements  
2. Communal repairs and replacements 
3. Energy Improvements  
4. Other works & programmes: - anything not covered by the above 

 
A more detailed breakdown of the anticipated spend into the stock is given in 
Appendix C. Over the next 2 years NPH will develop a clearer 5-year investment 
plan once we have completed the reviews and processes outlined within this AMS 
so that current and future residents can have greater certainty over our proposals.  

 

 

45



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

23 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

23 

El
em

en
t G

ro
up

Ye
ar

 1
Ye

ar
 2

Ye
ar

 3
Ye

ar
 4

Ye
ar

 5
Ye

ar
 6

-1
0

Ye
ar

 1
1-

15
Ye

ar
 1

6-
20

Ye
ar

 2
1-

25
Ye

ar
 2

6-
30

To
ta

l
Pi

tc
he

d 
Ro

of
s

67
0,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

67
0,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

67
0,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

67
0,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

67
0,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
90

8,
85

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
19

0,
99

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

7,
59

3,
30

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

8,
31

3,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
98

5,
65

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

27
,3

45
,7

90
£ 

   
   

   
 

Ch
im

ne
ys

58
,0

30
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

58
,0

30
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

58
,0

30
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

58
,0

30
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

58
,0

30
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

51
5,

50
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

15
7,

45
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

27
6,

60
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

79
,8

50
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
 

13
4,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
45

4,
35

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 

Fl
at

 R
oo

fs
12

1,
02

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

1,
02

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

1,
02

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

1,
02

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

1,
02

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

06
9,

46
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
13

7,
88

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
62

0,
87

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
87

0,
16

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
14

6,
61

5
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

45
0,

08
5

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

Fa
sc

ia
s 

&
 S

of
fi

ts
72

0,
80

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
72

0,
80

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
72

0,
80

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
72

0,
80

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
72

0,
80

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
7,

11
3,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

09
6,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

01
6,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

83
8,

50
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
2,

38
7,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
17

,0
54

,5
00

£ 
   

   
   

 

Ra
in

w
at

er
 G

oo
ds

82
0,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

82
0,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

82
0,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

82
0,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

82
0,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

8,
12

2,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
54

9,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

78
7,

50
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
27

2,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
06

4,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

19
,9

00
,5

00
£ 

   
   

   
 

W
al

ls
23

8,
95

3
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
23

8,
95

3
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
23

8,
95

3
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
23

8,
95

3
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
23

8,
95

3
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
11

,3
00

,4
20

£ 
   

   
 

8,
02

5,
51

5
£ 

   
   

   
 

10
,3

70
,0

95
£ 

   
   

 
5,

61
4,

81
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
2,

25
4,

27
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
38

,7
59

,8
75

£ 
   

   
   

 

Ca
no

pi
es

 a
nd

 W
al

kw
ay

s
41

,3
00

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

,3
00

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

,3
00

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

,3
00

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
41

,3
00

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
1,

32
1,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
34

7,
60

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
18

1,
60

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
92

,0
00

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
23

,2
00

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

 
2,

17
2,

70
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

W
in

do
w

s
13

3,
38

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

3,
38

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

3,
38

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

3,
38

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
13

3,
38

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
4,

45
7,

70
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
6,

60
5,

50
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
12

,6
75

,7
00

£ 
   

   
 

2,
46

3,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

2,
14

8,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

29
,0

17
,8

00
£ 

   
   

   
 

D
oo

rs
27

3,
15

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
27

3,
15

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
27

3,
15

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
27

3,
15

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
27

3,
15

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

19
9,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

70
8,

50
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
4,

83
8,

05
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

39
3,

35
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

06
0,

90
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
12

,5
66

,3
50

£ 
   

   
   

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l W
or

ks
72

3,
88

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
72

3,
88

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
72

3,
88

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
72

3,
88

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
72

3,
88

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
12

,7
20

,1
00

£ 
   

   
 

6,
21

2,
64

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

2,
95

9,
62

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

64
5,

60
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

54
4,

78
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

26
,7

02
,1

40
£ 

   
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
EX

TE
RN

A
L 

W
O

RK
S

3,
80

2,
11

3
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
80

2,
11

3
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
80

2,
11

3
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
80

2,
11

3
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
80

2,
11

3
£ 

   
   

   
 

51
,7

29
,1

30
£ 

   
   

 
27

,0
31

,5
75

£ 
   

   
 

41
,3

19
,3

35
£ 

   
   

 
23

,5
83

,2
70

£ 
   

   
 

15
,7

50
,2

15
£ 

   
   

 
17

8,
42

4,
09

0
£ 

   
   

  

Ki
tc

he
ns

78
6,

52
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

78
6,

52
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

78
6,

52
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

78
6,

52
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

78
6,

52
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
65

2,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

10
,2

52
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
31

,2
35

,9
00

£ 
   

   
 

19
,6

63
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
3,

65
2,

50
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
72

,3
88

,5
00

£ 
   

   
   

 

Ba
th

ro
om

s
35

6,
49

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
35

6,
49

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
35

6,
49

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
35

6,
49

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
35

6,
49

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
3,

40
9,

75
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
4,

41
5,

50
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
5,

14
1,

75
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

47
3,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
11

,9
77

,3
00

£ 
   

   
 

30
,1

99
,7

50
£ 

   
   

   
 

El
ec

tr
ic

s
56

9,
79

2
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
56

9,
79

2
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
56

9,
79

2
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
56

9,
79

2
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
56

9,
79

2
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

77
4,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
78

8,
40

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

20
4,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
2,

81
6,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
15

,5
97

,8
40

£ 
   

   
 

26
,0

30
,0

00
£ 

   
   

   
 

H
ea

ti
ng

34
9,

44
8

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

34
9,

44
8

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

34
9,

44
8

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

34
9,

44
8

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

34
9,

44
8

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

6,
65

7,
40

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

14
,6

26
,1

60
£ 

   
   

 
3,

86
6,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
6,

07
6,

25
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
26

,8
79

,7
60

£ 
   

   
 

59
,8

52
,8

10
£ 

   
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
IN

TE
RN

A
L 

W
O

RK
S

2,
06

2,
25

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

2,
06

2,
25

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

2,
06

2,
25

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

2,
06

2,
25

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

2,
06

2,
25

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

16
,4

93
,6

50
£ 

   
   

 
30

,0
82

,0
60

£ 
   

   
 

41
,4

47
,6

50
£ 

   
   

 
32

,0
29

,0
50

£ 
   

   
 

58
,1

07
,4

00
£ 

   
   

 
18

8,
47

1,
06

0
£ 

   
   

  

Co
m

m
un

al
 s

er
vi

ce
s

15
1,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

15
1,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

15
1,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

15
1,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

15
1,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
29

7,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

30
4,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

16
2,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

49
7,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
65

9,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

6,
67

8,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 

Co
m

m
un

al
 d

oo
rs

34
5,

28
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

34
5,

28
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

34
5,

28
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

34
5,

28
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

34
5,

28
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
43

6,
80

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

53
3,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
21

7,
60

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

82
8,

80
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
53

7,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

9,
27

9,
60

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 

TO
TA

L 
CO

M
M

U
N

A
L

49
7,

08
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

49
7,

08
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

49
7,

08
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

49
7,

08
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

49
7,

08
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

5,
73

3,
80

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

83
7,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
37

9,
60

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
32

5,
80

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

4,
19

6,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

15
,9

57
,6

00
£ 

   
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
EN

ER
G

Y 
W

O
RK

S
3,

47
3,

47
1

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

47
3,

47
1

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

47
3,

47
1

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

47
3,

47
1

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

47
3,

47
1

£ 
   

   
   

 
-

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
-

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
17

,3
67

,3
57

£ 
   

   
   

 

Fr
on

t a
nd

 b
ac

k 
lig

ht
s 

1,
20

4,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
20

4,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
20

4,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
20

4,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
20

4,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

6,
02

2,
50

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 

N
on

-T
ra

ds
40

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
40

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
2,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

Re
la

te
d 

A
ss

et
s/

 S
tr

uc
tu

ra
l R

ep
ai

rs
20

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
20

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

A
sb

es
to

s 
- A

m
en

dm
en

t t
o 

Sa
vi

lls
 S

ch
ed

ul
e

40
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

40
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

40
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

40
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

40
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
00

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

7,
00

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 

Se
ct

io
n 

20
 L

ea
se

ho
ld

 W
or

ks
33

7,
40

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
33

7,
40

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
33

7,
40

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
33

7,
40

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
33

7,
40

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

68
7,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

68
7,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

68
7,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

68
7,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

68
7,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
10

,1
22

,0
00

£ 
   

   
   

 

Fi
re

 R
is

k 
w

or
ks

60
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

60
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

60
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

60
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

60
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

3,
00

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 

En
vi

ro
nm

en
ta

l I
m

pr
ov

em
en

ts
3,

66
8,

60
4

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

66
8,

60
4

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

66
8,

60
4

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

66
8,

60
4

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

66
8,

60
4

£ 
   

   
   

 
25

,9
33

,9
80

£ 
   

   
 

-
£ 

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

22
,0

00
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
-

£ 
   

   
   

   
   

   
   

 
71

,2
77

,0
00

£ 
   

   
   

 

A
da

pt
at

io
ns

1,
13

2,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
13

2,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
13

2,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
13

2,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
13

2,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
67

5,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
67

5,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
67

5,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
67

5,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

3,
67

5,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

24
,0

35
,0

00
£ 

   
   

   
 

M
aj

or
 W

or
ks

/ 
Re

m
od

el
lin

g
1,

80
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

80
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

20
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
4,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
7,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
36

,2
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
   

 

M
aj

or
 R

ef
ur

bi
sh

m
en

t
1,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
6,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
33

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
   

 

Sh
el

te
re

d 
H

ou
si

ng
 R

ev
ie

w
1,

20
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

20
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
10

,5
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
   

 

G
ar

ag
e 

St
ra

te
gy

 P
ro

je
ct

 (B
lo

ck
s/

 S
it

es
)

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

2,
50

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

5,
00

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 

Co
m

m
on

 A
re

a 
Re

fu
rb

is
hm

en
ts

24
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

24
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

24
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

24
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

24
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

90
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

90
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

90
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

3,
90

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 

SC
A

TE
 P

ro
je

ct
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
5,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
   

 

In
st

al
la

ti
on

 o
f P

V
 P

an
el

s 
(N

H
S)

1,
24

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
24

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
24

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
24

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
24

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

1,
80

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
 

8,
00

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 

En
er

gy
 Im

pr
ov

em
en

ts
60

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
60

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
60

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
60

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
60

0,
00

0
£ 

   
   

   
   

 
1,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
2,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
6,

50
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

   
 

TO
TA

L 
O

TH
ER

 W
O

RK
S

16
,0

22
,5

04
£ 

   
   

 
16

,0
22

,5
04

£ 
   

   
 

16
,0

22
,5

04
£ 

   
   

 
16

,0
22

,5
04

£ 
   

   
 

16
,0

22
,5

04
£ 

   
   

 
43

,2
95

,9
80

£ 
   

   
 

17
,7

62
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
30

,8
62

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

50
,2

62
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
25

,2
62

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

24
7,

55
6,

50
0

£ 
   

   
  

TO
TA

L 
CA

PI
TA

L 
W

O
RK

S
25

,8
57

,4
18

£ 
   

   
 

25
,8

57
,4

18
£ 

   
   

 
25

,8
57

,4
18

£ 
   

   
 

25
,8

57
,4

18
£ 

   
   

 
25

,8
57

,4
18

£ 
   

   
 

11
7,

25
2,

56
0

£ 
   

  
75

,7
12

,6
35

£ 
   

   
 

11
5,

00
8,

58
5

£ 
   

  
10

7,
20

0,
12

0
£ 

   
  

10
3,

31
5,

61
5

£ 
   

  
64

7,
77

6,
60

7
£ 

   
   

  

D
ay

 to
 D

ay
 R

ep
ai

rs
9,

80
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
9,

80
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
9,

80
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
9,

80
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
9,

80
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
40

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

50
,0

00
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
50

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

45
,0

00
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
45

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

27
9,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
  

V
oi

ds
 &

 S
er

vi
ci

ng
3,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
3,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
   

 
15

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

15
,0

00
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
15

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

20
,0

00
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
20

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

10
0,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
  

TO
TA

L 
RE

V
EN

U
E 

W
O

RK
S

12
,8

00
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
12

,8
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

12
,8

00
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
12

,8
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

12
,8

00
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
55

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

65
,0

00
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
65

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

65
,0

00
,0

00
£ 

   
   

 
65

,0
00

,0
00

£ 
   

   
 

37
9,

00
0,

00
0

£ 
   

   
  

TO
TA

L 
FU

N
D

S
38

,6
57

,4
18

£ 
   

38
,6

57
,4

18
£ 

   
38

,6
57

,4
18

£ 
   

38
,6

57
,4

18
£ 

   
38

,6
57

,4
18

£ 
   

17
2,

25
2,

56
0

£ 
 

14
0,

71
2,

63
5

£ 
 

18
0,

00
8,

58
5

£ 
 

17
2,

20
0,

12
0

£ 
 

16
8,

31
5,

61
5

£ 
 

1,
02

6,
77

6,
60

7
£ 

  

46



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

24 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

24 

3.9. Non-housing Stock Investment: 

 
Within the life of this AMS, NPH will develop an investment plan to cover all of the 
non-residential assets managed by NPH on behalf of NBC, including our shops, 
garages, commercial premises and land so that they are formally included within 
NPH’s Business Planning process. 
 
Shops 
NPH’s Asset Management & Option Appraisal Teams will liaise with NBC’s Asset 
Management Team to develop an investment plan and place these commercial 
premises into the asset database for investment planning purposes. In addition, 
stock condition surveys will be carried out to act a base for future investment 
proposals. 
 
Office Accommodation 
NPH’s Asset Management Team will liaise with NBC’s Asset Management Team 
to undertake a full space planning exercise of the office building at Westbridge 
Depot and ensure we develop proposals for possible staff movements to optimise 
this accommodation. Any investment requirements coming from this exercise will 
then be built in the business planning process. 
 
Garages 
A cross-service project team will be formed to carry out a strategic overview of the 
garage sites, co-ordinated by the Option Appraisal Team to again come forward 
with proposals for each garage site. There will also be strong links with both 
Strategic Housing and Planning within NBC to ensure viable solutions are 
developed. 
 
This project will seek to examine the future viability for each site which could 
include some sites being highlighted for redevelopment, disposal, an alternative 
community use or maintained as garage sites. This project will also ensure that all 
future maintenance liabilities are included within the business planning process so 
that the financial viability of the retained garage sites can be fully assessed. The 
long-term aim is that the garage sites are fully self-funded where by the rental 
income covers all maintenance and management costs, without requiring subsidy 
from the housing stock. 
 

Land 
NPH’s Asset Management & Option Appraisals Teams will work with NBC’s Asset 
Management, Housing & Planning Teams to review all land holdings to ensure 
that any development opportunities are identified and potential income from 
disposals is maximised. This may also highlight the opportunities for both HRA 
and General Fund (GF) land to be combined to help deliver new housing 
opportunities within the Borough. 
 
The Corporate Asset Board within NBC will be used as a forum for discussing 
many of the projects required for determining the future of HRA land and 
buildings. 
 

47



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

25 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

25 

4. Stock Portfolio Management: 

 

The proposals outlined in this section of the strategy will primarily apply to the 
domestic housing stock however, over the duration of this strategy, action will be 
taken to improve our approach to other HRA assets, including our land, garages 
and commercial premises. 
 

 
Delivering assets that are ‘fit for purpose’ for the future requires a housing stock 
that offers appropriate features and services that respond to factors such as 
climate change, demographic change, technological change and residents’ 
expectations.  

 
NPH is developing the ability to assess the housing stock using 
tools that rank the stock into one of three categories, using a 
traffic light system as follows:  

• Risk  
• Appraisal  
• Core 
 

Risk Stock are those properties, schemes or archetypes that suffer from low 
demand, ASB, high turn-over, high repair cost and large investment 
requirement and have both a negative cash flow projection and 
sustainability score. These properties will be subject to an Option Appraisal 
process, but it is possible that the level of investment needed to bring them 
into Core Stock is likely to be much higher and therefore disposal, 
demolition and redevelopment could be the more suitable solutions.  
 

Appraisal Stock are those properties that might suffer from some demand, turn 
over issues, as well as some repair costs but by focussed investment these 
properties could be made to generate a positive cash flow projection and 
sustainability score, thereby making them Core Stock.  
 
An Option Appraisal process will be undertaken to determine the ‘Business 
Case’ for each archetype, scheme or property and keep the level of 
investment within an affordable ALMO Business Plan. The findings of each 
option appraisal will be submitted to SMT and, where appropriate, to the 
ALMO Board for approval.  
 

Core Stock are those properties that have high demand, low turnover, low repair 
cost and minimal investment requirements. Any property ranked as core 
can have funds invested on an on-going basis, through planned and 
cyclical programmes.  

 
In addition, some core properties may be placed into the appraisal category 
where it is deemed that there are commercial opportunities that may benefit 
the business, for example: where we have isolated high value properties or 

4.1. Asset Review: 

48



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

26 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

26 

high value properties which are potentially unviable in the long-term but 
currently perfectly serviceable. 

 
The Asset Review will be mainly based on various data that NPH and NBC holds, 
together with scores generated from staff knowledge. These will be placed into 
the modelling tool that includes the following elements: 

 A report from the Open Housing - Asset Database, including all the stock 
condition information and anticipated 30yr investment requirements. 

 An inclusion of additional investment requirements that is not held currently 
within the database but should be included to truly reflect the anticipated 
spend over the 30yr Business Plan, such as energy efficiency works to 
deliver carbon reduction targets by 2050, 

 An inclusion of additional maintenance investments to cover the cyclical 
painting programme, gas servicing, asbestos management, and any other 
management costs, etc.  

 A report from ‘Open Housing - Repairs’ giving the response maintenance 
spends for the last 3 years 

 A report from ‘Open Housing’ giving the void patterns and average spends 
for the last 3 years 

 Another report from ‘Open Housing’ giving the current and anticipated 
rental income for the next 30 years 

 A linked sheet to the above with a proposed date to move to a higher rental 
income based on market rent values. 

 Finally, inputs from a viability matrix which allows for Social and 
Environmental factors to run alongside all the financial data to demonstrate 
community based factors. This ensures that issues such as areas of 
deprivation, ASB, high management costs and energy ratings, etc. are 
included into the overall scoring and assessment process.  

Inputting this information into the model produces a balanced scorecard and a 
range of asset related performance indicators, which will be the starting point for 
identifying assets for potential refurbishment remodelling, redevelopment, 
demolition or disposal. These include: 

 Net Present Value for each property and by groups of assets  

 30 year Cash Flow by groups of assets   

 Scatter plot chart by groups of assets 

 
Other detailed data analysis will be generated by property, street, location or 
archetype, etc. from the data within the model to highlight trends; for example:  
response repairs, property yield, SAP Rating & void turnover, etc.  

49



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

27 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

27 

 

 
Once the Asset Review identifies those elements of the stock that require further 
consideration, the Option Appraisal process follows to determine the best solution 
for these properties. SMT and the AM Committee will be the main decision 
making forums for these findings and then up to the Board or NBC, as 
appropriate.  
 
The principal solutions to the Option Appraisals process could be as follows: 

 Retention & maintain as existing, based on the outcome of the Asset 
Review  

 Retention, but with change of tenure  

 Retention, but with an increased level of investment 

 Refurbishment 

 Remodelling 

 Demolition & redevelopment 

 Demolition & disposal 

 Disposal 

 Another solution, based on meeting a social or environmental need. 
 
Standard appraisal templates will be developed to allow these solutions to be fully 
assessed and will include scoring of each solution along the Social, 
Environmental and Financial criteria to form a recommendation.  
 
NPH will use this option appraisal process to undertake a detailed review of the 
development potential across our stock portfolio and consider releasing under-
used or difficult to maintain assets that could facilitate new housing development. 
Once these locations have been determined, NPH will seek innovative solutions 
that could increase the number of homes, through estate remodelling or infill 
development, while improving the environment and making a positive contribution 
to building sustainable communities. 
 

4.2. Option Appraisal: 

Strategic Aim - 1 
To understand how NBC’s assets are performing and demonstrate 
sound portfolio management 

 
Objectives 
4.1.1  Ensure all elements of NBC’s stock are included within the Asset 

Database, including garages, land and other commercial premises 
4.1.2 Undertake regular Asset Reviews to highlight those properties 

which require alternative solutions than continued planned 
programme investment 

4.1.3  Undertake stock condition surveys of the shops and complete an 
Asset Review of these properties and include investment 
requirements in the Business Plan 

 

50



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

28 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

28 

 

 

As part of making better use of the housing stock, the Asset Management Team 
will liaise with Housing Management and Allocations Teams on implementing the 
findings of a review of under-occupancy of the stock, particularly in the light of 
welfare reforms. In addition, we have a large stock of bedsit and single person 
accommodation (SPA) which suffers from a combination of high turnover and low 
demand. Together we will ensure delivery of the existing under-occupation 
scheme which provides financial incentives for tenants to move to more suitable 
accommodation, together with the use of Mutual Exchanges. This project will 
continue to seek to minimise the impact of proposed benefit changes and help 
residents find a sustainable home that best suits their circumstances. 
 
Another proposed project is to complete the review of Sheltered Accommodation. 
NPH manages some 1,777 sheltered units but we have a number of properties 
where key decisions on future viability need to be addressed. In addition to this, 
we need to review the current use of hard-wired emergency call systems and 
replace these with mobile digital systems which are much easier for our tenants to 
use. The Asset Management Team will liaise with other teams to identify solutions 
which could see investment into some schemes, whilst others may require 
remodelling or alternative solutions to ensure that the desirability of schemes is 
maximised. 
 
A good number of our properties also have large gardens, some with adjoining 
parcels of land on licence. These parcels of land, along with an appraisal of land 
densities will be assessed, utilising GIS, to determine other potential development 
opportunities which some residents struggle to maintain, so this land, along with 
neighbouring land we own, may create the basis for development opportunities. 

 
 
 

4.3. Better Use of Stock: 

Strategic Aim - 2 
To be in a position to make informed decisions about stock using 
an option appraisal approach  

 
Objectives 
4.2.1   Establish a Land Strategy project to determine viable solutions for 

all land managed on behalf of NBC 
4.2.2  Reduce the risk to the Business Plan by considering alternative 

solutions to the present investment strategy of planned 
programmes 

4.2.3 Facilitate new projects that access alternative funding streams 
and/or reduce the impact on our long-term financial plans 

4.2.4  Undertake a review of all Garage Sites by completing a mini-option 
appraisal for each site and include the investment needs in the 

Business Plan 

51



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

29 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

29 

 

 

The AM Committee will act as the main approval forum for the majority of key 
asset management decisions and they will filter schemes prior to any subsequent 
reports to the Board and/or NBC. However, a new Asset Management Forum will 
be created so NPH managers can agree that the majority of basic asset 
management decisions, before reference to the AM Committee. The Forum will 
meet on a Quarterly basis and consist of representatives from: 

 Asset Management 

 Repairs & Maintenance 

 Housing Management 

 Rent Services 

 Estate Services 

 Residents 

 Housing Strategy and/ or Corporate Asset Management 
 
The AM Committee will receive reports arising from the processes previously 
mentioned: 

 4.1 Annual Asset Review 

 4.2 Option Appraisals 

 4.3 Better Use of the Stock 

In addition, the AM Committee can commission reports on subjects that will 
enhance the understanding of the stock or receive reports on matter which are 
related to asset management, regeneration and new developments. 
 
The Asset Management Team will ensure that all reports going to the AM 
Committee allow time for full and proper consultation and inclusion of comments 
from the following groups or managers, as appropriate: 

 Residents 

 Finance Team 

 NBC Client Services – subject to Management Agreement 
 
The practical application of the main processes relating to Asset Management are 
summarised in this strategy and in the diagram in Appendix D.  

4.4. Decision Making Process/ Governance: 

Strategic Aim - 3 
To make the best use of the stock to meet demand and ensure that 
our residents are provided with suitable accommodation 

 
Objectives 
4.3.1  Better understanding of our residents, tenant profile and extent of 

under-occupation 
4.3.2  SMT to receive reports on the progress in tackling under 

occupancy by reviewing existing policies 
4.3.3  Complete the Sheltered Housing Review to determine viable 

solutions to the future of these properties 
 

52



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

30 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

30 

5. Investment Planning: 

 

The purpose of developing a clear investment plan is to deliver effective and 
efficient repairs & maintenance services for our residents and is underpinned by 
reliable asset data and a secure arrangement about future funding. 

 

 
To provide NPH and NBC with the confidence to support future funding 
requirements, it is vital that robust asset data is the primary driver to investment 
programmes. To clearly demonstrate this, the data used within the Asset Review 
process will be used to inform the Business Planning process as there are some 
elements of expenditure that are not presently held within ‘Open Housing’. The 
figures within the Asset Review model include costs for the management of 
asbestos, cyclical maintenance, response repairs, voids, and proposed future 
expenditure on programmes, such as the outcomes of the Environmental Plan, 
etc. 
 
The use of Asset Reviews and the subsequent Option Appraisals will demonstrate 
that we are maximising our income and driving value for money into our housing 
stock. By ‘sweating’ our assets and having clear future investment plans we may 
be able to improve our financial position and secure future funding if and when 
new loan agreements may be required. 
 

 
Our investment decisions need to be a balance between response repairs, 
servicing, void properties, planned programmes, renewals, new build schemes, 
acquisitions and disposals.  
 
Fundamental targets for the investment planning process are: 

 To reduce spend on Responsive Repairs by more effective planned 
preventative maintenance programmes 

 To rationalise the planned programmes to fully deliver value 

 To ‘sweat’ assets by maximising income and whilst avoiding unnecessary 
expenditure 

 To have clear volumes of work to drive current contracts and future 
procurement requirements 

 To work towards regional programmes, based around 40 Estates 

 To respond to policy decisions 

 To provide greater certainty for our residents about works to their homes 

In addition, consideration will be given to 3 factors when making decisions on how 
to invest in the future of the assets: 

1. Social: This will ensure that we are fulfilling our responsibility to be an effective 
‘social’ landlord and making decisions that are based on the needs of the 

5.1. Links to the Business Plan: 

5.2. Investment Considerations: 

53



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

31 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

31 

community and the provision of ‘affordable’ housing services. We will do this by: 

 Creating places where people want to live 

 Putting residents first 

 Being a leading provider and offering quality services in Northampton 

 Promoting a culture of financial inclusion 

 Involving and empowering residents in the decision making processes 

2. Financial: This will ensure that we are driving forward ‘value for money’ and 
ensuring we have a long-term financial plan that is both deliverable and 
sustainable. We will do this by: 

 Delivering Value for Money 

 Being creative with new procurement opportunities 

 Looking at whole life costs and best value 

 Optimising the income that can be generated by our assets 

3. Environmental: This will ensure that we consider the impact on the 
environment of our assets and how affordable the likely energy consumption will 
be against rising fuel prices. We will do this by: 

 Delivering on our Environmental Plan and reducing the carbon footprint 

 Targeting energy efficiency programmes and external grant funding 
opportunities 

 Developing energy performance criteria for all our assets and providing 
annual average energy ratings 

 Improving the Average Energy Rating for our stock on an annual basis 

 

 
NPH is committed to: 

 Delivering the Northampton Home Standard for the existing stock, which 
will include showers over baths, energy efficiency, security, doors, 
windows, kitchens, bathrooms, heating, electrics and environmental 
improvements 

5.3. Programme Development: 

Strategic Aim - 4 
To have a sustainable Business Plan based on sound investment 
decisions  

 
Objectives 
5.2.1  Investment forecasts will report on the costs of the whole stock, 

including non-housing assets, utilising an asset database  
5.2.2  Review elemental costs and life cycle assumptions annually, 

against actual costs and industry benchmarks. 
5.2.3 Align investment plans with the 30yr Business Plan in the light of 

investment requirements. Any funding gap will be addressed by 
financial modelling, procurement strategy and/or development of 
new policies and standards 

5.2.4 Future investment plans are developed and agreed with our 
residents 

 

54



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

32 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

32 

 Providing improved response repairs and void services, including a review 
of current standards 

 Environmental and neighbourhood improvements to enhance the condition 
of communal areas within our control and security of homes and estates 

 Cyclical work which prolongs the life of building elements and improves the 
aesthetic appearance of our properties and estates. 

In addition, there are a number of Health & Safety considerations that go in-hand 
with the above:   

 Gas and electric safety tests  

 Fire safety improvements 

 Asbestos removal or encapsulation 

 Regular servicing of equipment, e.g.: lifts, door entry laundries, etc. 

 Management of other Health & Safety matters such as safe water supplies 
to avoid legionella, radon and construction site safety 

 
The Asset Management Team, together with; 

 Residents 

 NBC, including the Capital Board and Asset Management Board 

 LGSS, including the Finance, Procurement and Legal Teams 

 All elements of the Landlord Service 

 Partnering and local Contractors & Suppliers 
will develop and then maintain a detailed 5 year investment plan.  
 
The Asset Management Team will then work with the GIS Officer to produce 
programme maps and lists of properties with due dates from all surveys 
undertaken on our properties. Any ‘pockets of high repairs demand, turnover, etc.’ 
within the stock will be identified and used to create forecast planned programmes 
to ensure delivery and maintenance of the NPH Homes Standard.  

 

Strategic Aim - 5 
To develop coordinated and effective planned programmes using 
the Open Housing database as the principal business tool  
 

Objectives 
5.3.1  Strengthen the processes for using investment forecasting data to 

inform planned programmes, ensuring the data is increasingly 
accurate and reliable by a programme of new stock condition 
surveys 

5.3.2  Agree a detailed rolling 5 year investment plan which builds on 
intelligent timing of component replacements 

5.3.3 Adoption of whole life costs within asset management to improve 
quality and reduce costs to the business, including identifying 

regeneration and new development opportunities 

55



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

33 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

33 

 
Delivering value for money is a key target and, within the area of Asset 
Management; NPH will achieve this through the following: 

 Optimisation on land and property 

 Optimisation of rental income 

 Determining viable solutions for all properties that generate a negative 
Nett Present Value (NPV) through the Asset Review and Option 
Appraisal Processes 

 Greater predictability of elemental volumes / pricing of work 

 Innovative procurement, including any available existing frameworks or 
joining a housing procurement consortium and seeking to identify other 
commercial opportunities 

 Considering the impact of the Social Value Act 2012, where NPH may 
not always go for pure VFM as we would rather employ a local 
contractor rather than a national one, or sell a property for less than the 
best offer as we want it to go to a community non-profit organisation 

 Development of effective partnerships (internal / external) through 
performance related contracts. 

 Robust, customer focussed monitoring of contracts and budgets 

 Effective use of benchmarking data 
 
NPH will ensure that investment is balanced between planned and responsive 
maintenance with the target of delivering a 60/40 ratio of planned/ responsive. 
 
Good practice in Asset Management also recommends that 1% of the total 
maintenance spend should be invested into the resourcing of data management, 
such as: 

 Stock condition surveys, energy surveys and additional stock data   

 Improved data software and hardware  

 Independent audits 

   

5.4. Value for Money: 

Strategic Aim - 6 
To provide cost-effective, efficient, quality homes and services for 
our residents   
 

Objectives 
5.4.1   Obtain value for money through pro-active procurement and the 

maximisation of in-house and partnering opportunities  
5.4.2 Agree methodology with Finance for measuring efficiency savings 

and service improvements arising from this strategy 
5.4.3  Capture and publish value for money savings arising from the 

Asset Management Plan 

 

56



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

34 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

34 

 

NPH will consider future investment requirements and the use of funds utilising 
the following prioritisation matrix: 

 Priority Details Examples 

1 Health& Safety  To comply with all Health & 
Safety regulation/ legislation 

 To remove H&S Risks to the 
business 

Asbestos Management, Gas 
Regulations, Water & Fire 
Safety, Radon, etc..  

2 Legal  To comply with all legal 
requirements as a ALMO 
Landlord of social housing 

House, Landlord & Tenant 
Acts, Case Law, DDA., Right 
to Repair, etc 

3 Government Standard 
& Policies 

 To comply with government 
investment requirements 
and standards 

Decent Homes Standard, 
Energy Targets, HCA 
Regulation 

4 NPH’s Service 
Standard & Policies 

 To work in partnership with 
district and county Councils 
and other regional significant 
bodies, eg NHF 

 To meet service standards 
and promise pledges 

 To achieve Business Plan 
objectives and priorities 

 Responsive Repairs & Voids 

 Cyclical & Service 
Maintenance 

NPH Homes Standard, Relet 
Standard, Planned 
Programmes, Response 
Repairs timeframes, etc. 

5 Local Requests  Service demands which fall 
outside of the above and are 
often in reaction to service 
failures or due to limited 
funding availability 

Requests from MPs, Local 
Councillors, Community, 
Residents, Staff, etc 

 

 

 

 

  

5.5. Investment Priorities: 

57



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

35 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

35 

Strategic Aim - 7 
To place residents are at the heart of decision making and 
influencing the delivery and monitoring of all services 
 

Objectives 
6.1.1   Support appropriate resident groups with information coming out 

of the Asset Review and other Asset Management processes 
6.1.2  Undertake a survey of prospective future tenants to influence our 

void standard and new build aspirations  

6. Delivering the Strategy: 

 

NPH exists to provide homes and build communities that our customers want to 
live in so this part of the strategy focuses on delivering this through improved 
asset management functions. 

 

 
Resident involvement and empowerment forms a vital part our decision making 
process and, therefore, how assets are managed. Future investment in assets will 
increasingly reflect the views expressed by our residents through a variety of 
channels such as the Tenants’ Panel and Service Improvement Panels (SIPs).  
 
NPH is committed to putting residents first so resident engagement will be 
optimised by the Asset Management Team through existing groups and 
communication channels, whilst developing new communication channels, such 
as a possible future website portal.  

 

 
One of the first exercises to be undertaken is to develop detailed stock profile 
information about the following: 

 Agreeing Areas/ Groups for measuring the asset stock 

 Property Archetypes: eg: Blocks of flats, Non-trad units, Timber-framed, 
Traditional, etc. 

 Internal Communal Areas: including lifts, laundries, staircases, etc 

 External Communal Areas: to blocks of flats/ maisonettes & sheltered 
schemes 

 Land: including garage sites, play areas, amenity areas, verges, etc. 

 Shops and Commercial Premises: inclusive of stock condition information 

Developing this information will allow strategic decisions on each of these profiles 
and start to shape the overall direction of future investment decisions and 
potential regeneration and renewal schemes. This process is underway and is 

6.1. Resident Involvement & Empowerment: 

6.2. Stock Profiling: 

58



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

36 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

36 

Strategic Aim - 8 
To understand all land and property assets and produce future 
plans for each asset management group  
 

Objectives 
6.2.1   Complete Stock Profiles, including comprehensive asset 

information about each property type and incorporation of GIS 

mapping and photographs 

contained in Appendix E where each of the 40 Estates are detailed. 

 

 
To maximise the accuracy of asset data, a detailed Data Capture and 
Maintenance Plan will be developed by the Asset Management and LGSS Teams 
with the following objectives: 

 Maintaining and updating the detailed stock profiles linked to both 
construction type and location, using stock condition data to inform the 
content and strategic decisions 

 Improving the forecasting of future investment plans and maintenance 
programmes  

 Strengthening business planning and investment decision making 
processes  

 Maintaining Health & Safety in the home    
 
This document will also consider the impact of the adoption of mobile working and 
the implementation of Capita’s ‘Open Housing’ across the landlord service.  
 
Purpose of this plan will be to outline how we will improve data capture through; 

 The introduction of mobile technology 

 A rolling programme of surveys, including links to the cyclical and planned 
programmes 

 Targeted surveys to gain full 
knowledge of particular 
property types, such as 
recently acquired properties 

 Surveys of void properties, as 
part of Energy Performance 
Certificate Survey 

 'Quick surveys' by staff visiting 
because of responsive 
repairs, gas servicing or 
planned works. 

 Data capture from completed 
works programmes.  

6.3. Data Management: 

59



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

37 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

37 

Strategic Aim - 9 
To continuously improve knowledge of our assets to enable 
effective future investment and clear programmes for residents 
 

Objectives 
6.3.1  Place all property and land within the asset database, including 

land, offices, garages and commercial property 
6.3.2 Place all key fixtures and fittings within the database, including 

adaptations, alterations and details of any guarantees and 
warranties 

6.3.3 Establish a new stock condition survey strategy to feed the planned 
maintenance programmes 

6.3.4  Establish a data capture process to cover all works undertaken 
through response repairs, voids, planned and cyclical works, 
regeneration and new build schemes 

6.3.5 Implement new IT to allow staff to record maintenance issues during 
property visits. 

 

Strategic Aim - 10 
To establish a single, comprehensive and accurate asset database 
covering all NBC’s housing properties and land 
 

Objectives 
6.4.1  Avoid duplication of entry 
6.4.2  Improve access to the database for staff, contractors and residents  
6.4.3 Optimise the functionality of the asset database to deliver 

elements of the Asset Management Plan 
 
 

 

 
As part of the development of effective Asset Management within NPH, the 
access and use of the asset data will be broaden out across the organisation so 
that it becomes a key business planning tool. In addition, the Asset Management 
Team will use the website, Intranet and Customer Contact Dashboard (CCD) 
within Open Housing to give access to staff, contractors and residents on real-
time information on properties, as well as health & safety data, such as asbestos. 

 

 

6.5. Environmental and Energy Efficiency: 

 
A key NPH objective is to work with residents and seek to ensure they benefit 
through initiatives such as: 

 energy and water savings,  

 alleviating fuel poverty,  

 good recycling,  

 food economics, to improve their quality of life.   

 

6.4. Information Systems: 

60



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

38 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

38 

Both NPH and NBC benefit through these broad objectives by becoming more 
sustainable organisations and thus realise: 

 financial savings 

 reductions in maintenance costs 

 a better working environments for staff 

 a raised profile within the community of being businesses/ 
organisations which champion environmental sustainability. 
 

NPH’s approach toward this agenda will be detailed in a new Environmental Plan, 
which will be approved by the Asset Management Committee in 2015, which will 
set out to: 

 Reduce NPH’s carbon footprint 

 Increase the energy efficiency and sustainability of our assets 

 Influence resident lifestyles and usage of our assets to reduce fuel bills 
and improve sustainability within communities 
 

This plan will also outline how NPH will seek to meet government carbon 
reduction targets, provide affordable warmth, reduce fuel poverty, whilst using the 
Green Deal, EU and other grant funding to help deliver these objectives.   
 
With rising fuel prices, brought on by the diminishing availability of fossil fuels, 
there will be increased pressure from government and residents to provide more 
energy efficiency works to our homes. NPH has already commenced the provision 
of energy efficiency improvements to the housing stock and this has included 
schemes to: 

 Insulate walls and lofts 

 Install A-rated double glazing 

 Install high efficiency condensing boilers 

 Some over-cladding of non-trad properties 

 Pilot the installation of PV Panels 
 
As a result, our average Standard Assessment Procedure (SAP) energy rating for 
housing stock is around 80 but this is currently based on SAP 2001 measures. 
Given that the current SAP rating for benchmarking is now SAP 2009, we will 
arrange for all the data to be updated. The Asset Management Team will improve 
the knowledge base of the stock by capturing the data from Energy Performance 
Certificates (EPC) surveys and recent Stock Condition Surveys by Savills to 
create a robust energy database.  

61



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

39 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

39 

Strategic Aim - 11 
To improve the quality of life for our residents through NPH being 
an organisation that champions environmental sustainability  
 

Objectives 
6.5.1  To produce an Environmental Plan that clearly outline how we will 

improve our assets and facilities to reduce NPH’s carbon footprint 
and seeks to maximise the energy grant funding available 

6.5.2 To develop a series of planned programmes that will move towards 
the requirements of the Energy Act 2011 to reduce carbon 
emissions from the housing stock and to include these within the 
Business Planning process. 

6.5.3 To deliver a year on year improvements in the average SAP/ Energy 
rating of our housing assets and help reduce fuel bills for our 
residents. 

 
 

 
NPH has a legal duty of care to ensure all our residents live in a safe environment 
so this section deals with a series of areas of responsibility: 

 

 
Under the Gas Regulations 1998 there is a legal responsibility to annually check 
the safety of all gas appliances, pipe work and associated fittings within 
properties. Gas servicing is currently undertaken by an external contractor and a 
new partnering contract will come into existence on 1st April 2015. 
 
The Gas & Servicing Team will work with residents to ensure that the gas 
servicing process remains focused on the customer, whilst satisfying our legal 
responsibilities. 
 

 
NPH continues to develop effective fire safety policies and procedures to ensure 
resident safety, having already completed all the fire risk assessments for 
communal areas in blocks and sheltered schemes. In addition, electrical or battery 
smoke detectors will be installed in every property by 2020 and these will be 
checked and serviced as part of the gas servicing and electrical safety inspections 

 
NPH will also ensure the on-going provision of the following: 

 Reviewing the completed fire risk assessments and develop planned 
programmes to address outstanding items 

 Check all firefighting equipment and signage, replacing any damaged or 

6.6. Health & Safety Matters: 

6.6.1. Gas Servicing: 

6.6.2. Fire Safety: 

62



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

40 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

40 

faulty equipment 

 Provide fire safety training for staff and residents 

 Complete the current programme for the upgrading of fire doors 

 A regime of fire inspections and ongoing review of the fire risk 
assessments, together with regular meetings with Northamptonshire Fire 
and Rescue Service. 

 

NPH will ensure that we comply with all duties relating to Asbestos Management 
Regulations 2012 and follow best practice relating to domestic premises. All 
asbestos data is held in the Open Housing Asbestos Register and will be 
managed by the Compliance Team, especially the Asbestos Management Officer. 
 
Asbestos is presumed to be present in all properties constructed before 2000.  All 
Asbestos is managed in situ until such time as it becomes prudent to remove, 
whilst some higher risk asbestos is removed, if appropriate.  
 
Non-domestic areas of our stock (i.e. communal areas) have been surveyed and 
asbestos details held on the register which is monitored through the Compliance 
Team. This team ensures that all asbestos details are recorded and the database 
updated so that when works are issued the latest information is made available to 
contractors and the risk continually managed.   
 
Over 80% of properties have actual asbestos survey records held against them 
within the Asbestos Register. Each resident will be provided with an information 
leaflet about asbestos within the home and at the commencement of a new 
tenancy or after any asbestos tests, with an individual letter confirming where 
asbestos may be present, based on recent surveys or the database. 
 

 
All communal systems are currently under a regular inspection regime, however, 
with changes to the guidance on water safety, the Compliance Team will be 
completing some risk assessments for domestic premises and manage these 
additional risks.  
 
During the life of this strategy we will request an external audit of the Legionella/ 
Water Safety Management Plan, and make recommendations on any 
amendments to policies, processes and data management that might be required.   
 
 

 

NPH will continue to consult the Environment Agency on the latest information 
available on potential and actual flood risks which may affect the stock. The GIS 

6.6.3. Asbestos: 

6.6.4. Legionella: 

6.6.5. Risk of Flooding: 

63



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

41 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

41 

Strategic Aim - 12 
To provide safe, secure and quality homes for our residents.    

 
Objectives 
Gas Servicing: 
6.6.1  Ensure all gas appliances are checked on an annual basis. 
Fire Safety: 
6.6.2 Review all the Fire Risk Assessments for communal areas and 

meet regularly with Northamptonshire Fire & Rescue. 
6.6.3 Undertake training for staff and residents on fire safety in the 

home 
Asbestos: 
6.6.4 Ensure the asbestos register is effectively managed 
6.6.5 Ensure that there are seamless processes in place to manage risk 
6.6.6 Ensure regular asbestos inspections as required under the 

Asbestos Management regulations 
6.6.7 Seek to provide access to information for residents and 

contractors access to the Asbestos Register through a web-portal 
Legionella:  
6.6.8 Check and sample water to all water systems that could be 

susceptible to contamination of legionella bacteria, within the 

timescales laid down by the Health and Safety Executive  

System will continue to be used to map the properties at risk. The Asset 
Management Team will undertake 2-yr reviews to look at any fluvial and surface 
water flood risks and take a report to the AM Committee on any preventative 
action that may be necessary. 
 

 

To ensure compliance with other health and safety responsibilities, the following 
additional measures will continue to be carried out:  

 Periodic electrical checks 

 Radon 

 Management of communal lifts and  door entry systems  
 
These inspection regimes are used to collect regular data that identifies any asset 
deterioration and informs replacement timescales. 

 

6.6.6. Other H&S Issues: 

64



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

42 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

42 

Strategic Aim - 13 
To create effective key performance indicators for measuring the 
performance of assets in agreement with residents and the Board 
 

Objectives 
6.7.1  Agree a set of Asset Management KPIs which demonstrate robust 

management and optimisation of assets and resources 
6.7.2  Provide  regular reports to the AM Committee on the impact of 

RTBs on the housing stock 

Strategic Aim (Cont’d) 
To provide safe, secure and quality homes for our residents.    

Flood Risk: 
6.6.9 Establish a database of properties which are subject to flood risk 

(fluvial and surface water) 
Radon: 
6.6.10 Establish a clear position on all properties affected by Radon and 

implement a service contract to ensure resident safety 
Electrics: 
6.6.11 Carry out periodical electrical checks and ensure asset database is 

updated accordingly 
Lifts:  
6.6.12 Check all lifting equipment every six months or monthly, 

dependant on the type of equipment 
Security:  
6.6.13 Review the requirement for on-going communal door entry system 

servicing 

 

 
Residents will be at the heart of setting asset management service standards and 
they will be involved in the monitoring of asset performance. This strategy will be 
supported by a comprehensive set of performance measures and stock 
information that will be reported to residents so that they know how NPH are 
making the most of the asset resources, such as: 

 How many properties meet the Northampton Homes Standard? 

 How energy efficient are the properties? 

 Which properties require more responsive repairs? 

 Which properties are becoming void the most often? 

 What proportion of the stock have had adaptations undertaken? 

 What is the value of the housing stock? 

 How many & which properties are being bought through Right to Buy? 
 

There is considerable scope for improving the level of satisfaction for completed 
responsive and planned maintenance work as can be seen from the monitoring of 
complaints. Therefore the monitoring of asset performance should only help to 
reassure residents that NPH understand the housing stock and manage the 
required investment effectively. 

6.7. Asset Performance Monitoring: 

65



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

43 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

43 

Strategic Aim - 14 
To ensure leaseholders receive a quality service, tailored to their 
requirements 
 

Objectives 
6.8.1  Ensure robust procedures are in place around leaseholder 

consultation 
6.8.2 Ensure that accurate data is available on our leaseholders and the 

details of the leases in place  
 
 

 

 
A further NPH objective is to deliver quality, value for money services to 
leaseholders and provide them with the opportunities to participate in developing 
and monitoring services. As a result of the Leasehold Reform Act 2002, the 
management of leasehold stock presents special requirements from the 
perspective of management, repairs and maintenance services and any planned 
programmes or regeneration proposals. The key objectives for the Leasehold 
Team are: 

 To provide leaseholders with up-to-date and accurate information and 
monitor satisfaction, supported by the development of a rolling 5yr 
investment plan. 

 To ensure that Section 20 notices are fully compliant so that NPH can fully 
recharge for the cost of completed works  

 To issue individually tailored leaseholders bills and statement of account 
and be able to more accurately forecast future costs. 

 Provide a range of opportunities for leaseholders to influence decisions and 
receive regular feedback. 

 

 
This plan will seek to establish a new Procurement Plan, which will include 
working with residents to select contractors and materials, as well as considering 
the potential of local, regional and nation procurement groups providing solutions 
to future procurement needs. NPH will also be increasingly seeking to use modern 
methods of procurement to embed partnered relationships with service providers, 
suppliers and contractors.  
 
The Asset Management Team will work with the Procurement Team in LGSS to 
ensure that the Procurement Plan is both deliverable and regularly reviewed to 
achieve value for money. The measurement of this value for money will include 
benchmarking of costs through HouseMark and other similar housing providers. 
We will also work with others to explore the opportunity of combining contract 
management costs.  
 

6.8. Leaseholders: 

6.9. Procurement: 

66



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

44 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

44 

Strategic Aim - 15 
To achieve Value for Money through strategic procurement of all 
repairs & maintenance services, major regeneration and new-build 
projects 
 

Objectives 
6.9.1  To identify future work-streams and volumes of work to determine 

innovative procurement solutions that will deliver greater Value for 
Money 

6.9.2 To continue to involve residents in the procurement process for 
selecting and monitoring contractors for works within their homes. 

 
 

Where appropriate, we will consult with the Corporate Asset Management Team 
to highlight the opportunities for shared procurement opportunities, such as the lift 
maintenance ontract. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

67



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

45 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

45 

Strategic Aim - 16 
To deliver a value for money repairs service that is ‘right first time’ 
and meets the needs of and offers choice to our customers.    
 

Objectives 
7.1.1  Complete the implementation of new scheduling IT systems 

together with new mobile technology 
7.1.2 To work with staff to clarify the impact of the Northampton Homes 

Standard on the repairs and voids services 
7.1.3 To provide information on future planned programmes that will 

reduce the cost of both the repair and void services 
7.1.4 Undertake a review of demand and the products where there is 

high demand and consider changes in specification or supply 
chain to reduce long-term costs or implement more planned 
preventative maintenance 

7.1.5 Implement online Repairs Reporting Tool for all residents to link 
into the Open Housing repairs system 

 

7. Delivering Services: 

 

This section of the strategy seeks to outline some of the specific improvements 
and actions required within the repairs and maintenance functions that NPH will 
deliver. 

 

 
This work is delivered by an in-house Repairs & Maintenance Team who are in 
the process of adopting new procedures to introduce PDAs, appointments, a 
scheduling system and adopting multi-tasking within the workforce. As a result, 
NPH aims to: 

 Reduce the cost of delivery by doing the job ‘right-first-time’, through 
improved diagnostics, an effective appointment system, a multi-tasked and 
well trained work force, mobile working, and properly stocked vans. 

 Continue to analyse the proportion of emergency repairs to identify trends 
and set targets to reduce this type of work. 

 Identify repair hotspots and develop strategies to address individual and 
collective issues. 

 Reduce the overall volume of responsive repairs through planned 
programmes, batched repairs and predictive analysis. 

 Reduce back-office costs by better system integration. 

 

 
This work is mainly delivered with external contractors and to deliver value for 
money new contracts are being procured but in the future consideration will be 
given to move some or all of this service in-house to provide greater value for 

7.1. Response Repairs: 

7.2. Relet Works/ Voids: 

68



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

46 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

46 

Strategic Aim - 17 
To maximise the use of our stock and provide quality homes, 
creating sustainable tenancies.    
 

Objectives 
7.2.1  Continue to review the Relet Standard with existing and potential 

future residents and provide an incentive for tenants to maintain 
their homes and reduce the average cost of voids 

7.2.2 Implement the revised Recharge Policy to all voids returned in 
poor condition 

 

money, more efficient processes and deliver a more customer focused service. 
 
NPH will also improve the management of the relet process by: 

 Understanding current and future customer profiles. 

 Managing a stock of dwellings that is suitable for and adapts to this profile. 

 Maintaining and improving the stock to a level that customers find 
attractive. 

 Presenting attractive dwellings within acceptable timescales and costs. 
 
The relet standard will continue to be reviewed together with residents to offer an 
exemplary standard for new tenants and provide a sound platform for sustainable 
tenancies. As part of this, new policies and procedures will be developed to: 

 To set a clear relet standard but where units suffer from low demand; some 
properties may receive enhanced works in order to attract more 
prospective tenants   

 Provide incentives to encourage tenants to leave their home in a good 
state of repair. 

 Optimise the use of recharges where previous tenants have left the 
property in disrepair 

 

 
Nationally this country has an ageing population as people are living longer and 
medical care improves, however, this is resulting in more people requiring 
adaptations as they seek to stay in their homes. This is often in preference to a 
move to more suitable accommodation such as sheltered or other schemes 
designed for the elderly, however, any future welfare reforms and cuts in funding 
are likely to have an impact on some of these decisions. In addition, with Local 
Authorities having to find cost reductions and, as a result, many housing 
organisations are appointing their own Occupational Therapists and thereby come 
forward with proposals for optimising existing assets and closer working with 
agencies to deliver greater value for money.  
 
We are seeking to update ‘Open Housing’ with all the details provided by the 
Private Sector Housing Team on all the adaptations completed to NBC properties 
and it is likely that a significant proportion of the stock has benefitted from this 
form of investment. Budgets for adaptations within the Business Plan will also be 

7.3. Aids & Adaptations: 

69



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

47 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

47 

Strategic Aim - 18 
To ensure best use of our adapted stock and deliver an effective 
adaptations service to our residents with disabilities.    
 

Objectives 
7.3.1 Promote moving as an alternative to expensive adaptations by 

matching disabled people to suitable properties 
7.3.2 Improve information used on the Choice Based Lettings system to 

better inform disabled people bidding for properties, and 
incorporate this into the Asset Review process 

7.3.3 Work with NBC to look at projections for future customers and the 
likely impact on demand. 

7.3.4 Explore use of alternative materials to traditional solutions, such as 
mixer taps instead of electric showers 

7.3.5 Obtain approval for the proposed policy for the use and storage of 
mobility scooters within our buildings 

 

reviewed to deal with possible changes in demand for adaptations. New and 
innovative approaches will also be explored to improve value for money and keep 
waiting times to a minimum. 
Many elderly tenants have purchased and use mobility scooters to support their 
needs; however, this is most often over and above the needs identified by an 
occupational therapist. NPH will develop a clear policy over the use and storage 
of mobility scooters within NPH premises so that they are not fire escape hazards 
and provision is made either externally from the building or within the home for 
their safe storage. 
 

 

 
NPH will use planned, preventative maintenance to reduce demand for 
responsive repairs, maximising value for money, whilst minimising disruption and 
improving resident satisfaction.  
 

 
Most of our planned maintenance programmes are delivered through a number of 
key partnering contracts, with the likes of Kier, Mears and Lovells with some other 
works with Keepmoat, with the primary focus of delivering the Decent Homes 
Standard and, secondly, commencing the delivery of the Northampton Home 
Standard, such as:  

 Kitchens 

 Bathrooms  

 Electrical Refurbishments  

 Heating Upgrades 

 Window and Door Replacements 
 

7.4. Planned Programmes: 

7.4.1. Northampton Home Standard Planned Programmes: 

70



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

48 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

48 

Over the life of this strategy many of the above work elements will continue but 
there is still a need to improve internal communal facilities to our blocks of flats 
and maisonettes, together with new programmes for external elements and 
communal areas.  
 
Once the required new programmes have been developed, it is likely that new 
frameworks or contracts will be procured to deliver the works not covered by the 
existing contracts, such as; 

 Roofs 

 Windows 

 Doors 

 Fascias & Soffits 

 Rainwater Goods 

 External Wall Insulation (EWI) 

 Renewable Heating/ Energy solutions, such as PV Panels or Heat pumps 
 

 
Historically, one of the main planned maintenance programmes has been the 
external painting programme, which was originally a five year cycle but with the 
reduction in funding, this cycle was extended to six and then seven years, before 
the programme was halted to help deliver the Decent Homes Programmes.  
 
However, with the fitting of new self-finished windows & doors, gutters, fascias & 
soffits, plus the adoption of new paints and products; this programme will be 
reinstated to an agreed cycle but with increased remit to repair the whole of the 
external fabric of the building, with the aim of reducing the need for repeated, 
expensive scaffolding costs. It is proposed to reshape this work into an ‘External 
Cyclical Maintenance Programme’. Therefore, whilst redecoration will still form a 
part of this work, there will be an increased emphasis on external repairs with the 
target of scaffolding the buildings once in the cycle. This way the cost of 
scaffolding can be all but eliminated from response repairs and substantially 
reduced on planned programmes. 
 
The repairs prior to painting programme will also give us the opportunity to carry 
out a range of external maintenance works to the stock on a periodic basis, 
including paths, boundaries, gates, gutters, drain-gullies and manholes. Through 
this programme, we will also pilot a system of inspections and external stock 
condition surveys at the same time, to identify future planned requirements in a 
cost effective way. This revised approach should also improve resident 
satisfaction as the programme will be less disruptive and offer greater certainty of 
timing. 
 

 
The SCATE (Safe, Clean and Tidy Estates) Project has recently been piloted in 
the Briar Hill area of the Borough and a ‘lessons learnt’ report prepared to 

7.4.2. Cyclical Maintenance Programme: 

7.4.3. Environmental Improvements & SCATE Project: 

71



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

49 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

49 

Strategic Aim - 19 
To produce and deliver coordinated planned programmes that 
achieve value for money and offer certainty for our residents.    

 
Objectives 
7.4.1  Work with residents to establish a Northampton Home Standard 

planned programme running from 2015 to 2025 
7.4.2 Develop a forward plan for all Environmental Improvements/ 

SCATE Programme 
7.4.3 Develop process for establishing coordinated planned 

programmes, using the asset database as the primary source 
7.4.4 Publish programmes for residents, utilising GIS mapping 
7.4.5 Embed VFM monitoring within Planned Programmes. 
7.4.6 Produce clear planned programmes policies and procedures linked 

to standards agreed with customers 
 

consider how this project progresses. This project is intended to address many of 
internal and external communal areas and potentially bridge into neighbourhood 
improvements, particularly in the 800 communal areas within our blocks of flats.  
 
A revised, simplified programme is being produced to outline the forward 
programme for SCATE and this shall now run in parallel to other planned 
programmes which will focus on communal facilities, including the following: 

 Bin Storage 

 Communal Lighting 

 Laundries 

 Lifts 

 Door Entry Systems 

 Internal Decoration 

 Front and Rear Entrance Paths 
 

 
Fire Safety works - All Fire Risk Assessments for all the communal areas have 
now been completed and a programme of fire safety improvement works has 
been developed to minimise these risks. In addition, policies around ‘stay put’, 
mobility scooters, the integrity of fire escape routes and domestic sprinklers will be 
developed and agreed with both Housing Management and Northamptonshire 
Fire & Rescue Services. 

 

 
Any future works which do not form part of a planned programme will be 
commissioned by the Asset Management Forum, SMT or ALMO AM Sub-
Committee on a project-by-project basis, by establishing clear project mandates. 
All commissioned projects will be subject to SMT scrutiny, unless a separate 

7.4.4. Other Programmes/ Services: 

7.5. Refurbishment, Remodelling and Renewal Projects: 

72



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

50 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

50 

Strategic Aim - 20 
To ensure that our housing stock is sustainable both now and into 
the future.    

 
Objectives 
7.5.1  Establish the options for elements of stock renewal and identify 

suitable projects and funding streams to effect completion 
7.5.2 Maintain good channels of communication with NBC to determine 

proposals around local investment areas and regeneration 
projects and focus investment accordingly 

 
 

multi-disciplinary/ cross service project group is established. 
 
The new Option Appraisals Team, together with staff across NPH, will review the 
identified poorly performing stock using an agreed toolkit to demonstrate the 
merits of all the alternative options for each potential project. The findings of each 
appraisal will be presented to the Asset Management Forum to reach agreement 
on the way forward. In some instances when the projects are less complex, the 
Service Manager may be given delegated responsibility for the decision making 
process.  
 
The Asset Review process (see 4.1), together the Stock Profiling (see 6.2) will act 
as the main means of identifying future refurbishment, remodelling and 
regeneration requirements. Once the properties are identified, the Option 
Appraisal process (See 4.2) will then be used to determine the most suitable and 
viable approach towards our stock. On all schemes customers will be fully 
consulted and their comments incorporated into the recommendations and 
alternative solutions. 

 

 
The long-term goal is to form a new development function within NPH beyond 
2015 with the aim of building a set number of new affordable homes per year, 
subject to the financial capacity of the Business Plan and possible Grant funding. 
Some new homes may be procured by a variety of means including purchase of 
S106 affordable homes, joint ventures with developers and increasingly the 
acquisition & development of land directly by NPH.  
 
NPH will adopt a “NPH Standard for New Homes”, based around the Northampton 
Home Standard, which will summarise our ambition for new homes in terms of 
spatial standards, internal layout, estate planning and sustainability. Wherever 
practical and reasonable, NPH will be prepared to invest to bring new homes as 
near to the NPH Standard as possible.  
 
As part of the Asset Review and Stock Profiling processes, it is likely that some 
existing homes will be determined to be obsolete and/or surplus to requirements. 
In that event, an option appraisal will be undertaken and will include consideration 

7.6. Demolition, Redevelopment & New Build Projects: 

73



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

51 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

51 

Strategic Aim - 21 
To deliver the ability to grow NBC’s housing stock in support of 
agreed business objectives.    

 
Objectives 
7.6.1  To assist the delivery of a Development Plan, commence the 

identification of land, infill sites and redundant stock, suitable for 
redevelopment. 

7.6.2 To continue to work with NBC’s Strategic Housing Team to bring 

forward viable, high quality homes to meet priority housing needs 

Strategic Aim - 22 
To undertake selective disposal of properties that have reached 
the end of their economic and useful life, as clearly demonstrated 
through asset management activities.    

 
Objectives 
7.7.1  To dispose of expensive to maintain and manage properties and 

reuse the funds to provide new homes to ensure our residents 
benefit from more modern, better quality, environmentally 

sustainable homes 

of demolition and replacement. In addition, the process will continuously seek to 
identify scope for in-fill development or extensions to meet the needs of larger 
families. If/when a decision is made to proceed with a development, the site will 
be progressed by the new Development/ Major Projects Team as a new 
opportunity, subject to the normal processes of internal authority and due 
diligence. 
 
As new homes are completed, they will be added to the property database and 
the life-cycle costs will be factored into business plan projections. 

 

 
NPH will use the Asset Review, Stock Profiling and Option Appraisal processes to 
identify unsustainable and expensive to maintain properties, as well as high value 
properties which provide business opportunity costs. From all this information the 
Asset Management Team will develop a draft Disposal and Acquisition Strategy 
for SMT and subsequently the ALMO Board and Housing Strategy Team to 
consider.  
 
So far only the 9No Airey PRC properties have been identified as requiring 
decommissioning and potentially available for disposal. However, consideration 
also needs to be given to other elements of the housing stock, such as the 4No 
Swedish timber-framed properties, some Listed and/or older solid wall properties 
may equally be too expensive in terms of future investment. 
 
SMT and NBC will monitor the generation and use of capital surpluses from the 
sale of properties and determine the balance between the provision of new 
properties and investment into the existing stock. 

  

7.7. Disposals & Acquisitions: 

74



 

Asset Management Strategy 2015-20 

 

52 Housing Asset Management Strategy 2015-20  

52 

8. Strategy Review: 

 

This strategy will remain under constant review over the next 5 years, particularly 
through the Asset Management Committee. However, it will not just be the 
contents of the strategy that is reviewed and updated; it will include an 
assessment of risks to the strategy together with an assessment of the impact on 
the community from an equalities perspective.  

 

 
NPH is developing an Risk Management Plan and the Asset Manager will work to 
identify the key risks of the asset management functions and how these can be 
best controlled and managed. The asset management functions and all the key 
risks are therefore constantly being reviewed by SMT and the Board as part of 
NPH’s overall risk management process. 
 

 
NPH have completed an assessment of the impact of this strategy from an 
equalities perspective and the NPH Asset Management Team will review this on 
an annual basis to ensure that the decisions reached on asset management 
minimise any possible negative impact on the community. 
 
We aim to consult and engage with our residents and communities to ensure that 
we obtain a wide scope of views and take into account the diverse needs of our 
communities. The primary route for this will be the involvement and engagement 
of residents in setting out how the agreed Northampton Home Standard will be 
delivered over a 10yr period. We will also consult resident groups about all the 
major policy, procedures and standards contained within this Asset Management 
Strategy. 
 
Note: This Asset Management Strategy is also available in alternative communication 
formats such as Braille, audio or bigger print and can be translated as required. All such 
requests can be passed to the Asset Manager to make the necessary arrangements 

 
The action list, which follows as Appendix A, is based on the objectives outlined 
within each of the sections of the strategy. Where relevant, these actions should 
be incorporated into service plans and future project mandates. 
 
The principal of the Action List is that this becomes the means of monitoring and 
reviewing the delivery of the Asset Management Strategy, rather than undertaking 
wholesale adjustments to the document. The Action List can be printed on to 4 
sides of A3 and will be taken on a 6-monthly basis to SMT and ALMO AM Sub- 
Committee to update on progress.  
 

8.1. Risk Register: 

8.2. Equalities Impact Assessment : 

8.3. Strategy Action List: 

75



Appendix  A
Northampton Partnership Homes - Asset Management Plan Action List Date: October 2014

Yet to start

Underway

Completed

4.1 Annual Asset Review
4.1.1 Ensure all elements of NBC’s stock are included within the property 

database, including garages, land, shops and other commercial premises Jul-15 Jackie Mitchell Helen Strickland working to ensure all stock included
4.1.2 Undertake regular Asset Reviews to highlight those properties which require 

alternative solutions than continued planned programme investment Mar-15 - ongoing Tim Bruce & 
Savills Awaiting costings from Savills

4.1.3 Undertake stock condition surveys of the shops and complete an Asset 
Review of these properties and include investment requirements in 
Business Plan

Dec-15 Corporate AM 
Team

4.2 Option Appraisal
4.2.1 Establish a Land Strategy project to determine viable solutions for all land 

managed on behalf of NBC Sep-18 Major Projects 
Manager

4.2.2 Reduce the risk to the Business Plan by considering alternative solutions to 
the present investment strategy of planned programmes Ongoing

Asset 
Management 

Team
4.2.3 Facilitate new projects that access alternative funding streams and/or 

reduce the impact on our long-term financial plans Ongoing Major Projects 
Manager

4.2.4 Undertake review all Garage Sites by completing a mini-option appraisal for 
each site and include investment needs in the Business Plan Dec-15 Major Projects 

Manager Project Mandate being drafted

4.3 Better Use of Stock
4.3.1 Better understanding of our customers, tenant profile and extent of under-

occupation Ongoing
Housing 

Management 
Team

4.3.2 SMT to receive reports on the progress in tackling under occupancy by 
reviewing letting policies Ongoing

Housing 
Management 

Team
4.3.3 Complete the Supported Living project to determine viable solutions to the 

future of these properties Apr-15 Shirley Davies Project now underway and due for completion by March 2015

5.2 Investment Forecasts
5.2.1 Investment forecasts will report on the costs of the whole stock, in a 

consistent way, including non-housing assets, utilising the asset database Apr 15 - ongoing Tim Bruce & 
Savills Savills already appointed to undertake this work with Tim Bruce

5.2.2 Review the elemental costs and life cycle assumptions annually,   against 
actual costs and industry benchmarks. Apr-17 - ongoing

Asset 
Management 

Team
5.2.3 Align investment forecasts with the 30yr Business Plan and the financial 

plan in the light of investment requirements. Any funding gap will be 
addressed by financial modelling, procurement strategy and/or development 
of new policies and standards

Dec-14 - ongoing
Tim Bruce, Ken 
Hopkins & Nigel 

Tooby
Provisional Investment Plan could be subject to minor changes as the NPH Busines Plan is 
developed

5.2.4 Future investment plans are developed and agreed with our residents Feb-15 Tim Bruce & 
Tenants' Panel

5.3 Programme Development
5.3.1 Strengthen the processes for using investment forecasting data to inform 

planned programmes, ensuring the data is increasingly accurate and reliable 
by a programme of new stock condition surveys

Dec-14 - ongoing Tim Bruce, Savills 
& Jackie Mitchell Savills already appointed to undertake this work with Tim Bruce & Jackie Mitchell

5.3.2 Agree a detailed rolling 5yr investment plan which builds on intelligent 
timing of component replacements Dec-14 - ongoing Tim Bruce & 

Savills Savills already appointed to undertake this work with Tim Bruce
5.3.3 Adoption of whole life costs within asset management to improve quality 

and reduce costs to the business, including identifying regeneration and 
new development opportunities 

Oct-18 - ongoing
Asset 

Management 
Team

AMS 
Ref No

1Objective Lead OfficerTimeframe Progress

76



Yet to start

Underway

Completed

5.4 Value for Money
5.4.1 Obtain value for money through proactive procurement and the 

maximisation of in-house and partnering opportunities Sep-15 - ongoing
Asset 

Management 
Team

Tim Bruce has produced a schedule of contracts with Jackie Taylor and a procurement plan is 
being developed

5.4.2 Agree methodology with Finance for measuring efficiency savings and 
service improvements arising from this strategy

Nov-15 - 
ongoing Finance Team

5.4.3 Capture and publish value for money savings arising from the Asset 
Management Strategy Jan-16 - ongoing Finance Team

6.1 Resident Involvement & Empowerment
6.1.1 Support appropriate resident groups with information coming out of the 

Asset Review and other Asset Management processes Mar-15- Ongoing
Asset 

Management 
Team

6.1.2 Undertake a survey of prospective future tenants to influence our void 
standard and new build aspirations Jan-16

Asset 
Management 

Team
6.2 Stock Profiling

6.2.1 Complete Stock Profiles, including comprehensive asset information about 
each property type and incorporation of GIS mapping and photographs Dec-14 - 

Ongoing

Tim Bruce, Alice 
Arden-Barnatt & 

Rachael 
Hawthorne Estate profiles are in development, full stock list developed

6.3 Data Management
6.3.1 Place all property and land within the asset database, including land, offices, 

garages and commercial property (as 4.1.1) Sep-15 Technical Services 
Manager Helen Strickland working to ensure all stock included

6.3.2 Place all key fixtures and fittings within the database, including adaptations, 
alterations and details of any guarantees and warranties Jun-15 Technical Services 

Manager Helen Strickland working to ensure all stock included
6.3.3 Establish a stock condition survey strategy to feed the planned maintenance 

programmes Jul-15 - Ongoing Tim Bruce & 
Jackie Mitchell

6.3.4 Establish a data capture process to cover all works undertaken through 
response repairs, voids, planned and cyclical works, regeneration and new 
build schemes

Sep-15 - 
Ongoing

Jackie Mitchell & 
ITC

6.3.5 Implement new IT to allow staff to record maintenance issues during 
property visits

Dec-15 - 
Ongoing

Richard James & 
ITC Awaiting results of mobile technology for operatives 

6.4 Information Systems
6.4.1 Avoid duplication of entry July-15 - 

Ongoing Helen Strickland

6.4.2 Improve access to the database for staff, contractors and residents July-15 - 
Ongoing Helen Strickland

6.4.3 Optimise the functionality of the asset database to deliver elements of the 
AM Plan Apr-16 - Ongoing Helen Strickland & 

Jackie Mitchell
6.5 Sustainability and Energy Efficiency

6.5.1 To produce an Environmental Plan that clearly outline how we will improve 
our assets and facilities to reduce NPH’s carbon footprint and seeks to 
maximise the energy grant funding available

Jul-15 Tim Bruce
Tim Bruce to develop project mandate and seek external consultants to support delivery of the 
Plan

6.5.2 To develop a series of planned programmes that will deliver the 
requirements of the Energy Act 2011 to reduce carbon emissions from our 
housing stock by 80% by 2050 and to include these within the Business 
Planning process.

Apr-15 Tim Bruce & 
Savills

6.5.3 To deliver a year on year improvements in the average SAP/ Energy rating of 
our housing assets and help reduce fuel bills for our residents

Sep-15 - 
Ongoing Helen Strickland

Helen Strickland working to ensure all energy data is placed within the SAP module in Open 
Housing

6.6 Health & Safety Matters
Gas Servicing:

6.6.1 Ensure all gas appliances are checked on an annual basis. Ongoing Technical Services 
Manager The Gas & Servicing Team to seek to improve on present performance

AMS 
Ref No

Objective Timeframe Owner Comments 2

77



Yet to start

Underway

Completed

6.6 Health & Safety Matters (cont'd)
Fire Safety:

6.6.2 Review all the Fire Risk Assessments for communal areas and meet 
regularly with Devon & Somerset Fire & Rescue Jun-15 Technical Services 

Manager Malcolm Burden has completed all the Fire Risk assessment except in the Shops
6.6.3 Undertake training for staff and residents on fire safety in the home, 

particularly in high-rise buildings Dec-15 Technical Services 
Manager Fire Safety Training to be undertaken jointly with Northamptonshire Fire & Rescue Service

Asbestos:
6.6.4 Ensure the asbestos register is effectively managed Apr-15 Technical Services 

Manager
6.6.5 Ensure that there are seamless processes in place to manage risk Apr -15 - 

Ongoing
Technical Services 

Manager
6.6.6 Ensure regular asbestos inspections as required under the Asbestos 

Management regulations
Sep-15 - 
Ongoing

Technical Services 
Manager

6.6.7 Seek to provide access to residents and contractors to the Asbestos 
Register through a web-portal Dec-17 Technical Services 

Manager
Legionella: 

6.6.8 Check and sample water to all water systems that could be susceptible to 
contamination of legionella bacteria, within the timescales laid down by the 
Health and Safety Executive 

Jun-15 - 
Ongoing

Technical Services 
Manager

Flood Risk:
6.6.9 Establish a database of properties which are subject to flood risk (coastal, 

fluvial and surface water) Ongoing Technical Services 
Manager

Radon:
6.6.10 Establish a clear position on all properties affected by Radon and implement 

a service contract to ensure resident safety
Jun-15 - 
Ongoing

Technical Services 
Manager

Electrics:
6.6.11 Carry out periodical electrical checks over a 5 year period and ensure asset 

database is updated accordingly Ongoing Technical Services 
Manager

Lifts
6.6.12 Check all lifting equipment every 6 months or monthly, dependant on the 

type of equipment Ongoing Technical Services 
Manager

Security
6.6.13 Review the requirement for on-going communal door entry system servicing Ongoing Technical Services 

Manager
6.7 Asset Performance Monitoring

6.7.1 Agree a set of Asset Management KPIs which demonstrate robust 
management and optimisation of asset and resources Apr-15 Tim Bruce

6.7.2 Provide regular reports to the AM Committee on the impact of RTBs on the 
housing stock Ongoing Technical Services 

Manager
6.8 Leaseholders

6.8.1 Ensure robust procedures are in place around leaseholder consultation Jun-15 Sheila Toley Underway with Kevin Kalyana
6.8.2 Ensure that accurate data is available on our leaseholders and the details of 

the leases in place Sep-15 Sheila Toley

6.9 Procurement
6.9.1 To identify future work-streams and volumes of work to determine 

innovative procurement solutions this will deliver greater Value for Money Apr-18 tbc

6.9.2 To continue to involve residents in the procurement process for selecting 
and monitoring contractors for works within their homes Ongoing tbc

3AMS 
Ref No

Objective Timeframe Owner Comments

78



Yet to start

Underway

Completed

7.1 Response Repairs
7.1.1 Complete the implementation of new scheduling IT systems together with 

new mobile technology Sep-15 Richard James

7.1.2 To work with staff to clarify the impact of the Northampton Homes Standard 
on the repairs and voids services Jun-15 Richard James

7.1.3 To provide information on future planned programmes that will reduce the 
cost of both the repair and void services Sep-15 Richard James

7.1.4 Undertake a review of demand and the products where there is high demand 
and consider changes in specification or supply chain to reduce long-term 
costs or implement more planned preventative maintenance

Apr-18 Richard James

7.1.5 Implement online Repairs Reporting Tool for all residents to link into 
existing Open Housing repairs system Apr-19 Richard James

7.2 Relet Works/ Voids
7.2.1 Continue to review the relet standard with existing and potential future 

residents and provide an incentive for tenants to maintain their homes and 
reduce the average cost of voids

Dec-16 Richard James

7.2.2 Implement the updated Recharge Policy and apply to all voids which are 
returned in poor condition Mar-15 Richard James

7.3 Adaptations
7.3.1 Promote moving as an alternative to expensive adaptations by matching 

disabled people to suitable properties Jun-15 tbc

7.3.2 Improve information held on Choice Based Lettings to better inform disabled 
people bidding for properties, by development of an accessibility rating that 
can alos be incorporated into the Asset Review process

Dec-16 tbc

7.3.3 Work with NBC to look at projections for future customers and the likely 
impact on demand. Jun-17 tbc

7.3.4 Explore use of using alternative materials to traditional solutions, such as 
mixer taps instead of electric showers Sep-15 tbc

7.3.5 Develop a policy, in conjunction with residents, over the use and storage of 
mobility scooters within our buildings Apr-15 tbc

7.4 Planned Programmes
7.4.1 Work with residents to establish a Northampton Home Standard planned 

programme running from 2015 to 2025 Oct-15 Tim Bruce

7.4.2 Develop a forward plan for all Environmental Improvements/ SCATE 
Programme Dec-14 Tim Bruce/ Kathy 

Brooks
7.4.3 Develop process for establishing coordinated planned programmes, using 

the asset database as the primary source Jun-15 Tim Bruce

7.4.4 Publish programmes for residents, utilising GIS mapping Oct-15 Tim Bruce
7.4.5 Embed VFM monitoring within Planned Programmes. Jan-18 tbc
7.4.6 Produce clear planned programmes policies and procedures linked to 

standards agreed with customers Oct-15 Tim Bruce

7.5 Refurbishment, Remodelling and Regeneration Projects
7.5.1 Establish the options for elements of stock renewal and identify suitable 

projects and funding streams to effect completion Dec-15 Major Projects 
Manager

7.6 Demolition, Redevelopment & New Build Projects
7.6.1 To develop a New Build Development Plan and continue to identify potential 

sites for future schemes Dec-17 Major Projects 
Manager

7.6.2 To continue to work with local Planners, other housing and development 
partner to develop opportunities to provide new homes Ongoing Major Projects 

Manager
7.7 Disposals

7.7.1 To dispose of expensive to maintain and manage properties and reuse the 
funds to provide new homes to ensure our residents benefit from more 
modern, better quality, environmentally sustainable homes

Apr-16 Major Projects 
Manager

4AMS 
Ref No

Objective Timeframe Owner Comments

79



APPENDIX  B
Stock Summaries Stock Distribution

District Area No % District Area No % Area % District Area %
1 ABINGTON East 562 4.36% 1 ABINGTON East 562 10.65% East 38.5% KINGSTHORPE North 10.30%
2 BELLINGE East 286 2.22% 36 THORPLANDS East 490 9.28% North 49.4% KINGS HEATH North 7.15%
3 BLACKTHORN East 511 3.96% 3 BLACKTHORN East 511 9.68% South 12.1% SPRING BOROUGHS North 5.49%
4 BRIAR HILL South 556 4.31% 11 EASTFIELD East 418 7.92% TOWN CENTRE North 4.42%
5 CAMP HILL South 237 1.84% 12 ECTON BROOK East 471 8.92% 100% ABINGTON East 4.36%
6 COLLINGTREE South 22 0.17% 24 LINGS East 306 5.80% BRIAR HILL South 4.31%
7 COTTARVILLE East 14 0.11% 31 SOUTHFIELDS East 306 5.80% ST JAMES North 4.21%
8 DALLINGTON North 234 1.82% 14 GOLDINGS East 303 5.74% BLACKTHORN East 3.96%
9 DELAPRE South 275 2.13% 2 BELLINGE East 286 5.42% THORPLANDS East 3.80%

10 DUSTON North 369 2.86% 26 LUMBERTUBS East 187 3.54% ECTON BROOK East 3.65%
11 EASTFIELD East 418 3.24% 38 WESTON FAVELL East 216 4.09% SPENCER North 3.45%
12 ECTON BROOK East 471 3.65% 23 LAKEVIEW East 199 3.77% SEMILONG North 3.45%
13 FAR COTTON South 263 2.04% 28 RECTORY FARM East 191 3.62% EASTFIELD East 3.24%
14 GOLDINGS East 303 2.35% 35 STANDENS BARN East 182 3.45% DUSTON North 2.86%
15 GREAT BILLING East 2 0.02% 27 OVERSTONE LODGE East 120 2.27% KINGSLEY North 2.49%
16 GREAT HOUGHTON South 13 0.10% 39 WOODFIELD East 84 1.59% LINGS East 2.37%
17 HARDINGSTONE South 136 1.06% 18 HEADLANDS East 82 1.55% SOUTHFIELDS East 2.37%
18 THE HEADLANDS East 82 0.64% 25 LITTLE BILLING East 29 0.55% GOLDINGS East 2.35%
19 KINGS HEATH North 921 7.15% 7 COTTARVILLE East 14 0.27% BELLINGE East 2.22%
20 KINGSLEY North 321 2.49% 15 GREAT BILLING East 2 0.04% DELAPRE South 2.13%
21 KINGSTHORPE North 1327 10.30% 21 KINGSTHORPE North 1327 19.35% FAR COTTON South 2.04%
22 KINGSTHORPE HOLLOW North 237 1.84% 19 KINGS HEATH North 921 13.43% RYEHILL North 1.96%
23 LAKEVIEW East 199 1.54% 33 SPRING BOROUGHS North 707 10.31% KINGSTHORPE HOLLOW North 1.84%
24 LINGS East 306 2.37% 37 TOWN CENTRE North 570 8.31% DALLINGTON North 1.82%
25 LITTLE BILLING East 29 0.23% 34 ST JAMES North 543 7.92% CAMP HILL South 1.84%
26 LUMBERTUBS East 187 1.45% 32 SPENCER North 445 6.49% WESTON FAVELL East 1.68%
27 OVERSTONE LODGE East 120 0.93% 30 SEMILONG North 446 6.50% LAKEVIEW East 1.54%
28 RECTORY FARM East 191 1.48% 10 DUSTON North 369 5.38% RECTORY FARM East 1.48%
29 RYEHILL North 253 1.96% 20 KINGSLEY North 321 4.68% LUMBERTUBS East 1.45%
30 SEMILONG North 446 3.46% 22 KINGSTHORPE HOLLOW North 237 3.46% STANDENS BARN East 1.41%
31 SOUTHFIELDS East 306 2.37% 29 RYEHILL North 253 3.69% HARDINGSTONE South 1.06%
32 SPENCER North 445 3.45% 8 DALLINGTON North 234 3.41% OVERSTONE LODGE East 0.93%
33 SPRING BOROUGHS North 707 5.49% 4 BRIAR HILL South 556 34.32% WOODFIELD East 0.65%
34 ST JAMES North 543 4.21% 13 FAR COTTON South 263 16.23% HEADLANDS East 0.64%
35 STANDENS BARN East 182 1.41% 9 DELAPRE South 275 16.98% WOOTTON South 0.42%
36 THORPLANDS East 490 3.80% 5 CAMP HILL South 237 14.63% LITTLE BILLING East 0.23%
37 TOWN CENTRE North 570 4.42% 17 HARDINGSTONE South 136 8.40% COLLINGTREE South 0.17%
38 WESTON FAVELL - co East 216 1.68% 40 WOOTTON South 54 3.33% COTTARVILLE East 0.11%
39 WOODFIELD East 84 0.65% 6 COLLINGTREE South 22 1.36% GREAT HOUGHTON South 0.10%
40 WOOTTON South 54 0.42% 16 GREAT HOUGHTON South 13 0.80% GREAT BILLING East 0.02%

100% in 40 Districts
10% in 1 KINGSTHORPE N
25% in 4 KINGS HEATH N

SPRING BOROUGHS N
TOWN CENTRE N

50% in 10 ABINGTON E
BRIAR HILL S
ST JAMES N
THORPLANDS E
BLACKTHORN E
SPENCER N

60% in 13 SEMILONG N
EASTFIELD E
ECTON BROOK E

0.00%

2.00%

4.00%

6.00%

8.00%

10.00%

12.00%

KI
N
G
ST
HO

RP
E

KI
N
G
S 
HE

AT
H

SP
RI
N
G 
BO

RO
U
G
HS

TO
W
N
 C
EN

TR
E

AB
IN
GT

O
N

BR
IA
R 
HI
LL

ST
 JA

M
ES

BL
AC

KT
HO

RN

TH
O
RP

LA
N
DS

EC
TO

N
 B
RO

O
K

SP
EN

CE
R

SE
M
IL
O
N
G

EA
ST
FI
EL
D

DU
ST
O
N

KI
N
G
SL
EY

LI
N
G
S

SO
U
TH

FI
EL
DS

G
O
LD

IN
G
S

BE
LL
IN
GE

DE
LA
PR

E

FA
R 
CO

TT
O
N

RY
EH

IL
L

KI
N
G
ST
HO

RP
E 
HO

LL
O
W

DA
LL
IN
GT

O
N

CA
M
P 
HI
LL

W
ES
TO

N
 F
AV

EL
L

LA
KE
VI
EW

RE
CT

O
RY

 F
AR

M

LU
M
BE

RT
U
BS

ST
AN

DE
N
S 
BA

RN

HA
RD

IN
G
ST
O
N
E

O
VE

RS
TO

N
E 
LO

DG
E

W
O
O
DF

IE
LD

HE
AD

LA
N
DS

W
O
O
TT
O
N

LI
TT
LE
 B
IL
LI
N
G

CO
LL
IN
G
TR

EE

CO
TT
AR

VI
LL
E

GR
EA

T 
HO

U
G
HT

O
N

GR
EA

T 
BI
LL
IN
G

Size of Districts

0.0%

10.0%

20.0%

30.0%

40.0%

50.0%

East North South

38.5%

49.4%

12.1%

Size or Areas

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

AB
IN
GT

O
N

TH
O
RP

LA
N
DS

BL
AC

KT
H
O
RN

EA
ST
FI
EL
D

EC
TO

N
 B
RO

O
K

LI
N
G
S

SO
U
TH

FI
EL
DS

G
O
LD

IN
G
S

BE
LL
IN
G
E

LU
M
BE

RT
U
BS

W
ES
TO

N
 F
AV

EL
L

LA
KE
VI
EW

RE
CT

O
RY

 F
AR

M

ST
AN

DE
N
S 
BA

RN

O
VE

RS
TO

N
E 
LO

DG
E

W
O
O
DF

IE
LD

HE
AD

LA
N
DS

LI
TT
LE
 B
IL
LI
N
G

CO
TT
AR

VI
LL
E

G
RE

AT
 B
IL
LI
N
G

Districts in East Area

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

KI
N
G
ST
HO

RP
E

KI
N
G
S 
HE

AT
H

SP
RI
N
G
 B
O
RO

U
G
HS

TO
W
N
 C
EN

TR
E

ST
 JA

M
ES

SP
EN

CE
R

SE
M
IL
O
N
G

DU
ST
O
N

KI
N
G
SL
EY

KI
N
G
ST
HO

RP
E 
H
O
LL
O
W

RY
EH

IL
L

DA
LL
IN
G
TO

N

Districts in North Area

0.00%

10.00%

20.00%

30.00%

40.00%

BR
IA
R 
HI
LL

FA
R 
CO

TT
O
N

DE
LA
PR

E

CA
M
P 
HI
LL

HA
RD

IN
G
ST
O
N
E

W
O
O
TT
O
N

CO
LL
IN
G
TR

EE

G
RE

AT
 H
O
U
G
HT

O
N

Districts in South Area

80



Housing Stock Profile Data APPENDIX  B
AGE OF STOCK

District Pr
e 

19
45

19
45

-
19

64

19
65

-
19

74

Po
st

 
19

75

1 ABINGTON 395 69 29 69
2 BELLINGE 0 0 16 270
3 BLACKTHORN 0 0 0 511
4 BRIAR HILL 0 0 302 254
5 CAMP HILL 0 0 0 237
6 COLLINGTREE 0 9 0 13
7 COTTARVILLE 14 0 0 0
8 DALLINGTON 55 106 53 20
9 DELAPRE 0 95 172 8

10 DUSTON 30 75 180 84
11 EASTFIELD 0 321 64 33
12 ECTON BROOK 0 0 0 471
13 FAR COTTON 219 10 0 34
14 GOLDINGS 0 0 0 303
15 GREAT BILLING 2 0 0 0
16 GREAT HOUGHTON 0 13 0 0
17 HARDINGSTONE 7 92 2 35
18 THE HEADLANDS 0 79 0 3
19 KINGS HEATH 8 784 0 129
20 KINGSLEY 294 0 1 26
21 KINGSTHORPE 494 383 186 264
22 KINGSTHORPE HOLLOW 131 0 0 106
23 LAKEVIEW 0 0 197 2
24 LINGS 0 0 236 70
25 LITTLE BILLING 2 27 0 0
26 LUMBERTUBS 0 0 151 36
27 OVERSTONE LODGE 0 0 0 120
28 RECTORY FARM 0 0 0 191
29 RYEHILL 0 0 0 253
30 SEMILONG 1 41 127 277
31 SOUTHFIELDS 0 0 0 306
32 SPENCER 297 131 0 17
33 SPRING BOROUGHS 137 395 121 54
34 ST JAMES 29 0 145 369
35 STANDENS BARN 0 0 178 4
36 THORPLANDS 0 0 424 66
37 TOWN CENTRE 2 0 2 566
38 WESTON FAVELL 41 48 0 127
39 WOODFIELD 0 0 0 84
40 WOOTTON 11 37 6 0

Grand Total 2169 2715 2592 5412

Age of the Stock

ABINGTON

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

BELLINGE

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

BLACKTHORN

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

BRIAR HILL

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

CAMP HILL

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

COLLINGTREE

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

COTTARVILLE

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

DALLINGTON

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

DELAPRE

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

DUSTON

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

EASTFIELD

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

ECTON BROOK

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

GOLDINGS

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

FAR COTTON

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

GREAT BILLING

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

GREAT HOUGHTON

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

81



HARDINGSTONE

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

THE HEADLANDS

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

KINGS HEATH

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

KINGSLEY

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

KINGSTHORPE

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

KINGSTHORPE HOLLOW

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

LAKEVIEW

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

LINGS

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

LITTLE BILLING

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

LUMBERTUBS

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

OVERSTONE LODGE

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

RECTORY FARM

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

RYEHILL

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

SPRING BOROUGHS

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

SEMILONG

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

ST JAMES

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

SOUTHFIELDS

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

STANDENS BARN

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

SPENCER

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

THORPLANDS

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

TOWN CENTRE

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

WESTON FAVELL

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

WOODFIELD

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

WOOTTON

Pre 1945

1945‐1964

1965‐1974

Post 1975

82



Housing Stock Profile Data APPENDIX 
TYPE OF PROPERT

District B
ed

si
ts

B
un

ga
lo

w
s

Lo
w

 ri
se

 
Fl

at
s

M
ed

iu
m

 R
is

e 
Fl

at
s

H
ig

h 
R

is
e 

Fl
at

s

H
ou

se
s

M
ai

so
ne

tte
s

R
oo

m

Pl
ot

1 ABINGTON 18 36 94 53 0 361 0 0 0
2 BELLINGE 0 88 0 0 0 198 0 0 0
3 BLACKTHORN 0 75 0 96 0 340 0 0 0
4 BRIAR HILL 0 104 83 149 0 220 0 0 0
5 CAMP HILL 63 52 0 53 0 69 0 0 0
6 COLLINGTREE 0 4 8 0 0 10 0 0 0
7 COTTARVILLE 0 0 0 0 0 14 0 0 0
8 DALLINGTON 0 80 68 7 0 79 0 0 0
9 DELAPRE 0 77 8 72 0 118 0 0 0

10 DUSTON 0 110 34 110 0 115 0 0 0
11 EASTFIELD 31 9 110 40 0 184 44 0 0
12 ECTON BROOK 0 195 0 66 0 175 0 0 35
13 FAR COTTON 0 32 50 0 0 181 0 0 0
14 GOLDINGS 0 81 0 78 0 144 0 0 0
15 GREAT BILLING 0 0 0 0 0 2 0 0 0
16 GREAT HOUGHTON 0 8 0 0 0 5 0 0 0
17 HARDINGSTONE 0 59 20 0 0 57 0 0 0
18 THE HEADLANDS 0 1 10 0 0 71 0 0 0
19 KINGS HEATH 67 87 196 244 0 282 42 3 0
20 KINGSLEY 0 26 0 0 0 295 0 0 0
21 KINGSTHORPE 9 105 185 327 0 673 28 0 0
22 KINGSTHORPE HOLLOW 0 0 166 40 0 31 0 0 0
23 LAKEVIEW 0 35 81 36 0 47 0 0 0
24 LINGS 0 1 36 36 0 233 0 0 0
25 LITTLE BILLING 0 0 0 0 0 29 0 0 0
26 LUMBERTUBS 20 6 40 17 19 85 0 0 0
27 OVERSTONE LODGE 0 0 29 0 0 91 0 0 0
28 RECTORY FARM 0 34 0 40 0 117 0 0 0
29 RYEHILL 0 18 102 58 0 75 0 0 0
30 SEMILONG 2 13 70 273 54 4 30 0 0
31 SOUTHFIELDS 0 0 0 157 5 144 0 0 0
32 SPENCER 3 42 106 0 0 294 0 0 0
33 SPRING BOROUGHS 7 2 107 254 300 20 17 0 0
34 ST JAMES 45 15 16 274 143 50 0 0 0
35 STANDENS BARN 0 100 0 0 0 82 0 0 0
36 THORPLANDS 0 21 115 126 0 228 0 0 0
37 TOWN CENTRE 0 15 225 253 0 77 0 0 0
38 WESTON FAVELL 0 43 34 44 0 95 0 0 0
39 WOODFIELD 0 14 0 0 0 70 0 0 0
40 WOOTTON 0 8 10 0 0 36 0 0 0

Grand Total 265 1596 2003 2903 521 5401 161 3 35

Type of Property

ABINGTON Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

BELLINGE Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

BLACKTHORN Bedsits
Bungalow
Low rise F
Medium 
High Rise
Houses
Maisonet
Room
Plot

BRIAR HILL Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

CAMP HILL Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

COLLINGTREE Bedsits
Bungalow
Low rise 
Medium 
High Rise
Houses
Maisonet
Room
Plot

COTTARVILLE Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

DALLINGTON Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

DELAPRE Bedsits
Bungalow
Low rise 
Medium 
High Rise
Houses
Maisonet
Room
Plot

DUSTON
Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

EASTFIELD
Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

ECTON BROOK
Bedsits
Bungalow
Low rise 
Medium 
High Rise
Houses
Maisone
Room
Plot

FAR COTTON Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

GOLDINGS Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

GREAT BILLING Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

GREAT HOUGHTONBedsits
Bungalow
Low rise F
Medium R
High Rise 
Houses
Maisonet
Room
Plot

83



HARDINGSTONE Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

THE HEADLANDS Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

KINGS HEATH Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

KINGSLEY Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

KINGSTHORPE Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

KINGSTHORPE HOLLOWBedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

LAKEVIEW Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

LINGS Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

LITTLE BILLING Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

LUMBERTUBS Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

OVERSTONE LODGEBedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

RECTORY FARM Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

RYEHILL Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

SEMILONG Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

SOUTHFIELDS Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

SPENCER Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

SPRING BOROUGHSBedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

TOWN CENTRE Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

ST JAMES Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

WESTON FAVELL Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

STANDENS BARN Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

WOODFIELD Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

THORPLANDS Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

WOOTTON Bedsits
Bungalows
Low rise Flats
Medium Rise Flats
High Rise Flats
Houses
Maisonettes
Room
Plot

84



ousing Stock Profile Data APPENDIX  B
SIZE OF PROPERTY

District 0 
B

ed
ro

om
s

1 
B

ed
ro

om

2 
B

ed
ro

om
s

3 
B

ed
ro

om
s

4 
B

ed
ro

om
s

4+
 

B
ed

ro
om

s

ABINGTON 18 177 144 217 6 0
BELLINGE 0 88 44 87 67 0
BLACKTHORN 0 170 0 320 0 21
BRIAR HILL 0 171 229 133 16 7
CAMP HILL 63 23 100 41 4 6
COLLINGTREE 0 0 12 10 0 0
COTTARVILLE 0 0 0 14 0 0
DALLINGTON 0 136 56 41 1 0
DELAPRE 0 133 69 70 3 0
DUSTON 0 164 97 89 19 0
EASTFIELD 37 108 61 208 4 0
ECTON BROOK 35 128 173 105 0 30
FAR COTTON 0 50 83 129 1 0
GOLDINGS 0 39 120 123 6 15
GREAT BILLING 0 0 1 1 0 0
GREAT HOUGHTON 0 1 10 2 0 0
HARDINGSTONE 0 9 73 52 2 0
THE HEADLANDS 0 10 1 71 0 0
KINGS HEATH 94 259 372 187 9 0
KINGSLEY 0 8 199 114 0 0
KINGSTHORPE 9 547 466 305 0 0
KINGSTHORPE HOLLOW 0 152 80 5 0 0
LAKEVIEW 0 139 37 22 0 1
LINGS 0 72 87 131 16 0
LITTLE BILLING 0 0 0 29 0 0
LUMBERTUBS 20 82 12 66 7 0
OVERSTONE LODGE 0 29 33 44 14 0
RECTORY FARM 0 40 58 92 1 0
RYEHILL 0 108 102 38 4 1
SEMILONG 2 306 131 7 0 0
SOUTHFIELDS 0 36 173 86 4 7
SPENCER 3 113 192 115 15 7
SPRING BOROUGHS 6 409 193 99 0 0
ST JAMES 45 337 136 25 0 0
STANDENS BARN 0 31 102 49 0 0
THORPLANDS 0 82 251 118 20 19
TOWN CENTRE 0 395 127 47 0 1
WESTON FAVELL 0 90 54 69 3 0
WOODFIELD 0 0 59 20 5 0
WOOTTON 0 0 23 29 2 0

Grand Total 332 4642 4160 3410 229 115

Size of Property

ABINGTON
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

BRIAR HILL
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

CAMP HILL
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

COLLINGTREE
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

COTTARVILLE
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

DALLINGTON
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

DELAPRE
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

DUSTON
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

EASTFIELD
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

ECTON BROOK
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

FAR COTTON
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

GOLDINGS
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

GREAT BILLING
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

GREAT HOUGHTON
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

BELLINGE
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

BLACKTHORN
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

85



HARDINGSTONE
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

THE HEADLANDS
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

KINGS HEATH
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

KINGSLEY
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

KINGSTHORPE
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

KINGSTHORPE HOLLOW
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

LAKEVIEW
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

LINGS
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

LITTLE BILLING
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

LUMBERTUBS
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

OVERSTONE LODGE
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

RECTORY FARM
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

RYEHILL
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

SEMILONG
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

SOUTHFIELDS
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

SPENCER
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

SPRING BOROUGHS
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

TOWN CENTRE
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

ST JAMES
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

WESTON FAVELL
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

STANDENS BARN
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

WOODFIELD
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

THORPLANDS
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

WOOTTON
0 Bedrooms

1 Bedroom

2 Bedrooms

3 Bedrooms

4 Bedrooms

4+ Bedrooms

86



87



88



APPENDIX  C

Element Group Element  Year 1-5 Year 6-10 Year 11-15 Year 16-20  Year 21-25  Year 26-30 Total 
External works
Pitched Roofs  £            3,354,000 £          2,908,850 £          1,190,990 £          7,593,300 £          8,313,000  £            3,985,650 £          27,345,790 

Pitched roofs - ext001|Plain tiles (concrete or clay)  £                      208,000  £                   396,000  £                     24,000  £                       8,000  £                             -    £                          4,000  £                      640,000 
Pitched roofs - ext001|Interlocking tiles (concrete or clay pantile)  £                   1,976,000  £                   488,000  £                   512,000  £                3,260,000  £                4,636,000  £                   2,928,000  £                 13,800,000 
Pitched roofs - ext001|Natural slate  £                        64,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        64,000 
Pitched roofs - ext001|Synthetic slate  £                          4,000  £                1,504,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                   100,000  £                      260,000  £                   1,868,000 
Pitched roofs - ext001|Other/Specialist  £                                -    £                       8,000  £                             -    £                     12,000  £                             -    £                      180,000  £                      200,000 
Out building or garage pitched roof - ext019|Out building or garage pitched roof-
All types

 £                          5,200  £                     46,800  £                     10,950  £                       5,000  £                     54,700  £                        21,150  £                      143,800 

Pitched roofs - blk001|Plain tiles (concrete or clay)  £                                -    £                     23,700  £                             -    £                             -    £                     52,500  £                                -    £                        76,200 
Pitched roofs - blk001|Interlocking tiles (concrete or clay pantile)  £                   1,096,200  £                   296,700  £                   612,900  £                4,308,300  £                3,448,500  £                      588,600  £                 10,351,200 
Pitched roofs - blk001|Natural slate  £                                -    £                   103,250  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      103,250 
Pitched roofs - blk001|Synthetic slate  £                                -    £                             -    £                     31,140  £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        31,140 
Pitched roofs - blk001|Other/Specialist  £                                -    £                     34,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        34,000 
Out building or garage pitched roof - blk019|Out building or garage pitched roof-
All types

 £                             600  £                       8,400  £                             -    £                             -    £                     21,300  £                          3,900  £                        34,200 

Chimneys  £               290,150 £             515,500 £             157,450 £             276,600 £               79,850  £               134,800 £            1,454,350 
Brick or Rendered Chimneys - ext007|Repoint / re-render chimney  £                      241,650  £                   477,000  £                   148,950  £                   273,600  £                     73,350  £                      132,300  £                   1,346,850 
Brick or Rendered Chimneys - ext007|Rebuild chimney (Year 1 only)  £                          4,500  £                       6,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        10,500 
Brick or Rendered Chimneys - blk007|Repoint / re-render chimney  £                        42,500  £                     32,500  £                       8,500  £                       3,000  £                       6,500  £                          2,500  £                        95,500 
Brick or Rendered Chimneys - blk007|Rebuild chimney (Year 1 only)  £                          1,500  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                          1,500 

Flat Roofs  £               605,100 £          1,069,460 £             137,880 £             620,870 £             870,160  £               146,615 £            3,450,085 
Flat roofs (Two options only) - ext003|Felt  £                        25,040  £                     45,280  £                     29,040  £                     25,040  £                     45,280  £                        29,040  £                      198,720 
Flat roofs (Two options only) - ext003|Asphalt  £                          3,640  £                       7,930  £                             -    £                       5,590  £                             -    £                             585  £                        17,745 
Flat roofs (Two options only) - ext003|Corrugated mineral cement sheeting  £                          3,000  £                          450  £                             -    £                             -    £                       3,000  £                             450  £                          6,900 
Flat roofs (Two options only) - ext003|Lead  £                             240  £                          120  £                             -    £                          240  £                          960  £                                -    £                          1,560 
Flat roofs (Two options only) - ext003|Other  £                          3,300  £                       7,980  £                          300  £                       1,080  £                       3,300  £                          7,980  £                        23,940 
Flat roofs (Two options only) - ext003|Flat roof not visible  £                        14,700  £                       8,460  £                             -    £                     14,700  £                       8,460  £                                -    £                        46,320 
Out building or garage flat roof - ext020|Out building or garage flat roof-Felt  £                        68,850  £                   117,850  £                     43,200  £                   119,100  £                   122,800  £                        45,400  £                      517,200 
Out building or garage flat roof - ext020|Out building or garage flat roof-
Corrugated mineral cement

 £                        32,100  £                     42,000  £                       2,500  £                       1,400  £                             -    £                                -    £                        78,000 

Out building or garage flat roof - ext020|Out building or garage flat roof-Other  £                          8,150  £                     53,400  £                     15,000  £                       3,400  £                             -    £                                -    £                        79,950 

Flat roofs (Two options only) - blk003|Felt  £                        13,120  £                     38,400  £                       8,880  £                     13,120  £                     38,400  £                          8,880  £                      120,800 
Flat roofs (Two options only) - blk003|Asphalt  £                        34,320  £                     83,070  £                             -    £                     59,800  £                     23,400  £                        21,320  £                      221,910 
Flat roofs (Two options only) - blk003|Lead  £                                -    £                             -    £                             -    £                          960  £                             -    £                                -    £                             960 
Flat roofs (Two options only) - blk003|Other  £                                -    £                             -    £                          240  £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                             240 
Flat roofs (Two options only) - blk003|Flat roof not visible  £                      365,640  £                   603,120  £                     30,480  £                   365,640  £                   603,120  £                        30,480  £                   1,998,480 
Out building or garage flat roof - blk020|Out building or garage flat roof-Felt  £                          8,400  £                     21,440  £                       2,480  £                       8,400  £                     21,440  £                          2,480  £                        64,640 
Out building or garage flat roof - blk020|Out building or garage flat roof-
Corrugated mineral cement

 £                        10,200  £                     26,400  £                       5,280  £                       2,400  £                             -    £                                -    £                        44,280 

Out building or garage flat roof - blk020|Out building or garage flat roof-Other  £                        14,400  £                     13,560  £                          480  £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        28,440 

Fascias & Soffits  £            3,604,000 £          7,113,000 £          1,096,000 £          1,016,000 £          1,838,500  £            2,387,000 £          17,054,500 
Fascia / soffit - ext009|All types (exl open/finlock)  £                   1,635,000  £                2,715,000  £                   413,000  £                   611,000  £                   428,000  £                      650,000  £                   6,452,000 
Fascia / soffit  / bargeboard - blk009|All types (exl open/finlock)  £                   1,969,000  £                4,398,000  £                   683,000  £                   405,000  £                1,410,500  £                   1,737,000  £                 10,602,500 

Rainwater Goods  £            4,104,000 £          8,122,500 £          1,549,500 £             787,500 £          2,272,500  £            3,064,500 £          19,900,500 
Rainwater goods - ext008|Upvc  £                      269,500  £                1,234,000  £                   120,000  £                   211,500  £                   188,500  £                      204,500  £                   2,228,000 
Rainwater goods - ext008|Cast Iron  £                      142,500  £                     68,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      210,500 
Rainwater goods - ext008|Other  £                      400,000  £                   145,000  £                     94,500  £                     97,500  £                     50,000  £                      138,500  £                      925,500 
Rainwater goods - ext008|Finlock lining  £                        45,000  £                       7,500  £                     18,000  £                       6,000  £                     20,500  £                          1,500  £                        98,500 
Rainwater goods - ext008|Internal  £                          4,000  £                          500  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                          4,500 
Rainwater Goods - blk008|Upvc  £                   2,497,500  £                6,055,000  £                1,194,000  £                   472,500  £                1,686,500  £                   2,620,000  £                 14,525,500 
Rainwater Goods - blk008|Cast Iron  £                      745,500  £                   131,500  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      877,000 
Rainwater Goods - blk008|Other  £                                -    £                             -    £                     78,000  £                             -    £                   169,000  £                                -    £                      247,000 

Northampton Partnership Homes 
Provisional Figures for all Capital Works
Number of dwellings the report relates to: 12045 - Note: This does not include Leasehold Properties, Garage Blocks, Shops & Land Holdings.

89



Rainwater Goods - blk008|Internal  £                                -    £                   481,000  £                     45,000  £                             -    £                   158,000  £                      100,000  £                      784,000 

Walls  £            1,194,765 £        11,300,420 £          8,025,515 £        10,370,095 £          5,614,810  £            2,254,270 £          38,759,875 
Walls (three options only) - ext013|Pointed brickwork/stonework  £                      382,950  £                3,309,200  £                2,734,350  £                5,421,100  £                3,516,350  £                      861,100  £                 16,225,050 
Walls (three options only) - ext013|Render/painted render  £                      617,665  £                2,256,530  £                   377,315  £                   498,870  £                   710,700  £                      107,640  £                   4,568,720 
Walls (three options only) - ext013|Plastic cladding  £                          2,280  £                             -    £                       7,440  £                     14,880  £                       4,860  £                                -    £                        29,460 
Walls (three options only) - ext013|Timber cladding  £                        76,800  £                   897,720  £                     15,600  £                     44,460  £                          720  £                          1,800  £                   1,037,100 
Walls (three options only) - ext013|Tile hanging  £                        46,620  £                   525,600  £                   451,980  £                   112,620  £                             -    £                                -    £                   1,136,820 
Walls (three options only) - ext013|Over (Insulated) cladding/Other cladding  £                                -    £                          250  £                   119,250  £                   134,625  £                     58,750  £                        13,000  £                      325,875 
Walls (three options only) - ext013|Other  £                                -    £                     28,080  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        28,080 
Out building or garage walls - ext021|Out building or garage walls-
Brickwork/Render

 £                        32,900  £                   286,000  £                   139,700  £                   176,250  £                     68,100  £                        16,200  £                      719,150 

Out building or garage walls - ext021|Out building or garage walls-Other  £                          5,550  £                     38,500  £                     52,800  £                   115,050  £                     70,350  £                        12,100  £                      294,350 
Walls (three options only) - blk013|Pointed brickwork/stonework  £                        25,000  £                2,361,300  £                3,844,600  £                3,472,300  £                1,010,700  £                      245,000  £                 10,958,900 
Walls (three options only) - blk013|Render/painted render  £                             920  £                     29,440  £                             -    £                   250,700  £                   128,800  £                                -    £                      409,860 
Walls (three options only) - blk013|Plastic cladding  £                                -    £                             -    £                     21,480  £                     77,040  £                     30,960  £                        11,520  £                      141,000 
Walls (three options only) - blk013|Timber cladding  £                          2,880  £                   967,080  £                     16,800  £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      986,760 
Walls (three options only) - blk013|Tile hanging  £                             480  £                   489,360  £                   181,080  £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      670,920 
Walls (three options only) - blk013|Over (Insulated) cladding/Other cladding  £                                -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                      983,750  £                      983,750 
Out building  or garage walls - blk021|Out building or garage walls-
Brickwork/Render

 £                                -    £                   104,160  £                     63,120  £                     52,200  £                     14,520  £                          2,160  £                      236,160 

Out building  or garage walls - blk021|Out building or garage walls-Other  £                             720  £                       7,200  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                          7,920 

 £               206,500 £          1,321,800 £             347,600 £             181,600 £               92,000  £                 23,200 £            2,172,700 
Canopy - ext016|Canopy-All types  £                      172,000  £                   585,200  £                   206,000  £                   143,600  £                     82,400  £                        15,200  £                   1,204,400 
Canopy - blk016|Canopy-All types  £                        10,000  £                     38,000  £                     30,000  £                     19,000  £                       5,000  £                          8,000  £                      110,000 
Balcony / Walkway - blk027|Concrete Finish  £                                -    £                     30,700  £                     27,200  £                             -    £                       1,800  £                                -    £                        59,700 
Balcony / Walkway - blk027|Ashphalt Finish  £                                -    £                   335,300  £                     28,500  £                     12,000  £                             -    £                                -    £                      375,800 
Balcony / Walkway - blk027|Tiled Finish  £                          9,200  £                     10,800  £                     24,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        44,000 
Balcony / Walkway - blk028|Railings (All Types)  £                        15,300  £                   321,800  £                     31,900  £                       7,000  £                       2,800  £                                -    £                      378,800 

Windows  £               666,900 £          4,457,700 £          6,605,500 £        12,675,700 £          2,463,500  £            2,148,500 £          29,017,800 
Windows (majority if combination) - INT0016|Windows-UPVC-Double Glazed  £                      401,500  £                4,073,500  £                6,365,500  £              12,180,500  £                2,391,500  £                   1,924,500  £                 27,337,000 

Windows (majority if combination) - INT0016|Windows-Timber-Double Glazed  £                                -    £                       9,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                          9,000 

Windows (majority if combination) - INT0016|Windows-Timber-Single Glazed  £                        85,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        85,000 

Windows (majority if combination) - INT0016|Windows-UPVC-Single Glazed  £                      126,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      126,000 

Communal Windows - blk026|UPVC-Double Glazed  £                        12,000  £                   168,000  £                   206,400  £                   473,600  £                     72,000  £                      219,200  £                   1,151,200 
Communal Windows - blk026|Metal-Double Glazed  £                                -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                          4,800  £                          4,800 
Communal Windows - blk026|UPVC-Single Glazed  £                          9,600  £                   184,800  £                     33,600  £                     21,600  £                             -    £                                -    £                      249,600 
Communal Windows - blk026|Timber-Single Glazed  £                          3,200  £                     16,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        19,200 
Communal Windows - blk026|Metal-Single Glazed  £                        26,400  £                       3,200  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        29,600 
Communal Windows - blk026|Other-Single Glazed  £                          3,200  £                       3,200  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                          6,400 

Doors  £            1,365,750 £          2,199,800 £          1,708,500 £          4,838,050 £          1,393,350  £            1,060,900 £          12,566,350 
Front Door - INT0012|Front Door-Timber  £                      558,350  £                   161,650  £                     39,850  £                     51,150  £                     14,350  £                        45,050  £                      870,400 
Front Door - INT0012|Front Door-PVCu/Composite/Other  £                        53,050  £                   117,200  £                   546,000  £                2,236,850  £                   559,300  £                      467,900  £                   3,980,300 
Back/Side doors - INT0013|Back/Side doors-Timber  £                        95,650  £                     28,250  £                     27,950  £                       9,150  £                          500  £                          1,500  £                      163,000 
Back/Side doors - INT0013|Back/Side doors-PVCu/Composite/Other  £                        18,900  £                   374,350  £                   594,600  £                2,121,200  £                   547,400  £                      305,350  £                   3,961,800 
Patio doors - INT0015|Patio doors-All types  £                        10,500  £                     33,500  £                     23,000  £                     88,600  £                     40,300  £                        36,200  £                      232,100 
External store doors - ext012|External store doors-Timber  £                        48,800  £                   150,000  £                     51,800  £                       3,800  £                             -    £                                -    £                      254,400 
External store doors - ext012|External store doors-PVCu/GRP/Other  £                          7,800  £                   114,600  £                   104,000  £                   152,400  £                     19,800  £                             400  £                      399,000 
Out building or garage personal  doors - ext024|Out building or garage personal  
doors-All types

 £                      289,800  £                   383,700  £                     63,300  £                     29,400  £                          600  £                             600  £                      767,400 

Garage Doors (integral or within demise) - ext025|Garage Doors-Timber  £                                -    £                          800  £                          200  £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                          1,000 
Garage Doors (integral or within demise) - ext025|Garage Doors-Metal  £                             200  £                     10,800  £                       5,400  £                       2,400  £                          600  £                             400  £                        19,800 
Balcony/walkway doors - INT0014|Timber  £                          3,250  £                       1,750  £                          250  £                             -    £                          750  £                             250  £                          6,250 
Balcony/walkway doors - INT0014|PVCu/Composite/Other  £                          6,250  £                     13,500  £                     17,750  £                     27,500  £                     18,750  £                        13,250  £                        97,000 
External Store Doors - blk012|External store doors-Timber  £                      183,500  £                   189,500  £                     51,000  £                          500  £                   183,500  £                      189,500  £                      797,500 
External Store Doors - blk012|External store doors-PVCu/GRP/Other  £                          7,500  £                          500  £                     18,000  £                       8,000  £                       7,500  £                             500  £                        42,000 
Out building or garage personal doors - blk024|Out building or garage personal  
doors-All types

 £                        18,500  £                   190,500  £                     19,000  £                     12,000  £                             -    £                                -    £                      240,000 

Garage Doors (integral or within demise) - blk025|Garage Doors-Timber  £                                -    £                          500  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                             500 

Canopies and Walkways

90



Garage Doors (integral or within demise) - blk025|Garage Doors-Metal  £                                -    £                     24,000  £                     29,000  £                          500  £                             -    £                                -    £                        53,500 
External Doors - blk029|Secondary entrance doors  £                        62,400  £                   161,600  £                     99,200  £                     81,600  £                             -    £                                -    £                      404,800 
External Doors - blk029|Store room/boiler room doors etc.  £                          1,300  £                   243,100  £                     18,200  £                     13,000  £                             -    £                                -    £                      275,600 

 £            3,619,400 £        12,720,100 £          6,212,640 £          2,959,620 £             645,600  £               544,780 £          26,702,140 
Boundary  type - ext017|Boundary-Wood  £                   1,836,600  £                5,509,560  £                1,725,960  £                   616,320  £                             -    £                                -    £                   9,688,440 
Boundary  type - ext017|Boundary-Post & Wire  £                      638,280  £                   529,320  £                     93,360  £                       8,040  £                             -    £                                -    £                   1,269,000 
Boundary  type - ext017|Boundary-Metal  £                          3,120  £                       6,960  £                     20,400  £                       3,960  £                     44,520  £                        74,160  £                      153,120 
Boundary  type - ext017|Boundary Walls (all types)  £                      130,200  £                   807,600  £                   961,440  £                   610,680  £                   222,120  £                        66,480  £                   2,798,520 
Paths / Hardstandings - ext018|Paths  £                      601,040  £                2,312,800  £                1,499,000  £                   698,800  £                   116,440  £                      115,520  £                   5,343,600 
Paths / Hardstandings - ext018|Drive Way  £                        13,640  £                   141,800  £                   195,400  £                     48,080  £                       2,800  £                        10,800  £                      412,520 
Paths / Hardstandings - ext018|Hardstanding  £                        47,360  £                   371,000  £                   342,720  £                   183,520  £                     35,440  £                        47,160  £                   1,027,200 
Outbuilding WC - ext022|Out building WC Present  £                        22,000  £                     35,000  £                       8,000  £                       4,500  £                             -    £                          3,500  £                        73,000 
Boundary type - blk017|Boundary-Wood  £                      108,720  £                   784,320  £                   102,000  £                     27,120  £                             -    £                                -    £                   1,022,160 
Boundary type - blk017|Boundary-Post & Wire  £                        42,960  £                     51,600  £                       1,440  £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        96,000 
Boundary type - blk017|Boundary-Metal  £                        33,840  £                   143,760  £                   184,800  £                   166,560  £                   213,840  £                        79,920  £                      822,720 
Boundary type - blk017|Boundary Walls (all types)  £                        21,840  £                   288,480  £                   393,120  £                   249,840  £                       6,240  £                        21,840  £                      981,360 
Paths / Hardstandings - blk018|Paths  £                      104,000  £                   846,000  £                   416,200  £                   139,400  £                       2,600  £                          1,200  £                   1,509,400 
Paths / Hardstandings - blk018|Drive Way  £                                -    £                   378,300  £                     94,900  £                     40,000  £                       1,600  £                                -    £                      514,800 
Paths / Hardstandings - blk018|Hardstanding  £                        15,800  £                   513,600  £                   173,900  £                   162,800  £                             -    £                      124,200  £                      990,300 

 £          19,010,565  £        51,729,130  £        27,031,575  £        41,319,335  £        23,583,270  £          15,750,215  £        178,424,090 
Internal works
Kitchens  £            3,932,600 £          3,652,500 £        10,252,000 £        31,235,900 £        19,663,000  £            3,652,500 £          72,388,500 

Kitchen - INT0017|Kitchen Replacement- Small < 6m2  £                      251,300  £                   276,500  £                   518,000  £                2,016,700  £                1,256,500  £                      276,500  £                   4,595,500 
Kitchen - INT0017|Kitchen Replacement- Medium 6-9m2  £                   2,762,400  £                2,152,000  £                6,836,000  £              22,285,600  £              13,812,000  £                   2,152,000  £                 50,000,000 
Kitchen - INT0017|Kitchen Replacement- Large >9m2  £                      918,900  £                1,224,000  £                2,898,000  £                6,933,600  £                4,594,500  £                   1,224,000  £                 17,793,000 

Bathrooms  £            1,782,450 £          3,409,750 £          4,415,500 £          5,141,750 £          3,473,000  £          11,977,300 £          30,199,750 
Bathrooms etc. / Plumbing - INT0020|Traditional bathroom replacement  £                   1,525,500  £                2,205,000  £                3,307,500  £                2,657,250  £                2,562,750  £                   9,785,250  £                 22,043,250 
Bathrooms etc. / Plumbing - INT0020|Shower room replacement  £                      170,550  £                1,055,250  £                1,008,000  £                2,389,500  £                   852,750  £                   1,737,450  £                   7,213,500 
Bathrooms etc. / Plumbing - INT0020|Additional w.c.  £                        86,400  £                   149,500  £                   100,000  £                     95,000  £                     57,500  £                      454,600  £                      943,000 

Electrics  £            2,848,960 £          2,774,000 £             788,400 £          1,204,000 £          2,816,800  £          15,597,840 £          26,030,000 
Wiring - INT0027|Rewire  £                   2,354,800  £                2,696,000  £                   712,000  £                1,012,000  £                2,042,000  £                 12,395,200  £                 21,212,000 
Wiring - INT0028|Consumer unit  £                      494,160  £                     78,000  £                     76,400  £                   192,000  £                   774,800  £                   3,202,640  £                   4,818,000 

Heating  £            1,747,240 £          6,657,400 £        14,626,160 £          3,866,000 £          6,076,250  £          26,879,760 £          59,852,810 
Central heating - Full system - INT0031|Radiator heating  £                      655,250  £                3,005,750  £                1,171,750  £                   791,250  £                2,275,500  £                 11,558,000  £                 19,457,500 
Central heating - Full system - INT0031|Storage heating  £                      324,900  £                     98,000  £                     54,000  £                     22,000  £                   290,500  £                   1,313,600  £                   2,103,000 
Central heating - Full system - INT0031|Warm air system  £                      144,200  £                       9,500  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                      576,800  £                      730,500 
Central heating - Full system - INT0031|Other system  £                          5,300  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                        30,950  £                        36,250 
Boiler - INT0034|Gas-Wall/flloor  £                      428,450  £                3,292,000  £              11,944,550  £                2,142,250  £                3,292,000  £                 11,944,550  £                 33,043,800 
Boiler - INT0034|Gas-Backboiler  £                      137,650  £                             -    £                   550,600  £                   688,250  £                             -    £                      550,600  £                   1,927,100 
Boiler - INT0034|Oil/other  £                          6,200  £                       1,750  £                     24,800  £                             -    £                     31,000  £                        24,800  £                        88,550 
Secondary heating ( One ) - INT0035|Gas Fires ( Not if Backboiler)  £                        30,660  £                     45,150  £                   150,640  £                   153,300  £                     45,150  £                      150,640  £                      575,540 
Secondary heating ( One ) - INT0035|Solid fuel Fires ( Not if Backboiler)  £                          1,610  £                             -    £                       9,590  £                       3,850  £                       3,850  £                          9,590  £                        28,490 
Secondary heating ( One ) - INT0035|Electric fire  £                        12,320  £                   138,250  £                   717,430  £                     61,600  £                   138,250  £                      717,430  £                   1,785,280 
Boiler - INT0034|Electric boiler  £                             700  £                             -    £                       2,800  £                       3,500  £                             -    £                          2,800  £                          9,800 
Services/Other - blk031|Heating distribution  £                                -    £                     67,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        67,000 

 £          10,311,250  £        16,493,650  £        30,082,060  £        41,447,650  £        32,029,050  £          58,107,400  £        188,471,060 
Communal Areas

 £               759,000 £          3,297,000 £             304,000 £             162,000 £             497,000  £            1,659,000 £            6,678,000 
Services/Other - blk031|Boiler - communal  £                      188,000  £                1,280,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                   188,000  £                   1,280,000  £                   2,936,000 
Services/Other - blk037|Wiring/Emergency lighting  £                      553,000  £                1,077,000  £                   304,000  £                   162,000  £                   309,000  £                      379,000  £                   2,784,000 
Services/Other - Fire Alarm system  £                          9,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                          9,000 
Services/Other - CCTV  £                          9,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                          9,000 
Services/Other - blk034|Lift - 3 to 5 floors served  £                                -    £                   300,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      300,000 
Services/Other - blk034|Lift - 6+ floors served  £                                -    £                   640,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      640,000 

Communal doors  £            1,726,400 £          2,436,800 £             533,000 £          1,217,600 £             828,800  £            2,537,000 £            9,279,600 
Lobby Access Door - INT0011|Lobby Access Door  (flat door leading to comm 
corridor)

 £                   1,488,000  £                1,732,800  £                   268,800  £                   986,400  £                   520,800  £                   2,476,800  £                   7,473,600 

External Doors - blk029|Communal main entrance doors (main drs. only)  £                      199,200  £                   396,000  £                   204,000  £                   192,000  £                             -    £                                -    £                      991,200 

Environmental Works

Communal services

TOTAL EXTERNAL WORKS

TOTAL INTERNAL WORKS

91



External Doors - blk029|Door entry phone/intercom  £                        39,200  £                   308,000  £                     60,200  £                     39,200  £                   308,000  £                        60,200  £                      814,800 

 £            2,485,400  £          5,733,800  £             837,000  £          1,379,600  £          1,325,800  £            4,196,000  £          15,957,600 

Energy Efficiency  £          17,367,357 £                       -   £                       -   £                       -   £                       -    £                         -   £          17,367,357 
No Central Heating ( or < 3 rads ) - Install full central heating  £                      473,250  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      473,250 
No Central Heating ( or < 3 rads ) - Install boiler  £                      308,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      308,000 
Loft Insulation - 0 to 49mm  £                        11,500  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                        11,500 
Loft Insulation - 50 to 200mm  £                   1,097,250  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                   1,097,250 
Wall Insulation - Install Cavity wall Insulation  £                      237,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                      237,000 
Wall Insulation - Install Solid wall Insulation  £                 15,240,357  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                 15,240,357 

 £          17,367,357  £                       -    £                       -    £                       -    £                       -    £                         -    £          17,367,357 

Front and back lights  £                   6,022,500  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                   6,022,500 
Non-Trads  £                   2,000,000  £                   2,000,000 
Related Assets/ Structural Repairs  £                   1,000,000  £                1,000,000  £                1,000,000  £                1,000,000  £                1,000,000  £                   1,000,000  £                   6,000,000 
Asbestos - Amendment to Savills Schedule  £                   2,000,000  £                1,000,000  £                1,000,000  £                1,000,000  £                1,000,000  £                   1,000,000  £                   7,000,000 
Section 20 LEASEHOLD WORKS - Amendment to Savills Schedule  £                   1,687,000  £                1,687,000  £                1,687,000  £                1,687,000  £                1,687,000  £                   1,687,000  £                 10,122,000 
Fire Risk works  £                   3,000,000  £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                             -    £                                -    £                   3,000,000 
Environmental Improvements  £                 18,343,020  £              25,933,980  £                             -    £                5,000,000  £              22,000,000  £                                -    £                 71,277,000 
Adaptations  £                   5,660,000  £                3,675,000  £                3,675,000  £                3,675,000  £                3,675,000  £                   3,675,000  £                 24,035,000 

 £          39,712,520  £        33,295,980  £          7,362,000  £        12,362,000  £        29,362,000  £            7,362,000  £        129,456,500 

Response repairs/ Voids  £                 49,000,000  £              40,000,000  £              50,000,000  £              50,000,000  £              45,000,000  £                 45,000,000  £               279,000,000 
Service/ Cyclical Maintenance  £                 15,000,000  £              15,000,000  £              15,000,000  £              15,000,000  £              20,000,000  £                 20,000,000  £               100,000,000 

 £          64,000,000  £        55,000,000  £        65,000,000  £        65,000,000  £        65,000,000  £          65,000,000  £        379,000,000 

 £   152,887,092  £ 162,252,560  £ 130,312,635  £ 161,508,585  £ 151,300,120  £   150,415,615  £   908,676,607 

Major Works/ Remodelling  £                   9,000,000  £                3,200,000  £                4,500,000  £                7,500,000  £                6,000,000  £                   6,000,000  £                 36,200,000 
Major Refurbishment  £                   7,500,000  £                5,000,000  £                2,500,000  £                6,000,000  £                6,000,000  £                   6,000,000  £                 33,000,000 
Sheltered Housing Review  £                   6,000,000  £                1,500,000  £                3,000,000  £                 10,500,000 
Garage Strategy Project (Blocks/ Sites)  £                   2,500,000  £                2,500,000  £                   5,000,000 
Common Area Refurbishments  £                   1,200,000  £                   900,000  £                   900,000  £                      900,000  £                   3,900,000 
SCATE Project  £                   5,000,000  £                5,000,000  £                   5,000,000  £                 15,000,000 
Installation of PV Panels (NHS)  £                   6,200,000  £                1,800,000  £                   8,000,000 
Energy Improvements  £                   3,000,000  £                1,000,000  £                2,500,000  £                   6,500,000 

 £          40,400,000  £        10,000,000  £        10,400,000  £        18,500,000  £        20,900,000  £          17,900,000  £        118,100,000 

 £   193,287,092  £ 172,252,560  £ 140,712,635  £ 180,008,585  £ 172,200,120  £   168,315,615  £1,026,776,607 OVERALL  BALANCED TOTAL

TOTAL OTHER

TOTAL REVENUE FUNDED WORKS

Revenue Funded Works

All Savills costs are exclusive of Professional Fees, VAT, management and administration costs and are based on today's prices. Costs are inclusive of preliminaries.

OVERALL  SAVILL's TOTAL

Other Business Plan Allowances

TOTAL COMMUNAL

ENERGY IMPROVEMENTS

Other Capital works

TOTAL ENERGY WORKS

TOTAL OTHER WORKS

92



October 2014Asset Management Explained

 

 

Plan future assets

 Asset Management 

Strategy & 30 year 

Business Plan

Investment Planning

Stock Condition Information - What 

improvement work is required on which assets 

and when.

Planning - when and how repairs, 

improvements & construction will be done 

(planned, cyclical, responsive or relets)

Procurement - Contracts for services and 

materials

Standards

The standards to which we build, maintain & 

let assets.

Option Appraisals
Evaluate options for existing and new assets 

Refurbish / Re-build

Demolish / Dispose

Re-model / change of use

New Build / Acquisitions

Delivery

Planned Programmes

Heating 

replacements / 

Energy efficiency

Window & Door 

replacement

External Cyclical 

programme

New build / 

re-build

Kitchen / 

bathroom 

replacements

Responsive Repairs & Voids

Government

(Local Home Standard)

Resident 

Aspirations

(Northampton 

Home Standard)

Policies & Processes

Northampton 

Home Standard

Gas servicing / 

Fire Safety 

Works

Identify the best option for an asset or group of assets 

through considering issues such as: strategic aims, 

business planning & customer aspirations.

Current & New Government 
Legislation

Northampton BC’s 
Housing Strategy

Northampton Partnership 
Homes’ Business Plan

Asset Reviews
A performance assessment of  

existing land and property assets

Do the assets contribute to 

our strategic objectives?
The right types of homes in the 

right places

What level of customer 

demand is there?
- Number of bids

- No of days empty

How much rental 

income do the 
assets produce? 

(minus arrears)

How Energy 

Efficient are the 

assets?

Are there any 

known design / 

construction 
issues?

What are the 

maintenance costs?

- Responsive Repairs

- Relet Repairs

- Planned Works

What are the 

management costs?

- Tenancy issues
- Estate issues

- ASB issues

How much are the 

assets worth?

What is the cost of 

improvement work?

Core Assets - there are no 

significant issues and we will 

continue to invest in these assets.

Risk assets - there are 

issues with these assets and 

we need to consider options.

Response 

Repairs
Void Works/

Relet Repairs

Home 

Adaptations

Mechanical & 

Electrical

Replacement / New Build

Re-

development / 

re-modelling

Government Policy  & 
Regulation

Our Residents’ 
Investment Priorities

Are the assets 

sustainable?

93

epowley
Text Box
Appendix D



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC  
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
12 November 2014 
 
YES  
 
YES  
 
YES  
 
Housing Directorate  
 
Councillor Mary Markham  
 
All Wards 

 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is for Cabinet to agree various aspects of the 

implementation of the Council’s decision to set up an ALMO and agree the 
governance arrangements that will exist between the Council and Northampton 
Partnership Homes (NPH). 

 

2. Recommendations 
 
That Cabinet:  
 
2.1  Approves the Management Agreement and associated schedules, attached as 

appendix 1 and delegates authority to the Chief Executive, in consultation with 
the Leader and Cabinet Member for Housing, to make such amendments as 
necessary and appropriate to finalise and complete the Agreement. 
 

2.2  Authorises the Chief Executive to submit an application for approval for the 
arrangement with NPH for the management of Council homes under section 27 
of the Housing Act 1985. 

  
2.3   Delegates to the Chief Finance Officer (Section 151 Officer) in consultation with 

the Leader and Cabinet Member for Housing, to agree and amend the indicative 

Report Title 
 

Northampton Partnership Homes  

Appendices:1 
 

 

94

Agenda Item 8



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

Total Fee following further work before the ALMO go live date on January 5th 
2015. 

 
2.4 Delegates to the Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader and Cabinet 

member for Housing the authority to finalise the Delivery Plan and Service Level 
Agreements (SLA’s), which are annexed to the Management Agreement. 

 
2.5  Thanks all those involved, at NBC and NPH for the constructive way in which 

negotiations leading up to the setting up of the ALMO and agreeing the 
Management Agreement have been conducted. 

 
 
3. Issues and Choices 

 
Report Background 
 
3.1.1 In 2012, the Council commenced a comprehensive review of potential options 

for the future ownership, funding and management of its Housing Stock, to 
examine which option would best deliver long term improvements needed to 
both homes and estates as well as improve the quality of services provided to 
its tenants.  

 
3.1.2 On 9th December 2013, after considering the findings of the review, the Council 

agreed to set up an Arms Length Management Organisation (ALMO) with the 
intention that it would be operational from 5th January 2015 and would be 
initially set up for a period of 15 years. 
 

3.1.3 Cabinet agreed that the implementation phase should continue to include a 
comprehensive programme of consultation and engagement with key 
stakeholders to ensure that they were well informed and remained at the heart 
of the process.  
 

3.1.4 On 9th April 2014, following consideration of feedback from consultation with 
key stakeholders, Cabinet agreed that the delivery vehicle for the legal 
incorporation of the ALMO would be a Company Limited by Guarantee.  The 
ALMO was registered in the name of Northampton Partnership Homes, with the 
Council’s Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer registered as holding directors. 
A Shadow Board structure was agreed and implemented in June 2014 to 
enable a smooth transition for the management of the service. 
 

3.1.5 The ALMO Shadow Board structure was set up with the following membership; 
 

5   Tenants 
5   Council Nominees 
4 Independents 
2 Employees 
 

The Shadow Board appointed a Chair and Vice Chair and has created six sub 
committees to support the business of the Shadow Board (See later in this 
report an update on the composition of the ALMO Board. 
 

95



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

3.1.6 The Council is responsible for setting up the ALMO and as such has ensured 
that extensive support has been given to Board members to enable them to 
understand and ultimately discharge their roles. Expert independent external 
advisors have undertaken this work, providing support on various aspects 
including work on developing capacity for board members in key areas such as 
Director responsibilities and Governance.  
 

3.1.7 The NPH Board was formally constituted on 29th October 2014 with all 
members of the Shadow Board now appointed as Directors of NPH. The Chief 
Executive and Monitoring Officer have now resigned as holding Directors of 
NPH. The Council, as body corporate, is the sole member of the ALMO 
Company. 
 

3.2 Issues 
 
Formal creation of the ALMO 
 
3.2.1 Prior consent is required under Section 27 of the Housing Act 1985, to enable 

the Council to implement the ALMO option. The regulator responsible for 
approving this is the Homes and Committees Agency (HCA) and certain key 
documents will to be provided as part of this application, including the main 
terms of the Management Agreement and other details, such as the plans 
specifying what land and property will be managed by NPH. 
 

The Management Agreement 
 
3.2.2 The Management Agreement is the legally binding document which sets out the 

relationship between the Council and Northampton Partnership Homes. The 
Council and the Shadow Board have received separate and independent 
specialist legal advice throughout the negotiations of the Management 
Agreement and Delivery Plan.  
 

3.2.3 The Management Agreement (Appendix 1) details the specific terms of the 
agreement. It is supported by a series of schedules which are appended to the 
agreement: 
 

Schedule 1- Describes the services that NPH will deliver on behalf of the   
Council (i.e. the scope of services) 

 
Schedule 2- Details which services are to be delegated to NPH, the Council or 

whether there will be shared responsibility for delivery   
 
Schedule 3- Details the Services to be provided to NPH by the Council under 

specific Service Level Agreements 
 
Schedule 4- Specifies the payment method from the Council to NPH for 

Repairs, Maintenance and Improvement to properties 
 
Schedule 5- Describes the total fee payable to NPH, broken down into the 

categories of Management Fee (General Fund-GF and Housing 
Revenue Account- HRA), Maintenance Expenditure and Capital 
Expenditure 

96



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

Schedule 6-  Details the principles upon which the fees will be annually agreed 
 
Schedule 7- Lists all employee posts transferring to NPH under TUPE 

regulations 
 
Annex 1 Details the key contracts applicable to NPH, specifying whether 

they are to be assigned or novated to NPH or retained by the 
Council  

 
Annex 2 Contains the Delivery Plan which details what NPH will deliver 

from 2015-2020 
 

3.2.4 Although the Management Agreement is for a period of fifteen years, the 
Delivery Plan period is a rolling five year plan. The advanced draft of the first 
five year Delivery Plan is attached to this report at Appendix 1 (Annex 2). 

 
 
The following are key aspects of the Management Agreement. 
 
The Delivery Plan and Specification 
 
3.2.5 The Specification, i.e. the scope of services to be delivered by NPH have been 

set out in Schedule 1 of the agreement. The Council can add to the list of 
services and will agree with NPH the nature of the service(s) to be provided and 
the fee required to deliver it, where necessary. 

 
3.2.6 The Delivery Plan is a key document that sets out, in more detail than the 

Specification the services to be provided by NPH. The Delivery Plan is a 5 year 
rolling plan. However the Council will be conducting structured annual reviews 
of the delivery plan with NPH so as to ensure that Council priorities can be 
addressed. This will enable the Council’s annual budget process to feed into 
and inform aspects of the Delivery Plan. The Delivery Plan appendices specify 
the objectives, performance measures, the Housing Asset Management 
Strategy and the fee proposal for years 1 to 5. The Delivery Plan was 
considered by NPH on 5th November and work to agree measures, targets and 
final detail is ongoing and will be finalised in time for the completion of the 
Management Agreement. 

 
3.2.7 Whilst the Council will have the right to require a change to the Delivery Plan at 

the annual review, to ensure that NPH are able to forward plan effectively the 
Council has agreed that significant changes to the delivery plan will only be 
made with approval from the Council Leader and Council Chief Executive. In 
relation to changes to the Delivery Plan, which may result in additional 
expenditure for NPH, the Council will adjust the total fee payable to NPH to take 
account of the costs of making changes and the funding of the revised services 
when those changes take effect. 

 
3.2.8 The Delivery Plan appendices specify the objectives, performance measures, 

the Housing Asset Management Strategy and the fee proposal for years 1 to 5. 
 
 

 

97



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

Key Management Agreement Principles 
 

Housing Revenue Account.  
 
3.2.9 The Council has statutory responsibility for the HRA and will therefore retain 

management of the HRA. NPH, as part of their responsibilities, will provide the 
Council with information on its activities and advice on how best to make use of 
the resources within the HRA. 
 

3.2.10 The HRA income and expenditure will be subject to the statutory provisions 
governing the HRA and both parties acknowledge this. 
 

3.2.11 Although the HRA will continue to be the Council’s statutory account for the 
housing landlord service, it will operate in a fundamentally different way to how 
it does currently. The Council will pay NPH a Total Fee robustly calculated to 
provide both the Housing Landlord services and those Housing General Fund 
Services NPH will provide. 
 

3.2.12 NPH will receive what is defined in the Management Agreement as the “Total 
Fee” which will comprise of the majority of HRA budgets including the Capital 
Programme; Repairs and Maintenance and Operations Budgets. The Capital 
Programme (Improvement Programme) and the Repairs and Maintenance 
budgets will be managed budgets, whilst the Operations budget will be a 
devolved budget. NPH will receive some Housing General Fund budgets in 
relation to relevant service attributable to these. This is depicted simply in the 
diagram below:  

 

 
 
The Management Services Fee will cover the HRA and General Fund Service 
elements. NPH will then operate using the management fee and manage the capital 
programme budget and revenue repairs and maintenance budget in accordance with 
what has been agreed by the Council.  
 

98



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

3.2.13 The Total Fee calculation and principles form part of the Management 
Agreement detailed in schedule 5 and 6 respectively. Indicative figures at the 
time of this report are shown in the table below: 
 

 

GF HRA TOTAL

Elements of Total Fee £k £k £k

Management Fee 912                  16,467            17,379            

Repairs and Maintenance Fee -                  14,454            14,454            

Capital Sum -                  27,257            27,257            

TOTAL FEE 912                  58,178            59,090             
 
 
3.2.14 The Total Fee will match the cost of the first year’s element of the 5 year rolling 

Delivery Plan with indicative forecasts for the ensuing 4 years. 
 
3.2.15 The Fee principles also set out NPH’s obligation to identify and deliver 

efficiencies and achieve continuous improvement in services, achieving more 
for less and being benchmarked against comparable ALMOs facing similar 
challenges. 

 
3.2.16 The Management Agreement will provide NPH the ability to action the virement 

of funds within the Total Fee up to an aggregate of £2 million per annum. Any 
requirement for a virement above this or of the Housing General Fund element 
will need NBC approval through the Chief Financial Officer (Statutory section 
151 Officer). The Council’s Chief Financial Officer, through the due diligence 
process, has identified issues in relation to the operation of this and Cabinet’s 
attention is drawn to paragraph 4.2.4 of the Resources and Risks section of this 
report below. 
 

 

Surpluses and Reserves 
 

3.2.17 Any accounting surpluses and reserves generated by NPH which arise from 
operations can be used by NPH in accordance with the Delivery Plan and in 
relation to activity outside the Delivery Plan in consultation with the Council. 
Surpluses/Reserves arising from the non-staffing elements of the Capital 
Programme or the Repairs or Maintenance Programme will be rolled over into 
the next financial year. Any available surpluses/reserves will need to be used to 
meet in year shortfalls in the Fee, excluding Pension deficits up to the date of 
the agreement. 
 

SLA’s 
 

3.2.18 The Council will provide services to NPH through various SLA’s. Given the 
strategic importance of at least some of the services, the Management 
Agreement will not allow NPH to terminate these services unilaterally and any 
termination of SLA services will need to be by agreement with the Council. 
Negotiations on how SLA’s and the associated costs will work, is still ongoing 
and will be finalised for the completion of the Management Agreement.  
 
 

99



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

Contracts 
 
3.2.19 NPH will, as part of its operations, need the benefit of a number of contracts, 

which are currently with the Council. Contracts will be assigned, novated or 
retained by the Council, in the latter case (retained contracts) NPH will receive 
the services through the Council. 
 
 

Council’s Financial Support of NPH 
 

3.2.20 The Pensions liabilities of the transfer of NPH and how this is to be dealt with is 
still in the process of being considered by the Council in conjunction with the 
Pension’s service. There is a concern from NPH’s side that an attribution of a 
pension’s deficit to their operation may, in formal accounting terms, cause them 
difficulties. Consequently, the Council has agreed to provide financial support to 
NPH such to enable them to continue as a going concern. However, in order to 
mitigate some of the risks to the Council arising from this Clause NPH will have 
a legal obligation under Clause 2.5 to “ensure that it conducts its business in a 
prudent and commercial manner”. 
 

New Homes 
 
3.2.21 The Council will work with and support NPH and other organisations to 

maximise opportunities for building and acquiring new homes within the 
borough and NPH will be the manager of any Council-owned new build 
properties. 

 
Termination and Dispute Resolution 
 
3.2.22 The Management Agreement does, as is normal practice and prudent, have a 

dispute resolution procedure to deal with issues that arise under the agreement. 
The procedure goes through various stages, culminating in the ability to refer an 
issue to an Expert. The Council does, however, have the final say. 

 
3.2.23 The Agreement does also have a termination clause which the Council can 

utilise if NPH fails to comply with the agreement or there is a serious and 
substantiated risk that it will fail to so comply. 

 
3.3 Options 
 
3.3.1 The Council has the option to consider whether or not to approve the 

Management Agreement and associated documents and proceed with the 
Section 27 application to create the regulation. The clear recommendation of 
this report is to proceed with the approval of the Management Agreement (in 
principle) and to proceed with the Section 27 application. 

 
3.3.2 The comprehensive Options Review process completed in December 2013 

thoroughly assessed the available options against a robust set of assessment 
criteria and made the recommendation to proceed with the creation of the 
ALMO. 

 
 

100



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
Policy 

 
4.1.1 The implementation of an ALMO to manage the Council’s housing services in 

relation to the provision of council housing has implications for all policies 
relating to the provision of a range of services to the public.  The Council will, in 
consultation with NPH, need to review a range of policies and strategies as 
necessary. 
 

4.2 Resources and Risk 
 
4.2.1 The corporate impact of setting up an ALMO is mitigated by the Housing 

Revenue Account remaining open.  The fees for providing those services 
transferred, as previously described will be transferred as well and the costs 
charged to the HRA.  Where HRA services or associated overheads are 
retained by the corporate body, those costs will also be charged on to the HRA.  
 

4.2.2 Any significant change in the delivery methodology of the Council’s services 
has been subject to careful and detailed management to avoid or minimise 
adverse implications for the Council’s General Fund. 
 

4.2.3 The vast majority of the work to determine the financial baseline has been 
carried out in partnership with NPH, also ensuring that the residual services 
remaining both in the HRA and in Housing General Fund are not impacted upon 
adversely. Further work on this area remains and will be finalised in conjunction 
with the HRA Business Plan and Delivery Plan ahead of 5th January 2015. 
 

4.2.4 The Council’s Chief Finance Officer (CFO) will be undertaking further due 
diligence on the Management Agreement and its impact on both the Council’s 
and NPHs financial arrangements, procedures and processes. This will be part 
of the CFO discharging their statutory/fiduciary duties to the both the council tax 
and rent payer in the Borough. This further due diligence will include reviewing 
the arrangements for the Capital Improvement and Repairs & Maintenance 
budgets managed by NHP on behalf of the Council and virements. It should be 
noted there may be some minor amendments required to the Management 
Agreement as a result of this due diligence and review. 

 
4.2.5 Subject to due process, it is intended that TUPE transfer will apply to any 

employees involved in delivering services transferred into NPH. The budget 
related to such employees has been taken into account when agreeing the 
management fee to be paid to NPH by the Council.   

 

4.2.6 Regular monitoring arrangements will be implemented to review performance, 
including financial matters. External Auditors have been appointed by NPH 
supported by the Council’s Section 151 Officer and Internal Auditor appointment 
is underway, to be concluded in early November 2014. 
 

4.2.7 The Section 151 Officer of the Council will continue to have statutory duties and 
nothing in the agreement will be construed as preventing that officer from doing 
such acts or things as are properly required for the discharging of those duties. 
 

101



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 
4.3 Legal  

 
4.3.1 There are various legal implications relating to this project. The Options Review 

was undertaken to ensure that it fully complied with Government Guidance and 
legislation relating to Options Appraisals, and particularly those relating to 
requirements to consult with tenants on major changes proposed in the delivery 
of Housing services. The key documents relating to the requirements to consult 
and carry out Options Appraisals are: 
 

 The Housing Act 1985, (Section 105) 

 ODPM Guidance 2003- Delivering Decent Homes Option Appraisal 
Guidance for Local Authorities  

 HCA Regulatory Framework for Social Housing 2012. 

 

4.3.2 The Council needs specific approval for the management agreement from the 
Regulator, in this case the Homes and Communities Agency, under section 27 
of the Housing Act 1985.  

4.3.3 The Management Agreement outlines the legal responsibilities and obligations 
between the Council and NPH, the detail of which is contained within the body 
of the report. 

4.3.4 NPH is a wholly owned Council Company limited by guarantee, with NBC as the 
sole corporate member of the Company and as such has particular legal rights 
in relation to the company. 

 
 
 
4.4 Equality and Health 
 
4.4.1 A comprehensive Community Impact Assessment was carried out on the 

recommended option and for the approach taken by the Options Review 
process. The implementation phase has continued to adhere to the inclusive 
approach adopted for the Options Review process and to ensure that no 
adverse impacts to disadvantaged groups have been identified. A copy of the 
community impact assessment can be found at  
http://www.northampton.gov.uk/downloads/file/6784/cabinet-appendix-3---
community-impact-assessment 

 
 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1 The Tenants’ Panel, Employee Focus Group, wider employee groups and the 

ALMO Shadow Board, constituted following the Cabinet decision made on 9th 
April, have all been comprehensively consulted and engaged throughout the 
implementation process. This consultative approach followed the 
recommendations made by Council, as part of the Options Review decision on 
9th December 2013. In relation to the Management Agreement Comprehensive, 
negotiations have taken place between NBC lawyers and NPH lawyers. 

  

102

http://www.northampton.gov.uk/downloads/file/6784/cabinet-appendix-3---community-impact-assessment
http://www.northampton.gov.uk/downloads/file/6784/cabinet-appendix-3---community-impact-assessment


Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 The Creation of the ALMO will help deliver against the  following Corporate Plan 

priorities and outcomes; 

 Priority 2- Invest in Safer Cleaner Neighbourhoods: The Options Review 
process identified additional funding to improve day to day service delivery 
for housing services, which also included the implementation of a new local 
investment standard, the Northampton Standard. This standard includes 
plans for significant investment in improvements to estates and 
neighbourhoods, including additional security measures. 

 Priority 4- Making every £ go further: An asset analysis has been carried 
out identifying properties where investment requirements exceed rental 
income. This information has been used to create a new Housing Asset 
Management Strategy which will ensure that value for money 
considerations will be at the forefront of future investment decisions.  

 Priority 5- Better Homes for the Future: The focus and mission statement 
for the Review was to improve homes, neighbourhoods and services for 
council tenants. The development of the new Northampton Standard 
includes new standards for improvements to homes and improved service 
standards.  

 Priority 6- Creating Empowered Communities: One of the key reasons 
why the recommended option to create an ALMO was reached, was due to 
its ability to provide increased opportunities for involvement and decision 
making for both tenants and employees. The newly created Shadow Board 
for the ALMO has two employee and five tenant board members.  

 Priority 8- Responding to your needs: The Options Review and 
implementation process involved collecting and assessing evidence from a 
number of sources, including a Tenant Survey which was a key piece of 
evidence, as it identified tenants’ priorities for improvements. This 
information directly influenced the development of the new Northampton 
Standard, ensuring that issues relating to the quality of homes and estates 
were addressed. Tenant Conferences also provided essential feedback 
from tenants and leaseholders.  

 
4.7 Other Implications 
 

None Specifically 
 
5. Background Papers 

 
5.1 Council Report- HOUSING STOCK OPTIONS APPRAISAL FINAL REPORT –

9th December 2013 
5.2 Cabinet Report- Legal set up of ALMO- 9th April 2014 
5.3 Cabinet Report- Services to be Delivered by Northampton Partnership Homes - 

9th July 2014  
5.4 Cabinet Report -Housing Asset Management Strategy- 12 November 2014 
5.5 Housing Stock Options Appraisal Community Impact Assessment - December 

2013 
 

Dale Robertson Programme Director- ALMO Implementation ext 7110 

103



 

Dated [            ] 2015 

 

 

Northampton Borough Council  

and 

Northampton Partnership Homes 

 

 
 

Agreement for the delivery of housing management and other 
services 

 

Trowers & Hamlins LLP 
3 Bunhill Row 
London 
EC1Y 8YZ 
 
t  +44 (0)20 7423 8000 
f  +44 (0)20 7423 8001 
www.trowers.com 1  

Draft: 06 November 2014 

104

epowley
Text Box
Appendix 1



 

Agreement 

dated 

Parties 

(1) Northampton Borough Council of The Guildhall, Northampton NN1 1DE (the Council) 

(2) Northampton Partnership Homes Limited (a company limited by guarantee with 
registered number [  ] and whose registered office is [                                 ] 
(NPH) 

Introduction 

(A) The Council is the local housing authority for its area pursuant to Sections 1 and 2 of the 
Housing Act 1985 (1985 Act) and pursuant to the powers contained in the 1985 Act 
provides housing accommodation and exercises general management, regulation and 
control of its housing accommodation. 

(B) Pursuant to Section 27 of the 1985 Act and with the approval of the Regulator and 
pursuant also to Section 1 of the Localism Act 2011 and all other enabling powers the 
Council agrees that NPH shall exercise such of the Council's management functions as 
are specified herein. 

(C) The Council and NPH have agreed that NPH shall provide and the Council shall co-
operate with it in providing the Services in the manner and upon the terms hereinafter set 
out. 

1 Definitions and interpretations 

1.1 The definitions used are as follows: 

ALMO means arms-length management organisation; 

Asset Management Strategy means the "Housing Asset Management Strategy" forming 
Appendix 3 to the Delivery Plan; 

Capital Sum means the sum paid to NPH in accordance with Clause 10 for the 
Improvement Services; 

Constitution means articles of association; 

Council's Representative means the Council's Head of Retained Housing Services or 
such other person with a similar role who may be nominated from time to time by the 
Council; 

Delivery Plan means NPH's "5 year Delivery Plan" for the delivery of the Services as 
agreed between the Council and NPH from time to time in accordance with Clause 3; 

Expert shall be a recognised expert in council housing management agreed to be 
appointed by the parties and in default of agreement nominated at the request of either 
party by the President of the Chartered Institute of Housing; 

HSNG.3426934.8 1 IGD.48023.3 
 

105

epowley
Text Box



 

Financial Year means the period from the date of this Agreement to 31 March 2015 and 
thereafter the period from 1 April to 31 March; 

HCA means the Homes and Communities Agency; 

HRA means the Housing Revenue Account; 

HRA Business Plan means the Self-financing business plan at the date hereof (currently 
that approved on 18 January 2012) as revised from time to time (in consultation with 
NPH); 

Improvement Services means those capital-funded Services described in section A2 of 
the Specification and section 3.8 of the Asset Management Strategy and Improvement 
shall be construed accordingly; 

Improvement Services Fee means the fee payable to NPH for the Improvement 
Services; 

KPIs means key performance indicators; 

LGSS means Cambridgeshire and Northamptonshire County Councils providing back 
office services to the Council.  

Management Services means those Services described in the Specification except for 
section A (Looking after Council Homes); 

Management Services Fee means the fee payable to NPH under Clause 10 for the 
provision of the Management Services; 

NPH's Representative means NPH's Chief Executive or such other person with a similar 
role who may be nominated from time to time by NPH. 

Objects means the objects set out in NPH's Constitution; 

Other Legislation means that legislation relating to (inter alia) data protection, health and 
safety, freedom of information, the promotion of equality and diversity and other matters 
ancillary to housing management to which NPH is subject and which applies to the 
Services; 

Pension Fund means the Northamptonshire Local Government Pension Scheme; 

Performance Management System means the Council’s performance management 
system from time to time (currently “Performance Plus”); 

Quarter Days means 25 March, 24 June, 29 September and 25 December and Quarter 
shall be construed accordingly; 

Regulator means the HCA (acting through the Regulation Committee established by it) or 
any successor authority; 

Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme means the Repairs & 
Maintenance and Improvement programme forming part of the Asset Management 
Strategy; 

HSNG.3426934.8 2 IGD.48023.3 
 

106

epowley
Text Box



 

Repairs & Maintenance Services means those revenue-funded Services described in 
section A2 of the Specification and section 3.8 of the Asset Management Strategy and 
Repairs & Maintenance shall be construed accordingly; 

Repairs & Maintenance Services Fee means the fee payable to NPH for the provision of 
the Repairs and Maintenance Services; 

Representatives mean collectively the Council's Representative and NPH's 
Representative; 

Retained Housing Service means the Council's statutory and other housing functions 
and services (whether financed out of the HRA or General Fund) not outsourced to NPH; 

Right to Manage is the right exercisable pursuant to the Housing (Right to Manage) 
Regulations 2008; 

Self-financing means the financing arrangements for the HRA which were implemented 
in April 2012; 

Services means the services described in the Specification and the Delivery Plan and any 
other services which from time to time are provided by NPH, subject to any variations, 
pursuant to the terms of this Agreement; 

Specification means the document so entitled which forms Schedule 1 as may be 
amended pursuant to the terms of this Agreement;  

Tenant means a secure tenant of the Council occupying a Council dwelling as his or her 
principal home; 

Total Fee means (a) the Management Services Fee, (b) the Repairs & Maintenance 
Services Fee, and (c) the Capital Sum (and where relevant all or any elements thereof) 
payable by the Council pursuant to and calculated in accordance with Clause 10; 

Transferring Employees means the employees occupying the posts listed in Schedule 7; 

TUPE Regulations means the Transfer of Undertakings (Protection of Employment) 
Regulations 2006; 

Undertaking means all of the undertaking of the provision of housing management 
services by the Council, its servants or agents immediately prior to the date thereof; 

Works Contracts means contracts let and/or administered by NPH pursuant to Clauses 
7-8 in order to deliver the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Services; 

Works Fees means that part of the Total Fee payable to NPH under Clause 10 in 
connection with the delivery of the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme; 

1.2 A reference to any Act of Parliament, or to any order, regulation, statutory instrument, or 
the like, shall be deemed to include a reference to any amendment, re-enactment, 
consolidation, variation, replacement or extension of the same respectively from time to 
time and for the time being in force. 

HSNG.3426934.8 3 IGD.48023.3 
 

107



 

1.3 A reference to any statutory authority, agency or regulatory body shall include a reference 
to any other such authority, agency or regulatory body which from time to time carries on 
substantially the same functions. 

1.4 Wordings denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa and words denoting 
the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender and vice versa and words 
denoting persons shall include firms and corporations. 

1.5 References to clauses, schedules and annexes shall be deemed to be references to the 
clauses in and the schedules and annexes to this Agreement as so numbered. 

1.6 In this Agreement headings are included for ease of reference only and shall not affect this 
Agreement or the interpretation thereof. 

2 NPH Services and Delegations 

2.1 NPH will provide the Services as set out in the Delivery Plan in accordance with the 
Specification and the Delivery Plan and the other provisions of this Agreement. 

2.2 The Council hereby delegates the functions listed in Schedule 2 on the basis summarised 
therein and as more fully described in the Specification and the Delivery Plan. 

2.3 NPH will carry on its business in accordance with all laws and mandatory regulations 
applicable to it, its articles of association and the terms of this Agreement. 

2.4 NPH will not do or refrain from doing anything that might lead to action by the Regulator 
against the Council. 

2.5 Notwithstanding the Council’s obligation to provide financial support to NPH in Clause 19, 
NPH will ensure that it conducts its business in a prudent and commercial manner. 

3 The Delivery Plan 

3.1 The Delivery Plan shall operate on a rolling five Financial Year basis starting on 1 April 
2015 (the Delivery Plan Period). 

3.2 Prior to the start of each Financial Year starting on 1 April 2016 the Council and NPH will 
discuss any changes to the Delivery Plan required by the Council or proposed by NPH in 
accordance with the review process set out in section 8 of the Delivery Plan and in such a 
way as shall ensure a genuine consultation and dialogue over such changes and which 
results in the Council confirming any changes in good time for their implementation in the 
ensuing Financial Year. 

3.3 In order to support the 5 year basis of the Delivery Plan the review process described in 
Clause 3.2 will not result in significant changes unless such changes are approved in 
writing by both the Council's Leader and Chief Executive, subject always to Clause 17.1.1. 

3.4 NPH will comply with all reasonable changes to the Delivery Plan made by the Council 
provided that the Total Fee is adjusted to ensure that (a) the costs of making the changes 
(including without limitation stopping or reducing existing Services, cancelling or 
terminating existing contracts and/or "gearing up" to provide the amended Services) are 
justified and (b) NPH is funded to deliver the revised Services when those changes take 
effect.  

HSNG.3426934.8 4 IGD.48023.3 
 

108



 

3.5 Any dispute over any change in the Delivery Plan or the Total Fee arising from Clauses 
3.2-3.4 shall be resolved using the Dispute Resolution process in Clause 31. 

4 Variation to the Specification and the Services 

4.1 The Council will only vary the Specification (including the policies and protocols referred to 
therein) as may be necessary to reflect changes to the Delivery Plan in accordance with 
Clause 3. 

4.2 In the following circumstances the Council shall be entitled to vary the Services as such 
circumstances require and shall give NPH as much notice thereof as is practicable: 

4.2.1 the exercise of the Right to Manage; 

4.2.2 formal steps taken by the Regulator. 

4.3 The Council and NPH will regularly review the list of services to be provided by NPH.  

4.4 The Council shall be entitled from time to time to add one or more services to the 
Specification. The parties, acting reasonably, will agree the description of the service and 
the other information required by the format of Schedule 1 and the variations in the Total 
Fee required to deliver it. If agreement cannot be reached, the matter will be resolved 
using the Dispute Resolution process in Clause 31.  

5 Existing Contracts 

5.1 The Council shall within 20 Working Days after the date hereof novate or assign to NPH 
the benefit of and all rights of action in respect of the contracts identified as assigned 
contracts (designated 'A' or 'N') in the Annex (the Transferred Contracts) 

5.2 The contracts identified as retained contracts (designated 'R') in the Annex (the Retained 
Contracts) shall not be novated or  assigned to NPH but to the extent that they relate to 
the subject-matter of this Agreement they shall be held on trust by the Council for the 
Council and NPH as follows: 

5.2.1 the Council shall supervise or manage the Retained Contracts and the works or 
services comprised therein and give such instructions in relation thereto as may 
be necessary or expedient (subject to prior consultation with NPH); and 

5.2.2 the Council shall at the request and cost of NPH take such enforcement action 
under the Retained Contracts as may reasonably be required by NPH; and  

5.2.3 the Total Fee otherwise payable to NPH shall be adjusted to reflect the 
payments due under the Retained Contracts in that Financial Year. 

5.3 Until the novation or assignment of the Transferred Contracts: 

5.3.1 the Council shall hold the Transferred Contracts on trust for NPH; 

5.3.2 the Council shall under the direction of NPH supervise or manage the 
Transferred Contracts and the works or services comprised therein and give 
such instructions in relation thereto as may be necessary or expedient; 

HSNG.3426934.8 5 IGD.48023.3 
 

109



 

5.3.3 the Council shall at NPH’s cost join with NPH in any proceedings reasonably 
brought by NPH against such contractors or consultants to enforce the 
Transferred Contracts; 

5.3.4 the Council shall at NPH’s cost join in any novation or consensual termination of 
the Transferred Contracts at NPH's request;  

5.3.5 NPH shall ensure any sum or sums that are due and properly payable to a 
contractor pursuant to  any Transferred Contract in respect of any work done or 
services carried out by that contractor following the date hereof are paid directly 
to the contractor and shall notify the Council of the payment thereof; and 

5.3.6 any dispute over the management of a Transferred Contract and/or any sum 
payable to a contractor thereunder shall be resolved using the Dispute 
Resolution process in Clause 31. 

5.4 All retentions made and held by the Council in respect of the Transferred Contracts (as 
identified in the Annex) shall upon the novation or assignment of such Transferred 
Contracts to NPH, and where such retentions are due to the contractor be paid by the 
Council to NPH, and pending novation or assignment shall be held on trust for NPH. 

5.5 The Council warrants that, save as specifically disclosed to NPH in writing: 

5.5.1 all payments by the Council falling due prior to the date hereof under the 
Transferred Contracts and the Retained Contracts have been made by it and 
that there are no outstanding legal or arbitration proceedings in relation to the 
Transferred Contracts or the Retained Contracts; and 

5.5.2 there is no subsisting material breach of any of the Transferred Contracts by the 
Council nor, so far as it is aware, by any of the other contracting parties. 

6 Repairs & Maintenance and  Improvement 

6.1 NPH will  deliver the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme by: 

6.1.1 letting and administering the Repairs & Maintenance Works Contracts in 
accordance with Clause 7; and 

6.1.2 letting and administering the Improvement Works Contracts in accordance with 
Clause 8, 

provided that Works Contracts which commit the Council or NPH to expenditure beyond 
4 January 2030 shall not be let by NPH without the Council's prior consent. 

6.2 The parties shall review the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme on a 
yearly basis as part of the review of the Delivery Plan (and shall accordingly be subject to 
Clause 3). 

6.3 The review may take account of (inter alia): 

6.3.1 the Council’s specific needs and requirements as discussed with NPH during 
the process described in Clause 3.2; 

HSNG.3426934.8 6 IGD.48023.3 
 

110



 

6.3.2 changing standards (such as energy efficiency); 

6.3.3 future stock condition surveys; 

6.3.4 legal and regulatory requirements (relating to fire safety and other matters). 

6.4 Any revisions arising from Clauses 2-4 shall give rise to a commensurate revision of the 
Works Fees pursuant to Clause 10. 

7 Repairs & Maintenance Works Contracts 

7.1 NPH will let and administer such Works Contracts as NPH (acting reasonably) deems fit to 
deliver the Repairs & Maintenance element of the Repairs & Maintenance and 
Improvement Programme following the expiry or earlier termination of the current 
contracts. 

7.2 In the procurement of any Repairs & Maintenance Works Contracts NPH will comply with 
all applicable European Union and other regulations and take all reasonable steps to 
adhere to best procurement practice and achieve value for money. 

7.3 NPH will stipulate provisions in the Repairs & Maintenance Works Contracts (when they 
are let) so as to take reasonable account of possible future revisions of the Repairs & 
Maintenance and Improvement Programme in accordance with Clauses 6.2 – 6.3 (but 
without prejudice to Clause 6.4). 

8 Improvement Works Contracts 

8.1 NPH will let and administer the Works Contracts as NPH (acting reasonably) deems fit to 
deliver the Improvement element of the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement 
Programme following the expiry or earlier termination of the current contracts. 

8.2 The provisions of Clause 7 shall apply to Improvement Works Contracts as they apply to 
Repairs & Maintenance Works Contracts.  

9 Monitoring and the provision of information 

9.1 NPH will enable the Council to monitor NPH’s performance under this Agreement by 
participating in the Performance Management System. 

9.2 In addition to Clause 9.1, NPH will provide the Council each Quarter with such additional 
information as the Council may reasonably require to satisfy itself as to NPH's 
performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including the delivery of the Services. 

9.3 The information referred to in Clause 9.1 will include details of formal complaints made by 
tenants and other residents directly affected by the Services. 

9.4 The parties (acting reasonably) shall from time to time agree the format for the reports 
required under this Clause. 

10 Total Fee etc. 

10.1 For the period from 5 January 2015 to 31 March 2015 and for the first Financial Year of 
this Agreement (meaning the period to 31 March 2016) the Council will pay NPH £[XXX] 

HSNG.3426934.8 7 IGD.48023.3 
 

111



 

and £[XXX] respectively for the provision of the Services in accordance with this 
Agreement. 

10.2 The Total Fee will be calculated and/or is deemed to be attributable to the Services on the 
basis shown in Schedule 5 and which will be sufficient to enable NPH to discharge its 
obligations (including, without limitation, its obligations to third parties under the Works 
Contracts) and otherwise meet the expectations set out in the Delivery Plan. 

10.3 Any revisions to the Services arising from Clauses 2-4 shall give rise to a commensurate 
revision of the Total Fee pursuant to this Clause 10. 

10.4 It is agreed that subject to Clause 10.5 NPH is entitled to use the Management, Repairs & 
Maintenance and Improvement elements of the Total Fee as it sees fit to deliver any or all 
of the respective Services. 

10.5 Virements between the HRA funded elements of the Management Services Fee, the 
Repairs & Maintenance Services Fee and the Capital Sum are permitted up to £2 million in 
aggregate in any Financial Year. Any virements above that level or any virements of the 
General Funded element of the Management Services Fee shall be permitted only with the 
written consent of the Council's Section 151 officer (acting through the Council's 
Representative). 

10.6 Each Financial Year, the Total Fee shall be varied as follows: 

10.6.1 the parties will commence discussions on the Total Fee for the next Financial 
Year in parallel with the review of the Delivery Plan described in Clause 2; 

10.6.2 the discussions referred to in Clause 10.6.1will be based on the Fee Principles 
in Schedule 6; 

10.6.3 any variation of the Total Fee shall (subject to Clause 13.2) be commensurate 
with the variation of the Specification, the Delivery Plan and/or the Services in 
accordance with Clauses 2-4 provided that the Total Fee shall always be 
sufficient to enable NPH to discharge its obligations under the  Works Contracts 
(including the payment of the salaries of the staff employed by NPH to 
administer the Works Contracts); 

10.6.4 if the parties cannot agree the variation of the Total Fee and invoke Clause 31 
an Expert to whom the dispute is referred shall take into account any value for 
money requirement in the Delivery Plan and Specification subject always to the 
proviso to Clause 10.6.3. 

10.7 The Total Fee for Management Services due and payable under this Clause 10 shall be 
paid in advance by equal payments on the first day of each calendar month. 

10.8 The Total Fee for the Repairs & Maintenance and (subject to Clause 10.9) the 
Improvement Services shall be paid in advance by equal payments on each of the usual 
Quarter Days as described in Schedule 4. 

10.9 In each Financial Year of this Agreement and [without prejudice to Clause 10.8 and 
subject to Clause 10.10 the Council shall pay NPH as part of the Total Fee the Capital 

HSNG.3426934.8 8 IGD.48023.3 
 

112



 

Sum as and when required for NPH to discharge its obligations under the Improvement 
Works Contracts. 

10.10 The Council shall ensure that any payment made under Clause 10.9 is always sufficient to 
enable NPH to discharge its obligations under the Improvement Works Contracts.   

10.11 The payment and accounting arrangements for the Total Fee shall enable NPH (where 
appropriate) to charge VAT and the Council (where possible under Section 33 of the VAT 
Act 1994) to recover it.  

11 Surpluses and reserves 

11.1 Subject to Clauses 11.3-11.5 NPH shall be entitled to use any of its available surpluses or 
reserves in accordance with its strategic plan entitled "Use of Surpluses and Reserves" 
which will form part of the Delivery Plan. 

11.2 NPH shall consult the Council about the use of its surpluses and reserves pursuant to this 
Clause 11 and obtain the Council's consent for the use of surpluses and reserves outside 
the scope of the Delivery Plan. 

11.3 Surpluses and/or reserves shall only be deemed to be available for the purposes of the 
remaining provisions of this Clause 11 if:  

11.3.1 this is consistent with NPH's adopted accounting standards or specific 
confirmation from NPH's auditors; 

11.3.2 they arise from NPH's operational activities (including Management Services 
and the staffing element of the Repairs & Maintenance Services but excluding 
the subject matter of Clause 11.5); and  

11.3.3 they have not been identified by NPH for future use in accordance with the 
Delivery Plan. 

11.4 NPH shall unless otherwise agreed with the Council  use any available surpluses or 
reserves to meet any in-year shortfall in the Services Fee, but shall not be required to use 
them to meet any deficit in the Pension Fund in respect of the Transferring Employees 
attributable to the period up to the date of this Agreement. The remaining amount of NPH's 
surpluses and reserves will be taken into account when setting the ensuing Financial 
Year's Total Fee.  

11.5 Surpluses arising from the Improvement Services and the non-staffing elements of the 
Repairs & Maintenance Services shall be rolled forward into the ensuing year's Repairs & 
Maintenance and Improvements Works Programme. 

11.6 The Council will ensure that NPH has an operating balance as set by the Council's 
'Section 151' officer and which takes into account the views of NPH's auditors.   

12 Additional income-generation 

NPH shall be entitled to pursue and exploit opportunities for income generation with third 
parties provided that: 

HSNG.3426934.8 9 IGD.48023.3 
 

113



 

12.1 they are consistent with NPH's Objects or they can be legally pursued and exploited 
through a wholly owned subsidiary; 

12.2 NPH's ability to discharge its obligations hereunder is not adversely affected; 

12.3 any proposed commitment by NPH is expressly approved by NPH's board and is recorded 
at the next appropriate meeting between NPH and the Council; 

12.4 any proposed new venture by NPH outside the Delivery Plan which can reasonably be 
expected to generate a yearly turnover of over £50,000 shall be first approved in writing by 
the Council. 

13 Improvement of Service Delivery and Continuous Improvement 

13.1 The parties acknowledge the importance of the principle of continuous improvement in the 
provision of the Services and the delivery of the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement 
Programme and accordingly: 

13.1.1 NPH will regularly review how better to perform its obligations hereunder; and 

13.1.2 the Council will support NPH to improve its performance. 

13.2 NPH will use all reasonable endeavours to improve standards and achieve greater cost-
effectiveness. 

13.3 Improvement in the delivery of Services will be effected by NPH's better performance as 
evidenced by its delivery against the KPIs in Appendix 2 to the Delivery Plan. 

13.4 Year-on-year efficiencies will be achieved by delivering the Services at a higher standard 
or less cost.  

14 New build  

14.1 The Council will work with and support NPH and other organisations to maximise 
opportunities for building and acquiring new homes within the borough. Where the Council 
has agreed a proposed new development or an acquisition or acquisitions with NPH, it will 
support NPH's application for HCA or other grant funding therefor. 

14.2 NPH will devote such resources as it can reasonably make available to carrying out the 
development or acquisition of new affordable or mixed use housing in accordance with the 
Council's housing strategy (including any specific stipulations concerning housing need 
and rent levels).  

14.3 The Council intends that NPH will be the manager of any Council-owned new build 
properties. 

15 NPH's Constitution 

The Council confirms (without fettering its legal entitlements) that it intends only to use its 
rights as sole member (or guarantor) of NPH to amend NPH's Constitution and appoint or 
remove board members (save for the Council's own nominees) or to issue directions to 
NPH or its board if and then only for so long as NPH fails to comply with the terms hereof 
and the Council would therefore be entitled to terminate this Agreement under Clause 27. 

HSNG.3426934.8 10 IGD.48023.3 
 

114



 

16 The governance of NPH 

16.1 NPH board meetings shall be open to the public save for any part or parts of the meeting 
declared by the board through its chair to be private. 

16.2 NPH and the Council will adhere to the agreed protocol on liaison with Council members. 

17 Changes in NPH's role and activities 

17.1 The parties acknowledge that NPH's role and activities on behalf of the Council will  be 
subject to change including changes resulting from: 

17.1.1 regulatory or statutory requirements; 

17.1.2 tenant and/or leaseholder expectations; 

17.1.3 Council policy objectives 

and accordingly this Agreement will need to be varied or otherwise incorporate such 
changes. 

17.2 Any such changes will be dealt with pursuant to Clauses 3-4.  

18 Services provided by the Council 

18.1 The Council will provide the services described in Schedule 3 (the Council Services) for 
the fee(s) set out therein. 

18.2 If the Council and NPH agree that the Council will provide an additional service to NPH a 
description of that such service (in the same form as set out in Schedule 3) will be 
prepared together with the agreed fee (or fee formula) therefor.  The description and fee 
will be deemed to be incorporated in Schedule 3. 

18.3 If a Council Service is not being performed to the standards set out in the relevant part of 
Schedule 3, the parties shall meet to discuss how the Council Service is to be improved. If 
agreement cannot be reached, the matter shall be resolved using the Dispute Resolution 
process in Clause 31. 

18.4 The Council Services may only be terminated with the agreement of both parties.  

19 Council's financial support for NPH 

19.1 The Council shall provide and evidence such support for NPH as shall be required to 
enable NPH's auditors to confirm from time to time to NPH's board of directors that NPH is 
and will continue to be able to meet its debts as they fall due and is otherwise a 'going 
concern'. 

19.2 The Council agrees that whether through the Total Fee or otherwise it shall ensure that 
NPH is able to discharge its liabilities for the pensions costs attributable to NPH's past, 
present and future employees. 

19.3 The Council will provide the Pension Fund with such a guarantee of NPH's membership 
thereof as shall prevent NPH's liability for any deficit attributable to the past service of the 

HSNG.3426934.8 11 IGD.48023.3 
 

115



 

Transferring Employees (the Deficit) having the effect of rendering NPH technically 
insolvent. 

19.4 If notwithstanding the guarantee referred to in Clause 19.3 NPH as employer of the 
Transferring Employees is required itself to assume responsibility for the Deficit and for so 
long as it remains more cost-effective to reduce the Deficit by annual contributions than by 
a capital payment the Total Fee shall be increased by a ring-fenced amount which has and 
will have no impact on the resources otherwise made available to NPH pursuant to this 
Agreement. 

20 TUPE and related provisions 

20.1 NPH acknowledges that with effect from and including the date hereof it will become the 
employer of each of the Transferring Employees pursuant to the TUPE Regulations. 

20.2 The Council warrants that the only persons employed in the Undertaking are those whose 
posts are listed in Schedule 7 and that the details relating to the Transferring Employees 
as set out in Schedule 7 are correct in all material respects at the date hereof. 

20.3 The Council undertakes to be responsible: 

20.3.1 for all salaries and other emoluments including but without limitation holiday 
pay, tax and National Insurance payments allowances and contributions to 
retirement benefit schemes in respect of the Transferring Employees up to but 
not including the date hereof and the Council agrees that all requisite 
apportionments shall be made; and 

20.3.2 for any costs arising from the termination of employment of  certain Transferring 
Employees identified by the Council.  

20.4 The Council is not aware of: 

20.4.1 anything done or omitted to be done prior to the date hereof by or on behalf of 
the Council in respect of any contract of employment or any collective 
agreement or any persons employed in the Undertaking which could give rise to 
a claim against NPH on the grounds that notwithstanding that it relates to 
employment prior to the date hereof is deemed by reason of transfer of the 
Undertaking pursuant to this Agreement to have been done or omitted to be 
done by or in relation to NPH in accordance with the TUPE Regulations; or 

20.4.2 any claim by any trade union, staff association or staff body in respect of all or 
any of the Transferring Employees arising out of the Council's actual or alleged 
failure prior to date hereof to comply with its legal obligation in relation to 
information and consultation to or with such trade unions or staff associations or 
bodies save insofar as any such failure results from a failure by NPH to provide 
information pursuant to Regulation 13(4) of the TUPE Regulations.  

20.5 Save as identified in Schedule 7 all of the Transferring Employees are paid for out of the 
HRA. 

HSNG.3426934.8 12 IGD.48023.3 
 

116



 

21 The HRA ring-fence 

21.1 The parties acknowledge that HRA income and expenditure is and remains (following the 
implementation of Self-financing) subject to the requirements of the statutory ring-fence. 

21.2 After the Total Fee and other financial arrangements between the Council and NPH have 
been agreed each Financial Year in accordance with this Agreement there shall be 
produced a statement of the allocation of HRA monies in a form determined by the Council 
in consultation with NPH.  

21.3 For the avoidance of doubt the Management Services Fee includes identified expenditure 
on General Fund activities. 

22 Council responsibilities and entitlements 

It is understood and agreed that the Council: 

22.1 is and remains statutorily responsible for the HRA; 

22.2 will set rents and other charges for its tenants each year; 

22.3 may vary the Fee (but only in accordance with Clause 10); 

22.4 may vary the Delivery Plan, Services and Specification in accordance with Clauses 2-4; 
and  

22.5 may terminate this Agreement in accordance with Clause 27. 

23 Section 151 duty 

It is acknowledged that the relevant Council officer has statutory duties under Section 151 
of the Local Government Act 1972 and nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as 
preventing that officer from doing such acts or things as are properly required for the 
discharge of such duties. 

24 Management of the HRA 

As part of the Services NPH will provide the Council with: 

24.1 information on its activities to enable the Council to manage the HRA; and 

24.2 advice on how best to make use of the resources within the HRA under Self-financing. 

25 Consultation on HRA matters 

In addition to the requirements of Section 105 of the 1985 Act the Council agrees to 
consult with its tenants and leaseholders on major issues affecting the HRA including rent-
setting and the overall budget. 

26 Term 

Subject to Clause 27 this Agreement shall expire on 4 January 2030. 

HSNG.3426934.8 13 IGD.48023.3 
 

117



 

27 Termination 

27.1 Subject to Clause 27.2 the Council shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement if NPH 
fails to comply with the terms hereof or if in the Council's unfettered opinion there is a 
serious and substantiated risk that NPH will shortly fail so to comply. 

27.2 Unless NPH's actual or anticipated failure which would entitle the Council to terminate this 
Agreement cannot (in the Council's reasonable opinion) be remedied NPH shall be 
afforded a reasonable opportunity (including where appropriate a remedial plan) to comply 
or demonstrate that it will shortly comply with the terms hereof. 

27.3 If the Council becomes entitled to terminate this Agreement it may decide to terminate the 
whole or any part hereof and either provide the Services itself or procure that any third 
party do so and NPH will take such steps as may reasonably be required to give effect to 
the Council's decision. 

27.4 The Council shall have a right to terminate this Agreement where it is required to enter into 
an agreement with a Tenant Management Organisation (TMO). If the Agreement is 
terminated under this Clause 27.4 the Council and NPH shall within three months of such 
termination make all necessary arrangements for the transfer of the relevant functions 
from NPH to the TMO. 

27.5 This Agreement shall be terminated if such requirement is imposed pursuant to Section 
247(2) or 249(2) of the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008.  If the Agreement is 
terminated pursuant to this Clause 27.5 the Council and NPH shall make all necessary 
arrangements for the transfer of the relevant functions from NPH. 

28 Access to information and Data Processing 

28.1 NPH will afford the Council and persons properly authorised by it access to any 
information reasonably required provided that the Council gives NPH appropriate notice 
thereof. 

28.2 [NPH and the Council shall agree a protocol for sharing personal data in a manner which 
supports the delivery of Services and complies with the Data Protection Act 1998.] 

29 Insurances etc. 

29.1 The Council shall for the period up to [ ] request LGSS to procure  separate policies of 
insurance for NPH from the Council’s  insurers or underwriters on the same terms as the 
Council’s insurances in respect of NPH's liability to: 

29.1.1 the Council and any employee of the Council; 

29.1.2 the employees of NPH; and 

29.1.3 any other person. 

29.2 The premia for such policies of insurance shall form part of the calculation of the Total 
Fee. 

29.3 The Council shall insure in its own name against all the usual risks associated with its 
housing stock. 

HSNG.3426934.8 14 IGD.48023.3 
 

118



 

30 NPH support 

NPH shall assist the Council in discharging its statutory obligations to: 

30.1 provide the returning officer with the resources required for his or her election 
responsibilities; and 

30.2 respond to a civil emergency, 

subject in both cases to such arrangements (as to the use, payment and/or reimbursement 
of staff) as have previously applied to the Council's housing department.  

31 Dispute resolution 

31.1 Save as otherwise provided in this Agreement, in the event of any dispute between the 
parties arising out of or in connection with this Agreement the parties shall in the first 
instance use their reasonable endeavours to resolve it amicably between them in 
accordance with the procedure set out below: 

31.1.1 Stage 1: Representatives of the parties (being the officers having day to day 
responsibility for or knowledge of the area which is the subject of the dispute) 
shall meet within ten working days.  If they are unable to agree a resolution at 
such meeting or if there shall be no appropriate officers of each of the parties 
available to attend such meeting then move to Stage 2. 

31.1.2 Stage 2: The relevant Representatives or their nominated deputies shall meet 
within ten working days.  If they are unable to agree a resolution at such 
meeting or if there shall be no appropriate officers of each of the parties 
available to attend such meeting then move to Stage 3. 

31.1.3 Stage 3: The Chief Executive of the Council and the Chief Executive of NPH or 
their nominated deputies shall meet within ten working days. 

31.1.4 In seeking to resolve any dispute considered under Stage 1, Stage 2 or Stage 3 
the parties shall apply the following principles: 

(a) a spirit of mutual trust and co-operation 

(b) both parties shall bear their own costs 

(c) the parties shall extend the periods of negotiation if they  both agree to 
do so 

(d) any unanimous decision shall be implemented. 

31.2 Disputes remaining unresolved after following the procedure set out in Clause [31.1] shall 
be referred to an Expert. 

31.3 Subject to Clauses 31.4-31.7 the result of any dispute resolution procedure under this 
Clause 31 shall be final and binding on the parties (save in the event of fraud or a mistake 
in law or material fact) and shall where and to the extent necessary and appropriate be 
reflected in a variation to the provisions of this Agreement. 

HSNG.3426934.8 15 IGD.48023.3 
 

119



 

31.4 No resolution of any dispute pursuant to this Clause 31 shall be final and binding on the 
parties unless the Council's Representative confirms the Council's agreement pursuant to 
Clause 31.5. 

31.5 Subject to Clause 31.6 the Council's Representative shall confirm the Council's agreement 
to an Expert's decision within 20 working days thereof (the Confirmation Period) and if 
he fails to do so then subject to Clause 31.6 the decision shall be final and binding on the 
parties. 

31.6 If within the Confirmation Period the Council's Representative notifies NPH's 
Representative of the Council's disagreement with the Expert's decision the Council shall 
have ten working days thereafter to make another decision and that decision (which shall 
be notified to NPH's board with the Council's reasons therefor) shall be final and binding 
on the parties. 

31.7 If the Council fails to make another decision in accordance with Clause 31.6 the Expert's 
decision shall be final and binding on the parties. 

31.8 Until such time as a dispute between the parties is resolved or concluded in accordance 
with this Clause 31 the parties shall continue to comply with their respective obligations 
under this Agreement. 

32 Regulator 

This Agreement is subject to the Regulator's right to direct the variation or termination 
thereof and the parties will take all steps necessary to give effect to any such variation or 
termination. 

33 Statutory obligations and key Council policies 

33.1 Without prejudice to NPH's obligations to comply with housing and related legislation as 
set out in the Specification NPH will comply with all Other Legislation. 

33.2 Subject to Clause 4 NPH will comply with the Council policies listed in column (3) of the 
Specification as the same may be amended, varied or replaced from time to time following 
consultation with NPH. 

34 Value added tax 

All payments by any party to another party pursuant to the terms of this Agreement shall 
be exclusive of any Value Added Tax chargeable in respect of the supply of goods or 
services for which the payment is consideration and in so far as such payments fall to be 
made under this Agreement such Value Added Tax shall be added to the amount thereof 
and paid in addition thereto upon production of a proper Value Added Tax invoice. 

35 Interest on overdue payments 

Save where payment is reasonably disputed by one party and the other party has been 
notified of such dispute, if and whenever any payment due in accordance with this 
Agreement shall at any time remain unpaid for a space of 20 working days next after 
becoming payable a further and additional sum by way of interest on the same calculated 
on a day-to-day basis at an annual rate higher by two per cent than the Base Rate of         

HSNG.3426934.8 16 IGD.48023.3 
 

120



 

HSBC Bank plc in force from time to time from the date upon which such sum first became 
payable shall (if demanded) be accounted for (as if paid) by the defaulting party to the 
other party. 

36 No partnership 

Nothing in this Agreement shall be construed as creating or implying any partnership 
between the parties hereto and save as expressly provided nothing in this Agreement shall 
be deemed to make NPH the agent of the Council or authorise NPH to: 

36.1 incur any expenses on behalf of the Council; 

36.2 enter into any engagement or make any representation or warranty on behalf of the 
Council; or 

36.3 commit or bind the Council in any way whatsoever 

without in each case obtaining the Council's Representative's prior written consent. 

37 Survival of this Agreement 

37.1 Insofar as any of the rights and powers of the Council provided for in this Agreement shall 
or may be exercised or exercisable after the termination or expiry of this Agreement the 
provisions of this Agreement conferring such rights and powers shall survive and remain in 
full force and effect notwithstanding such termination or expiry. 

37.2 Insofar as any of the obligations of NPH provided for in this Agreement remain to be 
discharged after the termination or expiry of this Agreement the provisions of this 
Agreement imposing such obligations shall survive and remain in full force and effect 
notwithstanding such termination or expiry. 

38 Severance 

If any provision of this Agreement comes or is declared invalid or unenforceable this shall 
not affect any other provisions which shall all remain in full force and effect. 

39 No assignment 

No party shall be entitled to assign this Agreement or any of the rights hereunder to any 
other party. 

40 Notices etc 

Any notice or other communication under this Agreement shall be sufficiently served if 
served personally on the other party or sent by prepaid first class post to the addresses 
given at the head of this Agreement or by electronic mail to the central email addresses 
given in the parties' websites and, subject to proof to the contrary, shall be deemed to 
have been received on the second working day after the day of posting or on successful 
transmission, as the case may be. 

HSNG.3426934.8 17 IGD.48023.3 
 

121



 

41 Third party rights 

No rights are conferred under this Agreement pursuant to the Contracts (Rights of Third 
Parties) Act 1999. 

42 Concurrent remedies 

No right or remedy for any party under this Agreement is exclusive of any other right or 
remedy and each such right or remedy shall be cumulative and enforceable concurrently 
and shall be without prejudice to pre-existing obligations. 

43 Variation 

Except as otherwise expressly provided, no variation of this Agreement shall be valid 
unless it is in writing and executed and delivered as a deed by or on behalf of each of the 
parties. 

44 Confidentiality 

44.1 The parties agree to keep the subject matter of this Agreement confidential subject only to 
statutory duties and/or usual contractual obligations. 

44.2 It is acknowledged by the Council that notwithstanding NPH's status as the Council's 
subsidiary NPH may have commercial and other interests which are confidential to NPH. 

45 Law 

This Agreement shall be governed and construed according to English law. 

This Agreement has been entered into as a deed and is delivered on the date stated at the beginning 

The COMMON SEAL of  ) 
NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL ) 
was affixed   ) 
in the presence of:   ) 

 

 

 

The SEAL of NORTHAMPTON  ) 
PARTNERSHIP HOMES LIMITED  ) 
was affixed    ) 
in the presence of:   ) 
 

 

HSNG.3426934.8 18 IGD.48023.3 
 

122



 

Schedule 1 – NPH's Services 

(Clause 2) 

(1) 

Description of 
Service 

Looking after 
Council Homes 

(2) 

Outputs 

(3) 

Required policies, 
protocols and 

standards 

A1 

Repairs & 
Maintenance 

In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• Develop a customer focussed and 
efficient repairs service to deliver 
responsive and planned repairs 

 

 

Policies 

Tenancy Policy 

A2 

Asset management 

In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• The detail for this service and its 
expectations are held within the 
Housing Asset Management 
Strategy which is in the Delivery 
Plan document 

 

  

A3 

Adaptions to 
Council Homes 

In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• Compile and maintain a list of 
properties that contain adaptations 

• Receive adaptation requests from 
tenants 

• Assess the needs of tenants and 
agree suitable adaptations 

• Carry out approved adaptations to 
agreed standards 

 

 

 

HSNG.3426934.8 19 IGD.48023.3 
 

123



 

(1) 

Description of 
Service 

Tenancy 
Management 

(2) 

Outputs 

(3) 

Required policies, 
protocols and 

standards 

B1 

Letting Properties 

In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• Book an appointment for an 
accompanied viewing 

• Undertake the a/v 

• Sign up the applicant / or refuse the 
offer 

• If refused then withdraw offer 

• If signed up then satisfy the application 
on IBS 

Policies 

Allocations Policy 

B2 

Managing 
Tenancies 

In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• Manage anti-social behaviour 

• New tenant visits 

• Estate walkabouts 

• Changes of tenancy 

• Breach of tenancy through to 
enforcement 

• Estate and block Inspections 

• General advice and assistance 

• Mutual exchanges and transfers 

• Abandonment 

• Tenancy termination 

• Complaints 

 

Policies 

ASB Policy and  

Customer feedback 
Policy 

 

Protocols 

New tenant visit 
Procedure 

Estate walkabout 
Procedure 

Changes of tenancy 
Procedure 

Mutual exchange 
procedure 

Abandoned property 
procedure 

 

 

 

HSNG.3426934.8 20 IGD.48023.3 
 

124



 

(1) 

Description of 
Service 

(2) 

Outputs 

(3) 

Required policies, 
protocols and 

standards 

B3 

Rent and Income 
Management 

In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• In all actions have regard to 
maximising rental income and 
minimising rent arrears levels.  

 
• Undertake weekly monitoring of all 

current tenants rent accounts and 
identify where recovery action is 
required. 

 
• Provide support, advice and assistance 

to those tenants who fall into arrears 
and those impacted by welfare reform. 

  
• Provide basic debt and benefits advise 

for current tenants, as required and 
where necessary signpost to specialist 
debt advice services. 

• Offer rent debt repayment plans based 
on the tenants individual 
circumstances.   

• Have in place effective arrears 
enforcement processes from initial 
contact through to possession 
proceedings and eviction. 

 
• Provide general advice and information 

on all rent account matters, payment 
methods, frequency of payment, 
arrears procedures and respond to all 
account enquiries. 

• Provide a rent statement for all current 
tenants 4 times a year or on request.  

• Administer any refund requests, 
account adjustments and write offs as 
required.   

Policies 

Rent Income Policy. 
 
Housing Rents Write 
off Policy. 
 
Protocols 
 
Pre-action Protocol 
for Possession  
 
Claims based on rent 
arrears. 
 
Rent Service 
Standards 
 

HSNG.3426934.8 21 IGD.48023.3 
 

125



 

 

(1) 

Description of 
Service 

Choice Based 
Lettings 

(2) 

Outputs 

(3) 

Required policies, 
protocols and 

standards 

C1 

Allocations 

In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• To ensure properties are advertised 
promptly and to a good standard, 
ensuring that customers have all the 
relevant information to allow them to 
place a bid  

• Allocate vacant NBC properties to 
the customer in the highest priority 
making best use of the council’s 
stock and in line with the councils 
Housing Allocation Policy. 

• To be part of the voids process, 
ensuring void time is minimised.  

• Reallocate refusals promptly. 

• Monitor refusals and reasons for 
refusal, taking appropriate action.  

• Raise invoices for CBL charges to 
partner RSL’s. 

Policies 

 

Housing Allocation Policy 

C2 

Nominations to 
other Social 
Landlords 

In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• Ensure properties are advertised on 
behalf of RSL’s. 

• Ensure nominations are provided 
within 3 days of the cycle closing. 

• Update the housing application if 
the property is refused or accepted.  

Policies 

 

Housing Allocation Policy 

 

 

HSNG.3426934.8 22 IGD.48023.3 
 

126



 

 

(1) 

Description of 
Service 

Supporting Tenants 

(2) 

Outputs 

(3) 

Required policies, 
protocols and standards 

D1 

Supporting the 
elderly and 
vulnerable 

In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• Ensure that a robust support plan is 
place. 

• Provide flexible support to people 
when they need it most 

• Liaise with external agencies when 
necessary to provide additional 
support if required 

 

 

Policies 

Housing Allocation Policy 

Gateway services In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• Ensure that potentially vulnerable 
customers are identified and their 
needs assessed as soon as possible 
after application has been made. 

• Ensure that a robust support plan is 
place. 

• Work with partner agencies to 
provide support and assistance. 

• Ensure that new tenants are 
supported in moving into their new 
accommodation. 

• Ensure that in all instances if there 
are any concerns regarding 
safeguarding of families and 
individuals, the officer and team will 
follow appropriate protocols. Training 
will be provided to support this. 

 

 

 

 

Housing Allocation Policy 

Safeguarding Policy 

HSNG.3426934.8 23 IGD.48023.3 
 

127



 

 
 

            (1) 
Description of 

Service 
Tenancy 

Involvement 

 
(2) 

Outputs 

 
(3) 

Required policies, 
protocols and 

standards 

E1 
Customer Service 
and Information 

In carrying out this service NPH are required to: 
• Provide the tenants with an out of hour’s 

emergency telephone number.  
• Provide the tenants with information and regular 

updates on opportunities for engagement, training 
and tenant-focused events both locally and 
regionally via tenant’s newsletters and magazines. 

•  Regularly monitor tenants’ satisfaction with 
services, implementing changes as identified by 
tenants.  

•  Regularly provide tenants with training 
opportunities to enhance their housing and service-
specific knowledge. 

 
 
 
 

• Customer 
Excellence 
Strategy 
 

• Customer Service 
standards 

 
• Tenant 

Engagement 
strategy 

• Review and enhance the measurement of 
customer satisfaction  

• For example, Net 
Promoter Score 

• Monitor and report on the agreed Service 
Standards where applicable. Review the Standards 
on an annual basis to ensure they are fit for 
purpose 

 

E2 
Consultation 

In carrying out this service NPH are required to: 
 

• Scope, develop and implement a tenant 
involvement/empowerment strategy and policy.  

• Develop, implement and regularly monitor service 
standards and access to services by tenants 
through the various service improvement panels.  

• Review existing service arrangements, 
benchmarking against other Social Landlord’s, 
using feedback from the consultation to identify 
priorities and to make recommendations for 
shaping future service delivery. 

• Consult with tenants in a meaningful and timely 
manner on any proposed changes to the service or 
its provision. 

 
 
 

• Tenant & 
Empowerment 
Standard – Social 
Housing 
Regulatory 
Framework 

• Tenant 
Engagement 
Strategy 
 

 
 
 

• Conduct a Tenant Survey, minimum of every two 
years, to all households 

 

• The survey must 
meet the STAR 
standard 

• Develop and implement monthly customer 
satisfaction monitoring based on a stratified sample 
(e.g. Telephone surveys, interviews 100+) 
 

• Conduct monthly 
monitoring using 
independent staff 
based on a 
stratified sample 
 

 

HSNG.3426934.8 24 IGD.48023.3 
 

128



 

• Service satisfaction surveys 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Mixture of: 
• Satisfaction letters 

sent out to 
customers 

• Satisfaction returns 
with envelope 
handed to 
customer by 
tradesperson and 
usually taken back 
with them 

• Telephone 
monitoring 

• Postal survey 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HSNG.3426934.8 25 IGD.48023.3 
 

129



 

 

(1) 

Description of 
Service 

Managing the Ecton 
Lane site & Empty 

Homes 

(2) 

Outputs 

(3) 

Required policies, 
protocols and 

standards 

F1 

 

 

 

 

Managing the site 
on behalf of the 
Council  

In carrying out this service NPH are 
required to: 

• Undertake regular fire security checks of 
the site to ensure there are no breaches 
of regulations 

• Ensure that all communal areas and 
individual plots are part of a programme 
of inspections  

• Ensure that by investigation, negotiation 
and enforcement that tenants comply 
with their conditions of tenancy, with 
reference to nuisance and anti-social 
behaviour 

• Increase engagement with the traveller 
community 

• Provide a single point of contact officer 
who will be accessible to every tenant on 
the site 

• Engage with partner agencies both 
internally and externally and attend 
relevant meetings 

Policies 

 

Dealing with Anti-Social 
behaviour 

Dealing with Hate crime 

Tenancy Management 
Policy 

 

Protocols 

Taking legal action 
against tenants for 
breach of tenancy 

 

F2 

 

Empty Homes 

 

 

• Advertising of properties via CBL and 
subsequent allocation of properties 

• Ensuring rent collection and property 
maintenance as required by the terms of 
the individual lease  

• Sign up of tenants to fixed term 
tenancies, including tenant verification 
and support including advice at the end 
of the tenancy 

• Tenancy management services to 
ensure compliance with terms of tenancy 
& enforcement if required 

 

Protocol 

Empty homes 

HSNG.3426934.8 26 IGD.48023.3 
 

130



 

Schedule 2 – Delegations Schedule 

(Clause [2.2]) 

 

Function Delegated 
to NPH 

Retained 
by the 
Council 

Shared Comments 

Repairs & 
Maintenance 

Y   Planned, cyclical and responsive 

Tenancy 
Management 

Y   Housing management (including 
successions and exchanges), 
tenancy management, leaseholder 
management 

Lettings   Y Via choice based lettings scheme 
in accordance with Council's 
lettings policy 

Supporting 
tenants 

Y   Sheltered accommodation, 
supported living and related 
advice 

Ecton Lane 
Travellers Site 

Y   Details included within Schedule 1 
service specification 

Empty Homes   Y Details included within Schedule 1 
service specification 

Consultation   Y Council has statutory duties here 
and may wish to consult direct; 
generally expected that NPH 
would carry out consultations 
whether for itself or the Council 

Estate 
management 

Y   Including environmental 
improvements 

RTBs   Y NPH to deal with applications, 
Council (via LGSS) to process 
legal work 

Management of 
non-housing 
assets on estates 

  Y Council to deal with the 
commercial elements; shared 
where buildings contain both 
housing and commercial elements 

HSNG.3426934.8 27 IGD.48023.3 
 

131



 

Function Delegated 
to NPH 

Retained 
by the 
Council 

Shared Comments 

Housing Advice & 
Homelessness 

 Y  Council retains statutory functions 
– NPH to provide advice to 
tenants and homelessness 
prevention 

Private Sector 
initiatives 

 Y  Including private sector empty 
homes 

Community 
initiatives 

  Y Council to retain community safety 
and rough sleepers functions; 
parties to co-operate on 
community initiatives generally 

Regeneration   Y Parties to work together on 
regeneration plans to the housing 
estates 

Policy 
development 

  Y NPH will be required to comply 
with relevant new policies 
developed by the Council  

Stock surveys Y   As per the Housing Asset 
Management Strategy 

Aids and 
Adaptations 

  Y For all council homes – DFG’s for 
private sector homes remains with 
the Council 

Insurance  Y  Subject to the provisions of clause 
30 of the Agreement 

Management of 
HRA 

  Y Council's statutory responsibility 

 

HSNG.3426934.8 28 IGD.48023.3 
 

132



 

Schedule 3 – Services provided by the Council 

(Clause 18) Awaiting sign off 

[Performance standards are to be introduced  into the SLAs] 

Call Care Service 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Overall service to be provided: 
• Calls Handling for emergency alarm calls from Sheltered Housing Properties. 

• Provision of all out of hours calls handling for Northampton Partnership Homes. 

• Monitor Lone working for Housing Officers. 

SLA Services 
 
Core Services 
 
Sheltered Housing. 

• Call Care will provide a 24-hour social alarm monitoring service to the residents of 
sheltered schemes and sheltered Housing dispersed alarms  in accordance with best 
professional practice as laid down in the Code of Practice for the Telecare Services 
Association (TSA) and in compliance with the requirements of the customer, 
Northampton Partnership Homes.  Facilitating appropriate responses. 

• Call Care will update records within one day of receiving the information. 

• Provide information to support the maintenance of the equipment, such as battery 
replacement programme, warranty’s and low battery calls. 

• Provide technical support regarding the equipment within the operational remit. 

• Programme all new dispersed alarms. 

• Maintain an equipment database for all dispersed alarms and monitor stock levels 

• Support scheme replacement programme. 

• Administration of TV licences. 

Repairs 
• Call Care will provide a call handling service for Northampton Partnership Homes out 

of ours repairs. Facilitating appropriate responses in compliance with Northampton 
Partnership Homes requirements. 

HSNG.3426934.8 29 IGD.48023.3 
 

133



 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 
 
  

 

 

  

 

 
 
 

   

 

 

 

 

What obligations/requirements from Northampton Partnership Homes 
Sheltered Housing 

• Northampton Partnership Homes and Call Care will each nominate a specific person 
to be responsible for the liaison required. 

• Northampton Partnership Homes will provide details of all residents moving into 
sheltered accommodation to Call Care and will update any changes as soon as the 
information can be collected. 

• Northampton Partnership Homes will alert Call Care before installing, removing or 
disconnecting equipment. 

Out of hours repairs 
• ESNT will provide call care with any updates made to procedures. 

• ESNT will provide Call Care with monthly rotas and any intermittent updates to the 
rota. 

Housing Officers 
 
• All new details and updates of Housing Officers using the lone worker system will be 

provided to Call Care. 

Proposed performance monitoring/review 
Meetings will be held quarterly between the Northampton Partnership Homes and the Call 
Care Management team. 

Contract Period: 
Commencement:  5th January 2015 - 5th January 2018 

Review process: 
The review for the Service Level Agreements will be on an annual basis to ensure that any 
changes in service requirements can be implemented in a timely manner for both the 
Council and Northampton Partnership Homes. 

Authorised Officers: 
The Council:    Marion Goodman                      The Company: Gerald Davies 

Fee: £312,000 (this figure has been provided by LGSS finance team) 

HSNG.3426934.8 30 IGD.48023.3 
 

134



 

Schedule 3 – Services provided by the Council 

(Clause 18) Awaiting sign off 

Customer Services 

   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 

 
 
 

Overall service to be provided: 
Providing an access point for customers through the Customer Call Centre and the face to 
face reception in the One Stop Shop 

SLA Services 
 
Core Services 

• Provide an effective initial point of contact for Customers with any Housing related 
queries 

• Provide advice and guidance where possible to enable solutions at the first point of 
contact 

• Deliver excellent and timely customer services 

• Identify points where customers will need to be signposted to alternative agencies or 
teams who may be able to help with complex queries 

• Arrange suitable times for repairs and maintenance visits 

 
What obligations/requirements from Northampton Partnership Homes 

• To provide a timely response to all repairs and maintenance requests  

• Monitor service failures to reduce avoidable contacts 

• Ensure all contact details for all officers are kept up to date  

• Provide feedback in quarterly meetings around service improvement if necessary 

• To provide Customer Services with information and a timescale for external 
communications which may increase  demand 
 

• Provide training on processes to new and existing frontline staff 

Proposed performance monitoring/review 
Meetings will be held bi-monthly between the Head of Housing Technical, or their 
representative, the Head of Housing Management or their representative and Northampton 
Borough Council’s Head of Customer and Cultural Services, or their representative 
 
 

HSNG.3426934.8 31 IGD.48023.3 
 

135



 

  

 

 

 

 
 
 
 
  

 

 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Contract Period: 
Commencement:  5th January 2015 – 5th January 2018 

Review Process 
The review for the Service Level Agreements will be on an annual basis to ensure that any 
changes in service requirements can be implemented in a timely manner for both the 
Council and Northampton Partnership Homes. 
 

Authorised Officers: 
The Council: Marion Goodman                   The Company: Gerald Davies 

Fee:  £607,000 (this figure has been provided by LGSS finance team) 
 

HSNG.3426934.8 32 IGD.48023.3 
 

136



 

Schedule 3 – Services provided by the Council 

(Clause 18) Awaiting sign off 

Post Room Service 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 
 

 

 

  

 

 
 

Overall service to be provided: 
• Take delivery of, sort, open and deliver incoming post each morning, including a 

Messenger Van Service between the Guildhall and Westbridge Depot. 

 

SLA Services 
Core Services 

• Take delivery of incoming post from Royal Mail at 07.00 daily from Monday to Friday. 

• Sort and open incoming post in a secure environment. 

• Provide Business Mail Advanced PPI envelopes to ensure maximum discounts with 
Royal Mail. 

• Maintaining NBC’s electronic document management system, scanning and indexing 
documents to acceptable standards and attaching their digital images to existing records or 
creating new accounts as appropriate  
 

• Accept incoming deliveries and ensure that they reach the correct Recipient. 
 
 

What obligations/requirements from Northampton Partnership Homes 
• Communicate specific service requirements (ie: enveloping jobs, large mail outs etc) 

as soon as they are known. 

• Ensure that all outgoing post is specific to the needs of NBC business and that the 
service is not used for the personal use of individuals. 

• Communicate specific service requirements (ie: enveloping jobs, large mail outs etc) 
as soon as they are known. 

Proposed performance monitoring/review 
Meetings will be held bi-monthly between the Northampton Partnership Homes Monitoring 
officer or their representative and the Post room manager for Northampton Borough Council 

Contract Period: 
Commencement:  5th January 2015 – 5th January 2018 

HSNG.3426934.8 33 IGD.48023.3 
 

137



 

  

 

 

 
  

 

 
  

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Review Process 
The review for the Service Level Agreements will be on an annual basis to ensure that any 
changes in service requirements can be implemented in a timely manner for both the 
Council and Northampton Partnership Homes. 
 

Authorised Officers: 
The Council: Marion Goodman                       The Company: Gerald Davies 

Fee: £94,600 (this figure has been provided by LGSS finance team) 
 

HSNG.3426934.8 34 IGD.48023.3 
 

138



 

Schedule 3 – Services provided by the Council 

(Clause 18) Awaiting sign off 

Facilities Services 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
  

 

Overall service to be provided: 
• To provide a Cleaning Operative to ensure that Westbridge depot is cleaned daily. 

 

SLA Services 
Core Services 

• To administer the Mac access system for Westbridge Depot and Guildhall. 

• To provide cleaning services for Westbridge Depot and Guildhall. 

• To provide a maintenance service for Wesbridge Depot and Guildhall. 

• To provide a window cleaning service for Westbridge Depot and Guildhall. 

• To be responsible for the BEE TEE Alarms intruder contract at Westbridge Depot. 

• To be responsible for the annual testing of fire extinguishers at Westbridge Depot 
(Northants Fire). 

 
What obligations/requirements from Northampton Partnership Homes 

• Communicate specific service changes as soon as known 

 

Proposed performance monitoring/review 
Meetings will be held bi-monthly between the Monitoring Officer of Northampton Partnership 
Homes, or their representative and Northampton Borough Council’s Facilities manager 

Contract Period: 
Commencement:  5th January 2015      Termination: 5th January 2018 

Review Process: 
The review for the Service Level Agreements will be on an annual basis to ensure that any 
changes in service requirements can be implemented in a timely manner for both the Council 
and Northampton Partnership Homes. 
 
Authorised Officers: 
The Council:    Marion Goodman                      The Company: Gerald Davies 

Fee: £576,581  This figure has been provided by LGSS Finance team and includes the costs of 
leasing the Westbridge site) 

 

HSNG.3426934.8 35 IGD.48023.3 
 

139



 

Schedule 3 – Services provided by the Council 

(Clause 18 Awaiting sign off) 

Print Room Services 

 

 

 

 
 
 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
  

 

 
 
  

 

 

Overall service to be provided: 
• Provide technical expertise, support and production of Graphic & Web Design 

services. To include production of a wide range of printed documentation, for 
example; forms, letters, statements, posters, flyers, leaflets, newsletters etc. Advising 
on cost effective solutions and conducting external print tenders as and when 
required for specific projects 

  
SLA Services 
Core Services 

• Deliver a customer focused, cost effective print and design service 

• Complete all work within agreed deadlines and budgets. 

• Safeguard corporate branding and adhere to relevant guidelines 

• Offer a value for money and high quality service at all times 

• Discuss projects directly with responsible officers/stakeholders 

• Offer a fast, efficient  and responsive service  

 

What obligations/requirements from Northampton Partnership Homes 
• Adhere to agreed workflows/schedules 

• Provide regular and timely updates regarding current & future requirements 

• Ensure data provided is accurate  

• Provide  clear instructions and feedback 

  

Proposed performance monitoring/review 
Meetings will be held bi-monthly between the Northampton Partnership Homes monitoring 
officer and the Print Room manager for Northampton Borough Council 

Contract Period: 
Commencement:  5th January 2015 – 5th January 2018 

HSNG.3426934.8 36 IGD.48023.3 
 

140



 

  

 

 

 

 
 
 
  

 

 

 

 

Review process: 
The review for the Service Level Agreements will be on an annual basis to ensure that any 
changes in service requirements can be implemented in a timely manner for both the 
Council and Northampton Partnership Homes. 
 

Authorised Officers: 
The Council:  Marion Goodman                 The Company: Gerald Davies 

Fee:  £188,100 (this figure has been provided by the LGSS finance team) 
 

HSNG.3426934.8 37 IGD.48023.3 
 

141



 

Schedule 4  

Payment method for Repairs & Maintenance and Improvements 

(Clause 10.8) 

The Total Fee for Repairs & Maintenance and Improvements will be paid quarterly in advance, for 
which an estimated invoice will be issued. 

This would then be adjusted in arrears to take account of actual expenditure in the quarter (Q) past. 

For example (figures are illustrative only): 

Quarter 1 

Invoice:  Estimate in advance   £6m 

Quarter 2 

Invoice: Q1 Actual expenditure  £5.5m 

less: Credit Estimate paid Q1  £6.0m 
_____ 
 

Credit adjustment carried forward               - £0.5m  
 
Plus  Q2 Estimate in advance (invoice) £6m 

_____ 
 
Q2 Amount payable    £5.5m 

_____ 
 
and so on 
 
Invoicing would be: 
 
Q1 Estimate    + £6m 
 
Q1 Actual    + £5.5m 
 
Q1 Credit note   - £6.0m 
 
Q2 Estimate    +£6.0m 

______ 
 

Total Due     £11.5m 
______ 
 

Total Paid     £11.5m 
______ 

 
and so on 

HSNG.3426934.8 38 IGD.48023.3 
 

142



 

Schedule 5 – Total Fee 

(Clause 10) 

The following table sets out the monetary amounts which will be paid to NPH in order to allow it to 
deliver services on behalf of the Council.  They are grouped into three main areas: 

• Management fee to cover the management of the housing (and some limited but ringfenced) 
General Fund housing services including the management of responsive void and cyclical 
maintenance as well as management of the capital programme. 

• Maintenance expenditure: the actual expenditure on responsive void and cyclical works 
themselves 

• Capital expenditure to deliver the decent homes programme as well as the Northampton 
Standard all as set out in the agreed Asset Management Strategy 

NPH

Housing Management & Maintenance(HRA) 2015/16
2016/17 

Estimate
2017/18 

Estimate
2018/19 

Estimate
2019/20 

Estimate
£ £ £ £ £

Total Repairs & Maintenance 14,454,079 14,501,446 14,549,433 14,597,895 14,646,832
Total General Management 6,317,044 6,340,674 6,364,611 6,388,785 6,413,196
Total Special Services 3,787,619 3,804,389 3,821,390 3,838,560 3,855,898

Recharges from the General Fund (*) 6,361,640 6,318,691 6,318,691 6,318,691 6,318,691
TOTAL HRA 30,920,381 30,965,199 31,054,125 31,143,930 31,234,617

Housing General Fund
Total Home Choice & Resettlement 638,246 647,497 656,868 666,333 675,890
Total Travellers Site 203,188 203,355 203,525 203,696 203,869
Total Private Sector Housing Solutions Team 70,581 71,273 71,974 72,682 73,397
TOTAL GF HOUSING 912,015 922,125 932,367 942,711 953,156
TOTAL REVENUE 31,832,396 31,887,324 31,986,492 32,086,641 32,187,773

HRA Capital Programme 27,257,418 26,257,418 25,257,418 25,257,418 25,257,418

GRAND TOTAL 59,089,814 58,144,742 57,243,910 57,344,059 57,445,191

Analysed by
Management - HRA 16,466,303 16,463,753 16,504,692 16,546,036 16,587,785
Management - GF Housing 912,015 922,125 932,367 942,711 953,156
Maintenance - Managed Budget 14,454,079 14,501,446 14,549,433 14,597,895 14,646,832
Capital - Managed Budget 27,257,418 26,257,418 25,257,418 25,257,418 25,257,418
Total 59,089,814 58,144,742 57,243,910 57,344,059 57,445,191

Notes:
(*) recharges comprising approx 2.8m from LGSS and £3.5m from GF are currently being reviewed and will be split between
 the HRA and the General Fund.  Accordingly this figure is expected to reduce.
All figures are subject to the annual approval, by Council, of the HRA and General Fund budgets in accordance with clause 10
Capital programme excludes £2m pa provision for buy-back of ex-Council properties; such budget remains with NBC
Capital programme based upon figures provided in support of the Asset Management Strategy
All items of income associated with the service are assumed to be collected directly to the Council's account
DRAFT FIGURES AT 1 OCTOBER 2014 SUBJECT TO CHANGE

 
 

HSNG.3426934.8 1 IGD.48023.3 
 

143



 

Schedule 6 – Fee Principles 

(Clause 10.6.2) 

 

1 The Total Fees for the periods to 31 March 2016 are set out in Clause 10.1 and the Total 
Fee for 1 April 2015-31 March 2016 is itemised in Schedule 5 together with indicative 
budgets for the following four Financial Years.  

2 The Total Fee will be varied each year to reflect any changes to the Delivery Plan and 
Specification in accordance with Clause 10.6 [and to reflect NPH’s agreement to achieve 
continuous improvement in Clause 13]. 

3 Calculation of the Total Fee will be by reference to the pro forma breakdown in Schedule 5 
(subject to any subsequent agreed revisions). 

4 The Total Fee will always match the cost of the current year’s element of the 5 year 
'rolling' Delivery Plan, with indicative budgets for the ensuing four years. 

5 Total Fee discussions under Clause 10.6.2 on the cost of achieving the requirements of 
the Delivery Plan will take account of the following generic factors: 

5.1 competing pressures on the HRA Self-financing and General Fund business plan, either 
because of reduced resources or increased demands; 

5.2 the resultant financial parameters for the Total Fee; 

5.3 any addition to, or reduction of, the Services required by the Council as described in the 
Delivery Plan; 

5.4 any adjustment of the performance standards at which the Services are to be delivered as 
described in the Delivery Plan; 

5.5 the additional costs to NPH of a reduced Total Fee (in particular redundancies); 

5.6 NPH's obligation herein to identify and deliver efficiencies;  

5.7 the amount of surpluses/reserves built up by NPH to the extent available pursuant to 
Clause 11; 

5.8 the resources required by NPH to deliver the Services; 

5.9 current and future legislative and regulatory changes; 

5.10 contingency events. 

6 Indicative Total Fee budgets for years 2-5 of the Delivery Plan may anticipate future Total 
Fee adjustments in accordance with Clause 10 (for example, to achieve savings, cost 
reductions etc.)  

 2 Error! Unknown document property name. 
144



 

7 Any proposals for Total Fee reductions (as part of the adjustments as described in 6.) will 
recognise the extent to which some of NPH's costs are fixed and/or subject to external 
change. 

8 The Total Fee is to comprise three separate elements: (a) the Capital Sum for the 
Improvement Works; (b) the Repairs & Maintenance Fee; and (c) the Management 
Services Fee. The Management Services Fee consists of two parts: (i) Housing Revenue 
Account and (ii) General Fund. The Total Fee will take into account the following: 

8.1 NPH's Management costs chiefly comprise pay and pensions.   Retaining staff involves 
meeting contractual or statutory obligations and though redundancy reduces on-going 
costs there is an initial cost to be met 

8.2 Maintenance costs depend on the size and nature of the Repairs & Maintenance and 
Improvement Programme and may be inflexible to the extent that they are incorporated in 
any contract to which the Council or NPH is bound 

8.3 Improvement costs also depend on the size and nature of the Repairs & Maintenance and 
Improvement Programme, but recognising that NPH's administration work may not 
correlate reliably thereto 

9 The Management Services Fee is drawn in part from the General Fund (for the activities 
described in the breakdown in Schedule 5). 

10 Notwithstanding all the above, NPH acknowledges the need to deliver value for money, 
achieve more for less and to be benchmarked against comparable ALMOs facing similar 
challenges. 

 

 

 3 Error! Unknown document property name. 
145



 

Schedule 7 – Employee information 

(Clause 20) 

No. Post DoB Salary Starting 
date 

LGPS? Fixed contract 
end date 

Post not fully 
paid for out of 

HRA? 

Departures from 
standard Council Ts 

& Cs 

Claims or liabilities 

          

          

          

 

 

Due to confidentiality, the information contained within this schedule has been omitted however; the table above details the nature of the 
information that will be included within the final signed Management Agreement. 

 4 Error! Unknown document property name. 

146



 

Annex 1 – Existing Contracts (Clause 5) 

Novation (N)
Assignment 
(A)
or Retention 
(R)

DH01

Delivery of Decent Homes 
works under a framework 

agreement - PPC2000 
Framework

Kier Services Ltd N Est. IRO £4.6 
million

No 01.04.13 - 31.03.17 - including 2 
year extension

DH02

Delivery of Decent Homes 
works under a framework 

agreement - PPC2000 
Framework

Lovell tartnerships Ltd N Est. IRO £2.1 
million

No 01.04.13 - 31.03.17 - including 2 
year extension

DH03

Delivery of Decent Homes 
works under a framework 

agreement - PPC2000 
Framework

Mears Ltd N Est. IRO £3.8 
million

No 01.04.13 - 31.03.17 - including 2 
year extension

DH04

Delivery of Decent Homes 
works under a framework 
agreement -with London 

Housing Consortium

Keepmoat Regeneration Ltd *N Est. IRO £1.0 
million

No 01.04.14 - 31.03.15

RR01 Refurbishment/Upgrade void 
properties

A. Ainge & Sons N
Share of £16 
million over 4 
years

No 05.01.15 - 04.01.18 plus 
possible one year extension

RR02 Refurbishment/Upgrade void 
properties

FSG troperty Services Ltd N
Share of £16 
million over 4 
years

No 05.01.15 - 04.01.18 plus 
possible one year extension

RR03 Refurbishment/Upgrade void 
properties

G .turchase Construction 
Ltd

N
Share of £16 

million over 4 
years

No 05.01.15 - 04.01.18 plus 
possible one year extension

RR04 Refurbishment/Upgrade void 
properties

Jeakins Weir Ltd N
Share of £16 
million over 4 
years

No 05.01.15 - 04.01.18 plus 
possible one year extension

RR16 Building materials supply Travis terkins Trading 
Company Ltd

N £1.5 million No 01.04.2013 - 31.03.18

TS12 Gas Servicing and Repairs tH Jones Ltd *N £1.1 million No

Holding over pending the 
completion of an NPH 

procurement process for a new 
contract with NPH to commence 

01.14.15.

LG01 Various services LGSS R Circa £10.4 million 
p.a.

Yes
Initial contract completes May 

2018 - rolling 12 
months(negotiable) cycle.

HM01 Environmental Services
Enterprise Managed 

Services Ltd
R £6.5 million p.a. Yes completes 31.03.2018 - 7 year 

extension

Term dates (including 
extension)Reference no. Contract description Contractor 

Contract value 
(total or per 
annum)

Retention?

 

*NPH wish to assign this contract. NBC not yet consulted. 

HSNG.3426934.8 5 IGD.48023.3 

147



 

Annex 2 - Delivery Plan 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HSNG.3426934.8 6 IGD.48023.3 

148



 

This page is intentionally blank 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

HSNG.3426934.8 7 IGD.48023.3 

149



 N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc   1 

150



 

 

Contents 
 

1. Foreword ......................................................................................................................................... 3 

2. Introduction .................................................................................................................................... 4 

3. Vision, Mission and Values .............................................................................................................. 5 

4. National Context ............................................................................................................................. 6 

5. Local Context ................................................................................................................................... 7 

6. Northampton Partnership Homes Strategic Objectives ................................................................. 8 

7. Resources ........................................................................................................................................ 9 

8. Governance of Service Delivery Plan ............................................................................................ 10 

9.     Review cycle .................................................................................................................................. 12 

Appendix 1 – Strategic and Key Objectives ........................................................................................... 13 

Appendix 2 – Measures – Still working progress .................................................................................. 22 

Appendix 3 – Housing Asset Management Strategy ............................................................................. 25 

Appendix 4 – Fee Proposal (years 1 to 5) ............................................................................................. 26 

 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  2 

151



 

 

1. Foreword 
Welcome to our first Northampton Partnership Homes Service Delivery Plan.  

In the summer of 2012, the Council started consultation with residents and employees 
about new ways of service delivery that would improve the quality of our housing 
management. Following an extensive process, which included an Options Review, a decision 
was made to set up a new, Arm’s Length Management Organisation, Northampton 
Partnership Homes, to operate from 5 January 2015 to run the Council’s housing services.  
The Council has given the new company a contract for 15 years with options to extend. 

NPH will be governed by a Board with Council, independent, tenant and employee 
representatives. We believe that putting residents and employees at the heart of our 
governing arrangements will bring positive improvements. 

This Delivery Plan sets out the Vision, Mission and Values for Northampton Partnership 
Homes over the next 5 years. It also outlines the challenges faced by the Council and NPH 
but more importantly explains how NPH is going to invest in the Council’s homes and 
improve the standard of services for tenants and leaseholders. The Delivery Plan will 
demonstrate how the Council and NPH will work together on issues such as creating safer 
communities and employment opportunities. It will be reviewed on an annual basis by NPH 
in partnership with the Council through a process which will involve tenants, other partners 
and employees. 

We would like to take this opportunity to thank all our residents and stakeholders who have 
helped us to set up Northampton Partnership Homes. We are looking forward to a new and 
positive relationship between the Council and NPH in the coming years. We would welcome 
your comments on this Delivery Plan and please continue to let us have your thoughts and 
views which are highly valued! 

                                  
 

 

 

 

 

 

David Latham – Chair NPH Board  Cllr Mary Markham- Portfolio Holder Housing 
N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  3 

152



 

 

2. Introduction 
 

The initial vision for the new organisation was to provide a Housing Management Service to 
the residents of Northampton that is not only inclusive but also provides homes and 
communities which are safe, clean and green.    

Northampton Partnership Homes understands that in order to achieve its objectives and 
guarantee future success, we need to continue to provide an inclusive forum where tenants, 
employees and partners can be heard and contribute to how we shape our services and 
manage our homes.   

This plan will endeavour to outline the context at a national and local level to which we are 
working within, and will discuss how NPH will deliver its services to compliment the strategic 
direction of the Council and Northampton.  It will then provide a summary of how NPH plans 
on meeting its objectives through a detailed and comprehensive framework of actions with 
specific timescales.  These plans will include details regarding resources and review 
processes that will allow for a continuous improvement programme throughout the term of 
the agreement.   

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  4 

153



 

 

3. Vision, Mission and Values 
STILL BEING DEVELOPED, IS EXPECTED TO BE SIGNED OFF BY 26TH NOVEMBER 

Building on the initial vision of providing safer, cleaner and greener homes, work has 
continued with Tenants, Employees and Stakeholders to develop the organisations Vision, 
Mission and Values that will map out how the organisation develops and continues to 
engage its customers.   

The remainder of this section is not confirmed and will be informed by the work 
undertaken by The Connectives 

Vision 

The vision for Northampton Partnership Homes encompasses an overarching agreement 
from the tenants, the employees, and the partnership organisations that we work with to 
inform everyone involved what the overall plan is working towards.   

Mission 

The Mission for NPH, should clearly define what we as an organisation propose to do, and 
then should detail who will benefit from this action.  Following on from the Vision, NPH 
should look towards what the tenants’ panel recommendations were and include these in 
the mission statement.   

Values 

The values for NPH should once again be drawn initially from what our tenants have asked 
for, the majority of other ALMO’s mention values such as supporting people to live 
independent lives, taking responsibility as an organisation if things go wrong, involving the 
Board, members of panels, employees and tenants to inform what the core values should 
be.  These values usually would be used to also inform what the mission statement would 
be for Northampton Partnership Homes.   

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  5 

154



 

 

4. National Context 
 

Social Housing has seen significant changes in recent years where there has been a move 
from an appointed Regulator (The Audit Commission) governing how Housing services 
perform and are managed to a self-regulation approach which places an emphasis on 
tenants being actively involved in how services are monitored and developed. In order to 
achieve self-regulation guidance has been provided by the current regulator which is the 
Homes and Communities Agency.  To support this guidance new legislation has also been 
developed which sets out key consumer standards which must be adhered to. 

With the introduction of new legislation, there has been the ability for tenants to forge 
stronger relationships with their housing provider and make a real difference to how their 
homes and communities are developed.  The Localism Act enabled Local Authorities new 
freedoms and flexibility and includes a ‘general power of competence’.  This fundamental 
change has meant that Housing organisations have full control over their finances and are in 
control of how rental income is reinvested back into the community.   

The much publicised Welfare Reform is a government scheme which sets out a series of 
initiatives, many of which have already been introduced, and have had a direct impact on 
tenants.  The three main elements of the welfare reforms have been the following: 

• Introduction of the under-occupancy rules 

• Benefit cap 

• Universal Credit and direct payment 

In addition, the revised regulatory standards now allow the council to offer a range of 
tenancy options i.e. secure and flexible tenancies and these are dependent on individual 
circumstances and needs.  This is explained in more detail within organisations Tenancy 
Strategy and Allocation Policy. 

The ability to deliver Affordable Housing remains a key objective of many housing providers. 
Access to funding opportunities has enabled this objective to be met and it will continue to 
be a key objective of the new organisation. 

Finally, with the demise of Supporting People, the Care Act 2014 promotes and reflects a 
change in emphasis.  This now encourages working in partnership with the citizens, their 
carers or advocates and the community.  This has provided a challenge in how we redesign 
care and support around the individual’s needs.   

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  6 

155



 

 

5. Local Context 
Changes to the national economic climate have had a significant impact locally.  
Unemployment has risen and salaries are below the national average which leads to 
challenges in the provision of affordable social housing moving forward.  The population of 
Northampton is on the increase leading to the demand for social housing being far greater 
than in previous years.  We have an ageing population with specific housing requirements 
and a key issue is meeting the needs of all vulnerable people to allow them to live 
independently. A rise is expected in the number of people who require support to remain in 
their homes which may include personal care, help with maintaining a property, adaptions 
for the disabled and assistance in claiming benefits. In order to meet the challenges faced, a 
revised Housing Strategy has been developed that sets out to meet the needs of the 
residents of Northampton both now and in the coming years.  The Housing Strategy’s key 
aims are: 

• Manage the supply and growth of accessible housing stock 

• Create resilient and cohesive communities 

• Delivery well designed, high quality homes, neighbourhoods and services 

• Improve customer access, opportunity and choice 

In order to achieve these aims and meet the requirements set out by the HCA, NPH aim to 
continue working with existing partners and create new partnerships with local 
organisations to provide safer neighbourhoods, affordable housing and thriving 
communities. By creating and building on new and existing communities the aim is to not 
only provide a safer environment but to improve the health and well-being of residents.  A 
range of strategies have been produced to enable delivery of these priorities which include 
the Housing Strategy, Corporate Plan for NPH, Asset Management Strategy (appendix 3) and 
Housing Revenue Account Business Plan. 

Through extensive consultation with tenants, employees and stakeholders during the 
Housing Option review process, the overwhelming need to improve housing management 
services and accessibility was consistent throughout.  Following the review a number of 
objectives and actions were identified which formed the basis of the key strategic objectives 
and actions which NPH will be tasked to deliver.  These included not only the achievement 
of the Decent Homes standard but to further introduce and implement a Northampton 
Standard and greater detail can be found within the Asset Management Strategy. 

It was accepted that the voice of the service users experience was pivotal on the road to 
improvement of housing management within Northampton.  Initial work will continue with 
the established Tenants Panel and Service Improvement Panels.   

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  7 

156



 

 

6. Northampton Partnership Homes Strategic Objectives 
 

In order to develop a framework that acknowledges the priorities of Northampton Borough 
Council and Northampton Partnership Homes, the overarching framework of objectives has 
been developed as a direct result of what is important to our organisations, our tenants, 
leaseholders and staff, and the partnerships that help us to improve our services overall.  

 The strategic objectives that have been derived as a direct result of each plan are as 
follows:  

Strategic Objective 1 Deliver and maintain high quality homes and estates  

Strategic Objective 2 Deliver high quality and customer focused housing services 

Strategic Objective 3 Improve empowerment, opportunity and access for all 

Strategic Objective 4 Develop and maximise partnerships to build stronger, safer and 
thriving communities in Northampton 

Strategic Objective 5 Be an open, inclusive, effectively managed and trusted 
organisation 

 

The key objectives for Northampton Partnership Homes are set out in appendix 1, detailing 
the actions required to achieve each key objective, who is responsible and how progress can 
be monitored.   

A detailed summary of all key performance measures is at appendix 2.  The measures are 
closely aligned with the Delivery Plan key objectives and actions and focus on delivering 
quality service outcomes.  As members of Housemark, there is the ability to compare 
performance with other, similar organisations, identify trends and develop solutions for 
performance improvement. 

 

 

 

 

 
N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  8 

157



 

 

7. Resources 
Delivery Plan Insert: resources 

PLEASE NOTE ALL FIGURES ARE PROVISIONAL AND SUBJECT TO CHANGE 

The resources available to fund the services provided under this delivery plan are drawn from two 
sources: The HRA and Housing General Fund budgets. 

The HGF budget for 2014/15 totals £1.6m of which £912,000 is expected to be paid to NPH to cover 
the provision of services.  In all, 31 of 73 FTE posts are also expected to transfer. 

 

In terms of the HRA, 279 
FTE posts are expected to 
transfer in order to 
manage and maintain the 
stock of 12,075 homes, 
plus 778 leasehold 
properties, currently 
managed by the Council. 

The total HRA budget for 
2014/15 stands at £54m 
of which £24.6m is to be 
paid to NPH for revenue 
services.  In addition, a 
capital programme of 
around £27m pa is 
expected to be managed 
by NPH. 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  9 

158



 

 

8. Governance of Service Delivery Plan 
 

Whilst the Board will have ultimate responsibility for the delivery plan, as this is a joint 
document, Council agreement will continue to be sought regards content and direction 
going forward, and input will be sought from tenants, employees and other key 
stakeholders.  The responsibilities of each stakeholder will be as follows: 

Board 

The Board will be monitoring delivery and performance at least every quarter, assisted by its 
committees.  These are smaller groups made up of volunteers from the Board that meet 
regularly to focus on a particular area.  Committees make recommendations to the Board 
who still have the responsibility for any decisions made.   

Council 

Northampton Borough Council will work with Northampton Partnership Homes to ensure a 
high level of performance; this will also include input from both parties at both an 
operational and strategic level. 

Tenants 

Tenant input, consisting of the Tenants’ Panel, Service Improvement Panels (SIPs) and the 
Leaseholder Forum will have regular information on performance and progress.  A Tenant 
Scrutiny Panel will work through a planned schedule of reviews as well as completing ad-hoc 
reviews if the need arises based on pre-determined qualifying criteria. 

Employees 

Employee input, consisting of the Employee Focus Group will have regular information on 
performance and progress.  They will have opportunity to input at an operational level. 

Benchmarking 

Membership to Housemark will continue.  Housemark is an organisation that provides a 
data analysis and interpretation service.  It will help to understand cost, performance and 
quality and provides the opportunity to compare performance against other, similar 
organisations. 

 

 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  10 

159



 

 

A robust framework has been devised to ensure the Board, the Council, employees and 
tenants are able to: 

• Be informed 

• Challenge 

• Drive improvements 

This will be across the three main areas of: 

• Performance 

• Finance 

• Risk 

 

There will be a commitment to ongoing, regular meetings between all stakeholders.  These 
meetings will be well structured and will be very much focussed on the operational, and 
partnership framework the Council and NPH are adhering to in terms of the joint strategic 
direction and outcome based services that will be provided. 

The meetings will mostly be bi-monthly to ensure that as shared purpose and vision is 
maintained throughout the first year, with an overall review process throughout the year.  
These meetings may move to quarterly after the first year, however, it is recommended that 
in order to maintain a close working relationship in the first year, a bi-monthly process 
would be beneficial. 

Equality considerations will be part of the annual review process.  Any changes will be 
reflected in any future plans. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  11 

160



 

 

9. Review cycle 
The Delivery Plan will be reviewed on an annual basis and will be part of a framework that has been 
agreed by the Northampton Borough Council and the Northampton Partnership Homes Board.  The 
review will include an in depth analysis of the key objectives and measures, and will include an 
overall performance review. 

 

 

 

 

First discussions 
on way forward 

each year 
NPH/NBC 

 

Completion of 
External Audit 

 

NBC Statement of 
accounts 

 

NPH statement of 
accounts  

Year end 

 

NBC resolves 
budget & rent 
levels & plans 

 

NBC consults on 
budget & draft 

plans 

           NBC Cabinet 
approves 

consultation budget 
& draft plans 

 

NPH proposes way 
forward to NBC 

 

NPH consults way 
forward each year 

 

Review Process 
model 

November 

February 

March May 

June 

September 

December 

October 

July 

August 

April 

January 

Throughout the year NPH 

Regular board meetings 

Sub-Committee meetings 

Tenant, Employee and     Leaseholder 
forums 

 

Throughout the year 
NBC/NPH 

Quarterly partnership 
meetings at Board & cabinet 
level 

Monthly operational 
meetings at senior 
management level  

Issue based joint meetings 
as and when required 

 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery 
Plan V10.doc  12 

161



Appendix 1 – Strategic and Key Objectives 
 

1 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE ONE - Deliver and maintain high quality homes and estates 

Ref Key Objective Ref Action Source 

1.1 Provide well 
maintained, safe, 
affordable, secure 
homes 

1 Improve properties to the Northampton Standard Asset management Strategy – awaiting 
cabinet approval  

2 Undertake works to improve the energy efficiency of council 
housing stock 

Housing Strategy 3.4 
 
Corporate Plan  

3 Develop a customer focussed and efficient repairs service to 
deliver responsive and planned repairs 

NEW 

1.2 Deliver well 
maintained, clean and 
safe estates that create 
thriving 
neighbourhoods where 
people want to live 

1 In partnership with NBC, work to improve the environmental 
standards so the Northampton Standard is delivered 

Corporate Plan 
Housing Options Review 10.4 

2 Work in partnership to reduce the fear of crime on estates Corporate Plan   

3 Work with partners, to deal effectively with ASB, including 
prevention 
 

Corporate Plan   

4 Develop third sector partnerships to deliver safer, cleaner, 
greener neighbourhoods 
 
 
 

NEW 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc   13 

162



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

1.3 Deliver additional well 
designed, high quality 
affordable homes to 
meet housing need 

1 Appraise existing HRA assets and identify underutilised land 
and property, including garages and determine suitable 
development options 

Housing Strategy 

2 Identify and use savings made, along with RTB receipts, to 
invest in  affordable housing 

Housing Strategy 

3 Explore and secure external funding opportunities to enable 
additional affordable housing 

Housing Strategy 

4 In partnership with NBC, build affordable council housing in 
line with HRA Business Plan and regenerate our 
neighbourhoods 

Housing Strategy 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  14 

163



 

 

2 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE TWO - Deliver high quality and customer focused housing services 

Ref Key Objective Ref Action Source 

2.1 Improve and maintain 
tenancy sustainment 

1 Ensure housing needs are met NEW 
2 Ensure tenants needs are assessed and appropriate support is 

offered in partnership with other agencies  
NEW 

3 Enable older people and those with support needs to live 
independently 

Housing Strategy 

4 Ensure allocations and lettings are made on the basis of the 
Allocations Policy to develop sustainable communities  

NEW 

2.2 Improve services and 
satisfaction for all 
customers 

1 Ensure tenancy management maximises use of existing stock 
to meet need 

NEW 

2 Reduce the number of voids and length of time they are 
empty 

  

3 Maximise Income collection by: 
-Reduce rent arrears 
-Ensuring service charges are levied accurately at cost 
-Maximise use of garages 
-Enforce recharge policy 
-Maximise other income collection opportunities 

NEW 

4 Improve services for leaseholders NEW 
5 Positively engage with our customers at the Travellers site and 

continue to develop a range of service improvements 
NEW 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  15 

164



 

 

6 Reduce isolation and exclusion for vulnerable and older 
people within NPH's homes 

Housing Strategy 2.7 

2.3 Develop and maintain 
effective partnerships 
to deliver high quality, 
efficient services 

1 Work with partners, including Registered Social Landlords to 
maximise availability of affordable housing 

NEW 

2 Establish and maintain effective partnerships to tackle fuel 
poverty 

Housing Strategy 

3 In partnership, provide advice, support and assistance to our 
most vulnerable customers 

Housing Strategy 2.1.2 

4 Prevent and manage tenancy and allocation fraud NEW 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  16 

165



 

 

3 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE THREE - Improve empowerment, opportunity and access for all 

Ref Key Objective Ref Action Source 

3.1 Measure and improve 
the level of customer 
service experienced by 
the service user  

1 Introduce and maintain a satisfaction monitoring framework 
which drives excellence 

Housing Options Review 
Housing Strategy 

2 Obtain feedback of the customer experience to monitor and 
deliver improvement in satisfaction 

NEW 

3 Improve the customer experience when accessing services NEW 

3.2 Involve customers in 
designing and 
evaluating services  

1 Use service users feedback to inform improvements across the 
services 

Housing Options Review 10.8 
Housing Strategy 

2 Ensure tenant and employee consultation and engagement in 
development of, or change to, policies and procedures 

Options criteria - Housing Options Review 
1.6 

3 Meaningful engagement of other stakeholders Options criteria - Housing Options Review 
8.12 

3.3 Maximise 
opportunities for 
residents to be 
involved in future 

1 Implement and maintain a tenant scrutiny function to influence 
the performance of the housing service 

Options criteria - Housing Options Review 
1.3 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  17 

166



 

 

governance and service 
delivery 

2 Tenants and customers to be empowered to take ownership of 
their neighbourhoods through the localism agenda 

Options Criteria - Housing Options Review 
10.3 

3 Ensure a fully representative tenant engagement strategy is 
developed 

NEW 

3.4 Improve customer 
access to services 

1 Maximise use of technology to improve access NEW 

2 Deliver comprehensive NPH communication strategy Options criteria - Housing Options Review 
1.4 

3 Contribute to the development of the Customer Relationship 
Management system to improve the customer experience 

NEW 

4 Use customer profiling information to design customer facing 
services 

NEW 

5 Use tenant engagement structures to inform the delivery of 
services 

NEW 

 

 

 

 

 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  18 

167



 

 

4 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE FOUR - Develop and maximise partnerships to build stronger, safer and thriving communities in Northampton 

Ref Key Objective Ref Action Source 

4.1 Make a positive 
contribution to the 
local economy through 
improved employment 
opportunities 

1 Contribute to the creation of job opportunities within the local 
economy 

Taken from Housing Options Review  

2 Develop training and apprenticeship opportunities Taken from Housing Options Review  

4.2 Deliver well designed 
neighbourhoods 

1 Lead estate regeneration initiatives including inward investment in 
neighbourhoods 

Housing Strategy 

2 Continue to improve the management of empty properties in our 
neighbourhoods 

NEW 

4.3 Secure additional 
resources 

1 Maximise opportunities of investment and innovation NEW 

2 Engage with partner agencies and forums to share resources and 
skills 

NEW 

 

 

 

 

 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  19 

168



 

 

 

5 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE FIVE - Be an open, inclusive, effectively managed and trusted organisation 

Ref Key Objective Ref Action Source 

5.1 Establish NPH as a high 
performing housing 
provider 

1 Adopt a culture of continuous improvement which is open and 
accountable 

NEW 

2 Deliver outcome based performance management NEW 

3 Review industry performance, benchmarking outcomes and accreditation 
criteria to improve services 

NEW 

5.2 Manage resources 
appropriately 

1 Co-develop and implement an effective Asset Management Strategy NEW 

2 Deliver a balanced budget and planned efficiencies ensuring value for 
money 

NEW 

3 Deliver HRA Business Plan to time and within budget NEW 

4 Realise efficiencies through strategically driven procurement which 
recognises the need to deliver social value and local opportunities to 
enhance services 

NEW 

5 Invest in an organisational training and development programme NEW 

6 Effective contract management NEW 
5.3 Ensure there is robust 

governance throughout 
the organisation 

1 Meet the Authority's statutory requirements with regard to services 
provided 

Including adherence to Social 
Purposes Act 2012, HCA 
Standards etc. 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  20 

169



 

 

2 Ensure transparency is maintained between what services are received 
and how they are paid for 

NEW 

3 Create suite of organisational standards and behaviours to support 
mission and values 

NEW 

4 Develop and maintain an effective Performance Management 
Framework including external benchmarking against similar organisations 

NEW 

5 Establish and maintain an effective governance structure NEW 

6 Commission an independent health check at least every five years NEW 

5.4 NPH to be an employer 
of choice 

1 Create a loyal and committed workforce NEW 
2 

Adopt a culture which promotes and celebrates trust 
NEW 

 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  21 

170



 

 

Appendix 2 – Measures – Still working progress 

Ref Definition Reporting 
frequency 

2013-14 
actual 
NBC 

2014-15 
YTD 

(Sept) 
NBC 

Benchmark 
Data* 

(U/M/L) 
15/16 16/17 17/18 

1 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE ONE - Deliver and maintain high quality homes and estates  
PROPOSED % of homes not achieving the Northampton 

Standard 
Annual           

  
HI29 
(HMPI101) 

% of repairs completed during first visit Monthly 96.69% 97.19% Top Quartile 
96.17 / 89.92 

/ 81.93 

97% 97.50% 98.00% 

HI30 
(HMPI102) 

% of tenants satisfied with most recent repair Monthly 98.56% 97.41% Top Quartile 
97.95 / 94.03 

/ 91.65 

97.40% 98.50% 99.00% 

New2014-15 
HI42 

Satisfaction with grounds maintenance Quarterly   28.60%         

New2014-15 
HI43 

% of blocks cleaned to a satisfactory or better 
standard 

Quarterly   54%       

  

New Satisfied with overall quality of home Bi-annual 

  

71% Bottom 
Quartile** 

(87 / 83 / 79)   

TBA   

New Satisfied with neighbourhood as a place to live Bi-annual 

  

68% Bottom 
Quartile** 

(87 / 85 / 80)   

TBA   

New Satisfied with the repairs and maintenance 
service 

Bi-annual 

  

67% Bottom 
Quartile** 

(85 / 80 / 75)   

TBA   

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  22 

171



 

 

New 2014-15 
HI41 

Satisfaction with the way your anti-social 
behaviour complaint was dealt with 

Quarterly   75% 3rd Quartile 
(ASB Club) 

89.25 / 79.00 
/ 70.00  

80% 85% 90% 

2 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE TWO - Deliver high quality and customer focused housing services 
HouseMark  Percentage of new tenants satisfied with the 

allocations and lettings process 
Annual No data         

  

PROPOSED % of introductory tenancies that do not 
progress to secure tenancies 

Quarterly             

HI1 Average time taken to re-let local authority 
homes (days) 

Monthly 28.84 32.26 2nd Quartile 
23.06 / 31.9 / 

37.78 

27 25 22 

HI4 (BV69) Void rent loss  Monthly 1.90% 2.14% Bottom 
Quartile 

1.12 / 1.74 / 
1.90 

TBA TBA TBA 

HI 12 
(HMPI210) 

Rent Collected as a % of rent owed (ex arrears 
b/f) 

Monthly 99.9 98.62% Top Quartile  
99.92 / 99.63 

/ 99.20 

99.60% 98% 98% 

3 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE THREE - Improve empowerment, opportunity and access for all 
HouseMark  The number of stage 1 complaints upheld in 

the year (fully or partially) 
Quarterly 58.68% 67.00% 2nd Quartile 

(Complaints 
Club, Q4 
2013/14) 

47.92/59.09 
/73.91 

60% 50% 40% 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  23 

172



 

 

HI17 Number  improvements made as  result of 
tenant involvement 

Quarterly 283 237       
  

HI18 % of tenants satisfied views are taken into 
account  

Bi-annual 

  

52% Bottom 
Quartile** 

(74 / 69 / 64) 

  TBA 

  
HI19 LA tenants satisfied with Landlord services  Bi-annual 

  

72% Bottom 
Quartile** 

(89 / 85 / 82)   

TBA 

  
New Rate NPH as good at keeping tenants informed Bi-annual   76%     78%   
4 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE FOUR - Develop and maximise partnerships to build stronger, safer and thriving communities in 

Northampton 
New Number of affordable housing units built by 

NPH in the year 
Annual 0         

  
5 STRATEGIC OBJECTIVE FIVE - Be an open, inclusive, effectively managed and trusted organisation 
PROPOSED % of performance measures in top quartile Quarterly   25%   25% TBA 50% 

 

* HouseMark benchmark quartiles for Large organisations and ALMO's with >10,000 properties. Quartile position for Year to Date data given. - Compares 
NBC 13/14 yr end with H/Mark 13/14 Year End 

** Quartile position based on HouseMark STAR survey reults for 2012/13 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  24 

173



 

 

Appendix 3 – Housing Asset Management Strategy 

 

To be inserted post Cabinet approval. 

This is an agenda item of this Cabinet meeting and is available as a separate item if required.

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  25 

174



 

 

Appendix 4 – Fee Proposal (years 1 to 5) 
 

DRAFT: management fees and managed budgets 

NBC v NPH 
     

  

  
      

  

Services 
 

NPH 
  

Housing Management & Maintenance(HRA) 

Subtotal 
payable to 

NPH 2014/15 
Estimate 

2015/16 
Estimate 

2016/17 
Estimate 

2017/18 
Estimate 

2019/20 
Estimate   

    £ £ £ £ £   

                

Total Repairs & Maintenance 14,454,079 14,501,446 14,549,433 14,597,895 14,646,832   

Total General Management 6,317,044 6,340,674 6,364,611 6,388,785 6,413,196   

Total Special Services 3,787,619 3,804,389 3,821,390 3,838,560 3,855,898   

  Net Recharges from the General Fund 6,361,640 6,318,691 6,318,691 6,318,691 6,318,691   

TOTAL HRA 30,920,381 30,965,199 31,054,125 31,143,930 31,234,617   

  
 

            

Housing General Fund             

Total Home Choice & Resettlement 638,246 647,497 656,868 666,333 675,890   

Total Travellers Site 203,188 203,355 203,525 203,696 203,869   

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  26 

175



 

 

Total Private Sector Housing Solutions Team 70,581 71,273 71,974 72,682 73,397   

TOTAL GF HOUSING 912,015 922,125 932,367 942,711 953,156   

TOTAL REVENUE 31,832,396 31,887,324 31,986,492 32,086,641 32,187,773   

  
 

            

  
 

            

HRA Capital Programme 27,257,418 26,257,418 25,257,418 25,257,418 25,257,418   

  
 

            

GRAND TOTAL 59,089,814 58,144,742 57,243,910 57,344,059 57,445,191   

  
      

  

Analysed by 
     

  

Management 17,378,318 17,385,878 17,437,059 17,488,747 17,540,941   

Maintenance 14,454,079 14,501,446 14,549,433 14,597,895 14,646,832   

Capital 
 

27,257,418 26,257,418 25,257,418 25,257,418 25,257,418   

Total 
 

59,089,814 58,144,742 57,243,910 57,344,059 57,445,191   

  
      

  

Notes: 
      

  
Assumed income associated with individual activity areas assumed to be collected by NPH and paid over the NBC.  All major classes of income (rents, 
services charges etc) 

 

N:\ALMO Implementation\Workstream 4 Legal\A Management Agreement\Cabinet Papers\Delivery Plan V10.doc  27 

176



 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: Public 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
12th November 2014 
 
No 
 
Yes 
 
No 
 
Housing 
 
Councillor Mary Markham 
 
All Wards 

 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is for Cabinet to approve the revised Articles of 

Association of Northampton Partnership Homes Limited 
 
 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 To approve the Articles of Association of Northampton Partnership Homes 

Limited (appendix 1) 
 
 

Report Title 
 

Articles of Association of Northampton Partnership 
Homes Limited 

Appendices: 1  

 

177

Agenda Item 9



 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 
3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 
 
3.1.1 In 2012, the Council commenced a comprehensive review of potential options 

for the future ownership, funding and management of its Housing Stock, to 
examine which option would best deliver long term improvements needed to 
both homes and estates as well as improve the quality of services provided to 
its tenants.  

 
3.1.2 On 9th December 2013, after considering the findings of the review, the 

Council agreed to create an Arms Length Management Organisation with the 
intention that it would be operational from 5th January 2015 and would be 
initially set up for a period of 15 years. 
 

3.1.3 Cabinet agreed that the implementation phase should continue to include a 
comprehensive programme of consultation and engagement with key 
stakeholders to ensure that they were well informed and remained at the heart 
of the process.  
 

3.1.4 On 9th April 2014, following consideration of feedback from consultation with 
key stakeholders, Cabinet agreed that the delivery vehicle for the legal 
incorporation of the ALMO would be a Company Limited by Guarantee. The 
ALMO was registered in the name of Northampton Partnership Homes, with 
the Council’s Chief Executive and Monitoring Officer registered as holding 
directors. A Shadow Board structure was agreed and implemented in June 
2014 to enable a smooth transition for the management of the service. 
 

3.1.5 The ALMO Shadow Board structure was set up with the following 
membership; 
 

5   Tenants 
5   Council Nominees 
4 Independents 
2 Employees 
 

3.1.6 A chair and vice-chair has been appointed and six committees created to 
support the working of the Shadow Board. 
 

3.1.7 Independent external advisors were appointed by the Council to provide the 
new Shadow Board members with training and support to assist them in their 
new roles.   
 

3.1.8 There is a requirement to register the revised Articles of Association to enable 
the Shadow Board members to legally become the directors of the company 
prior to the operational date of 5th January 2015.  

 
 
 
 
 

178



 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

3.2 Issues 
 
3.2.1 A company limited by guarantee is a limited company that has members who, 

rather than purchase shares, provide a nominal guarantee in the eventuality 
that the company is wound up. It is established under and subject to company 
law in the same way as companies limited by shares with the exception of law 
relating to shares. A company limited by guarantee would typically have 
restricted objects (purpose) and be prevented from distributing profits. 
 

3.2.2 A company limited by guarantee has its own legal personality meaning that it 
may enter into contracts in its own name and be sued by and sue third parties 
in its own name. This means that the directors and members of the company 
benefit from limited liability and can only be pursued personally for their 
actions where they have acted in breach of their legal duties. 

 
3.2.3 There is a legal requirement under the Companies Act 2006 and other 

relevant legislation for a limited company to have Articles of Association. The 
Articles are in essence the constitution of the company and govern the way 
the company operates. The Directors of the company have a legal obligation 
to conduct the company’s business in compliance with the Articles. NPH was 
set up with model Articles, which is a standard set of Articles. However given 
the nature of the ALMO, bespoke Articles needed to be drafted that reflect the 
needs to both the Council and NPH. The attached Articles have been jointly 
negotiated by both NPH and NBC and contain various important and agreed 
provisions. Key provisions include: 
 
Number of Board Members and the constituency they are drawn from; Terms 
of office and appointment of the Board; Powers for the removal of Board 
Members; Disqualification provisions; Powers of borrowing etc 
 

3.4 Articles of Association can only be changed with the agreement of the 
members of the Company, in this case the Council is the sole member of the 
Company. Once Cabinet agrees the articles, NPH will the need to formally 
adopt these Articles at their next available meeting but certainly before the 
inception date on 5th following which the company will be legally obliged to 
comply with them. 
  

 
3.3 Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1 The Council has the option to consider whether or not to approve the revised 

Articles of Association of the company.  
 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

 
4.1.1 The legal/policy implications are contained within the body of the report 
 
 
 

179



 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 
 
4.2 Resources and Risk 

 
4.2.1  All resource and risk implications are detailed within the Cabinet Report 

entitled ‘Northampton Partnership Homes’ and will be considered at the same 
meeting as this paper. 

 
4.3 Legal 

 
4.3.1 All legal implications are detailed within the Cabinet Report entitled 

‘Northampton Partnership Homes’ and will be considered at the same meeting 
as this paper. 

 
4.4 Equality and Health 
 
4.4.1 A Community Impact Assessment was carried out on the recommended 

option of an ALMO and for the approach taken by the Options Review 
process. The implementation phase has continued to adhere to the inclusive 
approach adopted for the Options Review process and no adverse impacts 
have been identified.  

 
 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1 The Articles of Association have been drafted following extensive negotiations 

between both parties’ legal advisors. The Shadow Board have received 
training on the purpose of Articles and have been consulted throughout the 
drafting of them.   
 

4.5.2 As has been the case throughout both the Options Review and 
Implementation phases of the project, a range of stakeholders including the 
Tenants’ Panel have had sight of the Articles, and have received adequate 
training to understand their purpose and content.  

  
 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 The Creation of the ALMO will help deliver against the  following Corporate 

Plan priorities and outcomes; 

 Priority 2- Invest in Safer Cleaner Neighbourhoods: The Options 
Review process identified additional funding to improve day to day service 
delivery for housing services, which also included the implementation of a 
new local investment standard, the Northampton Standard. This standard 
includes plans for significant investment in improvements to estates and 
neighbourhoods, including additional security measures. 

 Priority 4- Making every £ go further: An asset analysis has been 
carried out identifying properties where investment requirements exceed 
rental income. This information has been used to create a new Housing 
Asset Management Strategy which will ensure that value for money 
considerations will be at the forefront of future investment decisions.  

180



 

Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 Priority 5- Better Homes for the Future: The focus and mission 
statement for the Review was to improve homes, neighbourhoods and 
services for council tenants. The development of the new Northampton 
Standard includes new standards for improvements to homes and 
improved service standards.  

 Priority 6- Creating Empowered Communities: One of the key reasons 
why the recommended option to create an ALMO was reached, was due 
to its ability to provide increased opportunities for involvement and 
decision making for both tenants and employees. The newly created 
Shadow Board for the ALMO has two employee and five tenant board 
members.  

 Priority 8- Responding to your needs: The Options Review and 
implementation process involved collecting and assessing evidence from a 
number of sources, including a Tenant Survey which was a key piece of 
evidence, as it identified tenants’ priorities for improvements. This 
information directly influenced the development of the new Northampton 
Standard, ensuring that issues relating to the quality of homes and estates 
were addressed. Tenant Conferences also provided essential feedback 
from tenants and leaseholders.  

 
 
4.7 Other Implications 
 
4.7.1 N/A 
 
 
5. Background Papers 

 
5.1 Council Report- HOUSING STOCK OPTIONS APPRAISAL FINAL REPORT –

9th December 2013 
5.2 Cabinet Report - Legal set up of ALMO- 9th April 2014 
5.3 Cabinet Report - Services to be Delivered by Northampton Partnership Homes 

- 9th July 2014  
5.4 Housing Stock Options Appraisal Community Impact Assessment - December 

2013 
5.5 Cabinet Report –‘Northampton Partnership Homes’ – 12th November 2014 
 
 
 

 
 

Dale Robertson, ALMO Implementation Programme Director, X7110 
 

181



Appendix 1 

 

The Companies Act 2006 

Company limited by guarantee and not having a share capital 

Articles of association 

of 

Northampton Partnership Homes Limited 

 

1 Interpretation and definitions 

In these Articles unless the context otherwise requires: 

1989 Act means the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 and any statutory 

modification or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force; 

2006 Act means the Companies Act 2006 and any statutory modification or re-enactment 

thereof for the time being in force; 

Articles means these Articles of Association; 

Board means the Board of directors of the Organisation from time to time; 

Board Members means the directors for the time being of the Organisation; 

Business Day means any day which is not either a Saturday or a Sunday or a public 

holiday in England; 

Chair means the chair of the Organisation appointed pursuant to Article 31.1 or in his 

absence any vice or deputy chair appointed pursuant to Article 31.3; 

clear days in relation to the period of a notice means that period excluding the day when 

the notice is given or deemed to be given and the day for which it is given or on which it is 

to take effect; 

Council Board Member means a Board Member who is appointed pursuant to Article 

17.1; 

Council means Northampton Borough Council or any successor body thereto; 

Employee means a permanent employee of the Organisation; 

Employee Board Member means a Board Member who is a permanent employee of the 

Organisation and who is appointed pursuant to Articles 20.1 and 20.2; 

Independent Board Member means a Board Member appointed pursuant to Articles 19.1 

to 19.3 inclusive; 

Local Authority Person means any person: 

(a) who is a member of the Council; or 

182



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

(b) who is an officer of the Council (which for these purposes shall not include 

employees with non-managerial posts apart from housing employees); 

the seal means the common seal of the Organisation; 

Secretary means the secretary of the Organisation or any other person appointed to 

perform the duties of the secretary of the Organisation including a joint assistant or deputy 

secretary; 

Tenant means an individual who alone or jointly with others holds a tenancy or lease of or 

a licence to occupy a residential property from and occupies a property belonging to the 

Council that is managed by the Organisation; 

Tenant Board Member means a Board Member appointed pursuant to Articles 18.1 and 

18.2; 

the United Kingdom means Great Britain and Northern Ireland. 

Interpretation 

2 Unless the context otherwise requires words or expressions contained in these Articles 

bear the same meaning as in the 2006 Act but excluding any statutory modification thereof 

not in force on the date of incorporation of the Organisation. 

3 In these Articles words importing individuals shall unless the context otherwise requires 

include corporations and words importing the singular number shall include the plural and 

vice versa and words importing the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender. 

4 Name 

The name of the company is Northampton Partnership Homes Limited (the Organisation). 

5 Registered office 

The Organisation's registered office is to be located in England. 

6 Objects 

The objects of the Organisation shall be in the areas where the Council owns or manages 

housing stock to: 

6.1 provide manage maintain improve demolish or convert the housing stock owned or 

managed by the Council from time to time together with any other amenities or facilities for 

the benefit of residents of such housing stock either exclusively or together with persons 

who are not residents of such housing stock; 

6.2 provide amenities and services of any description for residents of housing stock owned or 

managed by the Council from time to time either exclusively or together with persons who 

are not residents of such housing stock; 

6.3 provide advice and assistance to all tenants leaseholders and licensees of the Council and 

applicants for housing and applicants for housing advice in respect of housing owned 

managed or provided by the Council; 

183



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

6.4 carry out any activity which contributes to regeneration or development in the area of 

Northampton including but not limited to: 

6.4.1 securing that land and buildings are brought into effective use; 

6.4.2 contributing to or encouraging economic development; 

6.4.3 creating an attractive and safe environment; 

6.4.4 preventing crime and anti-social behaviour or reducing the fear of crime and 

anti-social behaviour; 

6.4.5 providing or improving housing or social and recreational facilities for the 

purpose of encouraging people to live or work in the said area or for the 

purpose of benefiting people or improving the health and well-being of people 

who live there; 

6.4.6 providing employment for local people; 

6.4.7 providing or improving training educational facilities or health services or 

promoting healthy and active lifestyles for local people; 

6.4.8 promoting and assisting local people to make use of or to provide to local 

people opportunities for education training or employment; and 

6.4.9 meeting the special needs of local people which arise because of their age 

gender race nationality ethnic origin religion sexual orientation or disability; 

6.4.10 assisting, promoting and providing services for residents to enable them to take 

part in community activities and volunteering.    

6.5 provide construct improve or manage housing to be kept available for letting or hostels; 

6.6 provide manage maintain or improve accommodation required from time to time for the 

benefit of persons who require temporary accommodation; 

6.7 provide services of any description for the Council; 

6.8 assess and process applications by residents of housing stock owned or managed by the 

Council to exercise the right to buy under Part V of the Housing Act 1985 for final approval 

by the Council; 

6.9 enable or assist any residents of the housing stock owned or managed by either the 

Council or the Organisation to acquire or to acquire and enter into occupation of houses; 

6.10 construct develop repair or improve houses to be sold (freehold or leasehold) or otherwise 

disposed of on such terms as the Organisation shall determine; and 

6.11 do all such other acts and things as may be incidental or conducive to the attainment of 

the foregoing objects. 

184



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

7 Powers 

7.1 Subject to Article 7.3 the Organisation shall have power to do anything that a natural or 

corporate person can lawfully do which is necessary or expedient in furtherance of its 

objects unless prohibited by these Articles. 

7.2 Subject to Article 7.3 and without limiting the powers described in Article 7.1 the 

Organisation shall have power to: 

7.2.1 carry out works to land buildings or other property; 

7.2.2 contract with the Council and other bodies in furtherance of the Organisation's 

objects; 

7.2.3 subject to the prior written consent of the Council and to such consents as may 

be required by law borrow money issue loan stock and raise money in such 

manner as the Organisation shall determine and to secure the repayment of 

any money borrowed raised or owing by such security as the Organisation shall 

determine (including by way of floating charge) upon the whole or any part of 

the Organisation's property or assets (whether present or future) and also by 

giving similar security to secure and guarantee the performance by the 

Organisation of any obligation or liability it may undertake or which may become 

binding on it; 

7.2.4 insure and arrange insurance cover for the Organisation from and against all 

such risks as the Organisation may determine and to pay any premium in 

respect of such insurance; 

7.2.5 insure and arrange insurance cover for its Board Members employees and 

voluntary workers and the Council from and against all such risks incurred in 

the proper performance of their duties as it shall consider appropriate and to 

pay any premium in relation to indemnity insurance in respect of liabilities of its 

Board Members or any of them which would otherwise attach to them in respect 

of any negligence default breach of duty or breach of trust of which they may be 

guilty in respect of the Organisation provided that such insurance shall not 

extend to any liability in respect of an act or omission which such Board 

Member or Board Members knew or ought reasonably to have known was a 

breach of duty or trust or which was committed by such Board Member or 

Board Members recklessly without due regard as to whether such act or 

omission might be a breach of duty or trust; 

7.2.6 provide indemnities in accordance with Article 40.1; 

7.2.7 invest any monies of the Organisation not immediately required for the 

furtherance of its objects, as it determines and as permitted by law, subject to 

the Council's prior consent; 

7.2.8 purchase or otherwise acquire or to encourage or promote and in any way 

support or aid the establishment and development of any subsidiary or any 

other body established for the purposes of carrying on any trade or business 

either for the purpose of raising funds for the Organisation or for the furtherance 

of the objects of the Organisation; 

185



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

7.2.9 subject to the prior written consent of the Council make donations grants or 

loans and provide services and assistance to such natural or legal persons on 

such terms as the Organisation may determine to further the objects of the 

Organisation provided that in the event that the Organisation shall take or hold 

any property which may be subject to any trusts the Organisation shall only deal 

with or invest the same in such manner as allowed by law having regard to such 

trusts. 

7.3 The Organisation shall not do any act or thing which causes or might cause the Council to 

be in breach of the CIPFA Prudential Code for Capital Finance in Local Authorities. 

8 Application of income and property 

8.1 The income and property of the Organisation shall be applied solely towards the promotion 

of its objects as set forth in these Articles. 

8.2 Save as provided below no portion of the income and property of the Organisation shall be 

paid or transferred directly or indirectly by way of dividend bonus or otherwise howsoever 

by way of profit to members of the Organisation and no Board Member shall be appointed 

to any office of the Organisation paid by salary or fees or receive any remuneration or 

other benefit or money or money's worth from the Organisation. 

8.3 Notwithstanding the provisions of Articles 8.1 and 8.2 the Organisation may make 

payment in good faith: 

8.3.1 of reasonable and proper remuneration (including pensions, contributory 

pension payments, payment of premiums to pension policies and terminal 

grants and gratuities) to any officer or employee of the Organisation (not being 

a Board Member) in return for any services rendered to the Organisation; 

8.3.2 of fees remuneration or other benefit in money or money's worth to a company 

or other body corporate of which a Board Member may be a member holding 

not more than 2% of the share capital and controlling not more than 2% of the 

voting rights at general meetings of such company or body corporate; 

8.3.3 to any Board Member of reasonable out-of-pocket expenses provided that no 

sum shall be paid to a Board Member who is an elected member of the Council; 

8.3.4 of reasonable and proper remuneration to the Council or to an employee 

thereof not being a Board Member in return for any services rendered to the 

Organisation; 

8.3.5 of reasonable and proper rent for premises demised or let by the Council; or 

8.3.6 of reasonable and proper interest on money lent by the Council. 

8.4 Notwithstanding the provisions of Articles 8.1 and  8.2 the Organisation may manage 

property in accordance with its objects (including the full range of activities it may 

undertake) notwithstanding the fact that a tenant lessee or licensee (or prospective tenant 

lessee or licensee) of such property may be a Board Member provided that no Board 

Member shall be entitled to speak in any debate or cast any vote in respect of any matter 

186



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

relating specifically to property of which he is tenant lessee or licensee and to no other 

property of the Organisation and shall absent himself from such proceedings. 

9 Equal opportunities 

The Organisation shall at all times take into consideration the principles of equality of 

opportunity irrespective of age gender race nationality ethnic origin religion sexual 

orientation or disability. 

10 Limited liability 

The liability of the Council is limited. 

11 Member's guarantee 

The Council undertakes to contribute to the assets of the Organisation in the event of the 

Organisation being wound up while it is a member of the Organisation or within one year 

after it ceases to be a member of the Organisation for payment of the debts and liabilities 

of the Organisation contracted before it ceases to be a member of the Organisation and of 

the costs charges and expenses of winding up such amount as may be required not 

exceeding one pound. 

12 Winding up 

If upon the winding up or dissolution of the Organisation there remains after the 

satisfaction of all its debts and liabilities any property whatsoever such property shall be 

paid or transferred to the Housing Revenue Account (as defined in the 1989 Act) of the 

Council. 

13 Admission of members 

13.1 No person other than the Council shall be admitted to membership of the Organisation.    

13.2 The Council shall nominate a person to act as its representative in the manner provided in 

Section 323 of the 2006 Act.  Such representative shall have the right on behalf of the 

Council to attend meetings of the Organisation and vote thereat and to exercise all rights 

of membership on behalf of the Council.  The Council may by written notice to the 

Secretary revoke the nomination of such representative and may nominate another 

representative in his place. 

13.3 The rights of the Council shall be personal and shall not be transferable and shall be 

exercisable only by the Council or a duly authorised representative of the Council. 

14 General meetings and resolutions 

14.1 With effect from 5 January 2015 the Organisation shall once in every period of twelve 

months hold a general meeting which for the purposes of these Articles shall be called the 

annual general meeting.  All other general meetings shall be called extraordinary general 

meetings. The Board Members may call general meetings and on the requisition of the 

Council (acting by its duly appointed representative) shall forthwith proceed to convene a 

general meeting as required pursuant to the provisions of Section 304 of the 2006 Act.  If 

there are not within the United Kingdom sufficient Board Members to call a general 

meeting any Board Member or the Council may call a general meeting. 

187



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

14.2 Any general meeting not called on the requisition of the Council pursuant to Article 14.1 

shall be called by at least twenty-one clear days' notice or by shorter notice if it is so 

agreed by the Council. The notice shall specify the time and place of the meeting. The 

notice shall be given to the Council and to the Board Members and to the Organisation's 

auditors. 

14.3 The accidental omission to give notice of a meeting to or the non-receipt of notice of a 

meeting by any person entitled to receive notice shall not invalidate the proceedings at 

that meeting. 

14.4 No business shall be transacted at any general meeting unless a quorum is present. The 

presence of the duly authorised representative of the Council shall be a quorum. 

14.5 If the Council makes a decision which is required to be taken in a general meeting or by 

means of a written resolution that decision shall be valid and effectual as if agreed by the 

Organisation in general meeting provided that any such decision taken by the Council 

pursuant to this Article 14.5 shall be recorded in writing and delivered by the Council to the 

registered office of the Organisation for entry in the Organisation's minute book. Subject to 

the provisions of the 2006 Act, any such decision shall take effect on the date on which it 

is made or at such later time as may be specified by the Council when making the 

decision. 

14.6 An entry in the minutes of any general meeting stating that a resolution has been carried 

or lost shall be conclusive evidence of the fact. 

15 Number of Board Members 

15.1 The number of Board Members shall be sixteen. 

15.2 Five Board Members shall be Council Board Members.  

15.3 Five Board Members shall be Tenant Board Members. 

15.4 Four Board Members shall be Independent Board Members.  

15.5 Two Board Members shall be Employee Board Members. 

15.6 No more than seven Board Members shall be Tenants. 

15.7 No more than seven Board Members shall be Local Authority Persons. 

15.8 No more than seven Board Members shall be Employees. 

15.9 In the event that the number of Board Members shall be less than the numbers specified 

in Articles 15.1 to 15.5 inclusive the remaining Board Members shall use reasonable 

endeavours to appoint further Board Members and may act notwithstanding that Article. 

16 Terms of office and appointment to the Board 

Each Tenant Board Member, Independent Board Member and Employee Board Member 

(in this Article a "Relevant Board Member") shall be appointed for a fixed term of office 

expiring at the conclusion of an annual general meeting (each a “fixed term”). The fixed 

term shall be for a term of three annual general meetings unless the Board has set a lower 

188



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

number of annual general meetings for the Relevant Board Member on their appointment. 

The fixed term shall include any period during which a Relevant Board Member is absent 

from the Board following removal under Article 22.1.6 if such Board Member is 

subsequently reappointed. No fixed term shall be set which would cause a Relevant Board 

Member to serve for more than nine years in aggregate from the first annual general 

meeting. For the purposes of this Article 16, the Relevant Board Members listed in the 

Schedule to these Articles shall be deemed to have been appointed for fixed terms 

expiring at the annual general meeting in the years shown in that Schedule. 

17 Appointment and removal of Board Members by the Council 

17.1 Subject to Article 15 the Council shall have the power to appoint five persons as Council 

Board Members and shall have the power to remove from office any Council Board 

Member. 

17.2 Subject to Article 15 the Council shall have the power at any time by notice in writing to the 

Organisation to appoint and/or remove any Board Member. 

17.3 Appointment or removal pursuant to Articles 17.1 or 17.2 shall be effected by notice in 

writing signed by the Council and shall take effect upon delivery to the registered office of 

the Organisation or at such later time than such delivery as may be specified in the notice. 

18 Retirement and election of Tenant Board Members 

18.1 Prior to every annual general meeting, a direct or indirect election process will be 

undertaken for the number of Tenant Board Members to be appointed thereat.  The mode 

and manner of such election process shall be as the Board may from time to time agree 

subject at all times to compliance with Article 15 and the Organisation's policy for Board 

Member election adopted by the Board from time to time (following such consultation with 

Tenants as the Board may deem appropriate). The Secretary shall announce the results of 

the process referred to in this Article 18.1 at each relevant annual general meeting and the 

Tenants so elected shall be duly appointed as Tenant Board Members with effect from the 

close of such meeting.  

18.2 If at the meeting at which a Board Member retires at the end of his fixed term in 

accordance with Article 16 there are no other candidates to fill the post the retiring Tenant 

Board Members shall if willing and (in accordance with Article 16) able to act be deemed 

to have been reappointed unless a resolution not to reappoint the Tenant Board Members 

is passed by the Board prior to such meeting. 

19 Retirement and selection of Independent Board Members 

19.1 If at the meeting at which a Board Member retires in accordance with Article 16 there are 

no other candidates to fill the post the retiring Independent Board Members shall if willing 

to act be deemed to have been reappointed unless a resolution not to reappoint the 

Independent Board Members is passed by the Board prior to such meeting. 

19.2 No person other than an Independent Board Member retiring by rotation shall be 

appointed as an Independent Board Member unless he is recommended to the Council by 

the Board in accordance with Article 19.3.. 

189



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

19.3 Not less than seven days before the date appointed for holding an annual general meeting 

the Board shall consider, and if thought fit, recommend individuals for appointment or 

reappointment as Independent Board Members at the meeting.  

19.4 Subject to Articles 15, 19.1 and 19.2 the Council may appoint any eligible person who is 

willing to act as an Independent Board Member. 

20 Retirement and election of Employee Board Members 

20.1 Prior to every annual general meeting, an election process shall be held among the 

employees of the Organisation for the Employee Board Members to be appointed thereat. 

The mode and manner of such election shall be as the Board may from time to time agree 

subject at all times to compliance with Article 15 and the Organisation's policy for Board 

Member election adopted by the Board from time to time (following such consultation with 

Employees as the Board may deem appropriate). The Employee Board Members so 

elected shall be duly appointed as Employee Board Members with effect from the close of 

an annual general meeting. A person may only be appointed as an Employee Board 

Member if on the date of appointment that person is employed by the Organisation under 

a contract of employment which is not for a fixed term. 

20.2 If at the meeting at which a Board Member retires in accordance with Article 16 there are 

no other candidates to fill the post a retiring Employee Board Member shall if willing and 

(in accordance with Article 16) able to act be deemed to have been reappointed unless a 

resolution not to reappoint the Employee Board Member is passed by the Board prior to 

such meeting. 

21 Casual vacancies 

21.1 Subject to Article 15 the Board may appoint a person who is willing to act to be a Board 

Member to fill a vacancy. 

21.2 The Board may only fill vacancies occurring among Council Board Members where the 

Council shall have failed within three months of a written request by the Organisation to 

make the appropriate appointments pursuant to Article 17.1 or shall have given notice to 

the Organisation in writing that it does not intend to make such appointments. 

21.3 The Board may only fill vacancies occurring among Tenant Board Members and Employee 

Board Members where the procedure for selecting Tenant Board Members and Employee 

Board Members set out in the Organisation's policy for Board Member election/selection 

adopted by the Board from time to time has been followed and there has been no 

nomination within three months of the vacancy arising. 

21.4 A Board Member appointed under this Article 21 shall hold office only until the next 

following annual general meeting. If not reappointed at such annual general meeting he 

shall vacate office at the conclusion thereof. If reappointed, the Board Member shall 

continue for the residual term of the Board Member that they are replacing. 

22 Disqualification and removal of Board Members 

22.1 A person shall be ineligible for appointment to the Board and if already appointed shall 

immediately cease to be a Board Member if the relevant individual: 

190



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

22.1.1 ceases to be a Board Member by virtue of any provision of the 2006 Act or 

becomes prohibited by law from being a company director; or 

22.1.2 is or becomes a person disqualified from elected membership of a local 

authority; or 

22.1.3 is or becomes bankrupt or makes any formal arrangement or composition with 

his creditors generally; or 

22.1.4 is, in the opinion of a registered medical practitioner who is treating that person 

(and who gives written notice to the Organisation confirming such opinion), 

physically or mentally incapable of acting as a director and may remain so for 

more than three months; or 

22.1.5 resigns his office by written notice to the Organisation; or 

22.1.6 is removed from office by a resolution or written notice signed by not less than 

three quarters of all the other Board Members from time to time (such resolution 

or notice being capable of withdrawal or cancellation by not less than three 

quarters of such other Board Members and resulting in reappointment of the 

relevant Board Member); or 

22.1.7 shall for more than four consecutive months have been absent without the 

approval of the Board from all meetings of the Board (including meetings of any 

committee of which that Board Member is a member) held during that period 

and the Board resolves that his office be vacated; or 

22.1.8 shall in any period of 12 consecutive months have been absent without the 

approval of the Board from not less than 50% of the meetings of the Board 

(including meetings of any committee of which that Board Member is a 

member) held during that period and the Board resolves that his office be 

vacated; or 

22.1.9 in the case of a Tenant Board Member he ceases to be a Tenant provided that 

this Article 22.1.9 shall not apply in respect of a Tenant Board Member ceasing 

to be a Tenant for a period of not more than six months as a result of the 

demolition of or works carried out to that Tenant Board Member's home; or 

22.1.10 is a Tenant Board Member and is in the opinion of the Board in serious breach 

of his obligations as a Tenant; or 

22.1.11 is or becomes a Tenant leading to a breach of the limit in Article 15.6; or 

22.1.12 is or becomes a Local Authority Person leading to a breach of the limit in Article 

15.7; or 

22.1.13 is an Independent Board Member and is or becomes a Tenant, a Local 

Authority Person or an Employee; or 

22.1.14 is or becomes an Employee leading to a breach of the limit in Article 15.8; 

22.1.15 is an Employee Board Member and ceases to be an Employee; 

191



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

22.1.16 is removed by resolution of the Council pursuant to Article 17; or 

22.1.17 has completed an aggregate of nine years' service on the Board as a Board 

Member since the first annual general meeting. 

23 Powers of the Board 

23.1 Subject to: 

23.1.1 the provisions of the 2006 Act; 

23.1.2 any resolution from time to time of the Council in accordance with these 

Articles; and 

23.1.3 these Articles; 

the business of the Organisation shall be managed by the Board who may exercise all the 

powers of the Organisation.   

23.2 No alteration of these Articles and no resolution of the Council shall invalidate any prior act 

of the Board which would have been valid if that alteration or resolution had not been 

made.  

23.3 The powers given by this Article 23 shall not be limited by any special power given to the 

Board by these Articles and a meeting of the Board at which a quorum is present may 

exercise all powers exercisable by the Board. 

23.4 The Board may by power of attorney or otherwise appoint any person to be the agent of 

the Organisation for such specified purposes and on such specified conditions as the 

Board may determine including defined authority for the agent to delegate all or any of his 

powers. 

24 Borrowing powers 

Subject to Articles 7.2.3 and 7.3 the Board may exercise all the powers of the Organisation 

to borrow money without limit as to amount and upon such terms and in such manner as 

the Board considers fit and to grant any mortgage charge or other security over the 

undertaking and property of the Organisation or any part thereof and to issue any 

debenture whether outright or as security for any debt liability or obligation of the 

Organisation or of any third party. 

25 Delegation of Board Members' powers 

25.1 The Board may delegate in writing any of its powers to any committee consisting of three 

or more Board Members together with such other persons as the Board sees fit but so that 

Board Members shall always constitute a majority. The chair and vice chair of any such 

committee shall be appointed by the Board.  

25.2 The Board may delegate in writing to the Chair or to any vice Chair or to any officer of the 

organisation such of their powers as they consider desirable to be exercised by such 

person.  Any such delegation may be made subject to any conditions the Board may 

impose and either collaterally with or to the exclusion of its own powers and may be 

revoked or altered.  Subject to any such conditions the proceedings of any committee shall 

192



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

be governed by the provision of these Articles insofar as they apply to proceedings of the 

Board. 

26 Alternate Board Members 

No Board Member shall be entitled to appoint any person as an alternate Board Member. 

27 Board Members' expenses 

Board Members may be paid all travelling hotel and other expenses reasonably and 

properly incurred by them in connection with their attendance at meetings of the Board or 

committees of the Board or general meetings of the Organisation or otherwise in 

connection with the discharge of their duties and such other sums as may be determined 

by the Council provided that no sum shall be paid to a Board Member who is an elected 

member of the Council. 

28 Board Members' appointments and interests 

28.1 A Board Member may not have any financial interest personally or as a member of a firm 

or as a director or senior employee (being an employee with managerial status) or in any 

contract or other transaction of the Organisation unless it is permitted by these Articles 

and is not prohibited by Articles 8.2 to 8.4 inclusive. 

28.2 Each Board Member shall ensure that the Secretary has at all times an up to date list of: 

28.2.1 all bodies trading in which he has an interest as: 

(a) a director or senior employee, or 

(b) a member of a firm, or 

(c) the owner or controller of more than 2% of the issued share capital in a 

body corporate having a share capital, or 

(d) the holder or controller of more than 2% of the voting rights in general 

meeting of any body corporate 

28.2.2 all interests as an official or elected member of any statutory body; 

28.2.3 all interests as the occupier of any property owned or managed by the 

Organisation; 

28.2.4 any other significant or material interest. 

29 Proceedings of Board Members 

29.1 Subject to: 

29.1.1 these Articles; 

29.1.2 any regulations established from time to time by the Organisation; and 

29.1.3 compliance with all relevant statutory requirements 

193



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

the Board may regulate its proceedings as it determines. 

29.2 The Board shall meet at least four times in each calendar year. 

29.3 A Board meeting or a meeting of a committee of the Board may consist of a conference 

between Board Members or committee members through the medium of conference 

telephone or any form of electronic communication or similar form of communications 

equipment or combination of such methods provided that each Board Member or 

committee member participating in the meeting is able to hear and speak to each other 

participating Board Member or committee member throughout the meeting. A Board 

Member or committee member so participating shall be deemed to be present in person at 

the meeting and shall accordingly be counted in a quorum and be entitled to vote. Subject 

to the 2006 Act, all business transacted in such manner by the Board Members or by a 

committee of the Board shall for the purposes of these Articles be deemed to be validly 

and effectively transacted at a meeting of the Board or of a committee notwithstanding that 

fewer than two Board Members or committee members are physically present at the same 

place. Such a meeting shall be deemed to take place where the largest group of those 

participating is assembled or if there is no such group where the Chair of the meeting then 

is.  The word "meeting" in these Articles shall be construed accordingly. 

29.4 The quorum for the transaction of the business of the Board at the time when any Board 

meeting proceeds to business shall be seven including at least one Tenant Board Member 

one Independent Board Member and one Council Board Member provided that if there are 

no Board Members currently in one or more category of Board Member then the quorum 

requirement shall be reduced to none in respect of such category or categories. A meeting 

of the Board may be called by not less than one third of the total number of Board 

Members.  It shall not be necessary to give notice of a meeting to a Board Member who is 

outside the United Kingdom at the time at which the meeting is called. 

29.5 If a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time appointed for a Board meeting 

the Board meeting shall if requested by a majority of those Board Members present be 

adjourned to the same day in the next week at the same time and place or to such other 

day and at such other time and place as the Board Members present may determine. 

29.6 If at the adjourned meeting a quorum is not present within half an hour from the time 

appointed for the adjourned meeting then notwithstanding Article 29.4 the Board Members 

present shall constitute a quorum. 

29.7 Save as expressly provided in these Articles questions arising at a Board meeting shall be 

decided by a majority of votes and each Board Member present in person shall be entitled 

to one vote.  In the case of an equality of votes at any Board meeting the Chair shall have 

a second or casting vote. 

30 Conflicts of interest 

30.1 Any Board Member having an interest in any arrangement between the Organisation and 

another person or body shall before the matter is discussed by the Board or any 

committee of which they are a member disclose that interest to the meeting. 

30.2 Unless the interest is of the type specified in Articles 30.3 and 30.4 the Board Member 

concerned shall not remain present during the discussion of that item unless requested to 

do so by the remaining members of the Board or committee of the Board.  Unless 

194



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

permitted by Articles 30.3 and 30.4 the Board Member concerned may not vote on the 

matter in question but no decision of the Board or any committee of the Board shall be 

invalidated by the subsequent discovery of an interest which should have been declared. 

30.3 Provided the interest has been properly disclosed pursuant to Article 30.1 a Board 

Member may with the authorisation of the remaining Board or committee Members at the 

meeting remain present during the discussion and may vote on the matter under 

discussion where the interest arises only by virtue of the fact that: 

30.3.1 the Board Member is a Tenant and the matter in question affects all or a 

substantial group of Tenants; or 

30.3.2 the Board Member is a director or other officer of a company or body which is a 

subsidiary undertaking of the Organisation (as such term is defined in Section 

1162 of the 2006 Act); or 

30.3.3 the Board Member is a director or other officer of a company or body which is a 

subsidiary undertaking of the Council (as such term is defined in Section 1162 

of the 2006 Act) other than the Organisation; or 

30.3.4 the Employee Board Member is an employee of the Organisation and the 

matter in question affects all or a substantial number of such employees; or 

30.3.5 the Board Member is an official or elected member of any statutory body. 

30.4 A Board Member shall not be treated as having an interest: 

30.4.1 of which the Board Member has no knowledge and of which it is unreasonable 

to expect him to have knowledge; 

30.4.2 in the establishment of a policy in respect of Board Member expenses payable 

pursuant to Article 27 or in any resolution relating to the remuneration of Board 

Members generally. 

30.5 If a question arises at a meeting of the Board as to the right of a Board Member to vote the 

question may before the conclusion of the meeting be referred to the Chair or in his 

absence the chair of the meeting and his ruling shall be final and conclusive. Where a 

question arises as to the right of the Chair to vote the question may before the conclusion 

of the meeting be referred to the Board (excluding the Chair) to decide whose ruling shall 

be final and conclusive. 

31 Chair 

31.1 At the first Board Meeting of the Organisation and at the first Board Meeting following each 

annual general meeting the Board shall appoint one of their number to be the Chair of the 

Board to hold office until either he is reappointed or another Chair of the Board is 

appointed by resolution of the Board and may remove him from that office at any time. 

31.2 Unless he is unwilling to do so the Board Member so appointed shall preside at every 

meeting of the Board at which he is present.  If there is no Board Member holding that 

office or if the Board Member holding it is unwilling to preside or is not present within five 

195



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

minutes after the time appointed for the meeting the Board Members present may appoint 

one of their number to be chair of the meeting. 

31.3 The Board may appoint a vice or deputy Chair to act in the absence of the Chair on such 

terms as the Board shall think fit. 

32 Validity of Board actions 

All acts done by the Board or by a committee of the Board or by a person acting as a 

Board Member shall notwithstanding that it be afterwards discovered that there was a 

defect in the appointment of any Board Member or that any Board Member was 

disqualified from holding office or had vacated office or was not entitled to vote be as valid 

as if every such person had been duly appointed and was qualified and had continued to 

be a Board Member and had been entitled to vote. 

33 Written resolutions of the Board 

A resolution in writing signed by not less than three quarters of all the Board Members 

entitled to receive notice of a meeting of the Board including sufficient Board Members to 

satisfy the quorum requirements in Article 29.4 shall be as valid and effectual as if it had 

been passed at a meeting of the Board duly convened and held and may consist of 

several documents in the like form each signed by one or more Board Members. 

34 Co-options 

34.1 The Board may co-opt a person who is willing to act as a co-optee to the Board on such 

terms and subject to such conditions as the Board may resolve.  Any person co-opted to 

the Board shall be known for the purposes of these Articles as a co-optee.  Any provision 

of these Articles which applies to Board members shall apply equally to co-optees, save 

that: 

34.1.1 no co-optee may vote on any matter discussed by the Board; and 

34.1.2 no co-optee may be appointed as Chair of the Board. 

34.2 No co-optee may be appointed if such appointment would cause the number of co-optees 

to exceed three.  If for any reason the number of co-optees exceeds this number at any 

time, the number of co-optees shall be reduced until this limit is satisfied.  The identities of 

the co-optees to be removed shall be determined in the absolute discretion of the Board. 

35 Secretary 

The Organisation may have a Secretary who shall be appointed by the Board for such 

term at such remuneration and upon such conditions as they may determine and any 

Secretary so appointed may be removed by them. 

36 Minutes 

36.1 The Board shall cause minutes to be made in books kept for the purpose of: 

36.1.1 all appointments of officers made by the Board Members; and 

196



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

36.1.2 all proceedings at meetings of the Organisation and of the Board and 

committees of the Board and of the Council in its capacity as the sole member 

of the Organisation including the names of the Board Members present at any 

such meeting. 

37 Records, accounts and returns 

37.1 The Organisation shall comply with the provisions of the 2006 Act in respect of: 

37.1.1 the keeping and auditing of accounting records; 

37.1.2 the provision of accounts and annual reports of the directors; and 

37.1.3 the making of an annual return. 

38 The seal 

38.1 If the Organisation has a seal it shall only be used with the specific or general authority of 

the Board or of a duly authorised committee of the Board.  The Board may determine who 

may sign any instrument to which the seal is affixed and unless otherwise so determined 

any such instrument shall be signed either by a Board Member and by the Secretary or by 

two Board Members or by a Board Member and by a witness who signs to attest the 

signature of such Board Member. 

38.2 The Organisation may exercise the powers conferred by Section 49 of the 2006 Act with 

regard to having an official seal for use abroad and such powers shall be vested in the 

Board Members. 

39 Notices 

39.1 Any notice to be given to or by any person pursuant to these Articles shall be in writing 

except that a notice calling a meeting of the Board or of a committee of the Board need not 

be in writing. 

39.2 The Organisation may give any notice to the Council either personally or by sending it by 

post in a prepaid envelope addressed to the Council at their main administrative address 

or by leaving it at that address. 

39.3 The Council present by duly authorised representative at any meeting of the Organisation 

shall be deemed to have received notice of the meeting and where requisite of the 

purposes for which it was called. 

39.4 Proof that an envelope containing a notice was properly addressed prepaid and posted 

shall be conclusive evidence that the notice was given.  A notice shall be deemed to be 

given at the expiration of 48 hours after the envelope containing it was posted. 

39.5 Subject to these Articles anything sent or supplied by or to the Organisation under these 

Articles may be sent or supplied in any way in which the 2006 Act provides for documents 

or information which are authorised or required by any provision of the 2006 Act to be sent 

or supplied by or to the Organisation. 

197



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

40 Indemnity 

40.1 Every Board Member or other officer of the Organisation shall be indemnified out of the 

assets of the Organisation against all losses or liabilities which he may sustain or incur in 

or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise in relation thereto including 

any liability incurred by him in defending any proceedings whether civil or criminal in which 

judgement is given in his favour or in which he is acquitted or in connection with any 

application under Section 1157 of the 2006 Act in which relief is granted to him and no 

Board Member or other officer shall be liable for any loss damage or misfortune which may 

happen to or be incurred by the Organisation in the execution of the duties of his office or 

in relation thereto provided that this Article 40.1 shall only have effect in so far as its 

provisions are not avoided by Section 232 of the 2006 Act. 

40.2 The Board shall have power to purchase and maintain for any Board Member or officer of 

the Organisation insurance against any such liability as is referred to in Section 232 of the 

2006 Act. 

Draft dated 14 October 2014 

 

 

198



 

HSNG.3410146.2  KKP.48023.3 

Schedule 

Initial board members (transitional arrangements referred to in Article 16) 

Name Latest date by which board member must 

retire from office (NB they may be eligible for 

reappointment) 

  

  

  

  

  

  

  

 

199



    

 
 

CABINET REPORT 

 
AGENDA STATUS PUBLIC 

 

Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member: 
 
Ward(s) 

 12 November 2014 
 
No 
 
Yes 
 
No 
 
Customers and Communities 
 
Cllr Brandon Eldred 
 
Non-specific 

 
 

 
1. Purpose 

 
1.1 This is the second annual report to Cabinet advising of progress on the actions 

arising from the Northampton Armed Forces Community Covenant Action Plan 
which have been implemented by the council and its public, community, 
voluntary and private sector partners, in support of the Armed Forces, since 
the covenant was approved by Cabinet on 13th February 2013 and by Full 
Council on 11th March 2013. 

 
1.2 This report also advises Cabinet of proposed future actions to be delivered in 

support of the Northampton Armed Forces Community Covenant Action Plan. 
 

 
2. Recommendations 

2.1  That Cabinet affirms its continuing support for the Northampton Armed Forces 
Community Covenant and notes progress to date and proposed future actions. 

 

Report Title The Northampton Armed Forces Community Covenant 
Annual Progress Report 

Appendices 

0 

200

Agenda Item 10



    

3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 
3.1.1 In May 2011 the Secretary of State for Defence published the Armed Forces 

Covenant.  The Covenant is intended to be a moral obligation between the 

Nation, the Government and the Armed Forces. A key element of it is the 

Community Covenant which is a voluntary statement of mutual support 

between a civilian community and its local Armed Forces Community.  The 

aim of the Covenant is to encourage local communities to support the Armed 

Forces in their area and to promote understanding and awareness amongst 

the public of the issues that they face. 

3.1.2 For the purposes of the Armed Forces Covenant, Armed forces personnel 

means a person who is serving in the regular forces or a person who has 

served in the regular forces within five years of the date of their application for 

an allocation of social housing under Part 6 of the Housing Act 1996, and 

within five years of discharge.   

3.1.3 It also refers to bereaved spouses and civil partners leaving Services Family 

Accommodation following the death of their spouse or partner. It also covers 

serving former members of the Reserve Forces who need to move because of 

a serious injury, medical condition or disability sustained as a result of their 

service.  

3.1.4 The principle behind the Covenant is that the Armed Forces Community 

should not face disadvantage because of its military service.  In some cases, 

such as the sick, injured or bereaved this means giving consideration to 

enabling access to public, voluntary or commercial services that civilians do 

not receive. 

 

3.1.5 The Covenant covers issues such as housing, education and welfare support 

after military service has ended. 

  

3.1.6 Although there is not a large military presence in Northampton or the wider 

county, the council has strong civic links with C Company, The Royal Anglian 

Regiment (the successors to the Northamptonshire Regiment) and with The 

9th/12th Royal Lancers.  Both regiments recruit locally and it is likely that such 

recruits will resettle here once their service has ended. 

3.1.7 On 3rd October 2012, Cabinet agreed to support the signing of the Armed 

Forces Covenant.  The 3rd October report instructed officers to develop 

proposals indicating what actions the Council could take to give effect to the 

principles of the Covenant in Northampton.   

3.1.8 The Northampton Armed Forces Community Covenant was subsequently 

approved by Cabinet On 13th February 2013 and by Full Council on 11th March 

2013. 

201



    

3.1.9 On 4th March 2013 there was a formal signing ceremony for the Community 

Covenant when representatives of the Armed Forces, the Council, the 

charitable and voluntary sector and the civilian community of Northampton 

added their signatures to the covenant in recognition of their commitment to 

the Northampton covenant. 

3.1.10 The actions and initiatives arising from the Northampton Armed Forces 
Community Covenant, which are being implemented by the council and its 
partners in support of the armed forces in Northampton, have been 
incorporated into an action plan. 

3.1.11 A multi-agency steering group has been established to keep the action plan 
under regular review, to manage and monitor its delivery and to add new 
actions as they are identified and agreed. 

3.1.12 The action plan includes activities to deliver against the themes in the 

covenant, which are housing, health and wellbeing, education & training, 

access to council services and support, benefits and tax, recognition and 

assistance.   

3.1.13 Key actions that have been completed since the action plan was established 

include: 

 A single point of contact for service personnel with housing enquiries 

has been identified. 

 All customer services staff have been briefed by the Army Engagement 

Team, as well as representatives from the AFCC Steering Group, 

Northampton Volunteering Centre and the Citizens Advice Bureau. 

 The Covenant has been promoted to the Public via leaflets and 

displays in the One Stop Shop. 

 All Northampton Borough Council managers received training on the 

AFCC 

 In partnership with Royal British Legion, launched the Christmas 

Presents for the Armed Forces campaign in our One Stop Shop. 

 A page, on Northampton Borough Councils website, has been created, 

for members of the Armed Forces and their families to access, which 

advertises the availability of support and services. The link is as follows: 

www.northampton.gov.uk/communitycovenant  

 Housing Allocations Policy has been amended to include additional 

priority for ex-armed forces personnel. 

 'No Second Night Out' - Introduce new initiatives to tackle rough 

sleeping amongst ex-Armed Forces personnel. 

 Adaptations and disabled facilities grants provided to disabled war 

veterans. 

202

http://www.northampton.gov.uk/communitycovenant


    

 Armed Forces have been incorporated within Hate Crime and 

Discrimination policies and e-learning. 

 Awareness raised of war memorials across the Borough - photos on 

website. 

 Funding Application submitted to the WW1 Commemoration fund / 

grant for the refurbishment of the war memorials within the Borough. 

 A programme is in place to identify and make appearance 

improvements to War graves across the town. 

3.1.14 Armed forces events that have taken place in the last 12 months include: 

 Armed Forces Day took place on 28th June in conjunction with the 
Lancers Parade. 

 A church service was held in All Saints church to mark the 100th 
anniversary of the start of WW1. 

 We joined the national lights out event by holding a candle lit service on 
All Saints Plaza. 

3.1.15 Forthcoming armed forces events include 

 ANZAC Day – 100 year commemoration (25 April 2015) 

 VE Day (8th May 2015) 

 Armed Forces Day (27th June 2015) 

 VJ Day (15th August 2015) 
 
 
3.2 Choices (Options) 
3.2.1 On13th February 2013, Cabinet approved the Northampton Armed Forces 

Community Covenant and its associated action plan.  Cabinet can choose 
whether it wishes to continue support the covenant. 

3.2.2 Cabinet can choose which actions and initiatives it wishes to see implemented 
in the coming year. 

 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

4.1     Policy 
4.1.1 The Northampton Armed Forces Covenant sets out the council’s policy on 

support and assistance to the Armed Forces in Northampton. 
 
 
4.2     Resources and Risk 
4.2.1 Resource implications arising from proposed actions and initiatives will be met 

from within existing budgets or from monies secured from external funding 
applications.   

203



    

 
4.2.2 A national grant scheme has been established which enables local projects to 

bid for funding as part of local Community Covenant arrangements.  Bids for 
funding need to be considered by local signatories to a Community Covenant, 
before then being submitted to the Ministry Of Defence for consideration by 
their Community Covenant Grant Panel.  

 
4.2.3 The stated aim of the Community Covenant Grant Scheme is to ‘financially 

support projects, at the local level, which strengthen the ties or the mutual 
understanding between members of the Armed Forces Community and the 
wider community in which they live’. 

 
4.2.5 Consideration will continue to be given to how the national grant scheme can 

be used to advance the Northampton Armed Forces Covenant. 
 
 
4.3     Legal 
4.3.1 There are no legal implications directly arising from this report.  Legal and 

professional advice has been sought in relation to specific actions to ensure 
what is proposed is in accordance with relevant statutory provisions and 
council policy. 

 
4.4     Equality  
4.4.1 The Northampton Armed Forces Covenant makes a positive contribution to 

the equalities agenda in Northampton for the Armed Forces.  All proposed 
actions and initiatives have been appropriately screened to achieve maximum 
positive impact for the Armed Forces community and to ensure there are no 
unintended negative consequences. 

 
 

4.5     Consultees (Internal and External) 
4.5.1 The military and their key community representatives, SSAFA and the Royal 

British Legion, were consulted on the Northampton Armed Forces Community 
Covenant.  The council’s key public, community, voluntary and private sector 
partners have also been consulted. 

 
 
4.6     How the Report Delivers Priority Outcomes 
4.6.1 This report is consistent with the broad aims of the council’s Corporate Plan    

and has the potential to contribute to a wide range of the Council’s priority 
outcomes. 

 
 
Background Papers 

The Armed Forces Covenant – MOD May 2011 

Report to Cabinet, 13/2/13 – Northampton Armed Forces Community Covenant 

Report to Full Council, 11/3/13 – Northampton Armed Forces Community Covenant 

 

 

Julie Seddon, Director of Customers and Communities 

204



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/04/11/14  

  

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
12 November 2014 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
No 
 
Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning 
 
Regeneration Enterprise and 
Planning - Cllr Tim Hadland 
 
Castle 
 

 
 

1.  Purpose 

 
1.1     The purpose of this report is to seek the authority of Cabinet to the principle of 

the acquisition of land and property known as Albion House, fronting onto 
Victoria Promenade, to facilitate redevelopment in a key town centre location 
which is also situated close to the Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone 
(“EZ”). 

 
2.    Recommendations 

 
2.1 That Cabinet approve the principle of the acquisition by this Council of the 

freehold interest in the property, known as “Albion House” shown edged red 
upon the plan at Appendix 1. 

2.2 That Cabinet delegates to the Director of Regeneration Enterprise and 
Planning the power to approve the terms of the acquisition in consultation with 
the Cabinet Member for Regeneration Enterprise and Planning. 

2.3 That Cabinet approves the inclusion in the Council‟s Capital Programme for 
2014/15 of funding of up to £0.5 million to support this acquisition and 
drawdown from the Invest to Save earmarked reserve to fund the expenditure. 

Report Title 
 

Strategic Acquisition of Town Centre Property  

Appendices 

1 

205

Agenda Item 11



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/04/11/14  

 

 
3.   Issues and Choices 

 
3.1  Report Background 

 3.1.1 The property fronting onto Victoria Promenade, shown edged red on the plan 
at Appendix 1, is known as Albion House. It is a somewhat dated office 
building situated on land adjacent to St John‟s Multi Story Car Park (“MSCP”).  
The property is privately owned and partially occupied by several tenants, but 
provides relatively inflexible and inefficient office accommodation. The building 
is unattractive and is inconsistent with neighbouring property. 

 

3.1.2 The Council wishes to see this land and property brought forward for 
development to support the objectives of the EZ and to promote uses that 
support town centre enhancement. In particular, the proximity of the property 
to the existing MSCP offers opportunities to create additional parking capacity 
linked to the existing structure. The opportunities for this would be maximised 
with the co-operation of Northamptonshire County Council, to allow inclusion 
of the intervening „dead end‟ road area.  If the car park proposals did not 
progress the site could be developed for alternative uses.     

3.1.3  Terms have been provisionally agreed between the owner and the Council for 
a purchase of the property, with existing tenants in situ. The terms reflect the 
additional worth of the property to the Council as a strategic landowner and 
the fact that the property is not presently being advertised for sale on the open 
market. 

  

3.2       Issues 

3.2.1 The property provides accommodation for a number of businesses and 
organisations, albeit many occupiers have relatively short term and flexible 
agreements. Prior to any potential re-development of the property the Council 
would need to work with tenants to help identify alternative accommodation 
requirements, including appropriate re-location of an existing 
telecommunications installation on the roof. The latter installation may have, in 
addition to the relevant lease terms, additional potential statutory protection 
under the „Telecommunications Code‟. 

 

3.2.2 The position of the Council, as neighbouring owner and strategic authority, 
means that the price able to be agreed is above the likely market value of the 
property to other potential buyers. The property has not been advertised for 
sale and this would be an „off market‟ purchase. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

206



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/04/11/14  

 

3.3  Choices (Options) 

3.3.1  The Council could choose not to purchase the property. The opportunity for 
the Council to re-develop the plot to support wider Council objectives would be 
lost. The property might continue, for a number of years, to be partially 
occupied and to become even more functionally obsolescent. That would not 
contribute to the regeneration of an important location, particularly as the 
University of Northampton scheme at Avon/Nunn Mills gets underway. Albion 
House occupies a significant location along what will be the new main 
pedestrian access route to the Town Centre from the new Campus, through 
Becket‟s Park. It is possible that a private sector developer would seek to 
acquire the premises instead, but there can be no certainty of this and in 
particular of the timing of that. 

3.3.2  The Council could choose to purchase the property for re-development. This 
would offer a number of different opportunities for the Council to bring forward 
positive development to support the town centre. The Council would though 
have to pay in excess of what other parties may have been willing to pay for it, 
were the present owners to offer it to the general market for sale without 
vacant possession.  

 
4.   Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

 

4.1.1 There are none specifically.  

 

4.2     Resources and Risk 

 

4.2.1  Capital: The purchase of the property would be initially funded in 2014/15 from 
the Invest to Save earmarked reserves. The business case for the purchase of 
the property indicates a risk assessed return on investment of around 7% per 
annum. If the property were to be directly re-developed by the Council for 
specific alternative uses, then a further business case would need to be made 
for those uses. If the property were to be disposed of subsequently by this 
Council, subject to intervening movements in the general property market in 
Northampton, it is unlikely that the full sum provisionally agreed for the 
property would be recoverable from another purchaser. 

 

4.2.2  Revenue: The property currently generates rental income, although some of 
this is relatively insecure beyond the short term, with leases close to expiry or 
capable of being determined by tenants on short notice. There are a number 
of vacant parts within the building and resulting liabilities for business rates 
and other irrecoverable service charge costs will fall to the landlord. The net 
income is materially lower than the gross amounts receivable from tenants.  

 

4.2.3. Risk: The Council could be exposed to significant net holding costs if the 
property becomes vacant. In the event of re-development proposals, there 

207



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/04/11/14  

may be a need (subject to lease details) to agree potentially expensive re-
location of telecommunication equipment to an alternative property. It may not 
be possible to obtain a planning permission for the alternative uses suggested 
in this report, although the Council‟s Central Area Action Plan supports a 
range of potential uses. 

 

4.3  Legal 

4.3.1   The Council would need to exercise due diligence in completing any 
purchase. The acquisition of property at above its likely market value is within 
the general powers of competence of the Council, to support its wider statutory 
objectives. 

 

4.4   Equality  

4.4.1 There are none specifically. The property is not presently open to the general 
public and is used for commercial purposes.  

 

4.5  Consultees (Internal and External) 

4.5.1 As the occupation and use of the property would remain as it is now for the 
short term, Ward Councillors and other consultees would be consulted when 
more detailed proposals for the re-development of the property were 
formulated.  

 

4.6  How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 

4.6.1   The assembly of property interests within the town centre and close to the EZ 
is consistent with the Council‟s regeneration strategy. It would help to bring 
forward and support early development opportunities, which can support 
growth and additional economic activity within the Town Centre. 

 

4.7  Other Implications 

4.7.1 There are none specifically. 

 
 
5.  Background Papers 

 
 None 
 

 
Steve Boyes 

Director of Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning 
0300 330 7000 

 

208



209

epowley
Text Box
Appendix 1



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
 
Ward(s) 

  
12 November 2014 
 
YES 
 
YES 
 
NO 
 
Regeneration, Enterprise & Planning 
 
Regeneration Enterprise and 
Planning - Cllr Tim Hadland  
 
St James 

 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to seek the authority of Cabinet to enter into 

contractually binding arrangements that could lead to the disposal of land and 
buildings at Westbridge Depot for use in connection with a „waste to energy‟ 
installation, subject to planning permission and all necessary approvals having 
being obtained before any transfer of land. 

 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 That Cabinet approve (subject to 2.2 below) the principle of this Council 

entering into agreements that could lead to the disposal of parts of Westbridge 
Depot, situated within the total area identified edged red upon the plan at 
Appendix 1. 

 
2.2 That Cabinet directs the Director of Regeneration Enterprise and Planning, 

working with other relevant professional officers, to prepare a report for the 
Cabinet Member for Regeneration Enterprise and Planning detailing the 
benefits, risks, costs & savings and other associated issues connected with a 
„waste to energy‟ installation being located at Westbridge Depot. 

 

Report Title 
 

Disposal of land at Westbridge Depot 

Appendices 
 

1 

210

Agenda Item 12



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

2.3      That subject to the approval of the Cabinet Member (detailed at 2.2) of the 
general principle of supporting a waste to energy operation at Westbridge, 
Cabinet delegates to the Director of Regeneration Enterprise and Planning the 
authority to agree the terms of any contractual arrangements for the grant of a 
land option (in consultation with the Cabinet Member for Regeneration 
Enterprise and Planning). 

 
 
3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 
 
3.1.1 This Council owns the freehold interest in Westbridge Depot shown edged red 

at Appendix 1. The property is presently partly used to accommodate Council 
staff in delivering housing services, a further significant part is let to Amey 
(formerly Enterprise) for use in the delivery of various Environmental Services 
to this Council and the balance is let to a number of local businesses.  

 
3.1.2 From January 2015 Northampton Partnership Homes (“NPH”) will have a 

formal lease of part of the Depot and is likely to prepare its own medium term 
plans concerning its future accommodation needs. These may well include 
occupation of premises outside of Council ownership. 

 
3.1.3 Westbridge Depot is located with the Northampton Waterside Enterprise Zone 

(“NWEZ”) and offers opportunities to support a range of initiatives that are 
consistent with promoting investment and innovation.  A number of the existing 
buildings within the Depot complex are old and some are becoming 
functionally obsolescent. 

 

3.1.4 The Council has been approached concerning a significant proposal, 
supported by Northamptonshire Enterprise Partnership and Northamptonshire 
County Council (NCC), which would involve the generation of power from 
waste materials. There could be important synergies from such an operation 
with existing waste management arrangements arising from Amey‟s existing 
contract with this Council and with NCC. These could both generate savings 
connected to waste costs and supply heat and power to homes and 
businesses. It could provide additional operational and financial benefits for 
companies wanting to locate within NWEZ. 

 

3.1.5 To establish the detailed suitability and viability of such an „energy to waste‟ 
scheme at this location, would require a substantial amount of further 
expensive investigations and a range of statutory consents to be obtained. 
The company concerned consequently wish to enter into a binding option to 
enable them to purchase part of the Depot, to justify the high initial (and 
potentially abortive) expenditure that would be necessary on their part to get 
all necessary consents. The discretion to exercise the option to buy would be 
conditional upon the company first obtaining all necessary approvals and 
consents including planning permission. 

       
 

 
 

211



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 
3.2  Issues 

 
 
3.2.1  The proposed use at 3.1.4 above would need to take full account of the 

existing restrictions affecting the site. These include flood risk and the 
proximity of oil storage installations. A full and detailed evaluation of these 
issues would be necessary, involving all relevant statutory agencies, as part of 
the company seeking planning permission and other important regulatory 
approvals. 

  
3.2.2   If part of the property were to be sold for this proposed use, then premises 

presently used in the delivery of housing services and occupied by local 
businesses would be displaced. The timing of giving up vacant possession of 
relevant land, if an option were to be granted, would need to have specific 
regard to the timing of alternative accommodation arrangements coming on 
stream for NPH. Local businesses with tenancy agreements at the Depot are 
typically subject to provisions that would allow their arrangements to be 
terminated upon short notice. Nevertheless, the Council would clearly wish to 
support them to identify suitable alternative facilities and to manage any 
moves with as little impact on their businesses as is reasonably possible. Any 
impacts of changes to occupational arrangements with Amey would similarly 
need to be agreed. The design of any scheme would be required to make the 
most effective use of the overall Depot. 

 
3.2.3   Westbridge Depot presently forms part of the business continuity 

arrangements for various Council services and equipment located there forms 
an important part of its ICT network and resilience. Alternative arrangements 
would need to be put in place if certain parts of the Depot were transferred 
and re-developed.  

 
3.2.4   The grant of an option agreement for a period of perhaps two years, would 

inhibit the Council‟s flexibility to consider certain other proposals for the future 
of the Depot and could lead indirectly to this Council incurring new costs and 
giving up incomes, when an option granted may not in practice be exercised. 

 
3.2.5   The potential impacts of the proposed operations on the wider local 

environment would need to be fully considered as part of an evaluation 
process, prior to this Council entering into a binding option. There may be 
concerns expressed by local residents and businesses about potential public 
health and property value issues which should be addressed. 

 
3.2.6   The property has not been marketed and any provisions within a purchase 

option agreement would need to ensure that, if exercised, the buyer would pay 
the full market value of any land and buildings acquired. 

 
3.3 Choices 
 
3.3.1   The Council could choose to not engage further with the company promoting 

this opportunity. Alternatively, the company could be invited to make further 
investigations at their own risk, without any obligation on the Council to agree 
to sell land - if the Council decides it does not wish to proceed. The company 

212



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

concerned are very unlikely to do this and the possible benefits of a waste to 
energy scheme would be lost. 

 
3.3.2   The Council could choose to engage with a wider range of potential operators 

of this type of facility and to market the property for that use accordingly. 
Whilst this might generate additional interest and, ultimately, extra value from 
any land that was sold or leased, there is no certainty of that. It would be 
necessary to ensure that there are sufficient provisions inserted in any option 
agreement, if completed with the present interested party without further 
marketing, to ensure that the full market value is achieved if any land is sold.  

 
3.3.3  The Council could choose to undertake an initial evaluation of the benefits and 

the risks of a waste to energy operation at this location together with an 
analysis of the resultant net revenue and capital consequences that would flow 
from supporting the proposal. Subject to first concluding that such an 
operation would, overall, be a beneficial use and that the consequential 
financial costs and benefits for the Council were understood and considered 
viable, to then grant a conditional option to purchase the relevant property at 
full market value. This is the recommended course of action.  

 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 

 
4.1.1 There are none.  
 
4.2 Resources and Risk 

 
4.2.1 Capital:  A significant capital receipt would be realised by disposal of property, 

pursuant to an option – if exercised.  
 

There may be capital expenditure required to meet the costs of re-location of 
Council owned equipment presently installed at the Depot, before or after an 
option to purchase was exercised. The possible costs of that cannot be 
quantified at this stage.  

 
The Council would need to consider the consequence of NPHs displacement 
by the scheme. This would include an appraisal of all potential options to 
relocate NPH. The financial impact, both capital and revenue, of the options 
would be assessed to ensure value for money is delivered for council tax and 
rent payers. 
 

The total costs of potential capital expenditure, compared with the level of 
capital receipt achievable from a disposal, would need to be fully considered 
prior to a decision to grant an option. 

 
The capital considerations arising from this report will be considered as part of 
the capital governess process in place. 
 

 

213



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

4.2.2 Revenue: In the short term there would be no revenue implications from 
granting an option to purchase. However, there would be a need to terminate 
lettings before or after an option was exercised. Business tenants may, in the 
knowledge of uncertainty about the future, choose to take early opportunities 
to locate elsewhere. The Council presently receives revenue income (rent and 
service charges) from local business tenants at this Depot.  
 
The income received from NPH would also be lost if they were required to 
relocate, although this is a position that could arise in any event - if they chose 
to exercise a tenant break option under a new lease of parts of the Depot. 
Nevertheless, the net costs of alternative suitable accommodation might be 
greater for NPH than the charges payable to the Council in respect of 
Westbridge. Thus in the event of a requirement for NPH to move, specifically 
to facilitate the „waste to energy‟ operation, the Council may need to provide 
some level of revenue financial support to NPH. If new freehold premises were 
acquired by NPH with Council support, there could be a new revenue income 
for this Council, to set against the costs of servicing any capital employed. 
 
If there were impacts on the areas used by Amey, this could potentially affect 
the delivery of their contract services with possible cost consequences for the 
Council. However, the existing lease with Amey does provide for early break 
opportunities for parts of the Depot, in favour of this Council. 
 
There may be significant positive revenue consequence from a waste to 
energy operation for this Council, for instance from savings made on 
payments linked to the disposal of non-recyclable waste. 
 
Overall, an evaluation of the total likely consequential revenue costs and 
savings would need to be made - prior to a final decision to grant an option. 
 
The implications for this Council‟s General Fund and Housing Revenue 
Account will be considered as part of the detailed review to be undertaken 
(pursuant to 2.2 above). 
 
 

4.2.3.  Risk: An evaluation of the likely risk issues associated with a waste to energy 
operation would be assessed prior to entering into an option agreement. The 
grant of an option would, during its term, „sterilise‟ parts of the site with the risk 
of loss of alternative opportunities („opportunity cost‟). Other risk related issues 
are addressed elsewhere in this report – these include existing Council 
business continuity arrangements. 

 
 
4.3 Legal 

 
4.3.1 Local authorities are generally under a duty to comply with Section 123(2) of  

the Local Government Act 1972 which requires that "Except with the consent 
of the Secretary of State a Council shall not dispose of land under this section, 
otherwise than by way of a short tenancy, for a consideration less than the 
best that can reasonably be obtained." Section 123 issues are addressed in 
the body of this report – where it is noted that any sale pursuant to an option 
would have to be at full market value. 

214



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/07/11/14 

 
 
 
 
 
4.4 Equality and Health 
 
4.4.1 There are no identified equality issues. The Depot is not a suitable 

environment for the general public to visit and public callers are discouraged. 
There is not considered to be any adverse impact on any particular section of 
the community from a disposal of land at this location. 
 

4.4.2 Any concerns regarding public health or safety issues arising from a waste to 
energy operation would be considered as part of an initial evaluation by the 
Council, prior to entering into an option agreement. The construction of any 
such facility on the land, pursuant to the exercise of an option that was 
granted, would be subject to a wide range of stringent regulatory consents and 
permissions. 

 
 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1   Amey have already had initial discussions with the interested company. Local 

businesses based at the Depot have been made aware of the proposals.  
 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1   The grant of an option to purchase land could help support an important new 

development within NWEZ, help to manage waste streams more effectively 
and generate capital receipts to support wider corporate objectives. 

 
 

4.7 Other Implications 
 
4.7.1 There are none specifically. 
 
 
5. Background Papers 

 
None 

 
 

Steven Boyes 
Director of Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning  

0300 330 7000 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

215



216

epowley
Text Box
Appendix 1



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/04/11/14 

`  

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
12th November 2014 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
Yes 
 
Regeneration, Enterprise and 
Planning 
 
Councillor Tim Hadland 
 
All wards 

 
 

1. Purpose 

 
1.1 This report seeks Cabinet’s approval to adopt the Houses in Multiple 

Occupation Interim Planning Policy Statement (IPPS), which was released for 
consultation between August and October 2014.  The public consultation 
exercise was undertaken in conformity with the planning regulations set out in 
the Planning & Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 (as amended 2012). 

   
2. Recommendations 

 
That Cabinet: 
 

2.1 Consider the representations made to the public consultation exercise held 
between the 7th August and the 2nd October Houses in Multiple Occupation 
Draft Interim Planning Policy Statement and Officer responses as shown in the 
Consultation Statement (Appendix 1). 
 

2.2 Agree the proposed changes to the Houses in Multiple Occupation Draft 
Interim Planning Policy Statement as set out in the Consultation Statement. 

 

Report Title 
 

HOUSES IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION 
 INTERIM PLANNING POLICY STATEMENT 

Appendices 
 

2 

217

Agenda Item 13



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/04/11/14 

2.3 Approve the adoption of the Houses in Multiple Occupation Interim Planning 
Policy Statement (IPPS) as set out in Appendix 2 (at the link below) 
 

http://www.northampton.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/7529/himo-draft-ipps 
 

 
3. Issues and Choices 
 
3.1 Report Background 
 
3.1.1 Northampton’s town centre is continuing to grow and regenerate as part of the 

Northampton Alive programme, the relocation of the University of 
Northampton to the Central Area of Northampton is a critical element of this.  
This activity will see a boost in the local economy, culminating in housing, 
commercial and educational growth.   Key to this growth will be an increase in 
the demand for rented properties, particularly from students who will be 
looking to live within the vicinity of the new University campus.  Areas like the 
town centre and Far Cotton could see an increase in demand for Houses in 
Multiple Occupation (HiMO).  In addition, with the expected population 
increase, there will be a related increase in the number of people seeking 
HiMO rented accommodation, particularly as not everyone will be in a position 
to afford or have the desire to either rent or purchase a self-contained 
dwelling.   

 
3.1.2 The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (submitted 2012, modified 

2014), together with the saved policies contained in the adopted Northampton 
Local Plan (June 1997), provide planning policy for guiding future proposals 
for HiMOs Northampton.  The key consideration in both these documents is 
the need to ensure that the character and amenity of the area where the 
application is being proposed is not adversely affected.  However, further 
guidance is required to explain how the Council will assess the impact that 
such proposals have on the character and amenity of an area, as well as the 
standards required for HiMOs so that their uses are acceptable for both the 
occupants and surrounding neighbours, whilst attempting to meet increasing 
demand. 

 
3.1.3 The Houses in Multiple Occupation Interim Planning Policy Statement aims to 

inform landlords and property owners about the development management 
process involved in submitting a planning application, including cases where 
Permitted Development Rights have been removed by Article 4 Directions.  It 
will also inform applicants about a range of criteria which the Council will 
consider, to ensure that the proposal will not adversely impact on the 
character and amenity of the area and that adequate facilities and health and 
safety measures are incorporated.   

 
3.1.4 Once adopted, the Council will prepare an Adoption Statement, make the 

document available for general inspection, and publish the documents on the 
website.  
 

 
 

 

218

http://www.northampton.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/7529/himo-draft-ipps


Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/04/11/14 

3.2 Houses in Multiple Occupation Interim Planning Policy Statement 
 
3.2.1 The Interim Planning Policy Statement provides explanation to landlords and 

property owners about when planning permission is required for change of use 
from a dwellinghouse to a house in multiple occupation (HiMO).    It gives 
information on the impact of Permitted Developments Rights, and, where 
Article 4 Directions have removed these rights, explains that planning 
permission needs to be obtained.   

 
The IPPS contains 4 key principles which the Council will use to consider 
future planning applications. These principles can be summarised as follows: 
 

 The application of a 15% HiMO threshold within a 50 metre buffer zone. 
This provides a reasonable benchmark that can provide a robust 
assessment of striking a balance between providing for future needs 
and supporting a balanced, mixed and inclusive community. 
 

 Securing the provision of adequate facilities/amenities for properties, 
and minimising flood risk. 

 

 Providing for sustainable development, taking into consideration the 
need for adequate parking provision. 

 

 Ensuring adequate refuse provision and storage are available to meet 
the proposed demand. 

 

3.2.2 In respect of the first principle, this threshold is considered to provide a 
reasonable basis on which to consider future impact, recognising the need to 
provide for meeting needs for HiMOs whilst not leading to an over-
concentration, particularly in denser areas. 

 
3.3 Public consultation 
 
3.3.1 In preparing the draft IPPS, the Council set up an Officer Steering Group to 

include Officers from Development Management, Conservation, Enforcement 
and Private Sector Housing.  All had input into the draft that was issued for 
consultation.  
 

3.3.2 A Consultation Statement has been prepared which sets out who was 
consulted and how responses were addressed (see Appendix 1).   
 

3.3.3 A total of 6 responses were received.  In summary, there were no objections 
to the principles.  There were recommendations associated with strengthening 
the principles, particularly in relation to conservation areas, parking and 
flooding matters.   

 
3.4 Choices (Options) for producing the guidance document 
 
Option 1:  Do nothing  
 
3.4.1 The Council does not currently have a Houses in Multiple Occupation 

Planning Policy Statement or a Supplementary Planning Document.  Instead, 

219



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/04/11/14 

it relies on the emerging West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy and the 
saved policies contained in the adopted Northampton Local Plan, together 
with general policy advice contained in the National Planning Policy 
Framework, to provide planning policy direction when determining planning 
applications.  With the growing housing and commercial interests in the town 
centre and the relocation of the University of Northampton, there is a likelihood 
that demand for rented properties will further increase.  Clearer guidance is 
therefore required to ensure that demand is met but at the same time, the 
character and amenity of the area should not be adversely affected. 

 
3.4.2 By doing nothing, there is the potential that more and more dwellings will be 

converted into houses in multiple occupation without due consideration of the 
impact on the character and amenity of an area.  This could potentially result 
in unacceptable changes to the physical appearance of the immediate 
streetscene/neighbourhood, as well as increasing environmental concerns 
such as litter and noise.  

 
Option 2:  Approve the adoption of the IPPS 
 
3.4.3 The document, if adopted, will accord with the necessary processes set out in 

Statutory Regulations associated with adoption of Supplementary Planning 
Documents.  It will therefore carry significant weight when used as part of the 
planning process in determining future planning applications.  The 
representations received have been considered and the document has been 
amended to take these observations into account. It will provide the necessary 
guidance and clarification to developers and applicants so that they are clear 
about when planning approval is required, and what needs to be provided 
within the new accommodation.      

 
3.4.5 This document will strengthen the Council’s ability to support an appropriate 

level of houses in multiple occupation within a specified area, without 
jeopardising the character and amenity of that area.   

 
Option 3:  Approve the adoption of the IPPS, with amendments  
 
3.4.6 The document can be further amended should Cabinet consider there to be 

sound planning reasons which are justified by the evidence base. 
 
3.4.7 It is recommended that Option 2, be pursued. 
 
4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 
4.1 Policy 
 

4.1.1 The draft document sets out further guidance on how the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Policy H6 and saved Policy H30 of the 
Northampton Local Plan can be implemented. 

 
4.1.2 The Houses in Multiple Occupation Interim Planning Policy Statement will 

provide a clear framework to assist applicants, landlords and property owners 
in understanding when a planning application should be submitted, when it is 
a Permitted Development Right and when Article 4 Directions are in place.  It 

220



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/04/11/14 

also provides details of the acceptable thresholds for HiMOs within a specified 
area, which aims to minimise adverse impacts on the local character and 
amenity. In addition, it provides information on the property standards required 
to ensure that the HiMO will be safe not just for its occupants but its 
neighbours as well. 
 

4.2 Resources and Risk 
 

4.2.1 Financial Implications – the Statement should bring some financial benefits in 
terms of Officer time, although these are difficult to quantify.  These benefits 
will be through savings in the determination of applicants which should be 
better quality and not need much negotiation on amendments / dealing with 
refusals.  Improved understanding of the facilities and licencing requirements 
associated with HiMOs should also reduce demands on Officers in 
Environmental Health and Private Sector Housing. 
 

4.3 Legal 
 
4.3.1 The draft document has been produced in accordance with the relevant 

planning regulations contained in the Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 
2004 (as amended 2012).  Once adopted as an Interim Planning Policy 
Statement, it will become a significant material consideration in the 
determination of planning applications. The document has interim status as 
the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Policy H6 has yet to be 
adopted; in addition work is being prepared on the Local Plan Part 2, which 
will further inform local development management policy.  Following this work 
it is intended that the document would be revised and adopted as a 
Supplementary Planning Document informing future policy direction. 

 
4.4 Equality 
 
4.4.1 Consistent with the duties placed under the Equality Act 2010, a Community 

Impact Assessment was prepared to summarise how the Council has had due 
regard to the public sector equality duty (as outlined in the Equality Act 2010) 
in its decision making process.  In completing the Community Impact 
Assessment, Officers have assessed how the principles contained in the IPPS 
can eliminate discrimination, advance equality of opportunity and foster good 
relations.       

 
4.4.2 The policies contained in both the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy 

and the adopted Central Area Action Plan,  have also been subjected to a 
comprehensive Equality Impact Assessment and a Sustainability Appraisal. 

 
4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 
 
4.5.1 Meetings with internal colleagues within the following sections assisted in 

shaping the contents of this document:  Development Management, Built and 
Natural Heritage, Enforcement, Private Sector Housing and Community 
Engagement.  In addition, legal advice has been provided from the Local 
Government Shared Service resource. 
 

221



Jmd/committees/cabinet report template/04/11/14 

4.5.2 Public wide consultation:  A formal 8 week public consultation was undertaken 
between the 7th August and the 2nd October 2014 (see Appendix 1, 
Consultation Statement, for further details). 

 
 
 
 
4.6 How the Proposals deliver Priority Outcomes 
 
4.6.1 The implementation of this document by landlords and property owners, and 

Development Management Officers, will result in an effective planning process 
and the provision of adequate and safe rental accommodation without 
jeopardising the character and amenity of the area.  This will contribute 
towards the Council’s priority to help ensure that Northampton will have better 
homes for the future1.  It will also contribute to the Corporate Plan’s objectives 
to help its residents have access to a home, and promote health and well-
being.  By clarifying and increasing the effectiveness of determining planning 
applications, the Council will meet its priorities in delivering excellent customer 
service and in delivering value for money services.   

 
4.7 Other Implications 
 
4.7.1 None. 
 
5. Background Papers 

 
5.1 West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy, (Submitted December 2012, 

Modified January 2014)  
5.2 Northampton Central Area Action Plan, (Adopted January 2013)  
5.3 Northampton Adopted Local Plan, Saved Policies (Adopted June 1997) 
 

Steven Boyes 
Director of Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning 

0300 330 7000 
 

                                                 
1
 Northampton Corporate Plan 2012 - 2015 

222



Appendix 1 

 

  
 
 

HOUSES IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION:  
INTERIM PLANNING POLICY STATEMENT 

 
 

 
CONSULTATION STATEMENT 

 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Planning Policy Team 
Northampton Borough Council 

November 2014 
 

223



 

 

CONTENTS 
 
 
 

Contents Page number 

1. Introduction 
 

3 

2. Purpose of the Consultation Statement 
 

3 

3. Consultation Process 
 
i. Early engagement 
 
ii. Consultation Draft – public wide consultation 
 

 Advert Notice 

 Publicity 
 

4 

4. Public Participation Consultation Responses 6 

5. The Next Stage 7 

Appendix 1:  Advert Notice 8 

Appendix 2:  Extracts from Northampton Borough 
Council website 

9 

Appendix 3:  Summary of consultation responses 
and Officer responses 

10 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

224



 

 

1. INTRODUCTION 
 
1.1 Northampton Borough Council has prepared a “Houses in Multiple 
Occupation Interim Planning Policy Statement” (IPPS) to amplify policies 
contained in the West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (submitted 2012, 
modified January 2014, Inspector’s report October 2014) and the 1997 
Northampton adopted Local Plan.   
 
1.2 This document: 
 

 Provides planning applicants, landlords and property owners with a 
clear understanding of the development management process 
associated with a change of use from a dwelling house to a house in 
multiple occupation.  This includes advice on when a planning 
application is required, where a Permitted Development Right applies 
(meaning planning permission is not required) and where an Article 4 
Direction is relevant, (which removes the Permitted Development 
Rights, and therefore requires planning permission). Details are also 
provided as to how people can access information through the website. 

 

 Outlines the key requirements to be considered when intending to 
change the use of a property from a dwelling house to a house in 
multiple occupation, including whether the appropriate level of facilities 
and amenity space have been provided. 
 
 

 

2. PURPOSE OF THE CONSULTATION STATEMENT 
 
2.1 Although not a formal Supplementary Planning Document, the 
preparation of this Consultation Statement conforms to Regulations 12 and 13 
of the Town and Country Planning (Local Planning) (England) Regulations 
2012.  It sets out the details of which the Council consulted in assisting with 
the preparation of the statement, how these were consulted upon, what key 
issues were raised and how they have been addressed in the IPPS. 
 
2.2 The purpose of this consultation statement is twofold: 
 

 To comply with Regulations 12 and 13 of the Act. This includes a public 
consultation exercise undertaken between the 7th August and 2nd 
October 2014 and 
 

 To demonstrate that a comprehensive consultation exercise has been 
undertaken in compliance with Northampton’s Statement of Community 
Involvement (SCI, March 2006) 

 

 
 
 

225



 

 

 
 
3. CONSULTATION PROCESS 
 
i Early Engagement 
 
3.1 This Consultation Statement demonstrates how the Council resolved to 
actively engage key representatives from within the Council as well as 
external organisations, and the public, in formulating and progressing the 
principles for the IPPS. 
 
3.2 In the early stages of preparing the IPPS, the Council held meetings, 
and/or undertook discussions with Officers from Development Management, 
Heritage and Conservation, Enforcement and Private Sector Housing teams.  
Legal advice from Northamptonshire County Council was sought prior to 
releasing the document for consultation.  In addition, informal discussions 
were held with other local planning authorities who have prepared similar 
documents, to help inform the evidence base and methodology used. 
 
3.3 Planning Policy sought the views of the Council’s representative on 
Equalities to ensure that the Guide contained principles which were legally 
compliant. In undertaking a Community Impact Assessment, areas such as 
eliminating discrimination, improving equality of opportunity and accessibility 
and fostering good relations, were assessed.   
 
3.4 Policy Officers prepared a working draft, utilising the information 
obtained from early consultation, as well as existing research material and 
evidence base which was used to inform the methodology.  This paper was 
intended to be used for discussion, to assist with identifying the formulation of 
policy objectives and key principles.  In preparing the working draft, Officers 
continued to engage with those initially approached.   
 
3.5 The key considerations emerging from these early discussions were: 
 

 With the increasing demand for HiMOs, evidenced through planning 
applications submitted in the past year and the fact that the University 
is moving into the town centre, there is a need to ensure that demand 
can be met, but not at the expense of the character of the area, 
particularly areas where there is already a high concentration of HiMOs 
and Conservation Areas.  A balanced approach is required 
 

 The need to ensure that key requirements for floorspace and amenities 
are met, to provide people with an acceptable living standard 
 

 Health and safety issues should be appropriately addressed  
 

 Providing an appropriate methodology, which demonstrated that due 
regard was given to assessing how thresholds and buffers could be 
applied, and had understanding of the character of wards in the 

226



 

 

Borough.  However, it was acknowledged that establishing the right 
threshold and buffer incorporates some local subjectivity.  
Understanding how the character of an area is impacted affected is 
equally subjective. Each individual planning application will still need to 
be considered on its merits 
 
   

 Some elements of flexibility will need to be applied to the principles, 
especially Principle 1, which recommends a threshold and buffer 
approach 
 

ii Consultation Draft 
 
3.6 The relevant comments obtained from these communications were 
incorporated into the consultation draft which was circulated to the Steering 
Group prior to its release for formal consultation. 
 
3.7 Observations on the consultation draft suggested that a 15% threshold 
would both meet the expectant demand without unduly compromising the 
character and amenity of an area.  There were also subsequent changes to 
the principle associated with parking which needed to be clarified and 
simplified.  The information relating to conservation areas, article 4 directions 
and licencing also needed to be improved / referenced.   
 
3.8 The consultation draft was released for formal consultation between 
the 7th August and 2nd October 2014, to accord with Regulations 12 and 13 of 
the Planning Act.  
 
3.7 For the consultation process to be effective, the Council prepared the 
following: 
 
a. Advert Notice 
 
3.9 The Council released a public notice in the Northampton Herald & Post 
(see Appendix 1).  This notice explained what the IPPS aimed to achieve and 
how people could make their representations, and by when. 
 
b. Publicity 
 
3.10 The Council wrote to a wide range of people and organisations 
including: 
 

 The Local Press to inform them about the purpose of the document 
and the period of consultation 
 

 European and Local Members of Parliament and Councillors 
 
 

 Partner organisations and local authorities (including Northamptonshire 
County Council and Milton Keynes Council) 

227



 

 

 Parish Councils and Residents Associations 
 

 Relevant consultees registered on the Local Plan database, including 
statutory consultees (such as English Heritage, Homes and 
Communities Agency, Environment Agency, Highways Agency, 
Anglian Water and Natural England) 
 
 

 Registered landlords / rental agencies as recommended by Private 
Sector Housing as well as Housing Associations, Housing Trusts and 
the Northampton Student Landlord Network 
 

 Charity and voluntary organisations 
 

3.11 In undertaking this consultation exercise, the following documents were   
made available on the Council’s website (Appendix 1): 
 

 The draft Houses in Multiple Occupation Interim Planning Policy 
Statement 
  

 The draft Community Impact Assessment 
   

 The representation form (available on Survey Monkey, the Council’s 
corporate consultation form for online responses as well as on the 
website as a PDF, suitable for downloading) 

 
3.12 The above documents were also made available at the: 
 

 Council’s One Stop Shop at the Guildhall 
 

 Northampton libraries 
 
3.13 In addition, a report was presented to Planning Committee on the 30th 
September, informing Members about the Interim Planning Policy Statement, 
its objectives and its principles. 
 

 
4. PUBLIC PARTICIPATION CONSULTATION RESPONSES 
 
4.1 Regulations 12 and 13 of the Town and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) Regulations 2012 require that representations on 
Supplementary Planning Documents (SPD) should be for a period of not less 
than 4 weeks.  Although this is not a Supplementary Planning Document, it 
still provides interim planning principles and requirements which amplify 
existing and emerging policies.  It is considered that such principles should be 
released for consultation, and follows the same approach and process as an 
SPD. 
 

228



 

 

4.2 The current Statement of Community Involvement for Northampton 
(SCI), adopted in March 2006, states that draft SPDs will be subject to a 6 
week consultation period.  This consultation exercise is for a period of 8 
weeks and extends the requirements of both the Regulations and the 
Council’s SCI.  This extended consultation period was primarily attributed to 
the summer and public holidays, therefore allowing people more time to 
comment.  
 
4.3 In total, 6 representations were received on this IPPS.  A summary of 
the representations and Officers’ responses can be found in Appendix 3 of 
this Consultation Statement.  Generally, there was support for the document 
and no objections were received with regards to the objectives for drafting the 
IPPS.  In summary, key comments were made in relation to: 
 

 Concern as to the effectiveness of a principle associated with storage 
and refuse 
 

 Request for further design guidance for HiMOs in conservation areas 
 

 Request for further details to be provided in flood zones 
 
4.5 One representation was made to the Community Impact Assessment.  
This relates to the consultees, and recommendations were given on additional 
people who should be consulted.  It should be noted that since the Council 
undertook a publicity exercise, including putting the document on its website 
and publishing an advert notice, no one is excluded from submitting a 
response. 
 

5. THE NEXT STAGE 
 
5.1 All responses received were assessed and, where relevant, 
incorporated into the adopted Interim Planning Policy Statement (IPPS).  A 
summary of the responses and policy comments are provided in Appendix 1. 
 
5.2 The Houses in Multiple Occupation IPPS and this Consultation 
Statement are being considered for adoption at the Council’s Cabinet on the 
12th November 2014.  Once approved, the Council will formally adopt the 
IPPS and release an Adoption Statement.  This information will be made 
available on the Council’s website and sent to all those who requested that 
they be informed of the status of the IPPS.   

229



 

 

APPENDIX 1 
 

 

NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLICATION PERIOD FOR THE HOUSES IN MULTIPLE 
OCCUPATION INTERIM PLANNING POLICY STATEMENT AND THE 

COMMUNITY IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
 

Planning and Compulsory Purchase Act 2004 
Town and Country Planning (Local Development) (England) Regulations 2012 

 
The Council has published a Draft Houses in Multiple Occupation Interim Planning 
Policy Statement (IPPS), in accordance with Regulations 12 and 13 of the 
Regulations. The draft IPPS amplifies policies contained in the West 
Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy (submitted 2012, modified 2014) and the 
saved policies contained in the adopted Northampton Local Plan 1997.  It provides 
information and guidance for landlords and property owners on the process 
associated with seeking planning approval for change of use from dwellinghouses to 
houses in multiple occupation, as well as the Council’s recommendations in terms of 
quantity, facilities and impacts on character and amenity.    
 
These draft consultation documents (comprising the IPPS and the Community Impact 
Assessment) are available for inspection during normal office opening hours at the 
Council’s One Stop Shop, The Guildhall, St Giles Square, Northampton, NN1 1DE. 
The documents are also available to view within opening hours at all libraries in the 
Borough (Central Library (Abington Street), Abington, Duston, Far Cotton, Hunsbury, 
Kingsthorpe, St James, Weston Favell and Wootton Fields). 
 
The full documentation can be downloaded from www.northampton.gov.uk/himo, 
or requests for copies can be made to the Planning Policy Team on 01604 837 279 
or email planningpolicy@northampton.gov.uk.   
 
Representations are invited during the consultation period which runs from Thursday 
7th August 2014 and closes at 5pm Thursday 2nd October 2014. Representations 
may be accompanied by a request to be notified of the adoption of the IPPS. If 
making such a request, please specify the address for this purpose.  Representations 
can be sent in the following ways:  
 

 Via the Council’s website on www.northampton.gov.uk/himo, or 

 In writing to: Mr Paul Lewin, Planning Policy & Heritage Manager, Planning 
Policy, Northampton Borough Council, Guildhall, St Giles Square, 
Northampton, NN1 1DE, or  

 By email to planningpolicy@northampton.gov.uk, or 

 By fax to 01604 837 527.  
 
All representations must be received by: 
Thursday at 17:00 (5pm) on the 2nd October 2014. 

 

 

230

mailto:planningpolicy@northampton.gov.uk


 

 

APPENDIX 2:  
 

EXTRACTS FROM NORTHAMPTON BOROUGH COUNCIL WEBSITE 

 

Council consults on planning policy for 
HMOs  
Published Thursday, 07 August 2014 

An eight-week consultation on determining planning applications for Houses in Multiple 

Occupation (HMOs) in Northampton begins today (7 August).  

Northampton Borough Council has drafted an Interim Planning Policy Statement which 

outlines the processes the council intends to follow in considering planning applications 

relating to the change of use of a family home to a shared HMO dwelling.  

The draft statement provides guidance for landlords and property owners who might be 

considering submitting an application and recommendations relating to facilities.  In 

addition, a separate report, called a Community Impact Assessment, sets out how the 

council plans to consider impacts associated with the quantity of HMOs within an area to 

help it determine if HMOs are likely to be regarded as acceptable.  

Councillor Mary Markham, Northampton Borough Council cabinet member for housing, 

said: “HMOs provide much needed affordable housing, but it is important that they are 

properly managed.  Also too many in one area can have a negative impact on local 

communities.  

“Controlling the number of properties becoming HMOs is needed to limit the impact on 

other residents.  Increased noise, extra rubbish and issues with parking are just some of 

the problems that can arise if there are too many HMOs.  I hope the approach we are 

proposing will help us deal more effectively with the issue and I am keen to hear what 

people think.”  

Councillor Tim Hadland, cabinet member responsible for planning, said: “This Interim 

Planning Policy Statement will set out clear and up-to-date guidelines for the council to 

make planning decisions on the impact new HMOs will have on an area.”  

People have until 2 October to comment on the draft documents.  Copies are available 

online www.northampton.gov.uk/himo, at the council’s One Stop Shop at the Guildhall 

and at all libraries across the town.  Alternatively you can request copies by calling the 

planning policy team on (01604) 837279 or email planningpolicy@northampton.gov.uk.  

All representations made during the consultation will be reported to the council’s cabinet 

later in the year when it meets to discuss whether or not to adopt the policy.  

   

231

http://www.northampton.gov.uk/himo
mailto:planningpolicy@northampton.gov.uk


 

 

APPENDIX 3 

 
SUMMARY OF REPRESENTATIONS RECEIVED IN RESPONSE TO THE 

HOUSES IN MULTIPLE OCCUPATION INTERIM PLANNING POLICY 
STATEMENT 

 
Consultation date: 7th August – 2nd October 2014 

 
 
NPPF:  National Planning Policy Framework 
NPPG:  National Planning Practice Guidance 
WNJCS:  West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy 
CAAP:  Central Area Action Plan (Northampton) 
HiMO:   Houses in Multiple Occupation 
PDR:  Permitted Development Rights 
PD:   Permitted Development 
 
 

REF RESPONDENT SUMMARY OF RESPONSES OFFICER RESPONSE 

001 Natural England No comment. Noted. 

002 NBC Heritage Para 2.1: Conservation Area 
Appraisals should be given equal 
consideration to the NPPF, CAAP and 
interim policy. 

The documents referenced in 
this paragraph are documents 
which are covered by the 
Town and Country Planning 
(Local Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012. 
 
Reference is made to the need 
to consider other documents 
(including Conservation Area 
Appraisals) when proposing a 
HiMO. 

  Para 2.1.1: last bullet point should be 
Policy 10 of the CAAP. 

Noted and amended. 

  Para 2.4.3: PDR not PRD. Noted and amended. 

  Para 2.4.5: some Article 4 Directions 
remove PD rights for alterations to the 
properties when relating to 
conservation matters. 

Noted.  Para 2.4.2 to be 
amended accordingly. 

  Para 2.6:  Article 4 Directions have 
been imposed directly relating to 
Conservation Areas.  Each one is 
tailored to the specific conservation 
area and may cover slightly different 
elements of change. 

Noted.  This detail will be 
addressed at planning 
application stage. 

  Para 4.1: emphasizes the need to 
refer to “other policy documents”. 

This section relates to the 
justification for preparing a 
HiMO Interim Statement. It 
relates to the key policies 
which direct the principles set 
out in the Interim Statement.  
Only policies which have been 
through the processes 
provided in the Town and 

232



 

 

Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012 are relevant. 

  References: include Conservation 
Area Appraisals. 

Noted and added.  Web link to 
Conservation Area Appraisals 
provided. 

  Planning Policy Direction: refer to 
Conservation Area Appraisals. 

This section relates to adopted 
policies by virtue of the Town 
and Country Planning (Local 
Planning) (England) 
Regulations 2012 only.  These 
policies provide the legal policy 
direction for amplifying detailed 
principles. 

  Para 2.6.1: suggested wording “There 
are currently 21 Conservation Areas 
within Northampton, some of which 
are also subject to HiMO Article 4 
Directions.  This means that planning 
permission is required for a change of 
use from a single dwelling to a HiMO, 
including any material changes to be 
exterior of the building.” 

Noted and amended.   

  Principle 1, page 21: all existing 
HiMOs need to be identified in order 
to calculate the 15% 

A monitoring database will be 
set up, with assistance from 
Private Sector Housing and 
Council Tax to establish where 
the existing HiMOs are.   

  Principle 3, page 25: is there a map 
showing where the bus stops are. 

Further information has been 
provided to inform how details 
of bus stops etc can be 
obtained / accessed. 

003 Mr S Williams Agree with Principle 1. Noted and welcomed 

 Private Landlord Agree with Principle 2. Noted and welcomed 

  Agree with Principle 3. Noted and welcomed 

  Do not agree with Principle 4 because 
the issue of storage is undefined.  If 
people cannot store their goods on 
their property, it is their problem.  If 
this becomes a problem for other 
residents, there are powers the 
Council can use to have this rectified.  
Parking is an important factor but 
where my property is situated, it has 
never been a problem. 

The purpose of Principle 4 is to 
ensure that landlords will 
include storage when 
considering changing the use 
of their premises from dwelling 
houses to HiMOs.  In securing 
this provision, environmental 
issues can be properly 
managed from the beginning 
rather than reacting to a 
problem when it occurs. 
 
Parking comment noted. 

  IPPS limiting.  As a landlord in St 
James, I won’t be able to rent to more 
than 2 people when the scheme 
commences. 3 people can live in the 
property safely.  My property is 10 
minutes’ walk from town so no need 

The IPPS does not seek to 
limit the number of occupants 
within a property.  Rather, it 
seeks to ensure that the 
provision of HiMO properties 
within a certain radius is 

233



 

 

for vehicles.  3 people do not generate 
much waste.  IPPS is unfair as a 
family of more than 3 would be much 
worse when considered against the 
principles set out in the document. 

managed and the character of 
the street/area is protected.   

  There are laws in place which cover 
safety of rental property.  Another 
layer of regulation is unacceptable 
especially for standard 2/3/4 bed 
houses. 

The purpose of this document 
is to ensure that the 
accumulation of HiMO 
properties does not result in an 
adverse impact on the 
character of an area and 
streetscene.  It also seeks to 
ensure that the right provisions 
are in place so that the welfare 
of the occupants and their 
neighbours are protected.  

004 Cllr D Stone Agree with Principle 1. Noted and welcomed 

  Agree with Principle 2. Noted and welcomed 

  Agree with Principle 3. Noted and welcomed 

  Agree with Principle 4. Noted and welcomed 

  Another principle should be the 
maintenance of cohesive communities 
where family life is valued and 
protected. 

Para 50 of the National 
Planning Policy Framework 
seeks to deliver a wide range 
of homes and create 
sustainable, inclusive and 
mixed communities. A 
separate principle on this is not 
therefore considered 
necessary as it repeats 
national and strategic policy 
direction. 

  To agree a higher degree of HiMOs, 
we first need a map of where the 
existing HiMOs are and then a map 
showing where the pressures for more 
HiMOs might be. 

Noted and accepted.  This 
information is currently 
available.  However, a project 
is underway to provide a 
comprehensive database so 
that the situation can be 
monitored. 

  Community Impact Assessment: 
Community should include agencies 
such as schools and doctors surgeries 
and these agencies should be 
consulted. 

In addition to the relevant 
consultees on the Local Plan 
database, the Council released 
an advert notice which invited 
everyone to comment. 

005 Town Centre 
Area Advisory 
Committee 
(TCAAC) 

Para 2.1.1: Policy 1 of the CAAP also 
seeks to secure the protection of the 
historic environment, which should be 
referred to here. 

Noted and added. 

  Section 3.2: problems associated with 
high levels of student occupancy also 
include term time occupation and 
conversely, deserted areas during 
university holidays. 

Noted and added. 

  Principle 1: Agrees that maintaining 
the character of the town centre 

Each application will be 
considered on its merits and 

234



 

 

conservation areas and reducing 
potential harm to their significance is 
best achieved by a diverse population. 
Needs greater consideration about 
how the policy is to be managed 
within conservation areas. 

with due regard to existing 
adopted policies, and the 
principles in this IPPS, which 
will include consideration 
towards heritage assets 
(designated and non-
designated). 

  Principle 1: agree with restricting the 
percentage of HiMOs within a given 
radius of an application site. 

Noted and welcomed. 

  Principle 1: need a map showing all 
HiMOs in protected areas. 

A map and accompanying 
database showing all known 
existing HiMOs in 
Northampton will be made 
available. 

  Principle 1: unclear what is meant by 
“not result in more than 15% of the 
total number of HiMO dwellings within 
a 50m radius of the application site”. 

This threshold is one of 
several considerations for 
determining a planning 
application.  This element of 
Principle 1 seeks to limit 
HiMOs to no more than 15% 
within a 50m radius of the 
application site.  If an 
application is submitted, and 
there is already 15% HiMO 
within the 50m radius, then the 
application can be refused, 
other elements of Principle 1 
and the remaining principles in 
this IPPS should also be taken 
into account. 

  Para 4.2.3: include consideration of 
Conservation Area Assessments. 

New para 2.1.2 added to 
address this requirement. 

  Para 4.2.3: there may be a case for 
restricting HiMOs to certain parts of 
conservation areas.  Urge the Council 
to undertake an assessment asap and 
include recommendations on the 
location and proportion of HiMOs 
within the conservation areas. 

This would propose undue 
restrictions which are likely to 
be deemed inflexible and 
unreasonable.  Each 
application should be 
considered on its merits and in 
conjunction with key 
documents taking into account 
both the IPPS and 
Conservation Area Appraisals. 

  Principle 2: Support.   
 
Need to indicate how increased flood 
risk is to be measured / monitored. 

Support noted and welcomed. 
 
Flood risks will be monitored 
through the planning 
application process, which will 
require the applicant to 
consider flooding issues.  
Maps are also available, 
including those through the 
Environment Agency website, 
confirming where areas are at 

235



 

 

risks are and the level of such 
risk. 

  Principle 3:  Agree. 
 
Need to ensure that parking provision 
does not have any adverse impacts 
on a conservation area.  External 
cycle storage should not adversely 
affect the setting of a conservation 
area or listed building. 
 
 
 

Noted and welcomed. 
 
There are various policies 
already in place to direct 
decision making on issues 
affecting conservation areas.  
In addition, the IPPS refers to 
the Conservation Area 
Appraisals as one of the 
documents to consider, web 
links are also provided. 

  Principle 3: Need to be stricter on 
sustainable options for proposals 
where there is limited or no parking.  
Recommend that the principle is 
paraphrased to say: 
 
Proposals with limited or no parking 
must be EITHER 
 

 within walking distance of the 
town centre, OR 

 within 400m of a bus stop with 
a minimum level of service to 
the town centre (eg half hourly 
buses to Northampton town 
centre between the hours of 
08:00 and 19:00), AND be 
within walking distance of a 
district centre, local centre or 
neighbourhood parade 

The purpose of this principle 
is, inter alia, to reduce reliance 
on the private car.  Its 
proximity to a bus stop is not 
related just to the town centre, 
rather, it relates to people’s 
ability to travel anywhere by 
bus as an option. 
 
No change. 

  Principle 4: Agree. 
 
Refuse storage should be designed 
so that it does not adversely affect the 
setting of a conservation area or listed 
building. 

Noted and welcomed. 

  Over development can have a range 
of adverse effects on conservation 
areas.  Consider in the IPPS how to 
address negative impacts, through, for 
example, policing measures, 
environmental management and 
liaison with the university, shared 
housing landlords and local 
residents/businesses. 

It is not the role of the IPPS to 
monitor impact.  Rather, 
planning policies affecting 
conservation areas will be 
monitored as part of the local 
plan policy monitoring process.  
Various services of the 
Authority, including external 
contractors such as Enterprise, 
will share the responsibility for 
monitoring and managing the 
impact of development, 
including HiMOs. 

  Monitoring: should monitor impacts  It is not the role of the IPPS to 
monitor impact.  Rather, 

236



 

 

planning policies affecting 
conservation areas will be 
monitored as part of the local 
plan policy monitoring process.  
Various services of the 
Authority, including external 
contractors such as Enterprise, 
will share the responsibility of 
monitoring and managing the 
impact of development, 
including HiMOs. 

  Should include an appendix setting 
out some design criteria for HiMO, 
which would be relevant in 
conservation areas.  Include advice 
on matters of detail, such as provision 
of refuse disposal and their location. 

The document “Good Practice 
Guide for Landlords: Facilities 
and Amenities December 
2013” provides guidance on 
layouts and some elements of 
design.  In determining 
planning applications, 
consideration will be given to a 
range of documents including 
this IPPS, the “Good Practice” 
guidance, existing national and 
local policies, and 
conservation area appraisals 
will similarly be taken into 
account, there is no need to 
replicate that level of detail in 
the Statement. 
In undertaking the preparation 
of the Local Plan (Part 2), 
further consideration could be 
provided if required. 

006 Environment 
Agency 

Principle 2: support the aims to avoid 
an increase in flood risk and from 
surface water drainage.  

Supported noted and 
welcomed. 

  Consider the exclusion of basement 
sleeping accommodation and ground 
floor sleeping accommodation in 
certain locations.   
 
National guidelines state that 
basement dwellings are not 
compatible with Flood Zone 3 and 
should not be permitted. 
 
In Flood Zone 2, conversion to 
basement flats must show that it will 
be safe, without increasing flood risk 
elsewhere, and, where possible, will 
reduce flood overall. 
 
Areas of high flood risk, EA would not 
support proposals for any ground floor 
accommodation. 

The National Planning Policy 
Guidance provides sufficient 
information and direction on 
the acceptability of basement 
accommodation.  It is not 
considered necessary to 
repeat this guidance in the 
interim document. 
 
However, the document will be 
strengthened to include 
reference to the NPPG. 

237



 

 

  Include: Northampton currently has 
flood defences that provide one of the 
highest levels of protection against 
river flooding in the country.  The 
design standard for the Upper Nene 
catchment (that is through 
Northampton and within the Nene 
catchment upstream of Northampton) 
is the 0.5% probability (1 in 200 
chance of occurring in any year) event 
plus climate change.  This standard is 
applied across the whole of the Upper 
Nene catchment. 

Noted and amended as 
indicated.  

 

238



 

 

CABINET REPORT 

 

AGENDA STATUS: PUBLIC 
 

 
Cabinet Meeting Date: 
 
Key Decision: 
 
Within Policy: 
 
Policy Document: 
 
Directorate: 
 
Accountable Cabinet Member:  
 
Ward(s) 

  
12 November 2014 
 
YES 
 
YES 
 
NO 
 
Management Board 
 
Cllr A Bottwood 
 
N/A 

 
 
 
3 Purpose 

 
1.1 The purpose of this report is to assist Cabinet in monitoring the delivery of the Corporate 

Plan within the agreed capital and revenue budgets for the General Fund (GF) and 
Housing Revenue Account (HRA), and the proposed realignment of the HRA Capital 
Programme  

 
 
2. Recommendations 

 
2.1 That Cabinet reviews the contents of the report and appendices, and identifies actions 

to be taken to address any issues arising from it. 

2.2 That Cabinet note the changes to the 2014-15 General Fund Capital Programme as 
detailed in Appendix 3. 

 
2.3 That Cabinet approve the realignment of the HRA Capital Programme, as detailed in 

Appendix 4. 
 

Report Title Finance and Performance Report to 30 Sep 2014  

Appendices 
 

4 

239

Agenda Item 14



2.4 That Cabinet approves the Land Charges supplementary estimate amount to settle the 
claim, £216,152.34, to be funded out of General Fund working balances. 

 
2.5 That Cabinet notes the Supplementary Estimate £20k to develop plans for Abington 

Museum. 
 

 
3. Issues and Choices 

 
3.1 Report Background 

3.1.1 This report presents the Council’s key financial and performance exceptions for the year 
to date, together with changes in the revenue budget and capital programme. It further 
highlights any emerging issues as identified by service managers.  

3.1.2 The report also brings forward any capital appraisals and variations for noting and 
approval. 

3.1.3 The report takes into consideration the progress of key projects being delivered across 
the Council, achievement against performance indicators and financial/resource 
information. 

3.1.4 Portfolio holders receive detailed information on specific measures monitoring the 
Corporate Plan within their individual portfolios. 

  

240



3.2 Exceptions 

 

3.2.1 Performance Exceptions on Corporate Plan Priorities  

This section of the report highlights those measures that are under ( ) or over ( ) 
performing by corporate priority against their profiled monthly targets. Appendix 1 
provides further detail of the issues and actions being taken by relevant service areas. 

 

YOUR TOWN: RED KPIs 

Measure ID & Name Portfolio Performance 
YTD 
ACTUAL 

YTD 
TARGET 

 ESC01n Total bins/boxes 
missed in period (M) 

Environment  1781 700 

 This matter is being addressed within the contract performance process. 

 ESC02 % missed bins 
corrected within 24hrs of 
notification (M) 

Environment  32.17% 100.00% 

 This matter is being addressed within the contract performance process. 

 ESC04 % household waste 
recycled and composted 
(NI192) (M) 

Environment  45.79% 48.00% 

The month of September sees an increase of 6.22% of KG's sent for recycling, reuse and composting in 
comparison to August 14. The recycling performance has also increased by 2.55% in comparison to 
September 13. The YTD % of recycling, reuse and composting has increased by 1.13% in comparison to 
2013/14 and is primarily due to the increase of green waste. There is a minor adjustment of 31.55 
tonnes in relation to July 14  

 HI 01 Average time taken to 
re-let local authority homes 
(days) (M) 

Housing  31.22 20 

Several properties this month had multiple refusals after the completion of works which extended the 
void times by 3-4 weeks. As tenancy management move to office based sign ups which will be reliant 
on accurate completion dates for making sign up arrangements, the focus to ensure all properties 
meet the target dates will be across all departments. 
 
A change in the process for provisional viewings with prospective tenants is to be introduced on 20 
October. The responsibility for arranging and organising viewings will be controlled by the property 
maintenance team with the in house trade team carrying out the accompanied viewing. It is hoped the 
advantages of this move will decrease the amount of refusals on properties by engaging prospective 
tenants in the process at an earlier juncture with detail of the refurbishment work and completion 
dates.  

 HI 04 Percentage void rent 
loss (M) 

Housing  2.14% 1.50% 

Our objective of controlling long term voids by introduction of sustainable, effective processes 
continue to be a collective priority to reduce void times and associated rent losses.  
 
 

241



 HI 21 Former tenant arrears 
as a percentage of the annual 
rent debit (M) 

Finance  1.32% 1.18% 

At the end of September former tenants arrears totalled £685,308. Although this is another monthly 
increase it also reflects the fact that the amount of FTA debt written off, year to date, has been lower 
than expected. A liaison meeting between the Recovery Team (LGSS) and Landlord Services has been 
arranged during October to look at measures being taken to reduce the level of FTA debt.  

 MPE01 No. of new 
businesses locating on NWEZ 
(Q) 

Regeneration, Enterprise and 
Planning  1 3 

Through existing discussions, end of year target of 7 remains achievable  

 PP09 Overall crime figure for 
the period (M) 

Community Safety  9222 8450 

The volume of all crime for September 2014 is 1459 crimes.  
The actual figures since April 2014 have been adjusted to reflect slight changes in recorded crimes.  

 PP14 % change in Violence 
Offences (M) 

Community Safety  25.09% -4.51% 

There has been a 25.1% increase in violence offences from the baseline at the end of March 2014.  
This includes an 16.3% increase in violence with injury and a 33.6% increase in violence without injury. 
Some of the actual figures for violence offences since April 2014 have altered slightly due to changes in 
recorded crime.  

 
 

 
YOUR TOWN: BLUE KPIs 

Measure ID & Name Portfolio Performance 
YTD 
ACTUAL 

YTD 
TARGET 

 CH10 No. of unique visits to 
Museum Pages (M) 

Community Engagement  24354 21000 

 CS05 Percentage satisfied 
with the overall service 
provided by the Customer 
Service Officer (M) 

Community Engagement  95.07% 90.00% 

 ESC05 % of Land and 
Highways assessed falling 
below an acceptable level - 
Litter (NI195a) (4M) 

Environment  0.67% 2.00% 

 ESC06 % of Land and 
Highways assessed falling 
below acceptable level - 
Detritus (NI195b) (4M) 

Environment  0.33% 5.00% 

 ESC10 Level of quality 
against an agreed standard - 
Open Spaces & Parks - Litter 
(%) (Q) 

Environment  0.00% 2.00% 

242



 ESC11 Level of quality 
against an agreed standard - 
Open Spaces & Parks - 
Detritus (%) (Q) 

Environment  1.67% 5.00% 

 HI 13 Rent arrears as a 
percentage of the annual 
debit (M) 

Housing  2.63% 3.23% 

 HI 22 Rent written off as a 
percentage of the annual 
rent roll (M) 

Finance  0.31% 0.40% 

 MPE02 No. of new jobs 
created on NWEZ (Q) 

Regeneration, Enterprise and 
Planning  208 18 

 MPE20 Amount of external 
funding secured for 
economic stimulation 
projects (Q) 

Regeneration, Enterprise and 
Planning  £2,362,000 £500,000 

 NI157a % Major Planning 
applications determined in 
13 weeks or agreed 
extension (M) 

Regeneration, Enterprise and 
Planning  79.31% 60.00% 

 NI157b % of 'minor' planning 
apps determined within 8 
weeks or agreed extension 
(M) 

Regeneration, Enterprise & 
Planning  96.71% 86.00% 

 TCO02 Number of events 
delivered in partnership: 
parks and open spaces (Q) 

Community Engagement  12 7 

 TCO05n Town Centre footfall 
(Q) 

Regeneration, Enterprise & 
Planning        

7,939,917  
        

7,000,000  

 

 
YOU: RED KPIs 

Measure ID & Name Portfolio Performance 
YTD 
ACTUAL 

YTD 
TARGET 

 HSE01 Number of affordable 
homes delivered (Q) 

Housing  87 180 

Performance is below target partially due to the delivery of 36 units being delayed until quarter 3.  

 
There are no Blue KPIs within the “YOU” theme.   

  

243



 
3.2.2 Key Financial Indicator Exceptions 

 

Dashboard Indicator Description 
Variation from 

Budget  RAG 
 £000 

Controllable GF Revenue Budget Underspend (271) B 

Controllable HRA Revenue Budget  Overspend (408) B 

Debt Financing Budget and HRA 
Recharges 

Balanced (325) B 

 

3.2.3 Controllable General Fund Revenue Budget (Blue) 

The following table summarises the major variations from budget for the General 
Fund. 

 

 

Budget Managers are working to mitigate the pressures on their budgets and bring 
forecasts back in line with budgets. 

3.2.3.1 Asset Management (Green) forecast overspend relates to staff overspends due to 
the forecast underachievement of Corporate savings relating to vacancies, and 
terms and conditions changes. 

3.2.3.2 Head of Planning (Blue) forecast underspend relates to over recovery of income 
through high levels of Development control fees. This overachievement of income is 
another good indicator that the Borough’s regeneration and development work is 
facilitating growth. Reinvestment of  £250k of the estimated income over recovery 
has been directed into the Business Incentive Scheme as per the last Cabinet report 

3.2.3.3 Housing (Blue) forecast underspend reflects savings in the service relating to 
vacant staff posts offset by an overspend due to the reduced revenue fee income 
generated by capital expenditure on disabled facilities. 

3.2.3.4 Borough Secretary (Green) forecast reflects staff overspends due to delayed 
implementation of a Staff restructure to deliver savings within the Legal Service. 

Service Area £000

Asset Management 50

Head of Planning (401)

Housing (151)

Borough Secretary 84

Head of Customer and Cultural Services 357

Head of Communities and Environment 71

Local Government Shared Service (292)

Other Minor Variations 11

Total (271)

244



3.2.3.5 Head of Customer and Cultural Services forecast reflects additional costs 
incurred for new events for 2014, additional security and NNDR costs for the bus 
station and lower projected income across several areas. 

3.2.3.6 Head of Communities and Environment forecast overspend reflects a number of 
small forecast variations across the service. 

3.2.3.7 LGSS forecast underspend reflects savings made in the insurance provision for the 
year.  

3.2.3.8 Supplementary Estimate- Under Financial Regulations para 5.4.2 the Chief 
Finance Officer has approved an unfunded supplementary estimate of £20k for the 
provision of professional consultancy on the development plans of Abington 
Museum.  

3.2.3.9 Supplementary Estimate The charges levied by local authority land charges 
services for property searches have been regulated by statute which has traditionally 
set out either a mandatory charging basis or a permissive charging basis. Most if not 
all Local Authorities set charges to reflect the statutory scheme and implemented 
these. Private property search companies have challenged the fees set by 
authorities because in their view these are incompatible with the environmental 
Information regulations 2004 (EIRs) which provides for the free disclosure of certain 
information. In 2010 the Government revoked the personal search fee of local land 
charges register because of this incompatibility. Legal action has been brought 
against Local Authorities for charges levied from the 1 January 2005 onwards who 
have jointly instructed lawyers to represent them. A framework for settlement has 
now been agreed nationally by the local authorities group legal advisors Bevan 
Brittan which has resulted in an unfunded supplementary estimate requirement of 
£216,152.34 to settle the claim for this Council. Funds exist within the risk 
assessment of working balances level to cover this amount.   

 

3.2.4 Controllable HRA Revenue Budget (Blue) 

3.2.4.1 Special Services forecast saving against service reflecting the restructure carried 
out within the service. 

3.2.4.2 Provision for Bad Debts forecast saving reflecting the continued good performance 
on arrears management and the potential delay in the impact of the Welfare reforms 
predicted. 

3.2.4.3 Dwelling Rents forecast reflects impact of higher level of Right to Buys. 

3.2.4.4 Other includes forecast overspend on Rents, rates, taxes on empty properties and 
the forecast nil rent rebate subsidy limitation deductions. 

 

3.2.5 Capital Programme 

General Fund Capital Programme 

3.2.5.1 Following the reprioritisation of the programme, as approved by Cabinet on the 10th 
September 2014, there are few variances currently forecast. Where there are 
variances, these are mostly in relation to schemes that are externally funded, e.g. 
grants or section 106, so there is no net saving. The only significant forecast saving 

245



is in relation to Disabled Facility Grants, currently forecast to be £242k underspent 
although further work is being undertaken to firm this up. 
 

3.2.5.2 In line with approved processes, the Capital Programme Board has approved 
changes to the capital programme as set out in Appendix 3. 

 
3.2.5.3 The net impact of these changes is an increase in the programme of £3.24m to 

£36.08m. These increases are entirely funded by external grants, section 106, 
additional capital receipts or self-funded borrowing. Any further net increase in the 
Capital Programme, would need to be funded by borrowing unless an alternative 
funding source can be identified, with a consequent increase in revenue costs due to 
MRP repayments and interest costs. Any increases would therefore need to be 
funded by savings elsewhere in the programme or by revenue savings 

 
3.2.5.4 Any further additions to the capital programme, including strategic property 

purchases, will be subject to the development of a robust business case.  
 

 
 

HRA Capital Programme 
3.2.5 Overall expenditure on the HRA Capital Programme is forecast to be below budget by 

around £4.1m as at the end of September. There are some variations between 
schemes; proposed realignment of budgets to reflect current patterns of expenditure is 
set out in Appendix 4. The priority remains the achievement of Decent Homes 
standard across the whole of the Council’s dwelling stock. 

 
 

3.2.7 Data Quality 

The Council has processes in place to ensure that the data and information it provides 
to support management decision making is as reliable as possible.  The Council has a 
strategy to improve data quality and service areas are working to achieve the objectives 
within it.  This is closely linked to the Council’s risk assessment processes and is 
monitored each month as part of the Council’s Performance Management Framework. 

 

3.3 Choices (Options) 
 
3.3.1 Cabinet is asked to note the reported position financial position. 

3.3.2 Cabinet are asked to note the Supplementary estimate approved under Financial 
Regulations para 5.4.2 by the Chief Finance Officer as set out in para 3.2.3.8. 

3.3.3 Cabinet are asked to approve the Supplementary estimate for settlement of the Land 
Charges national claim as set out in para 3.2.3.9. 

3.3.4 Cabinet are asked to approve the changes to the General Fund Capital Programme for 
2014-15 as set out in Appendix 3 and the revised Programme set out in Appendix 4. 

3.3.5 If Cabinet do not approve these changes then approve an offsetting increase in the level 
of borrowing used to fund the Capital Programme in 2014-15. 

 

 
 

246



4. Implications (including financial implications) 

 

4.1 Policy 

4.1.1 The Council agreed a balanced budget for the Capital Programme and Revenue 
Budgets for both the General Fund and the HRA in February 2014.  Delivery of the 
budget is monitored through the budget monitoring framework. 

4.1.2 Corporate measures are monitored regularly to track progress towards delivering our 
priorities, as detailed in the Council’s Corporate Plan.  Service areas annually develop 
objectives, measures and targets to ensure the delivery of the Corporate Plan through 
the service planning process. The monitoring of progress is through the Performance 
Management Framework. 

 
4.2 Resources and Risk 

4.2.1 This report informs the Cabinet of the forecast outturn positions for capital and revenue, 
for both the General Fund and HRA, as at the end of June 2014.  It also highlights the 
key risks identified to date in delivering those budgets and where performance 
measures are significantly over or under performing. 

4.2.2 There will be an on-going impact in future years if any of the savings within the 2014/15 
budget are not achieved, particularly where services move outside the direct control of 
the Council. 

4.2.3 All objectives, measures and targets within Service Plans are risk assessed and 
challenged before final approval. The challenge process includes the agreement of 
performance targets and the capacity to deliver the plans with appropriate resources set 
aside to do so. 

4.2.4 All schemes included in the capital programme, or put forward for approval, are fully 
funded, either through borrowing, internal resources or external funding arrangements. 

4.2.5 The risk of not settling the Land Charges claim in line with the Legal advice from Bevan 
Brittan, the legal advisors of the local authorities group, could result in much higher 
costs to the Council. 

 

4.3 Legal 

4.3.1 There are no specific legal implications arising from this report. 

 
 

4.4 Equality and Health 

4.4.1 There are no specific equalities implications arising from this report. 

4.4.2 A full Community/Equalities Impact Analysis has been completed for both the Corporate 
Plan, and the 2014/19 Budget, which are available on the Council website 

 

4.5 Consultees (Internal and External) 

4.5.1 Heads of Service, Budget Managers and Management Board are consulted as part of 
the budget and performance monitoring process on a monthly basis. 

4.5.2 Performance data (financial and non-financial) is published on the Council website. 

247



 
 

4.6 How the Proposals Deliver Priority Outcomes 

4.6.1 Performance monitoring (financial and non-financial) by exception and using it to 
improve performance is good practice in terms of efficient and effective management.  It 
contributes directly to the priorities of sustaining “effective and prudent financial 
management” and being “an agile, transparent organisation with good governance”. 

 

4.7 Other Implications 

4.7.1 There are no other implications arising from this report. 

 
 
5. Background Papers 

 
5.1 Cabinet and Council Budget and Capital Programme Reports February 2014 

5.2 Corporate Performance Highlight Report - September 2014 

5.3 All measures report - September 2014 

 
 

Management Board, c/o David Kennedy, Chief Executive, 01604 837726 
Glenn Hammons, Section 151 Officer, 01604 366521 

 
 

 

248



September 2014

Month of report

Corporate Performance Highlight Report

Priority 1

Priority 2

Your Town - A town to be proud of

You - How your Council will support and empower 
you and your community

Appendix 1

249



NBC Corporate Plan
The table below has been included for informational purposes, and shows the current year to date performance of each element of the Corporate Plan.
The Alerts are generated from the PIs which each Service Area aligned to the 8 priorities during the service planning process.

Northampton alive with innovation, enterprise and opportunity

Corporate Plan
YTD

Your Town - A town to be proud of
You - How your Council will support and empower you and your community

Theme
YTD

Total
16 7 16 16 55

Corporate Plan - Current Status

250



Performance Dashboard

Health of the Partnership

LGSS Performance

Service Delivery
Reputation
Savings

Theme
Total

6 7 28 1 42

Service Delivery KPI Performance

INS01 % Liability Claims decisions communicated within Civil Procedure Rules (M) 88.48 % 95.00 %
Seven decisions were made in September and all of these were made within CP rules. 

Source Date 30/09/2014
PAY03 % Statutory returns made on time and to standard (M) 88.50 % 100.00 %
System issue resulted in SLA below agreed timescales (HMRC RTI Reporting Functionality issue), but this has now been resolved and should not happen in the 

future. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

PF07 Average monthly investment performance compared to 7 day LIBID (M) 0.29 0.50
The ability to meet this target is reliant on the market providing financial products with suitable rates that also comply with the risk requirements set out within the 

Council's Treasury Management Strategy. Bank of England economic initiatives 2013-14 saw financial institutions cut back on offered rates as their need to attract new 
money diminished, and the rates available on suitable investments reduced significantly in 2013-14 as a result, and have remained at these levels into 2014-15.

Benchmarking data available to the authority demonstrates that this situation is common across local authorities.

To ensure the Council is maximising the current opportunities contained in the Treasury Management Strategy it works with its external Treasury Management Advisers 
on an ongoing basis to review the position, and to assess available investment offerings.

The average investment balance for September is £95m; the weighted average rate of interest is 0.66%; the average 7 day LIBID is 0.36%.
The average investment balance for Q2 is £88m; the weighted average rate of interest is 0.64%; the average 7 day LIBID is 0.35%. 

Service Delivery KPI Exceptions
Actual Target Performance

251



Source Date 30/09/2014
PROC03 % Savings achieved compared to baseline (M) 0.00 % 10.00 %
This KPI is under review to be merged with PROC01 - No savings to report this month 

Source Date 30/09/2014
REV06 % Revs & Bens calls answered in CCC (M) 80.29 % 89.67 %
Overall performance levels have increased and are in target despite a high level of council tax reminders (5548) that generated a higher number of calls than the 

previous month (11917 against 10165). 
Source Date 30/09/2014

REV09 % Non-Domestic rates collected (M) 56.57 % 60.40 %
The monthly collection rate is down on the last financial year mainly due to the legislation change aloowing the spreading of instalments. We have re-profiled the 

monthly targets based on the best estimates available, however the majority of new occupiers who have moved in continue to opt for their instalments to be spread until 
March. We continue to recover in accordance with our recovery timetable and this is not inidicating that there has been an increase in the number of companies 
struggling to pay, therefore by the end of the financial year, we expect the out-turn to be the same as last year. The effect of the 12 monthly payment is being repeated 
nationally, with collection rates being down by around 2.4% nationally. 

Source Date 30/09/2014

Service Delivery KPI Exceptions
Actual Target Performance

252



Exceptional or over 
performance

Outside agreed target 
tolerance

Key

Good to be low: Worse

Good to be low: Better

No change

Good to be High: Worse

Good to be High: Better

No target available

No data available

Northampton - on track

Invest in safer, cleaner neighbourhoods

Celebrating our heritage and culture

Making every £ go further

YOUR TOWN

Smaller
is 
Better

ESC01n Total bins/boxes missed in period (M) 240 239 300 1,781 700 1,400

This matter is being addressed within the contract performance process 
Bigger 
is 
Better

ESC02 % missed bins corrected within 24hrs of 
notification (M) 22.92 % 33.89 % 23.00 % 32.17 % 100.00 % 100.00 %

This matter is being addressed within the contract performance process 
Bigger 
is 
Better

ESC04 % household waste recycled and 
composted (NI192) (M) 40.55 % 48.14 % 44.54 % 45.79 % 48.00 % 48.00 %

The month of September sees an increase of 6.22% of KG's sent for recycling, reuse and composting in comparison to August 14. The recycling performance has also 
incerased by 2.55% in comparison to September 13. The YTD % of recycling, reuse and composting has increased by 1.13% in comparison to 2013/14 and is primarily 
due to the increase of green waste. There is a minor adjustment of 31.55 tonnes in relation to July 14 
Smaller
is 
Better

HI 01 Average time taken to re-let local authority 
homes (days) (M) 31.07 33.77 25.48 31.22 20.00 20.00

Several properties this month had multiple refusals after the completion of works which extended the void times by 3-4 weeks. As tenancy management move to office 
based sign ups which will be reliant on accurate completion dates for making sign up arrangements, the focus to ensure all properties meet the target dates will be across
all departments.

A change in the process for provisional viewings with prospective tenants is to be introduced on 20 October. The responsibility for arranging and organising viewings will 
be controlled by the property maintenance team with the in house trade team carrying out the accompanied viewing. It is hoped the advantages of this move will 
decrease the amount of refusals on properties by engaging prospective tenants in the process at an earlier juncture with detail of the refurbishment work and completion 
dates. 
Smaller
is 
Better

HI 04 Percentage void rent loss (M) 1.98 % 2.06 % 2.18 % 2.14 % 1.50 % 1.50 %

Our objective of controlling long term voids by introduction of sustainable, effective processes continue to be a collective priority to reduce void times and associated 
rent losses. 
Smaller
is 
Better

HI 21 Former tenant arrears as a percentage of 
the annual rent debit (M) 1.23 % 1.23 % 1.32 % 1.32 % 1.18 % 1.04 %

At the end of September former tenants arrears totalled £685,308. Although this is another monthly increase it also reflects the fact that the amount of FTA debt written 
off, year to date, has been lower than expected. A liaison meeting between the Recovery Team (LGSS) and Landlord Services has been arranged during October to look 
at measures being taken to reduce the level of FTA debt. 
Bigger 
is 
Better

MPE01 No. of new businesses locating on 
NWEZ (Q) 0 1 1 3 10

Through existing discussions, end of year target of 7 remains achievable 
Smaller
is 
Better

PP09 Overall crime figure for the period (M) 1,399.00 1,602.00 1,459.00 9,222.00 8,450.00 16,601.00

The volume of all crime for September 2014 is 1459 crimes. 
The actual figures since April 2014 have been adjusted to reflect slight changes in recorded crimes. 
Smaller
is 
Better

PP14 % change in Violence Offences (M) -17.41 % 11.95 % 25.09 % 25.09 % -4.51 % -9.00 %

YOUR TOWN: RED measures

Measure ID & Name Mar 14 Jun 14 Sep 14 Sep 14 YTD
Current YTD 
Profiled Target 
Sep 2014

Outturn Target
DOT v's 
same time 
last yr

253



There has been a 25.1% increase in violence offences from the baseline at the end of March 2014. 
This includes an 16.3% increase in violence with injury and a 33.6% increase in violence without injury.
Some of the actual figures for violence offences since April 2014 have altered slightly due to changes in recorded crime. 

YOUR TOWN: RED measures

Measure ID & Name Mar 14 Jun 14 Sep 14 Sep 14 YTD
Current YTD 
Profiled Target 
Sep 2014

Outturn Target
DOT v's 
same time 
last yr

254



Bigger is
Better CH10 No. of unique visits to Museum Pages (M) 3,952 3,067 3,129 24,354 21,000 43,000

Unique web visits continue to exceed our cumulative target for the first six months. 

Bigger is
Better

CS05 Percentage satisfied with the overall 
service provided by the Customer Service Officer 
(M)

100.00 % 97.22 % 96.10 % 95.07 % 90.00 % 90.00 %

77 surveys undertaken, 74 were satisfied with the service provided. 
Smaller is
Better

ESC10 Level of quality against an agreed 
standard - Open Spaces & Parks - Litter (%) (Q) 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 2.00 % 2.00 %

Smaller is
Better

ESC11 Level of quality against an agreed 
standard - Open Spaces & Parks - Detritus (%) 
(Q)

10.00 % 1.67 % 1.67 % 1.67 % 5.00 % 5.00 %

Smaller is
Better

HI 13 Rent arrears as a percentage of the 
annual debit (M) 2.61 % 2.86 % 2.63 % 2.63 % 3.23 % 2.70 %

Current tenants arrears at the end of September were £1,361,425, the projected debit is £51,774,624. Therefore arrears as a percentage of the debit are at 2.63%. 
This is well within target and a reduction of over £330k from the arrears at the end of September last year. 
Smaller is
Better

HI 22 Rent written off as a percentage of the 
annual rent roll (M) 1.12 % 0.19 % 0.31 % 0.31 % 0.40 % 0.81 %

Former tenants arrears written off in September totalled £20,396. This retains the year to date figure well within target. While this is positive, the lower level of write off 
than excpected also means that the level of FTA debt (HI21) is higher than expected. 
Bigger is
Better MPE02 No. of new jobs created on NWEZ (Q) 31 177 208 18 198

Continue to identify strong pipeline of jobs created within existing EZ businesses 
Bigger is
Better

MPE20 Amount of external funding secured for 
economic stimulation projects (Q) £1,462,000 £900,000 £2,362,000 £500,000 £1,000,000

LIF funding secured to improve power supply on EZ 
Bigger is
Better

NI157a % Major Planning applications 
determined in 13 weeks or agreed extension (M) 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 79.31 % 60.00 % 60.00 %

4 Major Applications were determined in total, one within 8 weeks and 3 with agreed Extensions of Time. 
Bigger is
Better

NI157b % of 'minor' planning apps determined 
within 8 weeks or agreed extension (M) 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 96.71 % 86.00 % 86.00 %

27 minor planning applications, 17 of which were determined within 8 weeks and the remaining 10 having agreed Extensions of Time. 
Bigger is
Better

TCO02 Number of events delivered in 
partnership: parks and open spaces (Q) 6 6 6 12 7 8

6 events were delivered in the July - September quarter in parks and open spaces including Bands in the Park, Waterfront, Alive at Delapre, Half Marathon, Rocking 
Road Runner and Heritage Open Day. 
Bigger is
Better TCO05n Town Centre footfall (Q) 2,776,853 3,937,028 4,002,889 7,939,917 7,000,000 13,000,000

Footfall levels are 2.5% higher for the April - September period when compared with 2013. 

YOUR TOWN: BLUE measures

Measure ID & Name Mar 14 Jun 14 Sep 14 Sep 14 YTD
Current YTD 
Profiled Target 
Sep 2014

Outturn Target
DOT v's 
same time 
last yr

255



Smaller is
Better

ESC05 % of Land and Highways assessed 
falling below an acceptable level - Litter (NI195a) 
(4M)

2.67 % 1.00 % 0.67 % 0.67 % 2.00 % 2.00 %

Smaller is
Better

ESC06 % of Land and Highways assessed 
falling below acceptable level - Detritus (NI195b) 
(4M)

3.17 % 1.33 % 0.33 % 0.33 % 5.00 % 5.00 %

YOUR TOWN: BLUE measures (4 Monthly)

Measure ID & Name Nov 13 Mar 14 Jul 14 Jul 14 YTD
Current YTD 
Profiled Target 
Jul 2014

Outturn Target
DOT v's 
same time 
last yr

256



Exceptional or over 
performance

Outside agreed target
tolerance

Key

Good to be low: Worse

Good to be low: Better

No change

Good to be High: Worse

Good to be High: Better

No target available

No data available

YOU
Better homes for the future

Creating empowered communities

Promoting health and wellbeing

Responding to your needs

Bigger is Better HSE01 Number of affordable homes delivered 
(Q) 96 41 46 87 180 600

Performance is below target partially due to the delivery of 36 units being delayed until quarter 3. 

Bigger is Better IG03 % FOI/EIR cases responded to within 20 
working days (M) 97.2 % 79.2 % 59.6 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

72 FOI/EIA requests were responded to in September, 57 were within the 20 working day time limit. 

Bigger is Better IG04 % Subject Access requests responded to 
within 40 days (M) 100.0 % 73.3 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

All subject access requests were responded to within the 40 day limit. 
Bigger is Better PSH01 % HMOs with a mandatory license (Q) 59.0 % 81.5 % 66.4 % 100.0 % 93.0 %

203 mandatory licenses have been issued/renewed out of a total of 249 known/due 

YOU: RED measures

Measure ID & Name Mar 14 Jun 14 Sep 14 Sep 14 YTD

Current YTD 
Profiled 
Target Sep 
2014

Outturn 
Target

DOT v's 
same time 
last yr

257



Bigger is Better PP16 % Off license checks that are compliant 
(Q) 100.00 100.00 85.00 85.00

2 off-license checks were performed between July to the end of September, and both were compliant. 

YOU: BLUE measures

Measure ID & Name Mar 14 Jun 14 Sep 14 Sep 14 YTD

Current YTD 
Profiled 
Target Sep 
2014

Outturn 
Target

DOT v's 
same time 
last yr

258



This report contains data for September 2014

Corporate Performance - Cabinet Measures Report
The report details the full list of performance measures monitoring the Council's Corporate Plan by 
corporate priority and is published quarterly.

The measures contained within this report are monitored on a monthly, quarterly, half yearly or four 
monthly basis.

Performance is reported against the latest report period and then by overall performance year to 
date (YTD). Overall YTD performance is monitored against the current profiled target and helps us 
to keep track of the progress towards meeting the annual target. 

Performance comparison against the same time last year is highlighted where comparative data is 
available.

Exceptional or 
over performance

On or exceeding 
target

Outside agreed 
target tolerance

Within agreed
tolerances

Key

Good to be low: 
Worse

Good to be low: 
Better

No change

Good to be High: 
Worse

Good to be High: 
Better

No target available

No data available

259

pstorey
Text Box
Appendix 2



NBC Corporate Plan
The table below has been included for informational purposes, and shows the current year to date performance of each element of the Corporate Plan.
The Alerts are generated from the PIs which each Service Area aligned to the 8 priorities during the service planning process.

Northampton alive with innovation, enterprise and opportunity

Corporate Plan
YTD

Your Town - A town to be proud of
You - How your Council will support and empower you and your community

Theme
YTD

Total
16 7 16 16 55

Corporate Plan - Current Status

260



Your Town

Bigger is 
Better

AST05a External rental income 
demanded against budgeted income (M) 100.21 % 99.99 % 99.45 % 98.17 % 98.17 % 95.00 % 95.00 % 95.31 %

We are currently exceeding the agreed rental targets. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Smaller is 
Better

AST05b % commercial rent demanded 
within the last 12 months (more than 2 
months in arrears) (M)

4.06 % 3.67 % 3.71 % 3.38 % 3.38 % 3.00 % 3.00 % 1.24 %

Any invoices that are older than 28 July 2014 are classed as being more than 2 months in rent arrears.

The figure has improved this month. A significant amount of the arrears is currently being managed, and a recovery plan is in place. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

AST12 % achieved where return on 
(sub group) investment properties meets 
agreed target rate (M)

94.94 % 94.94 % 94.94 % 94.94 % 94.94 % 90.00 % 90.00 % 91.25 %

The percentage of properties meeting or performing above the agreed target return for September 2014 is 94.9%.

The target of 90% target is exceeded for September 2014 through active management of the investment portfolio and the completion of sales of assets approved for disposal by cabinet or by the cabinet 
member responsible for Regeneration, Enterprise and Planning where applicable.

Currently, the vacancy rates for NBC's investment property are very low due to a proactive approach to property management. This approach has resulted in a higher turnover of tenants for some assets
in some locations. Property reviews are on-going and underperforming assets are reviewed and may be considered for reinvestment or disposal. 

Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

BV008 Percentage of invoices for 
commercial goods & serv. paid within 30 
days (M)

99.74 % 98.21 % 99.45 % 99.66 % 99.39 % 99.00 % 99.00 % 94.39 %

Supplier invoices continue to be paid promptly, exceeding the target. LGSS continues to work with NBC services ensuring business requirements are met and best practice is adhered to. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Smaller is 
Better

BV012_12r Ave. no. of days/shifts lost 
to sickness for rolling 12 month period (M) 10.55 10.55 10.40 10.24 10.24 9.74 10.00 10.21

BV12 at 10.24 days lost for September has improved slightly compared with June, July, August performance, Best performance to date October 13 at 10.11 days. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

CH10 No. of unique visits to Museum 
Pages (M) 3,067 4,173 4,325 3,129 24,354 21,000 43,000 23,659

Unique web visits continue to exceed our cumulative target for the first six months. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

CS05 Percentage satisfied with the 
overall service provided by the Customer 
Service Officer (M)

97.22 % 91.26 % 96.52 % 96.10 % 95.07 % 90.00 % 90.00 % 91.27 %

77 surveys undertaken, 74 were satisfied with the service provided. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is CS13a % of calls for NBC managed 

Your Town - Monthly Measures

Polarity Measure ID & Name Jun 14 Jul 14 Aug 14 Sep 14 Overall perf. 
to date YTD

Current 
Profiled 
Target

Outturn 
Target

Perf. vs. 
same time 
last year

YTD value same 
time last year

261



Better services into contact centre answered (M) 83.74 % 91.62 % 86.10 % 91.21 % 86.64 % 88.67 % 89.67 % 89.25 %
The Contact centre answered Approx 89.24 on a target of 90%. This was made up of average 91% from NBC and 88.95% from LGSS. Calls remained reasonably static from the previous month. 

Despite a recent secondment to call care, the cross training programme has supported performance and improved service delivery from the previous month. The cross training programme will continue 
through to December, with a temporary staff member employed to compensate 

Source Date 30/09/2014
Bigger is 
Better

CS14a % OSS customers with an 
appointment seen on time (M) 96.5 % 91.7 % 100.0 % 99.8 % 94.9 % 90.0 % 90.0 % 95.5 %

Hit Target with 99.81% of appointments seen within 10 minutes of their appointment time . Average Appointment wait tiime was 1.06 mins. We have seen an increase in drop ins in comparison with 
August. The average drop in service wait time was 7.39 mins. The average overall wait time was 4.22 minutes across all service areas. 

Source Date 30/09/2014
Smaller is 
Better

ESC01n Total bins/boxes missed in 
period (M) 239 344 271 300 1,781 700 1,400 653

This matter is being addressed within the contract performance process 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

ESC02 % missed bins corrected within 
24hrs of notification (M) 33.89 % 37.21 % 16.97 % 23.00 % 32.17 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 80.70 %

This matter is being addressed within the contract performance process 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

ESC04 % household waste recycled 
and composted (NI192) (M) 48.14 % 46.27 % 42.51 % 44.54 % 45.79 % 48.00 % 48.00 % 44.87 %

The month of September sees an increase of 6.22% of KG's sent for recycling, reuse and composting in comparison to August 14. The recycling performance has also incerased by 2.55% in 
comparison to September 13. The YTD % of recycling, reuse and composting has increased by 1.13% in comparison to 2013/14 and is primarily due to the increase of green waste. There is a minor
adjustment of 31.55 tonnes in relation to July 14 

Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

ESC09 % of Fly Tipping incidents 
removed within 2 working days of 
notification (SO2) (M)

100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 99.24 % 99.67 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 100.00 %

8 incidents were not completed due to a broken down vehicle 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Smaller is 
Better

HI 01 Average time taken to re-let local 
authority homes (days) (M) 33.77 25.76 23.90 25.48 31.22 20.00 20.00 24.75

Several properties this month had multiple refusals after the completion of works which extended the void times by 3-4 weeks. As tenancy management move to office based sign ups which will be
reliant on accurate completion dates for making sign up arrangements, the focus to ensure all properties meet the target dates will be across all departments.

A change in the process for provisional viewings with prospective tenants is to be introduced on 20 October. The responsibility for arranging and organising viewings will be controlled by the property
maintenance team with the in house trade team carrying out the accompanied viewing. It is hoped the advantages of this move will decrease the amount of refusals on properties by engaging 
prospective tenants in the process at an earlier juncture with detail of the refurbishment work and completion dates. 

Source Date 30/09/2014
Smaller is 
Better HI 04 Percentage void rent loss (M) 2.06 % 2.28 % 2.04 % 2.18 % 2.14 % 1.50 % 1.50 % 1.84 %

Our objective of controlling long term voids by introduction of sustainable, effective processes continue to be a collective priority to reduce void times and associated rent losses. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

HI 12 Rent collected as a proportion of 
rent owed on HRA dwellings % 
exc.arrears brought forward (M)

100.26 % 97.19 % 103.96 % 100.54 % 98.62 % 98.78 % 99.70 % 97.93 %

Rent and service charges due for September were £5,382,990 with £5,411,838 being collected. This gives a collection rate for the month of over 100%, although this was partly achieved because the
1st October direct debit payments fell into the September accounting period. The YTD collection rate continues to increase and at 98.62% is almost at the YTD target. 

Source Date 30/09/2014

Smaller is HI 13 Rent arrears as a percentage of 2.86 % 2.93 % 2.64 % 2.63 % 2.63 % 3.23 % 2.70 % 3.36 %

Your Town - Monthly Measures

Polarity Measure ID & Name Jun 14 Jul 14 Aug 14 Sep 14 Overall perf. 
to date YTD

Current 
Profiled 
Target

Outturn 
Target

Perf. vs. 
same time 
last year

YTD value same 
time last year

262



Better the annual debit (M)
Current tenants arrears at the end of September were £1,361,425, the projected debit is £51,774,624. Therefore arrears as a percentage of the debit are at 2.63%. This is well within target and a 

reduction of over £330k from the arrears at the end of September last year. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Smaller is 
Better

HI 21 Former tenant arrears as a 
percentage of the annual rent debit (M) 1.23 % 1.23 % 1.25 % 1.32 % 1.32 % 1.18 % 1.04 % 1.64 %

At the end of September former tenants arrears totalled £685,308. Although this is another monthly increase it also reflects the fact that the amount of FTA debt written off, year to date, has been lower
than expected. A liaison meeting between the Recovery Team (LGSS) and Landlord Services has been arranged during October to look at measures being taken to reduce the level of FTA debt. 

Source Date 30/09/2014
Smaller is 
Better

HI 22 Rent written off as a percentage 
of the annual rent roll (M) 0.19 % 0.23 % 0.27 % 0.31 % 0.31 % 0.40 % 0.81 % 0.53 %

Former tenants arrears written off in September totalled £20,396. This retains the year to date figure well within target. While this is positive, the lower level of write off than excpected also means that 
the level of FTA debt (HI21) is higher than expected. 

Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

NI157a % Major Planning applications 
determined in 13 weeks or agreed 
extension (M)

100.00 % 50.00 % 75.00 % 100.00 % 79.31 % 60.00 % 60.00 % 63.33 %

4 Major Applications were determined in total, one within 8 weeks and 3 with agreed Extensions of Time. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

NI157b % of 'minor' planning apps 
determined within 8 weeks or agreed 
extension (M)

100.00 % 95.65 % 100.00 % 100.00 % 96.71 % 86.00 % 86.00 % 84.96 %

27 minor planning applications, 17 of which were determined within 8 weeks and the remaining 10 having agreed Extensions of Time. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

NI157c % of 'other' planning apps 
determined within 8 weeks or agreed 
extension (M)

87.69 % 90.24 % 95.83 % 100.00 % 92.88 % 90.00 % 90.00 % 92.62 %

In total 60 applications were determined of which 55 were within agreed target dates. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Smaller is 
Better

PP06 % change in serious acquisitive 
crime from the baseline (M) -7.57 % -7.26 % -7.23 % -8.52 % -8.52 % -8.07 % -16.00 % -9.02 %

8.5% reduction in Serious Aquisitive Crime (SAC) from the baseline. 

There has been a combined reduction of 8.4% in vehicle crime (theft from & theft of motor vehicle), 11.8% reduction in burglary dwelling and 2.7% increase in robbery since March 2014. 

In relation to Northampton sectors, reductions can be seen across all three with a reduction of 8.9% on North/East, 8.8% on Central and 8.2% on South West. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Smaller is 
Better

PP09 Overall crime figure for the period 
(M) 1,602.00 1,657.00 1,589.00 1,459.00 9,222.00 8,450.00 16,601.00 8,449.00

The volume of all crime for September 2014 is 1459 crimes. 
The actual figures since April 2014 have been adjusted to reflect slight changes in recorded crimes. 

Source Date 30/09/2014
Smaller is 
Better

PP14 % change in Violence Offences 
(M) 11.95 % 17.13 % 20.73 % 25.09 % 25.09 % -4.51 % -9.00 % -10.46 %

There has been a 25.1% increase in violence offences from the baseline at the end of March 2014. 
This includes an 16.3% increase in violence with injury and a 33.6% increase in violence without injury.
Some of the actual figures for violence offences since April 2014 have altered slightly due to changes in recorded crime. 

Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is PP22 % Hackney Carriage and private 

Your Town - Monthly Measures

Polarity Measure ID & Name Jun 14 Jul 14 Aug 14 Sep 14 Overall perf. 
to date YTD

Current 
Profiled 
Target

Outturn 
Target

Perf. vs. 
same time 
last year

YTD value same 
time last year

263



Better hire vehicles inspected which comply with 
regulations (M)

61.11 % 66.67 % 75.68 % 66.67 % 65.00 % 65.00 % 55.65 %

Multi agency vehicle check with police, Customs and VOSA. 
37 vehicles were inspected during September. 28 compliant. 

Source Date 30/09/2014

Your Town - Monthly Measures

Polarity Measure ID & Name Jun 14 Jul 14 Aug 14 Sep 14 Overall perf. 
to date YTD

Current 
Profiled 
Target

Outturn 
Target

Perf. vs. 
same time 
last year

YTD value same 
time last year

264



Smaller is 
Better

ESC10 Level of quality against an 
agreed standard - Open Spaces & Parks -
Litter (%) (Q)

0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 2.00 % 2.00 % 0.00 %

Source Date 30/09/2014

Smaller is 
Better

ESC11 Level of quality against an 
agreed standard - Open Spaces & Parks -
Detritus (%) (Q)

1.67 % 10.00 % 1.67 % 1.67 % 1.67 % 5.00 % 5.00 % 0.00 %

Source Date 30/09/2014

Smaller is 
Better

ESC12 Level of quality against an 
agreed std - Open Spaces & Parks -
Graffiti & Fly Posting (%) (Q)

0.00 % 0.00 % 1.67 % 0.00 % 0.83 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %

Source Date 30/09/2014
Smaller is 
Better

IG02 Av. days to respond to LGO 
enquiries (excl. pre-determined cases) (Q) 3.57 ? ? 28.00 28.00

No data available 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

MPE01 No. of new businesses locating 
on NWEZ (Q) 0 1 1 3 10

Through existing discussions, end of year target of 7 remains achievable 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

MPE02 No. of new jobs created on 
NWEZ (Q) 31 177 208 18 198

Continue to identify strong pipeline of jobs created within existing EZ businesses 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

MPE20 Amount of external funding 
secured for economic stimulation projects 
(Q)

£1,462,000 £900,000 £2,362,000 £500,000 £1,000,000

LIF funding secured to improve power supply on EZ 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

PP17 % victims/witnesses satisfied with 
Anti-Social support service (Q) 100.0 % 100.0 % 100.0 % 95.0 % 95.0 %

During the second quarter there have been a total of 13 victims/witnesses involved in cases closed with the Anti-Social Behaviour Unit. Of these, 5 could be contacted for feedback and 100% of those
were satisfied with support they had received. 

Source Date 30/09/2014
Bigger is 
Better

TCO01 Number of events delivered in 
partnership: Town Centre (Q) 2 1 7 4 11 9 13 15

4 events held during the July - September quarter including Summer Bandstands, BID Food Festivals, WW1 Commemoration and Street Theatre. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

TCO02 Number of events delivered in 
partnership: parks and open spaces (Q) 8 6 6 6 12 7 8 13

6 events were delivered in the July - September quarter in parks and open spaces including Bands in the Park, Waterfront, Alive at Delapre, Half Marathon, Rocking Road Runner and Heritage Open
Day. 

Source Date 30/09/2014
Bigger is 
Better TCO05n Town Centre footfall (Q) 3,101,037 2,776,853 3,937,028 4,002,889 7,939,917 7,000,000 13,000,000 7,936,157

Your Town - Quarterly Measures

Polarity Measure ID & Name Dec 13 Mar 14 Jun 14 Sep 14 Overall perf. 
to Date YTD

Current 
Profiled 
Target

Annual 
Target

Perf. vs. 
same time 
last year

YTD value same 
time last year

265



Footfall levels are 2.5% higher for the April - September period when compared with 2013. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Your Town - Quarterly Measures

Polarity Measure ID & Name Dec 13 Mar 14 Jun 14 Sep 14 Overall perf. 
to Date YTD

Current 
Profiled 
Target

Annual 
Target

Perf. vs. 
same time 
last year

YTD value same 
time last year

266



Smaller is 
Better

ESC05 % of Land and Highways 
assessed falling below an acceptable 
level - Litter (NI195a) (4M)

2.67 % 1.00 % 0.67 % 0.67 % 2.00 % 2.00 % 0.33 %

Source Date 31/07/2014

Smaller is 
Better

ESC06 % of Land and Highways 
assessed falling below acceptable level -
Detritus (NI195b) (4M)

3.17 % 1.33 % 0.33 % 0.33 % 5.00 % 5.00 % 1.00 %

Source Date 31/07/2014

Smaller is 
Better

ESC07 % of Land and Highways 
assessed falling below acceptable level -
Graffiti (NI195c) (4M)

0.50 % 0.00 % 0.33 % 0.33 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.67 %

Source Date 31/07/2014

Smaller is 
Better

ESC08 % of Land and Highways 
assessed falling below acceptable level -
FlyPosting (NI195d) (4M)

0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 % 0.00 %

Source Date 31/07/2014

Your Town - 4 Monthly Measures

Polarity Measure ID & Name Nov 13 Mar 14 Jul 14 Overall perf. 
to Date YTD

Current 
Profiled 
Target

Annual Target
Perf. vs. 
same time 
last year

YTD value same 
time last year

267



Smaller is 
Better

NI170 Previously developed land that has been vacant or derelict for more than 5 
years (A) 0.72 % 1.46 % 2.00 %

Performance is lower than the target set. There has been an increase in derelict land due to school sites now being vacant for more than 5 years. The encouraging signs in the economy should see 
active development proposals come forward for these sites ensuring most are removed are removed in the near future. 

Source Date 31/03/2014

Your Town - Annual Measures
Polarity Measure ID & Name Mar 13 Mar 14 Outturn Target Mar 2015

268



You

Smaller is 
Better

HMLS01 Total no. of households living 
in temporary accommodation (M) 63 63 64 66 66 65 65 18

Whilst the number of households living in TA is higher than last month it has only exceeded the target by 1 and the culmulative target is beign met overall. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

IG03 % FOI/EIR cases responded to 
within 20 working days (M) 97.2 % 94.0 % 91.4 % 79.2 % 59.6 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

72 FOI/EIA requests were responded to in September, 57 were within the 20 working day time limit. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

IG04 % Subject Access requests 
responded to within 40 days (M) 100.0 % 85.7 % 100.0 % 73.3 % 100.0 % 100.0 %

All subject access requests were responded to within the 40 day limit. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better LT01 Total Visits to Leisure Centres (M) 92,243 92,434 96,451 76,200 536,808 520,350 1,008,850 459,783

Good weather affected usage, but alsoo the new information system may be under-reporting 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

PP53 % Service requests responded to 
within 3 working days (M) 87.31 % 88.14 % 83.52 % 82.36 % 86.48 % 91.00 % 91.58 %

Increase in number of service requests during month and delays in first response due to limited staff resources 
Source Date 30/09/2014

You

Polarity Measure ID & Name Jun 14 Jul 14 Aug 14 Sep 14 Overall perf. 
to date YTD

Current 
Profiled 
Target

Outturn Target
Perf. vs. 
same time 
last year

YTD value same 
time last year

269



Bigger is 
Better

CE03 Increase in attendance at 
community forums (Q) 12 10 10 0 0

This has seen a drop in the previous average provided for forum attendance. However there have been less meetings in this period due to holidays. The youth forum experienced low attendance, due
to the young people leaving to go to university. 

On a positive note, the pensioners forum and the diverse communities forum, have experienced an increase in attendance this month. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

HSE01 Number of affordable homes 
delivered (Q) 75 96 41 46 87 180 600 61

Performance is below target partially due to the delivery of 36 units being delayed until quarter 3. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

IG01 % LGO cases responded to within 
28 days (excl. pre-determined cases) (Q) 100.0 % ? ? 100.0 % 100.0 %

No data available 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

LT02 Total No. of people enrolled in 
swimming program (M) 2,706 2,846 2,846 ? ? 3,015 3,080 2,740

It is not currently possible to extract the swim enrolement figures from the new Leisure system 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

PP16 % Off license checks that are 
compliant (Q) 100.00 100.00 85.00 85.00

2 off-license checks were performed between July to the end of September, and both were compliant. 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

PSH01 % HMOs with a mandatory 
license (Q) 59.0 % 81.5 % 66.4 % 100.0 % 93.0 %

203 mandatory licenses have been issued/renewed out of a total of 249 known/due 
Source Date 30/09/2014

Bigger is 
Better

PSH02 No. of HMOs with an additional 
license (Q) 0 0 0 0 500

Additional licensing is due to go live during November 2014 
Source Date 30/09/2014

You - Quarterly Measures

Polarity Measure ID & Name Dec 13 Mar 14 Jun 14 Sep 14 Overall perf. 
to Date YTD

Current 
Profiled 
Target

Annual 
Target

Perf. vs. 
same time 
last year

YTD value same 
time last year

270



Smaller is 
Better

HI 33 Percentage of non-decent council 
homes (NI 158)(A) 48.90 % 27.64 % 0.00 %

72% of council properties meet the decent homes standard 
Source Date 31/03/2014

Bigger is 
Better

NI154 Net additional homes provided 
(A) 516.00 834.00 785.00

New targets have been set following the revocation of the East Midlands Plan - the target is more reflective of likely delivery rates. 
Source Date 31/03/2014

Bigger is 
Better

NI159 Supply of ready to develop 
housing sites (A) 48.72 % 100.49 % 100.00 %

The West Northamptonshire Joint Core Strategy Submission - Proposed Modifications identifies the 5 year housing supply target. It supersedes Regional Planning targets, which although no longer
part of the development plan, were the last housing targets set for the town. Against the target set the housing trajectory identifies how delivery will occur. Delivery is stronger due to the increase in 
confidence in the housing market. 

Source Date 31/03/2014

You - Annual Measures
Polarity Measure ID & Name Mar 13 Mar 14 Outturn Target Mar 2015

271



Appendix 3 
 

Cabinet 12th November 2014 

 

Capital Budget Changes September 2014 – Approved under Delegation 

 

Reference Scheme Title 2014/15 
£ 

2015/16 
£ 

Comments 

     

BA649 
2014-15 

Skate Park Café Extension 35,000  55,000 Borrowing funded by 
increased rental 
income     

BA689 NCC Education Contribution 1,585,660  Section 106 Funded, 
ring-fenced 
contribution 

     

BA691 Pig & Whistle Lease 
Surrender 

50,000  Lease surrender 
premium 

     

BA679 Albion Brewery Equipment 15,000  Loan to Phipps 
Brewery 

     

BA693 Headlands CC Car Park 20,000  Section 106 funded 
     

BA138 V01 Cemeteries Refurbishment 
Works 

(8,000)  
Balances transferred 
to meet parks 
projects in progress 

BA648 V01 Allotments (11,000)  

BA895 V01 Allotment Provision (85,000)  

BA186 V01 Improvements to Parks 
Infrastructure 

104,000   

     

BA657 V01 Billing Lane Public Art 
(Footpath and Hand Rails) 

5,277  Additional works 
funded by Section 
106 

     

BA660 Northampton Town FC Loan 1,500,000  Facility agreement as 
approved by Cabinet 
July 2013 

     

BA674-11 Bradlaugh Fields Pond 25,000  Funded by Anglian 
Water 

     

 

 

  

 

 

272



Appendix  4

HRA Capital Programme 2014-15 - Proposed Realignment

Code Scheme Title
2014-15 Latest 

Approved 
Budget

2014-15 
Proposed 

Budget

2014-15 
Change

Proposed 
Carry 

Forward to 
2015-16

Comment

£ £ £ £

BH375 Lift Refurbishment - St Katherine's 0 96,500 96,500 Implementation of scheme approved in 2013/14
BH354 Lift Refurbishment 0 25,000 25,000 To cover anticipated expenditure
BH325 Gas Appliance Replacement - Responsive 0 1,600,000 1,600,000 To cover anticipated expenditure
BH324 Gas Appliance Replacement - Planned 0 60,000 60,000 To cover anticipated expenditure
BH022 Community Energy Savings Partnership 508,748 658,748 150,000 Completion of contract on site with Retrofit

BH376 Little Cross St Walkway 517,166 200,000 (317,166) 317,166 Awaiting consultants review, carry forward to cover 
proposed solution.

BH317 Decent Homes 39,305,000 35,305,000 (4,000,000) Less work required than initially identified
BH305 Structural Improvements 200,000 200,000 0
BH377 Heating Replacements 900,000 0 (900,000) Budgets to be moved to BH324 & BH325
BH329 Asbestos removal remedial action 100,000 15,000 (85,000) 85,000 Awaiting report to inform programme
BH351 Door entry replacement 150,000 150,000 0
BH378 Property Improvements outside Decent Homes 230,000 0 (230,000) Budget to be moved to specific schemes
BH020 Electrical periodic works 125,000 125,000 0
BH003 Garage roofs, doors and forecourts 100,000 100,000 0
BH013 Digital Aerials 10,000 10,000 0
BH379 SCATE 640,000 640,000 0
BH009 Fire safety in communal areas 150,000 150,000 0
BH380 Disabled adaptations 1,140,000 1,140,000 0
BH366 Sheltered housing improvements 1,000,000 1,000,000 0
BH367 IT capital 584,514 446,000 (138,514) Costs lower than previously estimated
BH365 Walkways 100,000 3,500 (96,500) Remaining balance to be transferred to BH375
BH372 Green deal contribution & energy efficiency 50,000 50,000 0
BH370 Major Regeneration, Repurchase and New Build. 2,706,910 1,331,910 (1,375,000) 700,000
BH373 Change of Use 250,000 100,000 (150,000)
BH374 CCTV 50,000 20,000 (30,000) 5,000
BH140 Disabled Grant - Major Repairs 38,462
BH304 Complete Roofs 45,000 45,000
BH321 Door & Window Replacement 100,000 100,000

Total 48,855,800 43,571,658 (5,245,680) 1,107,166

273


	Agenda
	2 Minutes
	6a Recommendations of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee - Impact of the Welfare Reform Act
	7 Housing Asset Management Strategy
	Draft Asset Management Strategy 2015-20
	Housing Asset Appendix A - Action List
	Housing Asset Appendix B1- Stock Details
	Housing Asset Appendix B2 - Stock Details
	Housing Asset Appendix B3 - Stock Details
	Housing Asset Appendix B4 - Stock Details
	Housing Asset Appendix C - Investment Plan
	Housing Asset Appendix D - AM Explained
	NPH Asset Management Explained.vsd
	Page-1



	8 Northampton Partnership Homes
	Final Management Agreement
	Management Agreement Final
	1 38TDefinitions and interpretations
	1.1 The definitions used are as follows:
	1.2 A reference to any Act of Parliament, or to any order, regulation, statutory instrument, or the like, shall be deemed to include a reference to any amendment, re-enactment, consolidation, variation, replacement or extension of the same respectivel...
	1.3 A reference to any statutory authority, agency or regulatory body shall include a reference to any other such authority, agency or regulatory body which from time to time carries on substantially the same functions.
	1.4 Wordings denoting the singular shall include the plural and vice versa and words denoting the masculine gender shall include the feminine gender and vice versa and words denoting persons shall include firms and corporations.
	1.5 References to clauses, schedules and annexes shall be deemed to be references to the clauses in and the schedules and annexes to this Agreement as so numbered.
	1.6 In this Agreement headings are included for ease of reference only and shall not affect this Agreement or the interpretation thereof.

	2 38TNPH Services and Delegations
	2.1 NPH will provide the Services as set out in the Delivery Plan in accordance with the Specification and the Delivery Plan and the other provisions of this Agreement.
	2.2 The Council hereby delegates the functions listed in Schedule 2 on the basis summarised therein and as more fully described in the Specification and the Delivery Plan.
	2.3 NPH will carry on its business in accordance with all laws and mandatory regulations applicable to it, its articles of association and the terms of this Agreement.
	2.4 NPH will not do or refrain from doing anything that might lead to action by the Regulator against the Council.
	2.5 Notwithstanding the Council’s obligation to provide financial support to NPH in Clause 19, NPH will ensure that it conducts its business in a prudent and commercial manner.
	3 38TThe Delivery Plan
	3.1 The Delivery Plan shall operate on a rolling five Financial Year basis starting on 1 April 2015 (the Delivery Plan Period).
	3.2 Prior to the start of each Financial Year starting on 1 April 2016 the Council and NPH will discuss any changes to the Delivery Plan required by the Council or proposed by NPH in accordance with the review process set out in section 8 of the Deliv...
	3.3 In order to support the 5 year basis of the Delivery Plan the review process described in Clause 3.2 will not result in significant changes unless such changes are approved in writing by both the Council's Leader and Chief Executive, subject alway...
	3.4 NPH will comply with all reasonable changes to the Delivery Plan made by the Council provided that the Total Fee is adjusted to ensure that (a) the costs of making the changes (including without limitation stopping or reducing existing Services, c...
	3.5 Any dispute over any change in the Delivery Plan or the Total Fee arising from Clauses 3.2-3.4 shall be resolved using the Dispute Resolution process in Clause 31.

	4 38TVariation to the Specification and the Services
	4.1 The Council will only vary the Specification (including the policies and protocols referred to therein) as may be necessary to reflect changes to the Delivery Plan in accordance with Clause 3.
	4.2 In the following circumstances the Council shall be entitled to vary the Services as such circumstances require and shall give NPH as much notice thereof as is practicable:
	4.2.1 the exercise of the Right to Manage;
	4.2.2 formal steps taken by the Regulator.

	4.3 The Council and NPH will regularly review the list of services to be provided by NPH.
	4.4 The Council shall be entitled from time to time to add one or more services to the Specification. The parties, acting reasonably, will agree the description of the service and the other information required by the format of Schedule 1 and the vari...

	5 38TExisting Contracts
	5.1 The Council shall within 20 Working Days after the date hereof novate or assign to NPH the benefit of and all rights of action in respect of the contracts identified as assigned contracts (designated 'A' or 'N') in the Annex (the Transferred Contr...
	5.2 The contracts identified as retained contracts (designated 'R') in the Annex (the Retained Contracts) shall not be novated or  assigned to NPH but to the extent that they relate to the subject-matter of this Agreement they shall be held on trust b...
	5.2.1 the Council shall supervise or manage the Retained Contracts and the works or services comprised therein and give such instructions in relation thereto as may be necessary or expedient (subject to prior consultation with NPH); and
	5.2.2 the Council shall at the request and cost of NPH take such enforcement action under the Retained Contracts as may reasonably be required by NPH; and
	5.2.3 the Total Fee otherwise payable to NPH shall be adjusted to reflect the payments due under the Retained Contracts in that Financial Year.

	5.3 Until the novation or assignment of the Transferred Contracts:
	5.3.1 the Council shall hold the Transferred Contracts on trust for NPH;
	5.3.2 the Council shall under the direction of NPH supervise or manage the Transferred Contracts and the works or services comprised therein and give such instructions in relation thereto as may be necessary or expedient;
	5.3.3 the Council shall at NPH’s cost join with NPH in any proceedings reasonably brought by NPH against such contractors or consultants to enforce the Transferred Contracts;
	5.3.4 the Council shall at NPH’s cost join in any novation or consensual termination of the Transferred Contracts at NPH's request;
	5.3.5 NPH shall ensure any sum or sums that are due and properly payable to a contractor pursuant to  any Transferred Contract in respect of any work done or services carried out by that contractor following the date hereof are paid directly to the co...
	5.3.6 any dispute over the management of a Transferred Contract and/or any sum payable to a contractor thereunder shall be resolved using the Dispute Resolution process in Clause 31.

	5.4 All retentions made and held by the Council in respect of the Transferred Contracts (as identified in the Annex) shall upon the novation or assignment of such Transferred Contracts to NPH, and where such retentions are due to the contractor be pai...
	5.5 The Council warrants that, save as specifically disclosed to NPH in writing:
	5.5.1 all payments by the Council falling due prior to the date hereof under the Transferred Contracts and the Retained Contracts have been made by it and that there are no outstanding legal or arbitration proceedings in relation to the Transferred Co...
	5.5.2 there is no subsisting material breach of any of the Transferred Contracts by the Council nor, so far as it is aware, by any of the other contracting parties.


	6 38TRepairs & Maintenance and  Improvement
	6.1 NPH will  deliver the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme by:
	6.1.1 letting and administering the Repairs & Maintenance Works Contracts in accordance with Clause 7; and
	6.1.2 letting and administering the Improvement Works Contracts in accordance with Clause 8,

	6.2 The parties shall review the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme on a yearly basis as part of the review of the Delivery Plan (and shall accordingly be subject to Clause 3).
	6.3 The review may take account of (inter alia):
	6.3.1 the Council’s specific needs and requirements as discussed with NPH during the process described in Clause 3.2;
	6.3.2 changing standards (such as energy efficiency);
	6.3.3 future stock condition surveys;
	6.3.4 legal and regulatory requirements (relating to fire safety and other matters).

	6.4 Any revisions arising from Clauses 2-4 shall give rise to a commensurate revision of the Works Fees pursuant to Clause 10.

	7 38TRepairs & Maintenance Works Contracts
	7.1 NPH will let and administer such Works Contracts as NPH (acting reasonably) deems fit to deliver the Repairs & Maintenance element of the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme following the expiry or earlier termination of the current co...
	7.2 In the procurement of any Repairs & Maintenance Works Contracts NPH will comply with all applicable European Union and other regulations and take all reasonable steps to adhere to best procurement practice and achieve value for money.
	7.3 NPH will stipulate provisions in the Repairs & Maintenance Works Contracts (when they are let) so as to take reasonable account of possible future revisions of the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme in accordance with Clauses 6.2 – 6....

	8 38TImprovement Works Contracts
	8.1 NPH will let and administer the Works Contracts as NPH (acting reasonably) deems fit to deliver the Improvement element of the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme following the expiry or earlier termination of the current contracts.
	8.2 The provisions of Clause 7 shall apply to Improvement Works Contracts as they apply to Repairs & Maintenance Works Contracts.

	9 38TMonitoring and the provision of information
	9.1 NPH will enable the Council to monitor NPH’s performance under this Agreement by participating in the Performance Management System.
	9.2 In addition to Clause 9.1, NPH will provide the Council each Quarter with such additional information as the Council may reasonably require to satisfy itself as to NPH's performance of its obligations under this Agreement, including the delivery o...
	9.3 The information referred to in Clause 9.1 will include details of formal complaints made by tenants and other residents directly affected by the Services.
	9.4 The parties (acting reasonably) shall from time to time agree the format for the reports required under this Clause.

	10 38TTotal Fee etc.
	10.1 For the period from 5 January 2015 to 31 March 2015 and for the first Financial Year of this Agreement (meaning the period to 31 March 2016) the Council will pay NPH £[XXX] and £[XXX] respectively for the provision of the Services in accordance w...
	10.2 The Total Fee will be calculated and/or is deemed to be attributable to the Services on the basis shown in Schedule 5 and which will be sufficient to enable NPH to discharge its obligations (including, without limitation, its obligations to third...
	10.3 Any revisions to the Services arising from Clauses 2-4 shall give rise to a commensurate revision of the Total Fee pursuant to this Clause 10.
	10.4 It is agreed that subject to Clause 10.5 NPH is entitled to use the Management, Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement elements of the Total Fee as it sees fit to deliver any or all of the respective Services.
	10.5 Virements between the HRA funded elements of the Management Services Fee, the Repairs & Maintenance Services Fee and the Capital Sum are permitted up to £2 million in aggregate in any Financial Year. Any virements above that level or any virement...
	10.6 Each Financial Year, the Total Fee shall be varied as follows:
	10.6.1 the parties will commence discussions on the Total Fee for the next Financial Year in parallel with the review of the Delivery Plan described in Clause 2;
	10.6.2 the discussions referred to in Clause 10.6.1will be based on the Fee Principles in Schedule 6;
	10.6.3 any variation of the Total Fee shall (subject to Clause 13.2) be commensurate with the variation of the Specification, the Delivery Plan and/or the Services in accordance with Clauses 2-4 provided that the Total Fee shall always be sufficient t...
	10.6.4 if the parties cannot agree the variation of the Total Fee and invoke Clause 31 an Expert to whom the dispute is referred shall take into account any value for money requirement in the Delivery Plan and Specification subject always to the provi...

	10.7 The Total Fee for Management Services due and payable under this Clause 10 shall be paid in advance by equal payments on the first day of each calendar month.
	10.8 The Total Fee for the Repairs & Maintenance and (subject to Clause 10.9) the Improvement Services shall be paid in advance by equal payments on each of the usual Quarter Days as described in Schedule 4.
	10.9 In each Financial Year of this Agreement and [without prejudice to Clause 10.8 and subject to Clause 10.10 the Council shall pay NPH as part of the Total Fee the Capital Sum as and when required for NPH to discharge its obligations under the Impr...
	10.10 The Council shall ensure that any payment made under Clause 10.9 is always sufficient to enable NPH to discharge its obligations under the Improvement Works Contracts.
	10.11 The payment and accounting arrangements for the Total Fee shall enable NPH (where appropriate) to charge VAT and the Council (where possible under Section 33 of the VAT Act 1994) to recover it.

	11 38TSurpluses and reserves
	11.1 Subject to Clauses 11.3-11.5 NPH shall be entitled to use any of its available surpluses or reserves in accordance with its strategic plan entitled "Use of Surpluses and Reserves" which will form part of the Delivery Plan.
	11.2 NPH shall consult the Council about the use of its surpluses and reserves pursuant to this Clause 11 and obtain the Council's consent for the use of surpluses and reserves outside the scope of the Delivery Plan.
	11.3 Surpluses and/or reserves shall only be deemed to be available for the purposes of the remaining provisions of this Clause 11 if:
	11.3.1 this is consistent with NPH's adopted accounting standards or specific confirmation from NPH's auditors;
	11.3.2 they arise from NPH's operational activities (including Management Services and the staffing element of the Repairs & Maintenance Services but excluding the subject matter of Clause 11.5); and
	11.3.3 they have not been identified by NPH for future use in accordance with the Delivery Plan.

	11.4 NPH shall unless otherwise agreed with the Council  use any available surpluses or reserves to meet any in-year shortfall in the Services Fee, but shall not be required to use them to meet any deficit in the Pension Fund in respect of the Transfe...
	11.5 Surpluses arising from the Improvement Services and the non-staffing elements of the Repairs & Maintenance Services shall be rolled forward into the ensuing year's Repairs & Maintenance and Improvements Works Programme.
	11.6 The Council will ensure that NPH has an operating balance as set by the Council's 'Section 151' officer and which takes into account the views of NPH's auditors.

	12 38TAdditional income-generation
	12.1 they are consistent with NPH's Objects or they can be legally pursued and exploited through a wholly owned subsidiary;
	12.2 NPH's ability to discharge its obligations hereunder is not adversely affected;
	12.3 any proposed commitment by NPH is expressly approved by NPH's board and is recorded at the next appropriate meeting between NPH and the Council;
	12.4 any proposed new venture by NPH outside the Delivery Plan which can reasonably be expected to generate a yearly turnover of over £50,000 shall be first approved in writing by the Council.

	13 38TImprovement of Service Delivery and Continuous Improvement
	13.1 The parties acknowledge the importance of the principle of continuous improvement in the provision of the Services and the delivery of the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme and accordingly:
	13.1.1 NPH will regularly review how better to perform its obligations hereunder; and
	13.1.2 the Council will support NPH to improve its performance.

	13.2 NPH will use all reasonable endeavours to improve standards and achieve greater cost-effectiveness.
	13.3 Improvement in the delivery of Services will be effected by NPH's better performance as evidenced by its delivery against the KPIs in Appendix 2 to the Delivery Plan.
	13.4 Year-on-year efficiencies will be achieved by delivering the Services at a higher standard or less cost.

	14 38TNew build
	14.1 The Council will work with and support NPH and other organisations to maximise opportunities for building and acquiring new homes within the borough. Where the Council has agreed a proposed new development or an acquisition or acquisitions with N...
	14.2 NPH will devote such resources as it can reasonably make available to carrying out the development or acquisition of new affordable or mixed use housing in accordance with the Council's housing strategy (including any specific stipulations concer...
	14.3 The Council intends that NPH will be the manager of any Council-owned new build properties.

	15 38TNPH's Constitution
	16 38TThe governance of NPH
	16.1 NPH board meetings shall be open to the public save for any part or parts of the meeting declared by the board through its chair to be private.
	16.2 NPH and the Council will adhere to the agreed protocol on liaison with Council members.

	17 38TChanges in NPH's role and activities
	17.1 The parties acknowledge that NPH's role and activities on behalf of the Council will  be subject to change including changes resulting from:
	17.1.1 regulatory or statutory requirements;
	17.1.2 tenant and/or leaseholder expectations;
	17.1.3 Council policy objectives

	17.2 Any such changes will be dealt with pursuant to Clauses 3-4.

	18 38TServices provided by the Council
	18.1 The Council will provide the services described in Schedule 3 (the Council Services) for the fee(s) set out therein.
	18.2 If the Council and NPH agree that the Council will provide an additional service to NPH a description of that such service (in the same form as set out in Schedule 3) will be prepared together with the agreed fee (or fee formula) therefor.  The d...
	18.3 If a Council Service is not being performed to the standards set out in the relevant part of Schedule 3, the parties shall meet to discuss how the Council Service is to be improved. If agreement cannot be reached, the matter shall be resolved usi...
	18.4 The Council Services may only be terminated with the agreement of both parties.

	19 38TCouncil's financial support for NPH
	19.1 The Council shall provide and evidence such support for NPH as shall be required to enable NPH's auditors to confirm from time to time to NPH's board of directors that NPH is and will continue to be able to meet its debts as they fall due and is ...
	19.2 The Council agrees that whether through the Total Fee or otherwise it shall ensure that NPH is able to discharge its liabilities for the pensions costs attributable to NPH's past, present and future employees.
	19.3 The Council will provide the Pension Fund with such a guarantee of NPH's membership thereof as shall prevent NPH's liability for any deficit attributable to the past service of the Transferring Employees (the Deficit) having the effect of renderi...
	19.4 If notwithstanding the guarantee referred to in Clause 19.3 NPH as employer of the Transferring Employees is required itself to assume responsibility for the Deficit and for so long as it remains more cost-effective to reduce the Deficit by annua...

	20 38TTUPE and related provisions
	20.1 NPH acknowledges that with effect from and including the date hereof it will become the employer of each of the Transferring Employees pursuant to the TUPE Regulations.
	20.2 The Council warrants that the only persons employed in the Undertaking are those whose posts are listed in Schedule 7 and that the details relating to the Transferring Employees as set out in Schedule 7 are correct in all material respects at the...
	20.3 The Council undertakes to be responsible:
	20.3.1 for all salaries and other emoluments including but without limitation holiday pay, tax and National Insurance payments allowances and contributions to retirement benefit schemes in respect of the Transferring Employees up to but not including ...
	20.3.2 for any costs arising from the termination of employment of  certain Transferring Employees identified by the Council.

	20.4 The Council is not aware of:
	20.4.1 anything done or omitted to be done prior to the date hereof by or on behalf of the Council in respect of any contract of employment or any collective agreement or any persons employed in the Undertaking which could give rise to a claim against...
	20.4.2 any claim by any trade union, staff association or staff body in respect of all or any of the Transferring Employees arising out of the Council's actual or alleged failure prior to date hereof to comply with its legal obligation in relation to ...

	20.5 Save as identified in Schedule 7 all of the Transferring Employees are paid for out of the HRA.

	21 38TThe HRA ring-fence
	21.1 The parties acknowledge that HRA income and expenditure is and remains (following the implementation of Self-financing) subject to the requirements of the statutory ring-fence.
	21.2 After the Total Fee and other financial arrangements between the Council and NPH have been agreed each Financial Year in accordance with this Agreement there shall be produced a statement of the allocation of HRA monies in a form determined by th...
	21.3 For the avoidance of doubt the Management Services Fee includes identified expenditure on General Fund activities.

	22 38TCouncil responsibilities and entitlements
	22.1 is and remains statutorily responsible for the HRA;
	22.2 will set rents and other charges for its tenants each year;
	22.3 may vary the Fee (but only in accordance with Clause 10);
	22.4 may vary the Delivery Plan, Services and Specification in accordance with Clauses 2-4; and
	22.5 may terminate this Agreement in accordance with Clause 27.

	23 38TSection 151 duty
	24 38TManagement of the HRA
	24.1 information on its activities to enable the Council to manage the HRA; and
	24.2 advice on how best to make use of the resources within the HRA under Self-financing.

	25 38TConsultation on HRA matters
	26 38TTerm
	27 38TTermination
	27.1 Subject to Clause 27.2 the Council shall be entitled to terminate this Agreement if NPH fails to comply with the terms hereof or if in the Council's unfettered opinion there is a serious and substantiated risk that NPH will shortly fail so to com...
	27.2 Unless NPH's actual or anticipated failure which would entitle the Council to terminate this Agreement cannot (in the Council's reasonable opinion) be remedied NPH shall be afforded a reasonable opportunity (including where appropriate a remedial...
	27.3 If the Council becomes entitled to terminate this Agreement it may decide to terminate the whole or any part hereof and either provide the Services itself or procure that any third party do so and NPH will take such steps as may reasonably be req...
	27.4 The Council shall have a right to terminate this Agreement where it is required to enter into an agreement with a Tenant Management Organisation (TMO). If the Agreement is terminated under this Clause 27.4 the Council and NPH shall within three m...
	27.5 This Agreement shall be terminated if such requirement is imposed pursuant to Section 247(2) or 249(2) of the Housing and Regeneration Act 2008.  If the Agreement is terminated pursuant to this Clause 27.5 the Council and NPH shall make all neces...

	28 38TAccess to information and Data Processing
	28.1 NPH will afford the Council and persons properly authorised by it access to any information reasonably required provided that the Council gives NPH appropriate notice thereof.
	28.2 [NPH and the Council shall agree a protocol for sharing personal data in a manner which supports the delivery of Services and complies with the Data Protection Act 1998.]

	29 38TInsurances etc.
	29.1 The Council shall for the period up to [ ] request LGSS to procure  separate policies of insurance for NPH from the Council’s  insurers or underwriters on the same terms as the Council’s insurances in respect of NPH's liability to:
	29.1.1 the Council and any employee of the Council;
	29.1.2 the employees of NPH; and
	29.1.3 any other person.

	29.2 The premia for such policies of insurance shall form part of the calculation of the Total Fee.
	29.3 The Council shall insure in its own name against all the usual risks associated with its housing stock.

	30 38TNPH support
	30.1 provide the returning officer with the resources required for his or her election responsibilities; and
	30.2 respond to a civil emergency,

	31 38TDispute resolution
	31.1 Save as otherwise provided in this Agreement, in the event of any dispute between the parties arising out of or in connection with this Agreement the parties shall in the first instance use their reasonable endeavours to resolve it amicably betwe...
	31.1.1 Stage 1: Representatives of the parties (being the officers having day to day responsibility for or knowledge of the area which is the subject of the dispute) shall meet within ten working days.  If they are unable to agree a resolution at such...
	31.1.2 Stage 2: The relevant Representatives or their nominated deputies shall meet within ten working days.  If they are unable to agree a resolution at such meeting or if there shall be no appropriate officers of each of the parties available to att...
	31.1.3 Stage 3: The Chief Executive of the Council and the Chief Executive of NPH or their nominated deputies shall meet within ten working days.
	31.1.4 In seeking to resolve any dispute considered under Stage 1, Stage 2 or Stage 3 the parties shall apply the following principles:
	(a) a spirit of mutual trust and co-operation
	(b) both parties shall bear their own costs
	(c) the parties shall extend the periods of negotiation if they  both agree to do so
	(d) any unanimous decision shall be implemented.


	31.2 Disputes remaining unresolved after following the procedure set out in Clause [31.1] shall be referred to an Expert.
	31.3 Subject to Clauses 31.4-31.7 the result of any dispute resolution procedure under this Clause 31 shall be final and binding on the parties (save in the event of fraud or a mistake in law or material fact) and shall where and to the extent necessa...
	31.4 No resolution of any dispute pursuant to this Clause 31 shall be final and binding on the parties unless the Council's Representative confirms the Council's agreement pursuant to Clause 31.5.
	31.5 Subject to Clause 31.6 the Council's Representative shall confirm the Council's agreement to an Expert's decision within 20 working days thereof (the Confirmation Period) and if he fails to do so then subject to Clause 31.6 the decision shall be ...
	31.6 If within the Confirmation Period the Council's Representative notifies NPH's Representative of the Council's disagreement with the Expert's decision the Council shall have ten working days thereafter to make another decision and that decision (w...
	31.7 If the Council fails to make another decision in accordance with Clause 31.6 the Expert's decision shall be final and binding on the parties.
	31.8 Until such time as a dispute between the parties is resolved or concluded in accordance with this Clause 31 the parties shall continue to comply with their respective obligations under this Agreement.

	32 38TRegulator
	33 38TStatutory obligations and key Council policies
	33.1 Without prejudice to NPH's obligations to comply with housing and related legislation as set out in the Specification NPH will comply with all Other Legislation.
	33.2 Subject to Clause 4 NPH will comply with the Council policies listed in column (3) of the Specification as the same may be amended, varied or replaced from time to time following consultation with NPH.

	34 38TValue added tax
	35 38TInterest on overdue payments
	36 38TNo partnership
	36.1 incur any expenses on behalf of the Council;
	36.2 enter into any engagement or make any representation or warranty on behalf of the Council; or
	36.3 commit or bind the Council in any way whatsoever

	37 38TSurvival of this Agreement
	37.1 Insofar as any of the rights and powers of the Council provided for in this Agreement shall or may be exercised or exercisable after the termination or expiry of this Agreement the provisions of this Agreement conferring such rights and powers sh...
	37.2 Insofar as any of the obligations of NPH provided for in this Agreement remain to be discharged after the termination or expiry of this Agreement the provisions of this Agreement imposing such obligations shall survive and remain in full force an...

	38 38TSeverance
	39 38TNo assignment
	40 38TNotices etc
	41 38TThird party rights
	42 38TConcurrent remedies
	43 38TVariation
	44 38TConfidentiality
	44.1 The parties agree to keep the subject matter of this Agreement confidential subject only to statutory duties and/or usual contractual obligations.
	44.2 It is acknowledged by the Council that notwithstanding NPH's status as the Council's subsidiary NPH may have commercial and other interests which are confidential to NPH.

	45 38TLaw
	1 The Total Fees for the periods to 31 March 2016 are set out in Clause 10.1 and the Total Fee for 1 April 2015-31 March 2016 is itemised in Schedule 5 together with indicative budgets for the following four Financial Years.
	2 The Total Fee will be varied each year to reflect any changes to the Delivery Plan and Specification in accordance with Clause 10.6 [and to reflect NPH’s agreement to achieve continuous improvement in Clause 13].
	3 Calculation of the Total Fee will be by reference to the pro forma breakdown in Schedule 5 (subject to any subsequent agreed revisions).
	4 The Total Fee will always match the cost of the current year’s element of the 5 year 'rolling' Delivery Plan, with indicative budgets for the ensuing four years.
	5 Total Fee discussions under Clause 10.6.2 on the cost of achieving the requirements of the Delivery Plan will take account of the following generic factors:
	5.1 competing pressures on the HRA Self-financing and General Fund business plan, either because of reduced resources or increased demands;
	5.2 the resultant financial parameters for the Total Fee;
	5.3 any addition to, or reduction of, the Services required by the Council as described in the Delivery Plan;
	5.4 any adjustment of the performance standards at which the Services are to be delivered as described in the Delivery Plan;
	5.5 the additional costs to NPH of a reduced Total Fee (in particular redundancies);
	5.6 NPH's obligation herein to identify and deliver efficiencies;
	5.7 the amount of surpluses/reserves built up by NPH to the extent available pursuant to Clause 11;
	5.8 the resources required by NPH to deliver the Services;
	5.9 current and future legislative and regulatory changes;
	5.10 contingency events.

	6 Indicative Total Fee budgets for years 2-5 of the Delivery Plan may anticipate future Total Fee adjustments in accordance with Clause 10 (for example, to achieve savings, cost reductions etc.)
	7 Any proposals for Total Fee reductions (as part of the adjustments as described in 6.) will recognise the extent to which some of NPH's costs are fixed and/or subject to external change.
	8 The Total Fee is to comprise three separate elements: (a) the Capital Sum for the Improvement Works; (b) the Repairs & Maintenance Fee; and (c) the Management Services Fee. The Management Services Fee consists of two parts: (i) Housing Revenue Accou...
	8.1 NPH's Management costs chiefly comprise pay and pensions.   Retaining staff involves meeting contractual or statutory obligations and though redundancy reduces on-going costs there is an initial cost to be met
	8.2 Maintenance costs depend on the size and nature of the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme and may be inflexible to the extent that they are incorporated in any contract to which the Council or NPH is bound
	8.3 Improvement costs also depend on the size and nature of the Repairs & Maintenance and Improvement Programme, but recognising that NPH's administration work may not correlate reliably thereto

	9 The Management Services Fee is drawn in part from the General Fund (for the activities described in the breakdown in Schedule 5).
	10 Notwithstanding all the above, NPH acknowledges the need to deliver value for money, achieve more for less and to be benchmarked against comparable ALMOs facing similar challenges.

	Delivery Plan V10
	1.  Foreword
	2. Introduction
	3.  Vision, Mission and Values
	4.  National Context
	5.  Local Context
	6. Northampton Partnership Homes Strategic Objectives
	7. Resources
	8. Governance of Service Delivery Plan
	9. Review cycle
	Appendix 1 – Strategic and Key Objectives
	Appendix 2 – Measures – Still working progress
	Appendix 3 – Housing Asset Management Strategy
	To be inserted post Cabinet approval.
	This is an agenda item of this Cabinet meeting and is available as a separate item if required. Appendix 4 – Fee Proposal (years 1 to 5)



	9 Articles of Association of Northampton Partnership Homes Limited
	Northampton Articles final -

	10 The Northampton Armed Forces Community Covenant Annual Progress Report
	11 Strategic Acquisition of Town Centre Property
	Appendix 1 - Albion Place

	12 Disposal of Land at Westbridge Depot
	05.1 Westbridge Depot Appendix 1 Oct 2014

	13 HIMO Interim Planning Statement
	04.1 Appendix 1 HiMO Consultation Statement V2

	14 Finance and Performance report to 30th September 2014
	03.1 Appendix 1 Highlight Report Sep 2014 Q2 - FINAL
	03.2 Appendix 2 All Measures Report Sep 2014 Q2 - FINAL(1)
	03.3 Appendix 3 General Fund Capital Budget Changes
	03.4 Appendix 4  Cabinet 12th November - HRA Capital Realignment




